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Notice to convene ordinary meeting of shareholders
The Bank’s shareholders are hereby notified ofdrdinary meeting of the shareholders to be helthat
Centro San Francesco in Cividale (Piazza San Fraoag with first call at 9:00 AM on 29 April 201616
second call, if necessary, &30 AM on 30 April 2016

Agenda
1. Financial statements for the year ended 31 Decer@b&b and any related matters;
2. Proposal to set the share premium pursuant to k528 of the Italian Civil Code;
3. Proposal by the Board of Statutory Auditors purduarArt. 13 of Legislative Decree No. 39/2010dguat
the compensation for legal auditing service;
4. Remuneration policies;
5. Appointment of corporate officers and determinatbtheir compensation;
6. Bylaws of the shareholders’ meeting;
7. Any measures pursuant to Art. 2393 of the Italiarl Code concerning events relating to the constin

of the new headquarters of Banca Popolare di Cid@C.p.A. and the associated real-estate traimast
against the directors of Tabogan S.r.l. due todiefit management;

8. Any measures pursuant to Articles 2393 and 24QReoftalian Civil Code concerning events relatimg t
the construction of the new headquarters of Bangaofare di Cividale S.C.p.A. and the associated-rea
estate transactions against the directors and stayuauditors of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C._pmA
office at the time due to deficient controls of @lséons of Tabogan S.r.I.

We would also like to remind you that, pursuantttee law, only those shareholders presenting cecttlion
of ownership of their shares, issued at branchesB#nca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. or by another
intermediary, are eligible to attend meetings ofesbholders.

In accordance with the current Bylaws for the megtiof Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A., shalddns
may obtain a copy of the Bylaws free of charge.

Cividale del Friuli, 23 March 2016

Chairman
Michela Del Piero



Letter from the Chairman

Shareholders,
In 2015 Banca Popolare di Cividale recorded the fessult in its history, allowing it once more tistibute
a dividend of € 0.30 a share after two years otabs.

This result appears even more significant whenaamsiders the macroeconomic scenario without alglea
defined recovery and the historic advent of negativterest rates and yields on the most widely held
government bonds, in addition to an environmemtasficular hardship in the Bank's local commundtythe
members and customers of cooperative banks.

In an economic situation that remains complex, witak signs of a recovery, the Bank used the exuell
result achieved in 2015 to put itself on a path #flaws all of us to look with greater confidermethe future
financial performance, capitalisation and positidrBanca Popolare di Cividale in its market of @tiem,
which remains Friuli Venezia Giulia and Eastern tenwith the aim of continuing to provide stromgpport
to the local economy.

However, what the Bank and the region are experigris an epochal change, and the crisis of confidén
the cooperative banking system is evident, witlarcleonsequences for the Bank, a leading playehén t
cooperative credit sector for 130 years and, | anlam, a future leader of the sector for an edpragth of
time to come.

There is no doubt that Italy ought to have takeliffarent approach to the epochal revolution repnésd by
the introduction of the "bail-in" mechanism: in auatry where savings are protected by law, theamesr
customer learned of the entry into force of thimgple solely through the painful and sometimesnekatic
interventions in favour of Banca dell'Etruria, Bandelle Marche, Cassa di Risparmio di Ferrara aass&di
Risparmio di Chieti in November, involving measuitest effectively anticipated the future, with spread
across the entire Italian banking system.

In the community where we live and work, this camaddition to the specific crisis experienced layks
with very long traditions, to which our Bank is cpaned daily as it seeks to win customers' trusthentdl the
value of cooperative banking high. Increasinglycdigaging news regarding the financial performaenue
operational behaviour of such banks in recent yedong with a very severe decline in the valugheir
shares in view of a transformation into joint-stecknpanies, have had negative consequences @irtly's
other cooperative banks as well.

Shareholders,

Although the economic situation remained diffidnlR015, the "historic" net income of € 24.1 millieeven
after the contribution of € 6.6 million required thie Bank by the supervisory authorities for inggrion in
favour of the banks in crisis - was due in parthi® net capital gain of € 62 million earned on $hk of the
interest in ICPBI, used for the present and fuggoed of the Bank, i.e. to ensure particularly sdilidncial
performance and financial position moving forwaaid,a natural, fundamental foundation for indepetden
authoritative growth.

The part of the capital gain put towards capitddsercement allowed the CET1 ratio to be increasddo,
among the highest levels in the Italian bankingusidy.

In addition, capital enhancement will result iraio of price to book value of around 1.

More generally, the Bank's Board of Directors addmn overall policy of strengthening all techna&spects
of the Bank, from completing the company reorgaivsaprocess with the merger of Civileasing S.g@\.
increasing the rate of coverage of non-performimang (45.2%, among the highest in the Italian anki
industry) and conducting a rigorous assessmemad\gill and real-estate assets involving the regagnof
impairment losses of over € 15 million.

In this scenario, the Board of Directors decidedfull accordance with supervisory regulations fgqg
banks to maintain current and prospective capii@qaacy consistent with the overall risks assuned,
propose that the shareholders' meeting approverreration for shareholders in the form of a totaidénd
of € 5 million (€ 0.30 per share), resulting inrags yield of 1.53%.



Shareholders,

Our Bank is very solid, has deep roots in its l@oahmunity and is establishing growing trust amimwvgstors
and business owners, resulting in constant growits customers, shareholders and loans to busisessit
works for our future.

The main factors of our success are immutableddilg efforts of the women and men who work atBaak
each day, the trust our customers have placedamdishe patience demonstrated by our shareholders.

These make up the foundation for very specific fe@fors of success. Some a tangible nature, sutieas
geographical proximity of our decision-making cestto businesses and families, or the longer agdesyire
of our employees at our branches than at mediunteage banks. Others are intangible, such as glrlbiel
of professional experience in several specificacd@ur business, as witnessed by the strong grof\Banca
Popolare di Cividale's subsidised lending.

We have adopted a balanced development plan f@& 2@t guides the main sources of recovery of ek
income performance, in full awareness that it Wélvery difficult to repeat the excellent resulbhiawved in
2015, due to the further natural decline of thetiwbution from finance, in view of the current nége
government bond yields.

Firstly, we predict that service fees will grow thvan emphasis on wealth management assets, (haet ito
the plan to recruit new specialised resourcesalsatto the very strong focus on forms of investnaéhird-
party funds, which generate fees and require laggad.

We will continue to cut costs, despite investinggimmunication (our celebration of our 130th anrdaey
will be more than adequate), training and reneviaragnch physical plant. We are focusing closely @nbh
profitability, by scrutinising less well establigshbranches with less dynamic performances, andtiadoa
more active human resources policy, with redundancgntives aimed at supporting youth employment in
the region and creating room for new professionaters at the Bank.

Shareholders,

In conclusion, Banca Popolare di Cividale is onéhefsoundest companies in Friuli Venezia Giulighwhe

mission of performing to the fullest its role aslacal bank," while keeping the closest possibés tio
businesses and households, even at these diffilmgs. Investors did not lose confidence in outituison

even at the most crucial periods: the increasingbmar of our customers and shareholders continubsedp
witness to this fact.

Although ample account of the above will be giverihis Report, | believe it is important to empkasihe
value - in a scenario of continuing social and eooic complexity and difficulty in Italy - of the comitment
universally made by all employees of the Bank tui@dng its ordinary and strategic objectives.

This shared intent and motivation represent thé dedence of how the principles laid down in owdé of
Ethics are adopted and applied by employees ardaotors at all levels in their day-to-day workislion the
strength of this very evidence that | believe igigdsonable to hope that Banca Popolare di Civigidlsucceed
in weathering the period of profound change fagetthb Italian banking industry on the strengthhid vvalues,
while remaining true to the community banking mogslulting from its cooperative origins.

The Chairman
Michela Del Piero



Financial highlights and balance sheet ratios for Bnca Popolare di Cividale

BALANCE SHEET DATA 31/12/2015 31/12/2014* Var %
Loans to customers 2.683.711 2.735.250 -1,9%
Financial assets and liabilities g 1.197.886 1.101.567 8,7%
Investments in associates and companies subject to joint 6.427 6.476 -0,8%
Total assets 4.168.018 4.230.413 -1,5%
Direct funding 2.561.759 2.583.466 -0,8%
Indirect funding 968.534 879.658 10,1%
- of wich: Assets under management 720.359 586.920 22,7%
Total funding 3.530.293 3.463.123 1,9%
Shareholders' equity 313.570 277.760 12,9%

* Comparative period "normalised" for comparabiliyith the 2015 scope of consolidation following @ieileasing and Tabogan merger

Reclassified balance sheet

ASSETS 31/12/2015 31/12/2014* Var %

Cash and cash equivalents 18.381 18.487 -0,6%
Financial assets held for trading 1.220 3.032 -59,8%
Financial assets available for sale 1.164.689 1.033.838 12,7%
Attivita finanziarie detenute sino alla scadenza 32.716 64.697 -49,4%
Due from banks 40.385 159.347 -74,7%
Loans to customers 2.683.711 2.735.250 -1,9%
Investments in associates and companies subject to joint 6.427 6.476 -0,8%
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets ® 92.296 103.971 -11,2%
Other assets @ 128.192 105.315 21,7%
Total assets 4.168.018 4.230.413 -1,5%

* Comparative period "normalised” for comparabilityith the 2015 scope of consolidation following @igileasing and Tabogan merger
(1) The aggregates include captions "110. Propgutamt and equipment"” and "120. Intangible assets";
(2) The aggregates include captions "130. Tax aSsetd "150. Other assets".

LIABILITIES 31/12/12015 311202014 War %

Cue to banks 1.167.164 1.240.387 -5,9%
Direct funding from customers 2.561. 7509 2.583.466 —-0,8%
Financial liabilties held for trading T40 1.0385 -28 8%
Other liabilities 110.217 118.034 -5,56%
Specific provisions = 14.567 9.730 49, 7%
Shareholders’ eguity = 313.570 277.750 12,9%
Total liabilities 4.168.018 4.230.413 -1,5%

* Comparative period "normalised” for comparabilityith the 2015 scope of consolidation following @igileasing and Tabogan merger
(1) The aggregate includes captions "20. Due tdarusrs" and "30. Debt securities issued"”;

(2) The aggregates include captions "110. Empldgerination benefits" and "120. Provisions for 8sknd charges”;

(3) The aggregate includes captions "130. ValuatEserves,"” "150. Equity instruments,” "160. Resg/{/"170. Share premium,
"180. Share capital," "190. Treasury shares," 4860. Net income / (loss)."

Reclassified income statement

INCOME STATEMENT DATA 31/12/2015 31/12/2014* Var %

Net interest income (including result of hedging) 65.285 69.516 -6,1%
Net commissions 22.683 20.955 8,2%
Dividends and netincome (loss) of equity investments accounted for using

equity method ®) 1.015 927 9,4%
Net trading income 80.850 35.624 127,0%
Other operating income (expenses) *) (236) 459 -151,5%
Operating incom e 169.596 127.482 33,0%
Personnel expenses (40.657) (39.879) 1,9%
Other administrative expenses @ (30.704) (23.906) 28,4%
Net impairment/w rite backs on property, plant and equipment and intangible

assets @ (8.179) (1.897) 331,2%
Operating cost (79.540) (65.682) 21,1%
Income (loss) from operating 90.056 61.800 45,7%
Charges/w rite-backs on impairment of loans and financial assets (60.393) (37.049) 63,0%
Goodw illimpairment and Profit (loss) on equity investments (10.049) (5.223) 92,4%
Net provisions for risks and charges (5.578) (2.643) 111,1%
Income (loss) before tax from continuing operation s 14.036 16.884 -16,9%
Tax on income from continuing operations 10.017 (10.895) -191,9%
Netincome for the period 24.053 5.989 301,6%

* Comparative period "normalised” for comparabilityith the 2015 scope of consolidation following @igileasing and Tabogan merger

(1) Profits of equity investments measured at gqodlude the profits/losses of equity investmergasured according to the equity method
included in item "210. Profit (loss) of equity ist@ents";

(2) Other administrative expenses include recosenfetaxes and duties and other recoveries recegnimder “190. Other operating
income/expenses” (€ 6,232.4 thousand in 2015 aB@40.7 thousand in 2014).

(3) Net adjustments to property, plant and equipraed intangible assets include items “170. Chafgeise-backs on impairment of property, plant
and equipment”

and “180. Charges/write-backs on impairment of ng#ble assets.”

(4) Other income and expenses correspond to “1308efoperating income/expenses” net of the recfiecsdions presented above.

~



BALANCE SHEET RATIOS

JMMZ2015 311202014 =

Indirect funding from customers / Total funding

Assets under management / Indirect funding from customers
Direct funding from customers / Total liakilities

Leans to customers [ Direct funding from customers

Loans to customers / Total assets

27 4%
T4, 4%
51,5%

104,8%
54, 4%

24,68%
66, 7%
54,0%
100,4%
54,3%

CREDIT RISK INDICATORS

JMM22015 3MM22014 *

MNet non-performing loans 15,63% 13,44%
Other net impaired loans 7,47% 6,59%
Net non-performing loans / Loans to customers 2,06% 1,32%
Other net impaired loang / Loans to customers 73,26% 64 05%
Total net impaired loans / Loans to customers 63,80% 66,1%
Non performing loans hedging 14,83% 13,659%
Other impaired loans hedging 45,29% 43, 72%
Cost of credit 2,06% 1,32%
Profitability ratios 3111212015 310412014
Met interest income/Operating Income 32,49% 52, 76%
Met commision income/Operating Income 13,37% 17,20%:
Costiincome 45 90% 51,92%
Met income for the pericd/Total Assels 0,58% 0,14%
Met income for the pericd/BVWA 1,12% 0,259%
Productivity ratios IMM22015 IMM22014
COperating cost / N° of employees 134 111
Operating income / N° of employees 285 214
Loans to customers / N° of employvees 4533 4733
Direct funding / N* of employees 4327 4714
Structure ratios 311212015 JMM2r2014
Loans to customers [/ Total net assets 55,03% &7,34%
Direct funding / Total net azsets 62,07% 63,60%
Assets under management / Indirect funding frem customers 74,.38% 85 72%
Loans to customers / Direct funding from customers 104, 76% 105,88%
Total assets / Shareholders’ eguity 1329,21% 1523, 05%
Share value JMM22015 IMM22014
Share value 19,60 24 50
N® of shares 16.971.085 16.971.085
Shareholders’ equity 313.570.071 277785324
PV 1,06 1,50
Operating structure 3MM212015 3MM22014
N® of employvees o092 o063
Branches 75 75
Basic Earning per share JMM22015 JMM22014
Adjusted attributable profit 24 0583 5.803
Weighted average number of shares 16.971.085 16.971.085
Basic Earning per share 1,42 0,34
OTHER ECOHOMIC INFORMATION HAM22015  MA22014*
Operating cost / Operating income (cost income ratio) 46 9% 21,5%
SOLVENCY RATIOS IMM22015 IMM22014 =
Commen Equity Tier 1 /Risk-weighted assets (CET1 capital ratio} 13,0% 10,0%
Tier 1 Capital / Risk-weighted assets (Tier1 capital ratio) 13,0% 10,0%
RWVA 2.150.883 2.296.744
Total own funds / Risk-weighted assets (Total capital ratio) 14,6% 10,7%

* 311 2/2014 - Bilancio Consolidate



Report on operations

Introduction

The primary statutes governing the preparatioh@tlirectors’ report on operations are Art. 242thefltalian
Civil Code, Art. 3 of Legislative Decree No. 87/298oncerning the separate and consolidated accofints
banks, both as recently amended by Legislative éxelio. 32 of 2 February 2007, and Bank of Italyc@ar
No. 262 of 22 December 2005, as amended, Presentathemes and Rules for Compiling Separate and
Consolidated Bank Financial Statements.

The macroeconomic scenario

The international economy

Global economic prospects indicate a modest a@@erin growth during the reporting year and the
following year. The most recent indicators sugdlat economic activity has improved to a greatgrele
than expected in advanced economies, and in plarticuthe United States and Japan, but remain& wwea
emerging nations.

The improvement in employment data in the UniteateSt contributed to the increase in the benchnzaek r
by 25 basis points: the Federal Reserve thus beganiod of normalisation of monetary policy, mackihe
conclusion of the zero rate policy implemented sibecember 2008. The decision was widely expeatdd a
had a limited impact on international financial andrency markets. In other economies outside tlm® E
Area, monetary policies remain highly expansionary.

Euro Area

In the Euro Area, economic activity continues tovgr
but remains subject to downside risks tied to uager
foreign demand. In the third quarter of 2015, GL
increased by 0.3% compared to the previous peri

GDP of the euro area
and the main area countries (1)
{quarterly data; indices, 2005=100)

driven primarily by household spending and the gear ™ i
in inventories. In detail, GDP increased by 0.3% 1 | s
Germany and France and by 0.2% in Italy (Fig.). : ol et i

The most recent estimates indicate that the grtwtid i = j’;r\ ” i - i
also continued in the fourth quarter of 2015, wi s ;ff: \w ,::H.-"“""'"iﬂ'«:;i;wh"“' 105
essentially consistent performance between theesar - f,i’ff \\L-'j* 100
nations. Household and business confidence india ““f’fﬂ\“x,

were also positive, driven by favourable signstiega = ——

to employment.

- S DO RO ST TT TR TR B T S A
Inflation in the area is expected to come to 0.2% ZHE S0 N KL 20, P00 L SISt T
December and remains below expectations. 7  ——Ewoaea  —iay France  — - Germany
weakness of the overall index was due in partictdar
the negative performance of the energy componeisirder to combat the risk that the decline in camiities
prices might have deflationary effects on long-tanfiation expectations, the ECB's Executive Boaidpted
additional expansionary measures and expande€atsises purchasing programme.

The most recent studies conducted demonstrate ffleaoy of the Eurosystem's securities purchasing
programme in supporting economic activity in thedcArea. The positive effects are estimated touitela
reduction of the cost of new bank loans to hougsihahd companies of between 60 and 70 basis ffafis
for Italian companies).

There are signs of improvementdredit conditions: the disbursement of credit to compaumereased by
1.8%, whereas the increase in loans to househetagined stable at 1.9%. The average levels of oatesw
loans remain very modest (2.3% and 2.1%, respdygfive

The Italian economy

Economic activity in Italy is gradually expandingxports, which drove the recovery in recent years,
declining due to slowing demand outside of Eur@rel are progressively being replaced by an incrigase
domestic demand. In last two quarters of 2015aaGDP is believed to have increased by 0.2%gdrly
household consumption and rising inventories. Iditah, since the beginning of the year, the stumsul
measures for purchases of capital equipment prdvidéhe Stability Act are expected to support stagents
and contribute to the strengthening of the recav@igns of an improvement in investments may atseden
in the robust performance of the confidence climatihe capital goods sector. Cautious signs ohopin

1 Source: The Bank of Italy’s Bolletino Economico.
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are also being reinforced in the construction settdhe third quarter, home purchases continogtse, and
home prices increased for the first time in fousnge(0.2% compared to the second quarter of 2015).
The growth of private consumption continued ‘zo | | | 120
the final months of 2015. The househo . | Consumer confdenca (4 (5) i
confidence climate stood at historically high leve o J i
(Fig. 2; source: calculations based on ISTAT dat | /

also driven by positive signs relating to the j¢'® | 7 ky’ il
market. In the third quarter, the number 190 /=% ’&,,\\ - f\.

o,

employed individuals increased, above all amag = | 55

the young and in the service sector. According g _ 50

data published by the INPS, the weight |~ Movmose=seesiE -

. . .. . o Single cbservations I

indefinite-term hiring increased, as a consequel IR I o R T
il

of the contribution relief under the Jobs Act, Iznq;-; 20 2011 2ME 9013 24 2045
force since early 2015.

Banking and finance

In the final months of the previous year, lendiaghe non-financial private sector increased byd.bhe
expansionary measures adopted by the ECB favouredustion of the cost of loans disbursed, albéit w
differences by sector of activity and size bracketthe August-November period, the average rateem
loans to businesses remained at very low leve®84)L.The cost of new loans to households declin&i@%.
Recent surveys by the Italian Banking Associationficm the positive trend: considering a represivea
sample of banks (accounting for more than 80% efntlrket), in all of 2015 new mortgage loans disédr
for the purchase of homes by families increaseti9%/1% on an annual basis compared to the preyigas

In the third quarter of 2015, the flow néw non-performing loansas a percentage of total outstanding loans
(net of seasonal factors and on an annual basigdaksed to 3.6% (from 3.8% in the previous quartdrgreas
the flow ofnew bad debtsas a percentage of total outstanding loans desldashalf of a percentage point
to 2.4%. The improvement is predicted to continu016 due to the expected strengthening of ecanomi
activity.

The cooperative banking system

Cooperative banks continued to provide supportotall their economies in 2015. Despite the objective
difficulties due to the economic and legislativersario, new loans to SMEs by cooperative bankshezh€
29 billion (€ 30 billion in 2014), accounting fopproximately 45% of new loans to companies.

Bad debts increased at a slower rate than in 20d2@14. Cooperative banks, which had gross bat$ @éb
€ 41 billion, or 21.3% of the total for the bankimglustry, maintained ratios essentially equahtprevious
year and significantly below their share of theakdban market. These results were due to suchshaldse
relationships with their local communities and g@®nomic difficulties that inevitably translatedarcredit
guality issues. The risk level of banks in thisegatry remains below that of the industry at largetfoth
enterprise customers, where it is lower by 2.8 gr@iage points, and minor business customers (-1.5%)
The International Monetary Fund's projections fol@ call for a scenario of consolidation and imgpngv
economic expectations. Within this scenario, tladidh banking industry is expected to resume grosith
major balance sheet indicators and improvemertsadrnings margins.

2 Source: National Association of Cooperative Banks: Characteristics and prospects of the Italian economy



The regional banking system

The September 2015 figures appear
confirm the stability of loans to families
(+0.2%) and the slight recovery of loans
businesses (+2.1%). (Fig. 3: Bank loans 2°
annual percent changes in Friuli Venez
Giulia). )
Average bank interest rates continued o O O
decline. The deposit rate growth remain
stable for families at around 2.5%, b
fluctuated for businesses, coming to +9.0
in September. 40
Credit quality deteriorated: the flow of ne\

bad debts reached 5% for companies ¢ =l=Families ==@==Businesses
amounted to just above 1% for families.
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The Bank's branch network consisted of 75 operatibranches at 31 December 2015.

The Bank has a presence in seven provinces iretfiens of Friuli Venezia Giulia and Veneto, distiiid as
follows:

- 41 in the province of Udine;

- eight in the province of Gorizia;

-eleven in the province of Pordenone;

- three in the province of Trieste;

- six in the province of Treviso;

- five in the province of Venice; and

- one in the province of Belluno.
Human resources
At 31 December 2015, the human resources of Banpal&e di Cividale S.C.p.A. numbered 592, compared
to 583 in December 2014 (consolidated figure).
During the year, 22 employees were hired and 13Ték finalisation of the company reorganisationcgss
also entailed the direct transfer of eight formesil€asing employees. The sales network (branchesloys
a staff of 396, representing 66.9% of the totadceant.

[
[

3 Source: Friuli Venezia Giulia monthly statistical summary



Human resource statistics

Classification of staff by professional category:

31.12.2015 31.12.2014
Men Women Total Men Women Total
Senior managers 10 1 11 8 1 9
Widdle managers 187 41 225 189 34 223
Widdle managers — part time - 11 11 - 11 11
3rd professional area 150 141 M 1458 138 284
3rd professional area — part time: 5 43 45 4 2z 43
2nd professional area 1 2 3 3 5 8
1zt professional area - - - - - -
Total 353 239 592 350 233 583

Incoming and outgoing personnel:

Changes 2015 Changes 2014
KMen Women Total Ken Women Total
Hirings 14 8 22 3 1 4
of which: business combinations 6 2 g - - -
Terminations 11 2 13 12 2 14

Breakdown of workforce by age, gender and education

31.12.2015 31.12.2014
Wen Women Total Men Women Total

No. of employees by gender 353 239 592 350 233 583
Percentage of emplovees by gender 506% 404% 100,0% S0,0% 40,0% 100,0%
Average age (years) 4645 4250 4506 4500 4230 44,55
Level of education

University degree 139 111 250 134 104 235
Secondary school diploma 208 124 330 208 125 333
Other 8 4 12 8 4 12

Breakdown of workforce between headquarters anddiranetwork:
Mumber of employees
INA22015 % HA22014 %

Headquarters 196 33,1% 183 31,4%
Branch network 396 669% 400 63,6%
Total 592 100,0% BE3 100,08
Training

As in previous years, the 2015 Training Plan wadted according to the guidelines envisaged irtlhee-
year Strategic Plan (2014-2016). In further detadining programmes were implemented with the afm
bringing current skills into line with the strategikills identified; disseminating the knowledgegent in the
company and encouraging uniform behaviour; andedigsating company values and objectives. Training
activity took the form of behavioural initiative$ @ managerial nature (on communication, relatigrssand
sales), initiatives of a technical nature (on drefitiance and products) and initiatives concerriawgs and
regulations (prevention of money-laundering, theimistrative liability of entities, internal contreystem,
workplace safety, etc.). During 2015, the employa&fe8anca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. receivedtal

of five days of training each. A total of 22,834um® of training, corresponding to 3,045 man-daysrew
provided.

Particular attention was devoted to organising sesiconcerning legal obligations, with a speciati$oon
IVASS rules (IVASS Regulation No. 5 of 16/10/2008)process that involved conducting the associated
training and subsequent refresher sessions oraimseiissues in order to ensure that insurance gredles



staff were able to keep their qualifications cutrébonsiderable efforts were also dedicated to idiog
training and refresher sessions for personnel coitge money-laundering prevention rules pursuant to
Legislative Decree No. 231 of 2007, and training &0 supplied to members of the Board of Direcand
Board of Statutory Auditors.

Document on compensation policies

The general principles of the governance provisissised by the Bank of Italy place especial emghasithe
mechanisms for providing compensation and incestitge bank strategic supervision and control body
members, management, employees and contractorstatadhat those mechanisms are among the keydact
to fostering the competitiveness and governancbaoks, in addition to being a means of attractind a
retaining employees with professional skills anpgezkise suited to the company’s needs.

Such compensation mechanisms are to be inspirettheébyrinciples of sound, prudent risk management
policies and are to be consistent with long-terrmgany strategies and objectives. Supervisory réguka
thus envisage that personnel compensation politielsiding any plans based on financial instruméets.,
stock options), be subject to approval by the di@ders’ meeting.

The shareholders’ meeting is thus called upon psae the Compensation Policies for 2016. This duant
provides a detailed account of the Banca Popola@vitiale's compensation and incentive policied tre
principles of propriety, fairness and transparemggn which those polices are founded, in accordavitte
the bank’s business philosophy, which aims to ereaistainable economic, but also social, valuéén t
medium term.

In response to the supervisory provisions, the ohaeu requires that a part of the variable compensaif

key staff be paid in financial instruments, speailly the Bank's shares. Under the Consob rulesrgovg the
issuers of financial instruments, this thereforsuts in the obligation to draw up a new prospettube
submitted for the approval of the shareholders'timge describing the compensation and the forms of
remuneration paid in financial instruments.

A detailed disclosure of the implementation of cemgation policies is also provided to the ordirsagsion

of the Shareholders’ Meeting.

Bonus and incentive system

During the year, activity in the area of human teses management policies included an update to the
incentive system for the sales network focuseduamtitative balance sheet and income statemerttawgth

a focus on the long term and customer satisfactdnje also taking management risk profiles into
consideration. The incentive system is integraténthe more general bonus system, which condiste et

of rewards (fixed and variable) for the professimmaand qualitative and quantitative performarmfgsuman
resources.

Mission and values
The mission of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.jsAocreate value over timefor:
- shareholders who believe in this venture and have placed tinest in us;
- customers the households and businesses that, in exchandkeir loyalty, are entitled to appropriate
services;
- employeeswho add value to the Bank and, in return, expeafessional growth and economic rewards;
and
- the community, as true progress is not possible unless econgnoieth is accompanied by social, cultural,
ethical and moral advancement.

Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. seeks to becanmint of reference for families, government and
businesses in the Friuli Venezia Giulia region, smpromote cultural, economic and social growthsriocal
area.

Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. intends to iomet to operate independently, identifying all ferof
cooperation that can help it achieve its corpoaates.

The mission of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.jsAnspired by the following values:

- Driving change

Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. seeks to bevemdof change by continuously questioning itsdion
and re-casting itself in innovative, effective ways

- Independence



Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. intends to oo to operate independently, identifying all ferwf
cooperation that can help it achieve its corpoaites.

- Customer focus

Customers lie at the heart of the Bank’s stratagid operational choices. Relationships with custeraee
based on attentiveness and a propensity to listemder to offer a constantly evolving range afgcts and
services.

- Entrepreneurship and involvement

A spirit of initiative , belief, commitment andparticipation characterise the people who work at our Bank.
These same characteristics underpin our searcjudity and innovation in our products and servioesrder

to cater to customer needs.

- Competence and professional growth
The growth of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.#erotime leverages the Bank’s wealth of profesdiona
skills and experience by sharing knowledge and ptomg the development of interpersonal relations.

- Ethics and transparency

Responsibility and fairness are the cornerston@g@faction with customers, shareholders, assx&td the
community as a whole. By enhancing transparendyuginess and commercial dealings, supporting social
responsibility initiatives and respecting the eamiment, Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. intendsster
economic, social and cultural development in tleaavhere it operates.

- Identity and history
The Bank’s cultural roots can be traced back thigigoric identity as a credit institution foundedoster local
economic and social development.

Corporate management and the pursuit of a common géctive

The shareholders

The Company had 15,250 shareholders at 31.12.2B&5,esult of the purchase of interests by 934 new
investors and the sale of interests by 228 shadehsl

A total of 1,019 transactions involving a total wwle of 132,208 shares were executed during the Peang
2015, 934 applications for the admission of newelnalders were reviewed and approved. Changein th
Bank's shareholders over the past five years lagrated below:

Year Incoming Outgoing
shareholders shareholders
2011 570 384
2012 1,012 608
2013 1,236 551
2014 1,831 281
2015 934 228

Annual report on the mutual nature of the cooperatve and corporate social responsibility

This section of the report, in addition to dischiaggthe obligation imposed by the reformed texidicle
2545 of the Italian Civil Code, represents an ingor opportunity to provide shareholders with othjexg
measurable data that certify that the Bank's ojmermimatch the mutual spirit of the Company as saged
by Article 3 of the Articles of Association. In ahwords, this report allows the Bank to providetfar proof
that the cooperative model is well suited, evetha current competitive scenario, to meeting thedseof
economic, moral and cultural promotion expressetthbysociety and communities in which the Bank afesy.
The Bank pursues the wellbeing, promotion and agreent of its local communities, both in its tramhal
base of operation and new areas, in accordancdhetimutual nature of cooperative banking.

The Bank’s endeavours are inspired by the prinsipfdawfulness, loyalty, propriety and transpaseas it
pursues its primary goal of creating value foshareholders, customers, employees and local cortiesuat
large.

During 2015, the Board of Directors steered thdititfon's operations towards a primary focus on
shareholders. Shareholders are of central impatamece they are also customers of the Bank. Théota
role of shareholder and customer is an advantagesthphasises the bond of trust and strengthemsuheal
orientation of commercial initiatives.

Article 3, paragraph 3, of the Articles of Assomatexpressly states that “[ijn accordance withnssitutional
goals, the Company shall provide its shareholdstetners with access to specific services underlggied
conditions, just as it shall give preference tsltareholders in issuing loans, all other condétioeing equal.”



The figure at the end of 2015 appears especiafjgifsiant in this respect, in that it indicates ttihe
shareholders of Banca Popolare di Cividale whoadse customers of the Bank represent 94% of total
shareholders.

During 2015, the Bank continued to pursue the jplas enunciated above by offering shareholdeemfiral
and banking products at better economic conditibas standard list prices.

Yet it is not only initiatives aimed at sharehoki¢hat bear witness to the Bank’s pursuit of theualu
objectives envisaged by the Articles of Associatiime focus on the local community’s needs is bawurtey

a number of initiatives aimed at providing soctalltural, athletic, solidarity and environmentabpart. Most
such initiatives are modest in scope and contritutbe lives of hundreds of entities and assamiatispread
throughout the territory, giving rise to intenséiaty with an important effect on local commungie

Social responsibility

Banca Popolare di Cividale’s socially responsiteddviour shows that our institution is both an ecoic
player and an active participant in its local comityu

The local focus that has always characterised mafitution binds us to local communities with reoigal
support and reinforcement. Placing the communigXgectations at the heart of the company’s straseigi
one of the factors that set apart our approach.

Our Bank has always contributed to the sustaindeleslopment of the community through an approach to
management aimed at reinforcing social cohesion.

A focus on the local community and solidarity dre founding values of cooperative banks, yet thieyaéso
the values that inspire our Bank's mission. ThekBaads value and transfers it back to the community
allowing for the creation of further value and gextig profits that stimulate demand and creats Jpbalso
securing the involvement of those who do have tiedationships with the Bank. Banca Popolare didzile
was born of the need for solidarity amongst pe&pl@ the same local community who grasped the ahémc
work together to achieve goals not possible forstina of individual efforts.

Local banks contribute to a community's growth bgporting its most deserving endeavours. In 201icBa
Popolare di Cividale continued to support localte® and associations in continuing to do theirkvon
behalf of the community.

A total of € 144 thousand in charitable donatiorsravmade to schools, entities, athletic and cultura
associations and societies operating in the region.

An additional € 290 thousand was provided to lecdities for which the Bank provides treasury segvi
Accordingly, the total amount of funds donateddoially relevant initiatives came to € 434 thousang015.
Banca Popolare di Cividale also invested € 403ghnd in the community to sponsor cultural and etiloreal
activities, events aimed at promoting the localnecoy, and local athletic associations and events.
Considering contributions towards social initiag\and the investment in promotional activity, ardeding
advertising, narrowly defined, the total financislipport representative of the Bank's annual social
commitment in the community came to € 837 thousand.

Areas of activity 2015

29%

16%

M social welfare, academic and educational initiatives and local communities
M measures aimed at developing the local cultural heritage

M local events and promotion of the local aera and its economy

M initiatives in the field of social inclusion, sport and free time

The Bank's endeavours to make the most of the camtyrsirich historical and artistic heritage enable
important cultural activities to be carried out. =

U
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The 37th edition of the annual publication Forunfiildunded by Banca Popolare di Cividale, which
consolidates each year's studies conducted unel@utpices of Cividale del Friuli's National Arcblgical
Museum, was presented during the year.

Also worthy of mention is Banca Popolare di Civelal membership in and support for the Mittelfest
Association, based in the ducal city. The assamiatvas created with the aim of contributing to the
development of knowledge and the exchange of exmpegiin the fields of theatrical and musical peniance
between Friuli Venezia Giulia and central Europeations. To this end, each year the associatioanisgs
an event entitled Mittelfest in Cividale del Friwdimulti-cultural festival featuring prose, muslance, cinema
and street theatre.

Banca Popolare di Cividale also supported the elkestival is History, which is organised in Gorigach
year with the participation of illustrious guesthawdiscuss the great themes of historiography. @ugbso
continued to be provided for Carniarmonie, a sarfgsrestigious musical events organised in plateare
beauty in Carnia, and to the Sergio Gaggia Mugksslociation, which organises important musical éven
and seasons in the area.

In 2015 Banca Popolare di Cividale continued topsupcultural activity promoted by the Teatro Nuovo
Giovanni da Udine Foundation, and in particular@édren's Theatre review, which allows young saers
and their families to became acquainted with arssipaate about the world of theatre, thus stimudgsind
developing their curiosity, participation and cudlugrowth. During the year, support continued floe
Cinematographic Expressions Centre of Udine an®ffieine D'Autore Association, which is committea
promoting quality cinema and re-discovering comrtyiginemas.

During the reporting year, the Bank continued tppsut local associations committed to spreading and
promoting popular culture and traditions, includiaganisations that represent the Slovenian mindmit
Friuli Venezia Giulia, which is highly active indfcultural arena.

In 2015 Banca Popolare di Cividale joined the Fatimh for Financial Education and Savings, an
organisation formed at the initiative of the ItallBanking Association in order to promote finaneidlication,
according to a broader conception of educatioruisyit of informed, active economic citizenshipthwihe
aim of developing and spreading an understandirfitpafhce and economics throughout Italy. In theterin

of this important partnership, the tenth RegionaViBgs Day was held on 29 October 2015 at the @eatr
Nuovo Giovanni da Udine: over 500 students fromeugnd lower secondary schools from the entireoregi
attended the event Economi@scuola - a lesson moewe citizenship, an educational initiative progwby
the Bank with the support of the Foundation foraficial Education and Savings and the Regional Sstiol
Office for Friuli Venezia Giulia. The goal of thevent is to combat the increasing prevalence ofnfired
illiteracy amongst young Italians.

During the exercise, the Bank renewed its suppmrtife Origins course organised by the MIB Schdol o
Management of Trieste: an extraordinary educatierpkerience for the descendants of the world'ddfriu
and Julian-Dalmatians who, following a period od@demic education in international development, bega
internships at prestigious firms in Friuli Venezziulia. Fostering collaboration between the regon'
companies and regional natives abroad, strengt@eheprofessional and cultural bonds between emigr
and their homeland and honing the new managemeribtarnational business skills of the young pgstiots

in the course are the goals pursued by the fourtmmaining initiative.

Banca Popolare di Cividale also contributed tadtganisation of the event Start Cup FVG 2015, apgsgiition
between innovative ideas and start-ups devisedgpast young entrepreneurs and promote the creatidn
growth of business initiatives. The Bank also sumgabthe initiative Labor.comm of Tavagnhacco, a co-
working workshop.

Local promotion is another of the Bank's prerogegtj\and its support for local development everpsasf of
that fact. The Bank continued to collaborate wite San Daniele Ham Consortium in 2015 to orgathise t
international event 'Aria di Festa' (A Festive Aigr which Banca Popolare di Cividale acted asspoto
the event. Support was also renewed for the Pro li@sociation of Friuli Venezia Giulia and its iative
Christmas at the Villa: Nativity Scenes in Villdxur of Nativity Scenes in Friuli Venezia GiuliaNativity
Scene Competition in Primary and Nursery SchoolBrinli Venezia Giulia, in addition to support ftre
Association of Alpine Refuge Managers and HikersFalli Venezia Giulia and Veneto in relation to
‘Girarifugi 2015, a project aimed at promotingriem in the region's mountainous areas.

The Bank also supported the charitable event FsiémcCividale, a great celebration involving musiance,
art and culture that drew some of Italy's greatessts, along with the country's best new musid art
offerings, to a single stage, in response to tlidroa Monfalcone-native singer Elisa.



In the athletic arena, Banca Popolare di Cividafgsrted thdenain the race Barcolana 2015: the boat placed
second in the world's largest sailing regatta, tviwas held in Trieste in October. The Bank is glsnering
with Udinese Calcio on the hospitality project teig to the new stadium and supported the locdd'slR015-
2016 season-ticket campaign.

Banca Popolare di Cividale continued to play aivaable in the areas of sport and free time, atsttinuing

to support for automobile racing (including theufirand Eastern Alps Rally, the Verzegnis - Sellaa@izutan
race and the Cividale - Castelmonte time trialjliog and golf and contributing to the ongoing aiem of
local football, rugby, volleyball, basketball, témmnd swimming clubs, as well as all other disogsd that
provide an important opportunity for togetherndéissddition, for several years the Bank has beepaitiing

the Udine University Athletic Centre, which works direct contact with the University of Udine and
contributes to the activity of the basketball teAmici Pallacanestro Udinese, which plays in theie&sér
league.

In 2015 the Bank launched the project ConcrEtHBzaiking, a series of initiatives conceived to esprthe
Bank's close rapport with the community, presentethe Bank's headquarters during the summer. jgro
based above all on concrete numbers - € 80 thousfumtled with resources drawn from operations and
increased due to a successful crowdfunding operattaducted on the Internet, involving thousandssefrs
and hundreds of volunteer associations based irethen.

Banca Popolare di Cividale decided to allocate €h8dsand of the total € 80 thousand to the puecb&d5
defibrillators. Some of these were delivered torpresentatives of several particularly isolateahicipalities

in the Natisone Valleys, far from hospitals andtfaid centres, such as Drenchia, Pulfero, Grimacab
Savogna. Other beneficiaries included San Giovahhatisone, Pavia di Udine, Gemona, Tavagnacco and
Remanzacco. The other life-saving devices will ledivdred to other local communities shortly. Banca
Popolare di Cividale also bore part of the costsahing 30 operators from the beneficiary muraditges in

the use of these fundamental life-saving devices. dourses were held at the Bank's offices in loofktion
with Red Cross personnel (Udine delegation).

"A Vote that Really Counts and Costs Nothing" is ttame of the initiative promoted by Banca Popattre
Cividale on the Internet in support of the sociddBneficial projects conceived and managed by Inoat
profit associations. The Bank provided a donatidn€o50 thousand. Through the dedicated website
www.progettocivibanca.it, the crowdfunding portditbe innovative Civibanca 2.0 Project, the publias
able not only to vote for its favourite projectsf llso to contribute directly to them by makindamation, in
some cases of a symbolic amount of just a few edtdbe end of the process, which involved theipguation

of 327 associations and collected over 10,000 ythestotal sum gathered was € 70,000, of whiclh,©QD
came from spontaneous donations. Overall, 113 @d&nts received the votes necessary to receivetaop

of the contributions provided.

In light of the great success of the CivibancaRx@ject - which received special mention for itsanative
characteristics, social impact and concrete natutlee 2015 Banking Services Innovation Award dighbd

by the Italian Banking Association - and the langenber of organisations that participated in thgaiive,
starting in 2016 Banca Popolare di Cividale wilglmeorganising free training courses to aid asgiogia in
benefiting to the utmost from the visibility andteattion to their presence on the crowdfunding porta
www.progettocivibanca.it.

For the 2015 Christmas holidays, Banca Popolaf@iddale once more decided to put the sum sperit eac
year on personal organisers and year-end giftsdal lassociations, organisations and schools cdseurtio
important projects focusing on the social and caltdevelopment of the community.

Mention should be made of the participation of MighDel Piero, Chairman of Banca Popolare di Cieida
in the opening of the Forum CSR 2015 dedicatedtparate social responsibility, organised by tladidn
Banking Association and held on 1 December 201&aiAssociation's headquarters. The event focused o
the role of banks in supporting the entreprenesyatem and individuals to encourage economiciactwnd
individual and family projects and to face the tdrades of economic growth, along with those of aloand
environmental development.

The reader is referred to Banca Popolare di Ciglddbrthcoming 2015 Social Responsibility Report.

Bank’s operating performance during the year

The reporting year was characterised by a geneyalavement of economic indicators and the familgl an
business confidence climate. GDP has finally begugrow, for the first time after a long periodretession,
international demand is rising, the recovery ofvgie consumption has been consolidated, employment
prospects are improving and the propensity forstment is rising. The recovery, which now seems arel

its way, nonetheless requires further signs of cligtetion in a macroeconomic scenario that is cliffi to



interpret. The market volatility caused by the emuit crisis in China, slowdown of emerging market
economies, declining oil prices, currency markebalence, and excessive strengthening of the eerordy
some of the elements that are straining the stifjife recovery in advanced economies.

For Banca Popolare di Cividale, 2015 was a posy@ge, marking clear progress compared to 2014oitapt
signs of improvement of the real economy may be.sEee credit dynamic is positive. New disbursersent
which together exceed € 221 million of loans, stggnificant percent growth. The group's restrucigiri
processes, completed during the year, allowedstramgthen the Bank's balance sheet and liqupdisitions,
which are currently among the soundest in the itmgdus

The year concluded with another positive eventresgnted by the completion of the process of gehin
majority interest in Istituto Centrale delle Bandébmpolari Italiane (1.C.B.P.1.) to Mercury Italy yahicle held
indirectly by the funds Bain Capital, Advent Intational and Clessidra SGR) by lItaly's foremost evafive
banks, as discussed in detail below.

The company, in which Banca Popolare di Cividale &lavays held an interest, is currently Italy's bem
one payment and credit card systems operator. Bocd@ Popolare di Cividale, the sale resulted in the
recognition of a positive effect on the income estatnt (gross of the tax effects) of approximatel§6e5
million, and thus in a further significant enhanegrmof the Company's financial profile.

Financial solidity is a key factor to banks' cutreperating scenario, marked by increasingly stegulatory
constraints, and it places the Bank in conditiohsotal security, including as regards the outcashehe
prudential assessment process (SREP - the SupgrReview and Evaluation Process) conducted by the
supervisory authority. At 31 December 2015, capdtibs were far above the minimum requirementdget
the Bank of Italy.

Nonetheless, 2015 was a "difficult" year for thai#tn banking industry as a whole, which was catlado
respond to the crisis affecting four Italian finednstitutions and the resulting negative medampaign,
which resulted in a decrease in investor confidevidefew precedents in Italy's recent history. Tégolution
measures, decided on as a last resort by the centpithorities, allowed more severe consequeincabd
Italian economy as a whole to be avoided, but regua significant sacrifice from all other Italibanks. For
Banca Popolare di Cividale, the extraordinary abatron was € 6.2 million, charged in its entiretythe
income statement, in addition to the € 0.4 millafrcontributions to the Interbank Deposit Protettiund.
Banks are facing an imminent scenario of profouadgformation of the traditional retail banking\see
model that takes account of the ongoing digitalohetion, the development of the European regulatory
scenario, and prospects of continuing low interatsts for an extended period. In such a complexatipeal
scenario, banks today must necessarily increaseetffieciency in order to allow investors to achéeketurns
sufficient to attract the capital that is needeéutly support the economic recovery in Italy. Thihich we
may term the profitability challenge - will be tpeority on which the Bank's managerial action wiled to
focus in 2016, including in the form the new 20182 business plan currently being drafted.

Main aspects of commercial activity

Sales and marketing policy

During 2015, the Bank continued to implement itesand marketing policy, focusing on rationalisitsy
product catalogue and implementing commercialatiites aimed at helping bank branches reach tugets
for direct, transparent relations with their custéos The Bank also restyled its products and sesvportfolio
effectively, constantly updating the terms overykar in line with developments in the financialrked.
The initiatives carried to completion during theay@allowed the Bank to strengthen its customettiogig,
through intense cross-selling and customer loyathgrammes, while also increasing the number oB#r&'s
customers through promotional activities gearespicific customer targets.

Products and services for individuals and families
The Bank’s line of products and services for indials and families can be divided into three gdraeemas:
payment/services, credit and investment/security.

Payment/service products

In the current-account segment, the Bank's divietsgolutions, aimed at satisfying customers’ dfieceeds,
contributed to increasing the number of new custsméno decided to choose our Bank. The net balahce
new accounts opened and accounts closed came t@ a9 new current accounts opened, resultinquin a
increase in the Bank’s individual and family cusesmof 3.2%.

In Internet banking services, in 2015 there wassasing use by customers (both individuals and emiag)

of online account consultation and transactionisesy available 24 hours a day, in a completelyigec
manner, directly from home or on the go using wsidevices (PCs, tablets and smartphones). Aterehr-



there were 29,180 active users (+12.5% comparéuketprevious year). During the year, the test phease
completed for the new Internet banking applicatBfC Online, which has been available to the Bank's
employees since December and to consumer custemeesJanuary 2016. Technical development continued
in 2016 with the release of the application forestbustomers (professionals, businesses and oatjanis)

and the definitive discontinuation of the previamplication, CiviB@bnk.

The security measures implemented in 2015 haventet to prove effective, as witnessed by the atesen
fraud.

In the electronic payments sector, payment cartlildigsion continued to yield significant results 2015:
CartaSi credit cards climbed to 19,900 active carddy 6.6%; CiviPay prepaid cards increased bg%Qdo
10,900; and Bancomat debit cards in issue numtagpbximately 34,500, up by 6.1%.

Credit products

In 2015 the Bank’s activity continued to focus omimtaining credit offerings appropriate to the reed
expressed by households in order to ensure thépig®f access to home ownership.

Customers who met the requirements continued twyeagcess to the subsidies provided under themagio
residential construction guarantee fund for thellFWenezia Giulia area. These subsidies includeea
guarantee for beneficiary families on the portiba mortgage in excess of the value of the finanregerty,
as well as the submission of applications for gréot first homes.

In order to aid families struggling to make theiongage payments, the Bank implemented policiegdiat
facilitating mortgage renegotiation, including thgh the suspension of repayment of the principeigoof
instalments for up to twelve months, both withia tontext of the banking industry initiatives desitgd the
“Family Plan” and through measures implementecherbiasis of specific, justified individual situatg

The volume of mortgage loans issued for home pgehar renovations to consumer households stoéd at
81.5 million (+68.5%).

In the personal loan segment, commercial offerimgse characterised by the Civiprestito line of p@id and
credit products intended for energy saving iniiegi and improving the energy efficiency of buildinghder
the name Ecoprestito. The volume of credit dishiiise2015 came to € 24.3 million (+36.5%).

Investment/security products

In 2015 investment products maintained, and, inescases, improved on, the positive performancesaed

in 2014. The monetary policy pursued by the wonhgn central banks, and by the ECB in particulaih
the launch of QE, fostered stabilisation of interases at very low or even lower levels, whichmbined
with the normalisation of economic conditions iuntries that had been faced with periods of senemression
and social difficulties, resulted in abundant ldjty in the financial system, which drove investrgeim both
equity and bond markets. Asset management producteeded in capturing a significant share ofabget
flow, especially in the investment funds and SICA¥Cctors, which recorded net inflows of nearly 20%
compared to 2014.

As the need to invest has increased, so has tliefaesecurity, which resulted in a sharp rise @madnd for
policies, concentrated mainly casualty policiest medistributing the products of the Bank's partffleAS
Assicurazioni, and the policies issued in 2015 wgrdoy 23.8% on 2014. Finally, it should be noteak in
the fourth quarter of 2015 investment life insumpolicies began to be distributed with the newtrgar
EUROVITA, meeting with considerable interest frame toutset.

The range of deposit accounts in the Civiconto Bépdine met with strong approval in terms of sélen by
customers, in confirmation of its conservative ot@ion focused on seeking liquidity and secuiilye range
of products was updated constantly throughout ¢ta&,\50 as to keep pace with market interest ratements
and ensure that offerings remained competitive.r@liyethe funds raised through these instrumenés th
combine security and a high level of return excdezi@83 million.

In 2015 the Bank also completed an online prespraject, with the launch of ContoGreen, a depagibant
reserved solely for new customers via the Intecteinnel, which raised more than € 27 million for
approximately 500 new customers, primarily conegett in large Italian metropolitan areas (Milannio
Naples and Turin).

Products and services for businesses and entities
In 2015 initiatives continued with the aim of fataiting access to credit by small and medium enisFp in
order to mitigate the negative effects of the ecaicaycle.



The Department’s offices continued to provide técdinadvice and support to the distribution netwiork
order to facilitate and encourage the completiothefvarious lending procedures.

Of particular significance was the launch of diregerations with the SME Guarantee Fund (Law 6628),9
which facilitates access to credit for SMEs thropgblic guarantees, with costs borne by the Bank.

During the year, new loans to businesses of € Milllon guaranteed by the Fund were disbursed (A%).
Further support for credit was provided by collatimn with the guarantee consortia system. Newdoan
disbursed thanks to guarantees provided by theagte consortia of Friuli Venezia Giulia and Veneto
amounted to € 48.9 million (+32.7%).

The agreement with the European Investment BanR)(Riovided access to total additional resource€ of
23.7 million (+115.8%), used to supply financingWIEs at competitive interest rates, thanks tdittancial
advantage conferred by the EIB.

The various subsidised lending facilities made lalséé by the Region of Friuli Venezia allowed fueth
financing to be provided to various sectors of ¢éisenomy, for a total of € 22 million. Among thedee
primary sector was of particular significance, with1.7 million of funding provided drawing on treating
funds for agriculture made available pursuant tgi&eal Law No. 80/1982. Subsidised loans for indyst
crafts, trade and services drawing on the Rotafingd for Economic Initiatives and the launch of the
Development Fund saw the approval of € 8.7 milbbnew loans (+10.8%).

The number of POS terminals installed on the presnig merchants came to 2,750, up by 8.5% compared
the previous year, while active and passive CiviBk@B| multi-bank remote banking connections reached
3,615 units, an increase of 3.3%.

Changes in the organisational structure and procedes

Monitoring Practice

In order to ensure that credit is constantly mamidoin early 2015 the Monitoring Practice applimatwas
released to the entire network. The applicationsied to manage the monitoring of non-performingngoa
according to a structured approach on the baskeyfndicators aimed at identifying anomalous eseat
behaviour. The application also allows timely idigcdtion of relationships with signs of anomalydathus
potentially indicative of difficulty for the custaen, providing the manager the information needeahtalyse
the situation and determine the resulting actiomdoovery or restoration of the relationship tguiar status.
All of the manager's actions are documented inaghygication, which automatically manages the variou
phases of operations, standardising the way in lwkhe entire process is carried out. The infornmatio
structured in this manner, which permits timelfeefive credit management by ensuring that acsdaaken
for relationships at the first sign of anomaly,gloptimising the result of such activity, is comstgavailable
to the entire organisation responsible for the itidcess at the various established levels.

Digital ink signature

The digital ink signature solution for branch do@ntation was fully released for all branches ingeeond
half of 2015. The process began at several pilotdires in order to adequately assess the impagteyations
and customers' responses to this innovative teobyol

It was then released to the entire network, whereet with very positive feedback from customergow
welcomed the improved branch process performandettaa elimination of a considerable part of print
documents. Internet banking users have accessctodacuments in the area of the website dedicated t
communications, where they can be consulted amdegkiat any time. In 2016 the range of documeras th
may be signed with the digital ink signature wi# bxtended from branch documentation only to sjgecif
documents bearing on contractual relationshipgiaw of the ultimate goal of full conversion of d¢oacts to

electronic format

Significant events during the year
Significant events during the year included:

Sale of the equity interest in ICBPI

The sale of the 4.44% interest in Istituto Centosle Banche Popolari Italiane S.p.A. (“ICBPI”) Mercury

Italy S.r.I. (a vehicle indirectly owned by the fisiBain Capital, Advent International and ClessBIGR) was
finalised on 18 December. Following the sale, tllBretains an interest (0.70%) in the "new" ICBRI.
shareholders' agreement has been signed with Meitely S.r.l., establishing governance rules drelrules

for circulation of ICBPI shares. This arrangemeiit allow the Bank to keep its presence and coritm
benefit from the opportunities that may be offet®d a sector such as electronic payments and new
technologies, poised to undergo rapid development.

—



The transaction involved the collection of consadien of € 96 million and the recognition of a wapital
gain of € 62 million. The sales agreement alscdall an additional price component in the fornanfearn-
out based on future income, possibly to be paildadaSi S.p.A. by Visa Inc. for the sale of theiggunve-
stment held by the latter in Visa Europe. From gerational and commercial standpoint, the current
arrangements between the selling shareholders.@rgl.IP.I. have been extended until December 2028, w
a right of withdrawal granted on the third anniegysof closing.

Mergers

As part of the process of simplifying and reorgamgjshe Group's structure launched in 2013, the saa the
completion of the mergers of Tabogan S.r.I. (Ap@L5) and Civileasing S.p.A. (December 2015) inbm&a
Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Investigation by the Public Prosecutor’s Officeluafine

On 22 April 2015 the judge for the preliminary hiegrof the Court of Udine ordered the commencenaént
proceedings against Banca Popolare di Cividal®ldrch 2016, witness testimony began to be colletcted
former exponents of the company in connection withpredicate offences for Legislative Decree 23012
(primarily bribery between private parties and ioelment of perjury). The events have not changed the
directors' view of the risk to which the Bank igpeged under Legislative Decree No. 231/2001. Trexttirs
thus did not deem it necessary to recognise agmwvat 31 December 2015.

Specific capital requirements

On 23 December 2015 Banca Popolare di Cividaleivedethe final decision from the Bank of Italy
concerning the capital requirements to be satisfiial effect from 1 January 2016, on the basisefresults
of the Supervisory Review and Evaluation ProceREF: a Common Equity Tier 1 ratio of 6.9% and &l o
Capital ratio of 8.9%. The Bank's directors do fmesee any difficulty with regard to the curremida
prospective ability of Banca Popolare di Cividalesttisfy the established requirements.

Subsequent events
Inspection by the supervisory authority
The Bank of Italy’s ordinary inspection began oRebruary 2016 and is still in progress.

Possible measures pursuant to Art. 2393 and/or24@.7of the Italian Civil Code concerning events relgtin
to the construction of the new headquarters of BadPwpolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. and associated-asthte
transactions

The date on which these financial statements wergepted marked the conclusion, with the preparatio
an external legal opinion, of consulting activigncerning the assessment of possible liabilityterdirectors
and statutory auditors of Banca Popolare di Cie@dalC.p.A. and Tabogan S.r.l. in connection with th
management of the project to build the Bank's neadhuarters. The opinion was requested in resportse
inspection report by the Auditing Department préseiin the second half of 2015, as requested bpréhgous
Board of Statutory Auditors. The opinion identifiesmerous possible types of liability for both thieectors
of Tabogan and the directors and statutory audwdmBPC in office when the construction contractswa
awarded to Steda S.p.A., on the basis of a thoranglepth analysis of the facts and available dumntation.
The document thus concludes that it will be appaterfor the shareholders' meeting to discuss veneith
take the actions set forth in Articles 2393 and 7240 the Italian Civil Code against the groups aftyes
mentioned.

From the procedural standpoint, the same opiniditates that, following the merger of Tabogan Smtb
Banca Popolare di Cividale the latter's sharehsldeeeting is responsible for approving actionspant to
Articles 2393 and 2407 of the Italian Civil Codgamst both the directors of Tabogan S.r.|. anddirectors
and statutory auditors of Banca Popolare di Cidd&IC.p.A. in office at the time of the events. Board of
Directors did not identify any accounting impact balance sheet values relating to the Bank's new
headquarters, which have been presented in thecialastatements at 31 December 2015 on the basis o
sound application of international accounting ppies.

With the exception of the foregoing, from the efi@@15 to the date of approval of this report the@eze no
material events of a sort that would have a sigaift effect on either the earnings and financialtfmm of the
Company or on the representation thereof.



Analysis of main balance-sheet aggregates and eamgs results

The Bank ended 2015 with a net income of € 24,06Bidand, driven in particular by trading, which was
shaped by the net capital gain on the sale ofdhigyeinterest in ICBPI. More generally, financgdrformance

for the year began to reflect the first signs akeovery in Italy's real economy. Credit performamneas
positive, with a significant improvement in new hga Operating margins on business with customers we
driven by the resilient performance of net inteissbme and the increase in fee and commissiomtsze
Funding and lending volumes decreased slightlyeeghg industry-wide trends. Loans stood at € 2,881
thousand, down by 1.9% from € 2,735,250 thousan8ll4t2/2014. However, new loans during the year
totalled nearly € 221 million. New loans to privatestomers during the year reached € 115 milli@1¢4)
compared to the previous year, whereas new loacsnpanies reached € 106 million.

Direct funding, net of the institutional compondftassa di Compensazione e Garanzia), amounted to €
2,561,759 thousand, down by 0.8% compared to Deeeoflihe previous year.

In order to provide a more effective presentatibrearnings results, in the reclassified balancestshad
income statement certain restatements have bedirdipfith respect to the accounting schedules dttails

of which are presented at the foot of each redladsiable). In all schedules of the report on agiens, the
comparative period has been normalised to ensuwenaistent basis of comparison with the company's
situation in 2015 following the merger of CivileagiS.p.A. and Tabogan S.r.l.

Reclassified balance sheet

For the purposes of this report on operations, amsowdue to institutional counterparties (Cassa
Compensazione e Garanzia) have been reclassified 'IDue to customers" to "Due to banks" (€ 760,745
thousand at 31.12.2015 and € 118,564 thousantidardmparative period).

ASSETS IMM22015 IMM22014* Var %
Cash and cash equivalents 18.381 18.487 -0,6%
Financial assets held for trading 1.220 3.032 -50,8%
Financial as=ets available for sale 1.164.689 1.033.838 12,7%

Attivitd finanziarie detenute sino alla scadenza 32716 64 697 -45 4%
Due frem banks 40.385 150,347 T4, 7%
Loans to customers 2683711 2.735.250 -1,9%
Investments in azsociates and companies subject to joint 5.427 6.476 -0,8%
Property, plant and eguipment and intangible assets ™ 92.205 103.971 -11,2%
Other assets @ 128.192 105.315 21,7%

Total assets 4.168.018 4.230.413 -1,5%

* Comparative period "normalised” for comparabilityith the 2015 scope of consolidation following @igileasing and Tabogan merger
(1) The aggregates include captions "110. Propgutamt and equipment"” and "120. Intangible assets";
(2) The aggregates include captions "130. Tax a$setd "150. Other assets".

LIABILITIES HMH22015 HMH22014* Var %

Due to banks 1.167.164 1.240.387 -5,9%
Direct funding from customers ™ 2561759 2583 486 -0,8%
Financial liabilties held for trading 740 1.036 -28,6%
Other liabilities 110217 118.034 -5,5%
Specific provisions = 14 557 59730 49 7Y%
Shareholders’ eguity = 313.570 277.760 12,9%
Total liabilities 4.168.018 4.230.413 -1,6%

* Comparative period "normalised” for comparabilityith the 2015 scope of consolidation following @igileasing and Tabogan merger
(1) The aggregate includes captions "20. Due tdarusrs" and "30. Debt securities issued"”;
(2) The aggregates include captions "110. Empldgeeination benefits" and "120. Provisions for ssknd charges";
(3) The aggregate includes captions "130. Valuat&serves," "150. Equity instruments,” "160. Ress{/'170. Share premium,"
"180. Share capital,” "190. Treasury shates)d "200. Net income / (loss)."
(i) For the purposes of this report on operatioasjounts due to institutional counterparties (Cassafensazione e Garanzia) have
been reclassified from "Due to customers" to "Daudanks" (€ 760,745 thousand at 31.12.2015 and&56H4 for the comparative
period).

Loans to customers

At year-end, total loans to customers amounted2®83,711 thousand, down by 1.9% compared toQtd 2
consolidated figure.

In 2015 the persistence of the weak economic sitewnas reflected in recovering, yet still weak, dea for
credit by businesses and households.

Nonetheless, despite the stringent operating donditthe Bank continued to provide credit in suppbthe
local real economy, disbursing approximately € frfiion to households and € 106 million to SMEs.



Breakdown of loans to customers - period-end figimehousands of euros

(thousands of euro) IMM212015 IMM2r2014 “rar.
Current accounts 312.781 126772 146,75%
Morigage loans 1.419.551 1.762.612 -158,5%
Credit cards, personal loans and lcans repaid by

automatic deductions from wages 54,348 47.358 14,8%
Finance leases 220.716 244 E55 9,83
Other 278.271 1759.417 55,1%
Total performing loans 2.285.66T 2.360.814 -3,2%
Bad debts 200 473 180.187 11,3%
Unlikehy to pay 177.892 164.741 3,05
Past-due lopan=s 19,678 29 508 -33,3%
Total non performing loans 398.043 374.436 6,3%
Total loans 2.653.711 2.735.250 -1,9%

Quality of customer loans - breakdown

A. ON-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES Gross Specific Portiolio i cxposure Hedging MNetexposure  Hedging Writedowns
exposure writedowns writedowns

dic15  dic-15  dic-14 dic-14 dic-14
A Bank Group
Bad loans 473570 273.006 200.473 57.7% 180.187 5,98% 229.102
Unlikely to pay 230.081 52,138 177891 27% 164741 26,38% 59.018
Past-due loans 23.826 4145 19.678 17.4% 28508 8.47% 2731
Other assets 2302602 X 16.934 2285688 0,74% 2360.814 0,80% 18,926
TOTAL A1 3.030.088 325444 16.934 2683711 114% 2.735.250 10,2% 309.778

Credit quality was affected by the ongoing recassii the end of the period, total non-performingris,
net of adjustments, amounted to € 398,043 thouaftat adjustments of € 329,444 thousand), mar&img
increase of 13.3% compared to the € 290,852 tholuseatme previous year.

In further detail, bad debt positions, net of atipents, stood at € 200,473 thousand, comparedl8)€187
thousand in the previous year, representing areaser of 11.3% and accounting for 7.5% of the fotah
portfolio, with a coverage ratio of 57.7%.

Other doubtful positions amounted to € 197,569 shod, up by 1.71% from € 194,249 thousand at tHe en
of 2014, accounting for 7.4% of the overall loamtfudio. Of this amount, € 177,891 thousand (coneplatio
€ 164,741 thousand at the end of December 2014jsted of unlikely to pay positions and € 19,6 7@and
of past due positions, compared to € 29,508 a¢tideof 2014. The overall coverage ratio for norfgrening
positions was 45.3%.

Customer funding
Total direct and indirect funding came to € 3,583,2Zhousand at the end of 2015, marking an increbfe
67,169 thousand or 1.9% on the previous year.

311212015 311212014 VAR VAR %
Direct funding 2.561.759 2.583.466 (21.707) -0,8%
Due to customers 2.0386.029 1.884 4580 191.589 10,1%
Debt securities issued 475.730 569.006 (213.276) -31,0%
Indirect funding: 968.534 879.658 88.876 10,1%
Assets under administration 248175 2092733 (44.563) -15,2%
Aszets under management 720359 586.920 133.439 22 7%
Total funding 3.530.293 3.463.123 67.169 1,9%

Direct funding
Direct funding from Bank customers comprises it@dsDue to customers” and 30 “Debt securities igsue
At year-end, the aggregate amounted to € 2,561h&and, down by 0.8% compared to 31 December.2014

Direct funding from customers — figures at 31 Deloen?015 in thousands of euros

IMM2120156 HMM2/2014 VAR VAR %
Direct funding 2.561.759 2.583.466 [21.707) -0,8%
Due te customers 2.086.029 1.894.450 191.569 10,1%
Debt securities issued 475730 680.006 (213.2786) -31,0%

The aggregate may be broken down into “Debt séesrissued” (18.6%) and “Due to customers” (81.4%).
The aggregate "Due to customers”, from which thepament relating to institutional counterpartiesganted
above has already been excluded, was up by 10.4&4dndoart to the effect of the sale to third pertdf the

securities relating to the Civitasl securitisation.



Breakdown of “Due to customers” in thousands ofosur

Breakdown IMM2i2015 MM2i2014 %a
Current accounts and demand deposits 1.573.078 1.524.084 3.2%
Time deposits 284.813 333.369 -14 6%
Other borrowings - 642 -100,0%
Other payables 228138 36.365 2T 4%
Total 2.086.029 1.894.460 10,1%

An analysis of the dynamics that characterisecpréormance of the component "Due to customersivsho
an increase in the growth of the current accountsponent. The "Other amounts" component shows a
considerable increase, due in part to the salehitd parties of the "senior" securities of the Gigil
securitisation.

Breakdown of “Debt securities issued” in thousandguros

Breakdown 3MM22015 3MM2014 “a
Bonds 443934 638.158 -30,4%
Other 31.796 50.847 -37,5%
Total 475.730 689,006 -31,0%

Indirect funding and asset management
Indirect funding, which comprises assets under mpament and administration, came to € 968,534 thalisa

at the end of 2015, marking an increase of 10.1%.
Indirect funding from customers — figures at 31 &aber 2015 in thousands of euros

311212015 Comp. % 31M2/2014 Comp. % VAR %
Assets under management 720,359 T4,4% 586.920 66,7% 22,7%
investment funds and ICVCs 390.252 40,3% 320 458 37,5% 18,5%
insurance savings products 99.743 10,3% 60.0938 8,8% 86 0%
portfolio products 230.364 23,8% 197364 22 4% 16,7%
Assets under administration 248175 25,6% 292,738 33,3% -15,2%
Total indirect funding 968.534 100,0% 879.658 100,0% 10,1%

An analysis of the components of indirect fundihgws that assets under management came to € 720,359
thousand at 31 December 2015, up by 22.7% compart previous year. This aggregate, which comsist
of mutual funds and investment companies with Wéeizapital, bancassurance products and the desurit
and funds-based portfolio management schemes epdogtthe Bank, accounted for 74.4% of total inttire
funding at the end of 2015. In further detail, séms- and funds-based portfolio management sceerame

to € 230,364 thousand at 31 December 2015, up ¢d 6ompared to the previous year. The bancassaranc
component increased by 66.0% compared to the preyiear to reach € 99,743 thousand, whereas ingastm
funds and investment companies with variable chgiteod at € 390,252 thousand, up by 18.5% compared

31 December 2014.

Assets under administration decreased by 15.2% 4563 thousand, compared to the previous year.

Interbank market activities

At 31 December 2015, the Bank's fund-raising amdlitey activity on the interbank market stood ateh n
debtor position of € 1,108,398 thousand (compaoed het debtor position of € 1,062,554 thousanglat
December 2014).

Interbank position 311212015 31122014  Absolute Var %
Cash and cash equivalents 18381 18.487 (105} -0,6%
Loans to banks 40.385 159,347 (118.962) 74 7%
Due to banks (1.167.164) (1.240.387) 73223 -5,8%
NET INTERBANK POSITION (1.108.398) 11.062.554) (45.644) 4,3%
Finance

Management of the Bank's liquidity and proprietaegurities portfolio is entrusted to the Financevige,
which follows guidelines laid down by the Assetd driabilities Committee (ALCO). According to the
ALCOQO'’s directives, the bank’s proprietary secustjgortfolios are managed in close coordination \athal
funding and lending trends. The ALCO'’s periodicagp on the securities portfolio and liquidity, whiare
normally provided on a monthly basis, or wheneweumstances arise that may have a significant anga



the strategies in place, ensure that the perforemaisk profile, risks and development guidelinasfinancial
asset and liability management are constantly rooet

Financial assets/liabilities held for trading

At year-end, the portfolio of securities held feading amounted to € 480 thousand, compared t®%61,
thousand at the end of the previous year, and steaksiargely of equities and trading derivativelse Bbove
portfolio thus presented a moderate risk profilenpared to market risk factors (interest-rate, paoel
currency risks) and the risk of default by the &su as expressed by the ratings assigned by teadin
international agencies.

Financial assets/ liabilities held for trading MM22015 3MM212014 %

Debt =ecurities 66 1.451 -85 5%
Equity securitiez and UClz 391 222 75, 9%
Total aszets 457 1574 -T2, 7%
Financial deriatives 754 1.358 -43,8%
Financial aszets held for trading 1.220 3.032 -85 8%
financial liabilities held for trading T4l 1.036 -28 6%
Net financial assets/liabilities held for trading 480 1.996 -75,9%

Financial assets available for sale

Financial assets available for sale amounted t 641689 thousand, compared to € 1,033,821 thousand
December 2014. Breaking down the total at 31 Deeer015, € 1,113,812 thousand consisted of debt
securities (primarily government bonds of € 1,088,thousand and bank bonds of € 13,968 thousarnd§ an
16,354 thousand of interests in UCls, whereasdhminder was represented by equity investmentgdthat
not entail control, joint control or a significanterest.

Financial assets held to maturity
Financial assets held to maturity came to € 32tfi@é6sand and consisted of securities issued byrgments
and banks.

Exposure to sovereign credit risk

Following the growing interest by the market in espres held by companies in sovereign debt sexsiraind

as recommended by the European Securities and Makke¢hority (ESMA) in document no. 2011/226, the
following is a breakdown of exposures of this natbeld by Banca di Cividale at 31 December 2015. As
indicated in the ESMA document, “sovereign debtlmgerstood to mean bonds issued by central ardl loc
governments and governmental entities, as wethass| disbursed to such entities.

The following tables present the Bank's exposus®ate@reign credit risk by carrying amount, brokewd by
type of instrument.

Exposure to sovereign debt - book value Italy UK
Financial azsetz available for trading 1.087.250 1.238
Financial assetz held to maturity " 22283

Total 1.109.552 1.238

Liquidity and the proprietary securities portfolio
In a scenario of uncertainty, characterised bypgieating macroeconomic data for the Euro Area léailg,
in 2015 the performance of Italian government bomdsch make up the bulk of the proprietary poitpl
was driven by the monetary policy measures impleéatehy the ECB, which, at least in the first hdltlwe
year, resulted in a significant decrease in yi@dsEuropean bonds, and on Italian bonds in paaticuth
March yields on the ten-year BTP reached a lowd6f 1
Later in the year, this trend was reversed by i@s@f events that led to a sharp increase in matatility:
a) the deterioration of the Greek economy, b) tiraat slowdown of the Chinese economy and the sjutesd
rate cuts and depreciation of the yuan adoptetidoChinese central bank, and c) the first rateease by the
Federal Reserve.
In this highly uncertain scenario, the proprietpoytfolio continued to achieve its planned objeesivn 2015,
thus providing an important contribution to neteirgst income and operating revenues. The portiedis
actively managed, with slightly lower turnover themthe previous year. The timing used in managing
exposures resulted in a significant contributiothtototal performance. During the year, interat risk was
gradually contained through reduced exposure temument bonds with residual maturities of more tian
years. Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assetsedo € 1,164 million at year-end and primarily sish of

|



Italian government bonds with limited durationsgdato a residual extent, bank bonds and equitietd-tb-
maturity (HTM) investments stood at € 33 milliondaprimarily consist of short-term Italian governrhen
bonds and, to a residual extent, bank bonds. féelttading (HFT) assets and loans and receivafB3
represented a marginal portion of the overall ptidf

At 31 December 2015 liquidity reserves eligible fefinancing operations with the European CentiahlB
amounted to € 1,384 million, with three-month netildity reserves of € 252 million and a liquiditgverage
ratio of 145%. Refinancing with the European Cdriank is represented by participation in the TLTRO
auction, in addition to participation in the quakteuctions.

The favourable conditions of the securitisation kagrabove all transactions with residential magggbbans
as the underlying, were exploited for the partéé ©f the senior tranche of the Civitas secutitiga for total
funding of € 200 million, with an average duratimimapproximately four years.

Financial assets and liabilities held for trading 31 /12/2015 31/12/2014 var %
Debtsecurities 66 1.451 -95,45%
Equities and Quotas of UCI 391 222 75,89%
Financial derivatives 763 - 100,00%
Total assets 1.220 1.674 -27,1%
Financial assets available for sale - - 0,0%
Debtsecurities 1.113.812 961.833 15,80%
Equities and Quotas of UCI 50.877 71.988 -29,33%
Total assets 1.164.689 1.033.821 12,7%

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment amounted to € 82(8@3%sand, down compared to 31 December 2014, due in
part to the total impairment losses of € 5,684 famal recognised on several real-estate assetg doeyear.

The details are provided below.

Used in operations 31M272015 31M272014
Land 4933 4933
Buildings 59.568 70.782
Movables 4784 5.159
Electrical plant 871 975
Other 2 2
Totale Property and equipment used in operations 80.159 51.852
Investment property - -
Land 2770 2770
Total investment property 2770 2.770
Total 82.929 84.622

The intangible assets carried at 31 December 26thiated to € 9,367 thousand, compared to € 19H@6and
at 31 December 2014. The change was primarily dugoodwill, which fell from € 19,136 thousand t®£36

thousand, due to the recognition of the impairnhesg recognised in the income statement.

The impairment test conducted on the goodwill earin the financial statements indicated that grainment loss
of € 10 million was necessary.

The reasons for the above impairment loss relatee@ombined effects of the extended economicsetae and
the uncertain prospects of a recovery, which haartcularly pronounced influence on the areashictvthe Bank
operates. The results of the analysis conductddtermine the recoverable amount of the CGU reifga the full

perimeter of the Bank indicate a considerably loa@mtribution to cash flow generation - over a gigant time

horizon - than considered when determining theimaiglows.

Provisions for risks

Other provisions for risks and charges are acamegcount for current obligations resulting froaspevents
that are considered likely to require an outlagafnomic resources in order to discharge the didigaFor
a detailed examination of the changes during tlae, yefer to the specific paragraph of the notes.

Shareholders’ equity and capital adequacy

At year-end, shareholders’ equity, including theineome for the year, amounted to € 313.6 million.

Own funds — a breakdown of which is provided in @kaF of the notes to the financial statementmal
with additional information on capital — came t8#4.3 million as at 31 December 2015.

The level of own funds ensures compliance with tehpequirements under applicable regulations. Risk
weighted assets came to € 2,150.9 million.

Capital ratios were as follows:



v'a"phased-inCommon Equity Tier 1 ratidi.e., according to the transitional regime) ofQ£3.(10.0% at
31/12/2014);

a phased-iier 1 ratioof 13.0% (10.0% at 31/12/2014);

a phased-iffotal Capital ratioof 14.6%(10.7% at 31/12/2014).
These ratios are far above the minimum levelsys#idsupervisory authorities for Banca Popolai@ididale
in the context of the SREP process and place thk daong the highest levels in the entire Italianking
industry.
Art. 136 of Directive EU/2013/36 (Capital Requirame Directive or "CRD4") has also established an
obligation for national authorities to set a coucyelical capital buffer ratio with effect from hduary 2016.
This ratio is subject to revision with quarterlgduency. The European regulation was implementétalin
by Bank of Italy Circular 285/2013, which contaspecific rules on this subject, and is applicableath the
individual and consolidated levels. The Bank ofyltaas the authority responsible for adopting gaher
prudential measures in the banking sector, decdinledt the countercyclical capital buffer ratior (@xposures
with Italian counterparties) at zero percent far finst three months of 2016.



Analysis of financial performance

The results for the period are illustrated belovainondensed format reclassified according to ptaten
criteria deemed best suited to depicting the Bavpesating performance. The aggregation and refitagson
process performed on the items required accorairiget formats set out in Bank of Italy Circular ZB2are
illustrated in the notes to the schedules. In tleslules of the report on operations, the comparateriod
has been normalised to ensure a consistent basismgfarison with the company's situation in 201v¥ang
the merger of Civileasing S.p.A. and Tabogan S.r.l.

INCOME STATEMENT DATA 3MM22015 3MM22014* Var %

Met interest income (including resutt of hedging) G5.285 69.516 -6,1%
Net commissions 22,683 20.955 8,2%
Dividends and net income (loss) of equity investments accounted for using

equity method 1.015 927 9,4%
Met trading income 80.850 35624 127,0%
Other operating income (expenses) (236) 459 -151,5%
Operating income 169.596 127.482 33,0%
Perzannel expenses (40.657) (35.879) 1,9%
Other administrative expenses (30.704) (23.906) 28,4%
Net impairment/write backs on property, plant and eguipment and intangitle

assets @ (8.179) (1.897) 331,2%
Operating cost (79.540) (65.682) 211%
Income (loss) from operating 90.056 61.800 45 7%
Charges/write-backs on impairment of loans and financial assets (60.393) (37.049) 63,0%
Goodwill impairment and Profit (loss) on eguity investments (10.049) (5.223) 92 4%
Net provisions for risks and charges (5.578) (2.643) 111,1%
Income (loss) before tax from continuing operations 14.036 16.884 -16,9%
Tax on income from continuing operations 10.017 (10.895) -191,9%
Net income for the period 24.053 5.989 301,6%

* Comparative period "normalised" for comparabiliyith the 2015 scope of consolidation following @ieileasing and Tabogan merger

(1) Profits of equity investments measured at gqoilude the profits/losses of equity investmergasured according to the equity method included
in item “210. Profit (loss) of equity investments.”

(2) Other administrative expenses include recoger# taxes and duties and other recoveries recegniender “190. Other operating
income/expenses” (€ 6,232.4 thousand in 2015 a®@40.7 thousand in 2014).

(3) Net adjustments to property, plant and equipraed intangible assets include items “170. Chafgeite-backs on impairment of property, plant
and equipment” and “180. Charges/write-backs on ainment of intangible assets.”

(4) Other income and expenses correspond to “198eoperating income/expenses” net of the recfesdions presented above.

Net interest incomeamounted to € 65,285 thousand, down by 6.1% cordgar€ 69,516 thousand in 2014.
However, net interest on business with customessstable, primarily due to the repricing measupgsied

to funding. The commercial spread improved to 1.9d&spite the increasing competitive pressure satas
rates of return, whereas commercial loans remadasdntially stable. The change is thus primarihbattable

to the carry trade component correlated with thi shthe composition of the securities portfolio.

Net commission incomeame to € 22,683 thousand, up by 8.2% compardtketprevious period, driven by
the performance of commissions from the financea g@sset management and bancassurance), which
increased by 17%. Commissions on payment systesndraireased (+7%), whereas commissions on current
accounts decreased (-5%).

Net trading income was € 80,850 thousand, compared to € 35,624 thdusathe comparative period,
characterised by non-recurring components (€ 66d&@sand) associated with the sale of the equigrest
(4.44%) in ICBPI finalised at the end of December.

Operating revenuesamounted to € 169,596 thousand and increased.Bya38mpared to € 127,482 in the
previous year.

Operating expensegotalled € 79,540 thousand, compared to € 65,68dsénd in the comparative period,
and included € 6,200 thousand of extraordinaryggemassociated with the resolution process forlfalian
banks (Banca Popolare Etruria e Lazio, Banca MarClagiFerrara and CariChieti) launched in November
2015 and contributions to the Interbank Depositdtation Fund of € 384 thousand. Net of those neosreng
components, costs were essentially unchanged. ifaisexpenses amounted to € 40,657 thousand, véherea
other administrative expenses stood at € 30,704sdrad. Net adjustments to property, plant and ecgriy

and intangible assets of € 8,179 thousand incluglé&4 thousand of impairment losses on severhbstate
assets.

Net operating incomeamounted to € 90,056 thousand, compared to € 61kg®lisand in 2014.

Net impairment losses on loans and other financiassetdotalled € 55,462 thousand, resulting in a loan
loss rate of 204 basis points, with the clear dbjecof significantly increasing the total coveraggio for



non-performing loans, which stood at 45.3%. Netdinmpent losses on financial assets were € 4,988t
and refer to impairment of equities and funds edrin the AFS portfolio.

Net provisions for risks and chargesf € 5,578 thousand include € 4 million of provissorelating to the
voluntary redundancprocedure involving the use of the solidarity fundsupport of income, employment
and professional re-adaptation and re-training.

More conservative assumptions concerning the maoraenic situation and industry trends, in light of
persistent risks relating to the prospects of cliaion of the ongoing recovery, entailed the graton of
impairment losses on goodwilbf € 10,000 thousand, on the basis of the impaitrtests performed at the
end of the year on the goodwill carried in the ficial statements (€ 19,136 thousand at 31 Deceftiiel).
Income before tax from continuing operationsthus stood at € 14,036 thousand. Income taxes ratexto
€ 10,017 thousand.

Net incomethus amounted to € 24,053 thousand.

Statement of cash flows
Performance of main items of the statement of tasls

a) Financial assets available for sale (-€ 135.8 ami)lj the change was largely due to the purchase of
debt securities.

b) Loans to customers (-€ 28.2 million); the change dae to the decline in loans and current account
overdrafts. The increase in other transactionspsiagarily due to the presentation in the schedaote f
2015 of finance lease transactions resulting frieennherger of Civileasing (which in the comparative
period was included in the consolidated, but netittdividual, statement of cash flows).

c) Due from banks — other (+€ 118.2 million); the apamvas primarily the result of the decrease in
repurchase agreements.

d) Due to banks — other (-€ 710.5 million); the change primarily due to the decrease in time deposits
with banks.

e) Due to customers (+€ 831.4 million); the change prasarily due to repurchase agreements with the
Cassa di Compensazione e Garanzia and the remtserit the financial statements of the sale to
third parties of the senior notes issued in thet& mortgage securitisation.

f) Debt securities issued (-€ 213.5 million); the ade@was due to the redemption of bonds issued.

Organisational structure

The organisational structure of Banca Popolareidd@le S.C.p.A. is as follows:

senior management;

sector departments;

staff services;

in-line services;

operational offices (central and peripheral);

committees.

Distinct functions characterised by specific olijext may be identified within individual organigatal units.
The staff of such functions nonetheless reporhéottead of the organisational unit to which theyehlaeen
assigned.

AN N N NN

Strategic management of the Bank’s equity investmés
Istituto Centrale delle Banche Popolari Italiane $.A.
Istituto Centrale delle Banche Popolari Italiar@BPI) is the parent company of a banking groupsbpports
the growth and consolidation of banks, financiatitations and insurers, businesses and government
authorities. ICBPI is a “systemic” bank specialigedational and international payment servicessstems,
securities services offered according to a businesesess outsourcing model and services for banks,
businesses and government.
In recent years, the ICBPI Group has undertakamaber of extraordinary transactions that have Sigmitly
increased its size and complexity.
In the group’s new configuration, ICBPI acts assp@icompany, while also providing services in thikfving
areas:
1) Payment servicesiICBPI operates in traditional services: collecteomd payment (funds transfers,
collections, cheques, etc.); settlement; nation&trbank network application centre; and ACH
(automated clearing house). For these servicesR1€@Bsures compliance with the rules and critdria
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established by European regulations (PSD - Payr@entices Directive and SEPA - Single Euro
Payments Area);

2) Banking, business and government servicd€BPI provides e-banking, electronic invoicing and
interbank corporate banking services. In this tatteea, ICBPI supports the CBI Consortium’s
infrastructure in a temporary consortium.

3) Securities servicesICBPI provides a full range of investment servicesder receipt, trading,
placement, clearing, settlement and global custbidgortant investments continue to be devoted to
developing its custodian bank and fund adminisiratiusinesses, fields in which ICBPI is Italy’syonl
operator.

At 31 December 2015, in addition to the parent camyp Istituto Centrale delle Banche Popolari Itadia
S.p.A., the group consisted of the following entti CartaSi S.p.A., a financial company registénethe
Register of Payment Institutions pursuant to Att4-septies of Italy’'s Consolidated Banking Actwhich
the parent company holds a 94.9% interest; Hele ISip.A., an instrumental company in which the ipare
company has a 70% interest; and Oasi Diagram —oOudisig Applicativo e Servizi Innovativi S.p.A., an
instrumental company in which the parent comparsyeh400% interest.

On 19 June 2015, the shareholding banks signegr@ement governing the sale to Mercury lItalia S(a.l
vehicle indirectly owned by the funds Bain Capifedyent International and Clessidra SGR) of an &efity
interest in ICBPI. The contract also calls for d@diional component in the form of an earn-out éoplaid to
CartaSi S.p.A. by Visa Europe, the amount of wltgtrently cannot be quantified. During its sess6i8
December 2015, the shareholders' meeting officaglyroved the transfer of ownership of ICBPI to 8ey
Italia S.r.l.

Help Line S.p.A.

The company is part of the Istituto Centrale dBideche Popolari Italiane Group and functions asrdact
centre.

Help Line S.p.A. is the ICBPI Group’s contact cersind was created in 2010 as part of the largéegirof
integrating the members of the Istituto Centralede Popolari Italiane Group, from the merger afiSta
Help Phone S.r.l. and Si Call S.p.A. and the subsetgabsorption of the Help Desk unit of Cartap.As.
The company provides third parties with servicesebaon the use of telephone and remote channéig in
fields of customer support, debt recovery and talieting. Help Line S.p.A. manages inbound services
(incoming telephone calls), outbound services (ot telephone calls), Web interactions (help Via t
Internet) and high value-added services (datawarsshg, back office, and fraud prevention).

The company’s shareholders are Istituto CentralecBa Popolari Italiane (ICBPI), with a 70% interesid
Banca Popolare di Cividale, with a 30% interes2045 the company reported a net income of € 2llibmi

ITAS Assicurazioni S.p.A.

Itas Assicurazioni is a member of the ITAS Groumteolled directly, with a 51% interest, by ITAS Ma
Assicurazioni, one of Italy’s oldest insurers antoag the top fourteen on the nation’s insuranceketaAt

31 December 2015, the ITAS Group 272 agents, angrdaducts are also distributed through 1,200 bank
branches, 487 employees and 2,082 agents, subsagahtontractors.

ACILEASING Friuli Venezia Giulia S.p.A.

Following changes in the law, on 19.12.2012 Acileg$riuli Venezia Giulia S.p.A., which had opedia
the vehicle lease sector, resolved to dissolvdigalate the company, which will carry the leagesgments
in its portfolio to their natural expiry dates @lerto four years). The sales arm of the companciyding sales
personnel, the lease of the Udine offices andsbedated equipment and furnishings were soldvie@ising
S.p.A., a subsidiary of Banca Popolare di Cividalé.p.A., effective 1 January 2013. Civileasing &.also
acquired the Acileasing brand name for an initiatiyeed term of nine years, thereby expandingigsations
in the car leasing sector, in which it will operateder the brand name Acileasing Full Service.

ACIRENT S.p.A.

The company operates in the short-term rental saatbholds the Herz L.t.d. licence for Friuli VerseGiulia
and part of eastern Veneto. Airport rental stati@iteviso and Ronchi dei Legionari) are operatedenran
agency scheme, whereas city offices are operatddrdranchise arrangements (Udine, Trieste, Pormkeno
and Feltre). The company has 20 years of experianmoanaging fleets of vehicles intended for rentéhout
drivers and also operates in the long-term leastiséor companies and individuals, in synergy witie
operations of the ACU Group, from which it receitle technical and organisational support of thterls
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facilities for managing fleets of vehicles intendéd operational lease (mechanics’ garages, roedsid
assistance, logistical support, etc.).

Risk management and monitoring

Risk management

In accordance with current regulations, Banca Ropalli Cividale has adopted specific policies gowey
the process of determining its current and prosgecapital adequacy in respect of the risks asduamel
company strategies (Internal Adequacy AssessmegeBs or ICAAP) and has also reinforced its riskiad,
governance and monitoring system, which providesfganisational, regulatory and methodologicahare
Starting with the figures at 31 December 2015, ading to supervisory regulations, banks must afteadlyce
adequate disclosure describing their liquidity goamce and management system and explicitly shate t
there are adequate safeguards for liquidity riskpeding to a logic similar to that applied to taequacy of
own funds. This process is designated the Intdrigalidity Adequacy Assessment Process (ILAAP, he.
Bank's process of identification, measurement, mp@ment and monitoring of liquidity risk) and mus b
implemented by the Bank in an ongoing manner.

With regard to the risk objective system (the Riglpetite Framework or RAF), a scheme of refereree h
been prepared and introduced, defining the risletijgp tolerance thresholds, exposure limits, giskernance
policies and the processes of reference for defiaimd implementing such policies, all in accordamite the
maximum risk that may be assumed. The processfinfing and periodically revising the RAF is carriedt

in conjunction with the Risk Management Serviceiolitsupports the general management during theephas
of application review and preparation of proposalbe submitted for the approval of the Board akbiors.
The process involves a high level of consistenay #worough reconciliation of the RAF, business nhode
strategic plan, ICAAP, budget, company organisadiod internal control system.

A clear identification of the risks to which Banapolare di Cividale is potentially exposed (thsk'map")
represents the essential foundation for an inforasstgimption and effective management of such risks.
Given the Bank's mission and operations, and cerisigithe market context in which it operates rible map
that has been identified essentially reflects tsedf risks that is subject to assessment asqiaCAAP
(Annex A to Chapter 1, Title Il, Part One, of Cil@u285, Supervisory Provisions for Banks, congggrihe
prudential control process), excluding several gigetypes deemed irrelevant to the Bank (counfsk,r
transfer risk and securitisation risk), with thelgidn of compliance and property risk.

The main risks thus identified, which are assessepart of ICAAP and are also monitored in the exinof
the RAF system, are described below.

v Credit and counterparty riskhe possibility that an unexpected change inctieelitworthiness of a
counterparty to which the bank has an exposuregaagrate a corresponding unexpected change in
the market value of the credit position. This rslsentially identifies the probability that a beves
will fail to fulfil its obligations or will do so aa delay with respect to the established due dates
Counterparty risk is a sub-case of credit risk, thee risk that a counterparty to a transactiooliving
certain financial instruments defaults before thagdaction is settled. Within credit risk

v Market risk(including basis risk): the possibility of susiaiglosses due to changes in the value of an
instrument or a portfolio of financial instrumerdssociated with unexpected changes in market
conditions (share prices, interest rates, excheaigs, etc.).

v Operational risk the risk of sustaining losses due to the inadegua improper functioning of
procedures, human resources, internal systems, external events. This category includes losses
resulting from fraud, human error, business disouptsystem unavailability, breach of contract and
natural disasters. Operational risk also inclugggll risk and information technology risk but not
strategic or reputational risk.

v' Concentration risk the risk deriving from exposures to counterpartiencluding central
counterparties, groups of related counterparties counterparties operating in the same economic
sector, geographical region or business segment.

v’ Interest rate riskthe risk associated with assets not held foiiigadieriving from the possibility that
a change in the rates on which the bank's assdtBadnilities are indexed may result in an adverse
effect on net interest income or the present vafugssets and liabilities, and thus a decreaskein t
economic value of the Bank. This risk typically rifasts itself on positions included in the banking
book.

v Liquidity risk this the risk that the bank may be unable talfitf payment obligations, due to an

inability to obtain funds on the market, or thatiay be forced to meet its payment obligations evhil
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incurring a high cost of fundindunding liquidity risR, or the risk that the bank may sustain capital
losses due to the presence of limits on the sades#ts regarded as liquid in normal market carditi
(market liquidity rish.

v Residual riskthe risk that the recognised techniques for rattigg credit risk used by the bank prove
less effective than expected.

v’ Strategic risk(including the risk associated with equity investits): the current or prospective risk
of a decrease in profits or capital arising fronarmdpes in the operating context or poor company
decisions, the inadequate implementation of detssi@r insufficient reaction to changes in the
competitive scenario.

v" Reputational riskthe current or prospective risk of a decline perating result or capital should
customers, counterparties, shareholders, investaspervisors take a negative view of the Bank.

v' Excessive leverage risthe risk that a particularly high level of indetihess with respect to equity
may render the bank vulnerable, requiring the adopif corrective measures to its industrial plan,
including the sale of assets involving the recagnibf losses that could also entail impairmenthef
remaining assets.

v' Compliance riskthe risk of incurring legal or administrative pdtres, significant financial losses or
damages to reputation due to breaches of universeaisions (of laws or regulations) or self-imposed
rules (e.g., bylaws, codes of conduct and govemandes).

v Property risk:the current or prospective risk of potential losdes to fluctuations in the value of the
Bank’s proprietary real-estate portfolio, or to tieduction of the income generated by that podfoli

In the assessment and measurement of credit, cparteand market risk, account must also be takehe
risk associated with dealings with associated @aréas provided for in Bank of Italy Circular 2a3tle V,
Chapter 5, Risk Assets and Conflicts of Interefd@alings with Associated Parties.

Appropriate risk policies have been adopted forgbreernance of the risks described above. The rdstbb
supervision and organisational oversight of riskes established in the context of these policiesubh the
definition of operating limits and/or management aontrol processes.

For a complete description of the organisationaicstire and operating procedures covering the vargweas
of risk and methods used to measure and preves tigks, refer to Chapter E of the notes, Riskisheuging
policies.

With regard to the third pillar public disclosureith effect from 1 January 2014 the prudential suigery
provisions applicable to banks have been conselitimto Bank of Italy Circular 285 of 17 Decemb@d 3,
the issuance of which is functional to applicatiohCommunity regulations (the CRR, Regulation EU
575/2013, and the CRD IV, Directive 2013/36/EU) teamng the reforms of the Basel Accord ("Basel. 3")
The subject matter, as specifically mentioned irt PaChapter 13 of the above Circular, is goveldaectly

by the CRR (Part Eight, Disclosure by Institutioasd Part Ten, Title I, Chapter 3) and by the ratjuhs of
the European Commission containing regulatory oplémenting technical standards. In particular, as
established in the CRR, banks must publish theiredjaisclosures on at least an annual basis. Tbécp
disclosure documents, which essentially reflectcitr@ents of the annual ICAAR{ernal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Proc@ggeport, are made available on the Bank's wehsitay.civibank.it

The internal control system

According to supervisory regulations, the interoahtrol system is "the fundamental element of akisan
overall governance system. It ensures that compaeatiyity is in line with company strategies andigiels and
is guided by principles of sound and prudent mamesge."

The internal control system is organised into thesels:

v line controls (level one): these are aimed at eénguhat transactions are executed properly; they a
performed by production units themselves (for exampierarchical type controls) and are
incorporated into IT procedures and systems ocamneucted in the context of back-office activity;

v" level-two controls: these include risk managememi aompliance activity. They are aimed at
ensuring, among other objectives:

the proper implementation of the risk managementgss;

the observance of the operating limits assignéddoarious functions;
- the compliance of company operations with laws esgllations, including self-imposed
regulations.



Level-two control functions are independent of agstion and management functions (production
and management units). They contribute to definiglggovernance policies and the risk management
process;

v level-three controls: this is internal auditingieity aimed at identifying anomalous performanced a
breaches of rules and procedures, as well asedsisg the functionality of the overall internahtrol
system; it is conducted on an ongoing basis, watiogdic frequency, or in exceptional cases, byaunit
independent of production units, including througtsite inspections. This activity is performed by
the Auditing function.

The entire internal control system is periodicalyised by the Board of Directors of Banca Popoliire
Cividale in order to constantly improve strategiesl operating processes and assess business risks.
Supervisory rules concerning internal controls heessiderably reinforced the powers of the risktaan
function by establishing that “safeguards relatiogthe internal control system must cover all typés
company risk.” The above rules have been refleicté&hnca Popolare di Cividale’'s organisational inee,
which envisages the second-level control functmfitee Risk Management Service and Compliance &ervi
functions that are separate from and independeriiusfness units, in that they report to the stiateg
supervision body (the Board of Directors). Thisaiso assured for the Auditing Department, a lelvebd
control function that is independent of the oth@mpany units.

In 2015 an important new component of the contysteam, the Risk Committee, began to function, urlger
new Articles of Association approved by the Shaldéys' Meeting on the basis of the indications of
supervisory regulations. Formed within the Boar®wéctors, the Risk Committee is composed of aonitg]

of independent directors and has the aim of supgpthe Board of Directors with risk governance and
supervision of the internal control system, liagsim an elective basis with the control functiomsose actions

it analyses and whose adequacy it assesses.

For a description of the overall structure of timeinal control System, please refer to the Cotpora
Governance Report annexed to this document andaaksitable on the Company’s website at the address
www.civibank.it

Disclosure required by joint Bank of Italy, ISVAP and CONSOB documents

In documents no. 4 of 3 March 2010 and no. 2 oébrizary 2009, national regulators called attentiotine
need to provide clear disclosure in the finandiaesnents on some areas where a high degree spaiamcy

is of the essence: the measurement of goodwilldimpent testing), other intangible assets with fimite
useful lives and equity investments; the measun¢wieavailable-for-sale equities; the contractlalises of
financial payables; information concerning the ge@ncern assumption; financial risks to which the
enterprise is exposed; audits conducted of angatidins that assets have become impaired; andtamtgr

in the use of estimates.

The foregoing notices, which do not have indepenhdegulatory force, but rather are limited to uggite
proper application of current statutes and apple&ecabcounting standards, then provide a detaileduat of
the disclosures to be furnished on debt restruagsrand recall disclosure requirements conceriagair
value hierarchy.

In these financial statements, the disclosurevaeteto Banca Popolare di Cividale are set outwétothis
report and in the notes, as part of the illustrabbthe various specific items.

With respect to the “going-concern” principle, whiwas the subject of a specific disclosure requretie
2008 financial statements (document no. 2 of FeRra@09), regulators have once again drawn thetxte

of all the parties involved in preparation of ficél statements to the need to devote especialt éffahe
assessments relating to such assumption. On tiis flee Bank’s Directors reiterate that they arasonably
certain that the Bank will continue to operate pabfy in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, @15
consolidated financial statements have been prépamea going-concern basis, considering, amongr othe
factors, the adequate capital structure and praspgurofitability outlined in the three-year plaarrently in
the process of being prepared and approved. ltidhioher be noted that there is no basis for daubthe
specific issue of the going-concern principle maficial position or operating performance.

With respect to the disclosure concerning finandgls, such risks are analysed in the report @raipns
and in Chapter E of the notes, Risks and hedgitigies.

In the course of preparing the year-end finandatksents, the Bank punctually conducted reviewsdiat
determining whether any of its assets had beconpained, with a specific focus on goodwill and other
intangible assets, equity investments carried amasgpts and available-for-sale equity investmefits;

I



description of the methods used to carry out saststand the results thereof is specifically ifiatstd in the
notes, in which the discussion is divided by aggst.

A specific section has been prepared concerningrtaioty in the use of estimates in preparing #yEaste
financial statements as part of the drafting preceamely Chapter A of the notes, Accounting pesiciA.1
— General information.

Legal risks

Money-laundering (Legislative Decree No. 231/2007)

Responsibility for overseeing compliance with antihey laundering legislation, in accordance witiniBaf
Italy rules governing the anti-money launderingamigation, procedures and internal controls, fallshe
Anti-Money Laundering Office within the Complian&ervice, the head of which has been placed in eharg
of the function in accordance with those rules.

The Anti-Money Laundering Function has the missibpreventing and combating transactions invohthney
laundering of money and financing for terrorism. thes end, it ensures that the IT and organisationa
procedures are consistent with the objective ofgmang and combating the breach of applicable lamg
internal rules governing money-laundering. It gigoforms specific monitoring activity aimed at iti§ring

any potentially suspect transactions.

The Anti-Money Laundering office sends lItaly’s Mty of the Economy and Finance notices of breaohes
rules governing the use of cash and bearer sexurili also responds to requests from the autbsriti
concerning the reporting of suspect transactionsdd-inancial Information Office.

The head of the function, as the party delegatedgort suspect transactions, conducts analysisesaut
preliminary investigation and sends reports of sasfransactions pursuant to Art. 41 of Legislaiexree
No. 231/07.

Information concerning disputes
For detailed information concerning disputes, idalg disputes of a tax nature, and the main pendutgial
actions, refer to Chapter E of the notes, Riskstetltjing policies.

Administrative liability (Legislative Decree No.222001)
In consideration of the provisions of Legislativeddee No. 231/01, the Bank adopted a specific Gsgaanal
Model, which was updated in 2015 to comply with thanges to the law enacted.
That Model pursues the primary goal of setting upedl-organised, organic system of organisatiomal a
control principles and procedures suited to premgrir reducing the risk of the commission of tlierces
set forth in the Decree.
The Founding and Operational Rules govern the Sigoey Board's activity.
The Supervisory Board is entrusted with the tassuplervising:
v' the efficacy and adequacy of the Model in relatmthe company's structure and its effective abilit
to prevent the commission of the Offences;
v"compliance with the Model's prescriptions by cogterbodies, employees and other addressees, in
the latter case also through the competent compaty;
v’ the appropriateness of updating the Model, whaeefd@und necessary to adjust it in connection with
changes in company conditions and/or legislation; a
v the company's fulfilment of its obligations undephcable money-laundering legislation.
In September 2014, the supervision and controltionadentified in Legislative Decree No. 231/2084s
assigned to the Board of Statutory Auditors, agcatdd by the Bank of Italy.



Corporate governance report (Art. 123-bis, Legislave Decree 58 of 24 February 1998)

Introduction

As an issuer of securities quoted on regulated etsyiBanca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. is requie
comply with the disclosure obligations provided iiorArticle 123bis of the Consolidated Finance Act. For
issuers of quoted securities other than shareb,ahligations relate to “the primary characterst€ existing
risk management and internal control systems iaticel to the financial reporting process, includaiga
consolidated level, where applicable.”

Internal control system

In accordance with the dictates of corporate lad/the Bank of Italy’s supervisory regulations, Benk has
implemented an internal control system aimed atieémg that the main risks associated with its dorsiness
are constantly monitored, thus ensuring that itsrajons are managed soundly, properly and in anaran
consistent with pre-determined objectives, in harynwith applicable models and in agreement witht bes
practices at a national and international level.

Banca Popolare di Cividale’'s internal control systénvolves its collegial bodies, control functions,
Supervisory Board pursuant to Law 231/2001, thesjrthdent auditors, general management and all
personnel.

The internal control system takes two forms:

1) ongoing monitoring, divided into three levelscohtinual controls:

1. tier one, conducted on an ongoing basis, whenredrion is launched and during the approval
process, by the operators themselves, their higicaicsuperiors or automated transaction processing
systems; activities aimed at producing accountiata cand preparing the financial statements are
subject to specific tier-one controls conductedimiticcounting units;

2. tier two/level one (2.1), carried out by personwiéh operating duties, yet distinct from personnel
directly involved in decisions concerning the tret®n subject to control; in particular, central
administrative departments are responsible for tadng controls of all functions with access to the
accounting information system; and

3. tier two/level 2 (2.2), carried out by staff mendef specialised ongoing control functions of st |
instance, not authorised to assume risks, namelZ&mpliance function, Risk Management function
and manager responsible for preparing financiadntsp

2) periodic control, represented by a third-tientcol performed by the Audit function on a periodiasis
through onsite inspections and documentary review.

The internal control and risk management systenal$® aimed at ensuring the reliability, accuracy,
trustworthiness and timeliness of financial repuyti

Collegial bodies

In accordance with the Bank’s characteristics, withtraditional governance model the Board of Ciives
plays a fundamental role in achieving an effecteféicient risk management and control system.

In further detalil, the strategic supervision bodg hdopted organisational models and approprizetpnal
and control mechanisms compliant with applicabggslation and company strategies.

Tier-two/level 2 (2.2) and tier-three control fuiocts report to the Board of Directors concernirgydbtivities
performed, the main risks detected, the identificatind implementation of mitigation mechanisms tred
effects of the application thereof.

The boards of directors of subsidiaries adopt tble management and mitigation policies approvedhay
Board of Directors. In addition, they identify thesponsibilities of company units and functiongtsat the
associated tasks are clearly assigned and poteatiflicts of interest are prevented.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors, in conjumtiwvith the manager responsible for preparingrfaial
reports, issues a specific report on the sepdratedial statements, condensed half-yearly findistéements
and consolidated financial statements attestinbd@adequacy and effective application of the adbtmative
and accounting procedures for the preparationeotéparate and consolidated financial statements.
With at least half-yearly frequency, control fulocts report to the Board of Directors concerningatiévities
performed, the main risks detected, the identificatind implementation of mitigation mechanisms tred
effects of the application thereof.



Manager responsible for preparing financial reports
The manager responsible for preparing financiabrspissues a specific report on the financialestaints
attesting to the adequacy and effective applicabbradministrative and accounting procedures f@ th
preparation of the financial statements and akiotiotices of a financial nature, as well as theaspondence
between documents and accounting books and records.
In order to provide such certification, the managsponsible for preparing financial reports conslueviews
of the adequacy and efficacy of the Financial Repginternal Control System through:
v analysis aimed at verifying the existence of aresmgnts within the company aimed at reducing risk
of errors and improper conduct for the purposescaobunting and financial information; and
v analyses and verification of company operationsediat generating and driving financial reporting,
in part through the use of the results generateattogr control functions; to that end, the scopthef
relevant activities is identified, which then redsuh the identification of significant processesbe
verified.

Compliance

Compliance pursues the mission of ensuring thereasee of provisions of law concerning banking and
financial activities, professional and ethical subaxd customs and Bank regulations with the aiensfiring
the centrality of customers’ interests, marketgntg, the prevention of money-laundering and magtmise,
the protection of the Bank, employees and senigrag@ment against the risks of penalties, finamhosal and
reputational damage.

Auditing
Internal Audit is responsible for third-tier perioctontrols. Such controls involve analysing orgatipbnal
structures, processes and behaviours through Bpokg of documentation and onsite inspections.

Statutory auditing

At Banca Popolare di Cividale, statutory auditisgconducted by an auditing firm that renders theices
provided for in Article 14, paragraph 1, of Legtsla Decree No. 39 of 27 January 2010.

The independent auditors express an opinion afeparate financial statements in specific reporaddition
to drafting a limited audit report on the half-yigeinancial report.

At present, the firm Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.as been engaged to conduct statutory auditingedB#mk.

Transactions with other related parties

The subject is governed by Article 2391-bis of ltadian Civil Code, according to which the admiragive
bodies of companies that have recourse to thecapkal market are required, in accordance withggeral
principles indicated by Consob, to adopt rules #regure the “transparency and substantive and guoale
propriety of related-party transactions” undertaldrectly or through subsidiaries. The control bady
required to supervise compliance with the rulegpéetband review the matter in its report to theahalders’
meeting.

By resolution 17221 of 12 March 2010, exercising dluthority delegated to it under Article 2391-tishe
Italian Civil Code, Consob approved the RegulatifarsTransactions with Related Parties (also refémo
hereinafter as the “Consob Regulations”), subsdatjuamended by resolution 17389 of 23 June 2010chvh
lays down the general principles to be observecdmgpanies that obtain funding from the risk-capitarket
when setting rules aimed at ensuring the transpgrand substantive and procedural propriety ofstaations
with related parties.

In relation to its specific activity, the Bank ils@ subject to the provisions of Article 136 of thensolidated
Banking Act, as recently amended by Law 221/20b2egning the obligations of bank officers.

On 12 December 2011, the Bank of Italy published sepervisory rules governing risk assets and wisfl
of interests within banks and banking groups irardgo “Associated Parties” (ninth update of Ciact263
of 27 December 2006, hereinafter the “Bank of IRiyles”), in supplementation of the provisions loé t
Consob Regulation. The definition of AssociatedtiBarincludes not only related parties, as defimethe
Consob Regulation, but also parties associatedswith related parties, as identified in supervigooyisions.
The new rules aim to prevent the risk that the jpnity of certain parties to the Bank’s decision-fimagkcentres
may compromise the objectivity and impartiality décisions relating to the granting of loans anceoth
transactions with such parties, with possible digins of the resource-allocation process, andraagldition
to, and only partly overlap with, the other appilaprovisions on the subject (Article 2391 of ltadian Civil
Code, Article 136 of the Italian Consolidated BangkiAct, the Consob Regulation and IAS 24).



In 2015 Banca Popolare di Cividale, in accordanitie the combined provisions of the regulationsdcabove,
adopted its Procedures for Transactions with ReéRseties and Associated Parties (also referredrginafter
as the “APT BPC Procedures”).

On 3 December 2014 the Board of Directors apprévedlocument Dealings with Related Parties andd3art
Identified Pursuant to Article 136 of the Consal@thBanking Act and Article 2391 of the Italian Ci€ode
with the aim of grouping together internal conflaftinterest rules into a single document. Thisuhoent
brings together the pre-existing rules and proceslussued in application of the supervisory provisi
concerning activities at risk with associated gar{ininth update to Circular 263/06), the Consoguiion
on Transactions with Related Parties (Resolutid22170f 12 March 2010), Article 136 of the Consdlath
Banking Act, Obligations of Bank Officers and tledated supervisory instructions and, finally, Agi@391
of the Italian Civil Code, Interests of Directohs.accordance with applicable regulations, the dwnt has
been published on the website at the addrégp:/www.civibank.it/investor-relations/corporate
governance/procedura-parti-correlate

With the aim of establishing a consolidated texintérnal conflict of interest rules, this documentnbines
the pre-existing rules and procedures issued iticapipn of the supervisory provisions concernimgj\aties
at risk with associated parties (ninth update t@w@ar 263/06), the Consob regulation on transastieith
related parties (Resolution 17221 of 12 March 20Af)cle 136 of the Consolidated Banking Act, @faliions
of Bank Officers, and the related supervisory indions, and, finally, Article 2391 of the Itali@ivil Code,
Interests of Directors.

Major transactions

No transactions with related parties consideredmegnsactions pursuant to the Procedures fort&kRarty
Transactions cited above were undertaken duringréperting period. In 2015 there were no additional
atypical and/or unusual transactions to be disd@sgsuant to Consob bulletin no. DEM/6064293 ofaly
2006.

Transactions of an ordinary or recurring nature

The transactions of an ordinary or recurring natumdertaken in 2015 with related parties are pathe
Bank's ordinary operations and are normally gowermg market conditions and meet the requirement of
mutual economic expedience in accordance withritegrial procedures cited above.

Detailed information regarding related-party traigas, including information on the impact of datsding
transactions and positions with such counterpartiesfinancial performance and financial position,
accompanied by tables summarising those effeassetrforth in Chapter H of the Notes.

Business outlook and the going concern assumption

The Board of Directors confirm that they may readuy expect that the Company will continue to ofeees

a going concern for the foreseeable future, andiies2015 financial statements have therefore pegpared

on a going concern basis.

The Board of Directors further certify that theme ao factors or signs at the level of financiasigon or
operating performance that might represent causesuricertainty on the subject of the going-concern
principle.

For information on the impairment testing of ass@is uncertainty in the use of estimates, reférdégertinent
sections of the notes (Chapter A - Accounting peéi@and Chapter B - Notes to the balance sheetsetés

Outlook

Global prospects remain exposed to a renewed filua-financial market tensions in China and uraieties
surrounding the country's economic performanceéhdrEuro Area, growth continues, but remains feadihe
Eurosystem's securities purchasing programme -tijaiive easing - is proving effective in suppogtin
activity, but inflation remains very low.

The prospects of overly low growth support increglsi widespread expectations of intensificationQd,
even beyond what has recently been announcedhasa fprolonged scenario of low interest rategprésent,
the market has priced in the expectation of lovoeunterest rates until at least the end of 2017.

The Italian economy continues to recover gradualbid back this year by the heavy legacy of thd, the
recovery is expected to become fully evident in@@fd to be further consolidated in 2017. The reppis
being strongly driven by domestic demand, and hyskhold consumption in particular, which is repigci
exports as a driver, whereas investment prospeetuéfering from the uncertainty relating to fgeidemand.
Inflation remains low due to the considerable daseein energy commodity prices and persistentiyelar




margins of underused production capacity. Therdirmoa to be significant risks, associated abovevili the
international scenario. Within this scenario, sabsally positive compared to recent years, thesjpeats for
the banking sector seem to be moving towards gtatanalisation. Already this year, credit growth i
expected to align with expected nominal GDP gromaths, and the first signs of reversal of the bagkisk
cycle should continue to be seen.

The improvement of the economic framework shouldlfy be reflected in the financial performancéanks,
although profitability will remain modest, with aturn on equity that will continue to lag behiné ttost of
capital and fall far short of pre-crisis levels.eTtate scenario outlined above and the severeylegfdong
years of crisis on the cost of credit risk will tiome to affect margins and profitability for sorime yet.
Consequently, cost control and reduction measunéshee gradual normalisation of provisions covearegit
risk continue to be of crucial importance. The Bamkanagement will thus continue along these liwith,
the aim of achieving sustainable profitability etmedium term.



Proposed allocation of the net income for the year

Shareholders,

The financial statements submitted for your revieawve been drafted in accordance with IASs/IFRSs as
required by Legislative Decree No. 38 of 28 Febyu2005 and order of the Bank of Italy no. 262 of 22

December 2005, as amended, and have been auditie lhydependent auditors Reconta Ernst & Young
S.p.A., a copy of whose report is included in tharicial statement package.

The financial statements we ask you to approve gheviollowing results, in concise form:

Balance sheet

Total Assets 4.168.017.788
Liabilities 3.854 447717
Share capital 50.913.255
Share premiums 167.021.739
Reserves 48 273959
“Valuation reserves 23308118
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity (excluding Income for the period) 4.143.964.788
Net income (loss) for the period 24.053.000

In accordance with Article 53 of the Articles of daiation, we submit to you the following propokalthe
allocation of net income, which calls for the comga&tion of shareholders through the distributior€ of
5,091,326 in profit. The dividend would come to.8®per share. The pay-out ratio would stand é292.
confirming the Bank’s focus on shareholders’ exagahs despite the challenging economic scenario.

In this regard, it should be noted that in its ldedations regarding dividends, the Board took dig®ant of
the formal and informal exchanges with the superyigwuthorities, and in particular the notice frtma Bank
of Italy dated 18 February 2016 on the subjec?6fl'5 Financial Statements: Dividend Policy.” Irsthotice,
the supervisory authority invites intermediarieanong other recommendations - to adopt profit ibigtion
policies that permit them to maintain prospectind eurrent capital adequacy conditions suitabtbeémverall
risk assumed.

We therefore propose the following allocation of neincome for the year to the shareholders' meeting:

Allocation of net income J1M2i2015 JMM2i2014
To Legal reserve 2.405.300 580.300
To Statutory reserve 16.306.374 5222700
To the Shareholders as dividend 5.081.328 -
Available to the Board of Directors for charities 250.000 -
Net income for the period 24,063.000 5.503.000

If you approve the foregoing proposal for allocatio of the net income, share capital and reserves Wil
be as follows:
Amounts to 311212015 Allocation of net income  Amounts after allocation of net income

Share capital 50.913.255 50.913.255
Share premiums 167.021.735 167.021.738
Reserves 43.273.959 18.711.674 66.085.633
“Yaluation reserves 23.308.118 23.308.118

Furthermore, considering that the reserves pregémtiéem 160 of the balance sheet:
v" include negative items and equity items resulthognfthe merger of Nordest Banca S.p.A. and Banca di
Cividale S.p.A. (respectively with a negative sajr€ 10,297,864 and a positive sign of € 6,233,415)
v include negative equity items resulting from the'gee of Civileasing S.p.A. of € 451,286;
v’ the aforementioned equity items do not have argcetin either the composition or eligibility of eeges
for distribution, considering that they are alreautuded in item 160 of the balance sheet;
it is proposed that the Shareholders' Meeting elita the net negative balance of € 4,515,735 bygatihg it
to the statutory reserve, a measure that woule@mniztl any change in either the total balanceesénves as
presented in item 160 of the balance sheet orlitibibty of such reserves for distribution.



Proposal to set the share premium pursuant to Artite 2528 of the Italian Civil Code

Shareholders,

After having consulted with the Board of Statutéwditors on the subject, this Shareholders’ Meetiag
also been called upon to approve the Directorg@sal for setting the share premium to be paidiutiteon

to the value of shares (par value).

Having acknowledged the results presented in ti& 2dancial statements, the proposed allocationedf
income, the accruals to provisions, the Comparngantial performance and financial position, busge
outlook, market conditions, and the supervisonhairity's indications for banks, the Board of Digst has
decided to propose that the share premium be kegitamged for 2016 at € 16.60. That share premiom, i
addition to the par value, would bring the priceoné share to a total of € 19.60.

Cividale del Friuli, 23 March 2016



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance sheet

Balance sheet - Assets J1M22015 IM22014
10 Cash and cagh eguivalents 18.381.417 18.486.299
20 Financial az=ets held for trading 1.220.268 3032011
40 Financial assets available for sale 1.164.8685.305 1.033.820.573
S0 Invetments held to maturity 32.715.895 54.696.661
&0 Due from banks 40.384674 158.685.755
To Loans to customers 2.683.710.632 2711727973
100 Inwestments in as=zociates and companies subject to joint 5.427 469 35.454 815
110 Property and eguipment 82.928.755 7B.¥58.733
120 Intangible assets 9.367.321 19.135.900
of which:
- goodwill 9.135.900 19.135.900
130 Tax azsets 78.584582 69.899. 873
aj current 15.778.148 18.326613
b} deferred 63.206.836 51.573.250
of which convertible into tax credit (Law no. 2142011} 54 961.901 45 £33.9594
150 Other assets 45 207.070 27.386.535
Total assets 4.168.017.788 4.220.125.529
Balance sheet - liabilities and shareholders' equity FMM220M5 IMM22014
10 Due to banks 405.415.324 1.115.403.138
20 Due to customers 2848774180 2.012.145.908
30 Debt securities issued 475,720,650 629.005.6867
40 Financial liakilities held for trading 7359.806 1.035.143
&0 Tax liabilities 13.854.872 2Z8.018.350
a) current 5128327 16.8370.6563
b} deferred 3.766.645 11.147.722
100 Other liabilties 98322372 54.796.503
110 Employee termination benefitz S5.588.807 §.022.010
120 Provisions for rizsk and charges: 2978756 4.507.048
b} other provisions 2.973.756 4.507.048
130 Valuation reserves 23.308.118 11.126.085
160 Reserves 48.273.959 42922245
170 Share premiums 167.021.739 167.021.739
180 Share capital 50.913.255 50.913.255
200 Met income (loss) for the period (+/-) 24.053.000 5.803.000
Total liabilities and shareholders' eguity 4.168.017.7838 4.220.125.529
Income statement
Income statement IMM2i2015 IMnM2z014
10 Interest inceme and similar revenues 56.865.632 113.051.877
20 Interest expense and similar charges (31.580.690) (48.415.987)
30 MNetinterest income 65,284,942 64,635,690
40 Commission income: 28.373.099 28.453.997
20 Commission expense (5.690.543) (7.390.413)
&0 Net commission income 22,682,556 21.073.684
70 Dividends and similar income: 1.014.837 827.091
80 Met trading income 504,250 T04.520
100 Profit (logs) on disposal or repurchase of: 20245874 35.082 643
a) loanz 30.336 -
b} financial assets available for sale 81.222.521 34.555.834
d) financial liabilties (1.106.983) 535.809
120 Total income 169.832.299 122.433.528
130 Chargesi/write-backs on impairment of: (60.392.658) (34.7892.825)
a) loans (55.409.577) (32.051.5936)
b} financial aszets available for sale (4.930.281) (2.038.944)
d) other financial transactions (52.798) (701.945)
140 MNet Financial income 109.439.643 &7.640.703
150 G&& expenszes: (73.666.047) (65 504 545)
a) personnel expenses (40.656.531) (39.067.141)
b} other administrative expenses (38.010.418) (30 437 .404)
160 Met provizions for rizks and charges (5.578.195) (2.642.992)
170 Met impairmentiwrite-backs on property, plant and equipment (2.119.917) (1.717.468)
180 Met impairment/write-backs on intangible assets (59.310) -
180 Other operating income (expenses) T.070.048 7.680.004
200 Operating cost (85.354.321) (66.184.911)
210 Profit (loss) on equity investments (45.000) (5.223.020)
230 Goodwill impairment (10.000.000) -
250 Income (loss) before tax from continuing operations 14.036.322 16.232.772
260 Tax en income from continuing operations 10.016.678 (10.428.772)
270 Income (loss) after tax from continuing operations 24.053.000 5.803.000
290 Met income for the period 24.053.000 5.803.000

rtv
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Statement of comprehensive income

HMM22M5 HMM22014

10 Het profit for the year 24,053,000 5.803.000
Other income net of income taxes without transfer to
profit and loss account

40 Actuarial gaing (loz=es) from defined benefit plans a0.287 (348.826)
100 AFS financial agsets 12.101.746 6§.743.380
130 Total other income, net of income taxes 12.482.033 6.399.554
140 Comprehensive income (10 + 130) 36.235.033 12,202,554

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity (2015)

Allocation of result Changes during the year

for previous period Operazioni sul patrimonio netto 10
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Share capital 50.913.255 50.913.255 - - - - - - - - - - 50.913.255
a) ordinary shares 50.913.255 50.913.255 - - - - - - - - 50.913.255
b) other shares - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Share premium reserve 167.021.739 167.021.739 > > = = > = = 167.021.739

Reserves 42.922.245 42.922.245 5.803.000 - (451.286) > = = = > = = 48.273.959
a) income 42.922.245 42.922.245 5.803.000 - (451.286) - - - - - - 48.273.959
b) other (0) (0) - - - - - - - - - - (0)

Valuation reserves: 11.126.085 11.126.085 12.182.033 23.308.118

Equity instrum ents - - - - - - - - - - - -

Treasury shares - - -

Netincome (loss) for the period 5.803.000 5.803.000  (5.803.000) - - - - - - - 24.053.000 24.053.000

Shareholders' equity 277.786.324 277.786.324 - - (45 1.286) - - - - - 36.235.033 313.570.071

. , .
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity (2014)
AupEELon ol Variazioni dell'esercizio
result for — = = =
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Capitale 51.067.947 51.067.947 - - (154.692) - - - - - - 50.913.255
a) azioni ordinarie 51.067.947 51.067.8947 - - (154.692) - - - - - 50913255
b} altre azioni - - - - - - - - - - - -

Sovrapprezzi di emissione 198.569.529 198.569.529  (30.585.442) - (962.348) - - - - - 167.021.739

Riserve 42.845.467 42.845.467 - - T76.778 - - - - - - 42922245
a) di utili 42.545.457 42.545.467 - 76.778 - - - - - 42922245
b) altre 0 (0} - - - - - - - - - (0)

Riserve da valutazione 8.551.574 8.551.574  (3.264.558) 6.399.554 11.686.570

Strumenti di capitale = = = = = = = - - - - -

Azioni proprie (7.277) (7.277) 7277 -

Utile (Perdita) di esercizio (33.850.000) (33.850.000) 33.850.000 - - - - - - 5.803.000 5.803.000

Patrimonio netto 267.177.239 267.177.239 - - 11.032.985) - - - - - 12.202.554  278.346.509




Statement of cash flows

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

OPERATING ACTIVITY 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

1. Operations 108.852.655 78.831.223
- interestincome received (+) 97.126.384 114.690.496
-interestexpense paid (-) (27.697.449) (30.966.711)
-netcommissions (+/-) 25.451.136 18.320.478

- staff costs
- other expenses (-)

(39.295.689)
(35.034.461)

(37.071.912)
(29.618.384)

- other revenues (+) 88.302.734 43.477.257

2. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial assets 1(+/-) (65.164.019) 789.375.360

- financial assets held for trading 1.811.743 480.352

- financial assets available for sale (135.725.641) 436.254.703

- loans to custumers (28.222.500) 335.967.237

- due from banks: repayable on demand 83.323 (11.331)

- due from banks: other 118.216.917 4.355.766

- other assets (21.327.861) 12.328.633

3. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial liabil  ities: (+/-) (104.028.335) (905.324.912)

- due to banks: repayable on demand (59.149) (8.014)

- due to banks: other (710.552.473) 105.410.169

- due to customers 831.368.851 (949.792.359)

- securities issued (213.456.003) (42.225.416)

- financial liabilities held for trading (296.337) 71.108

- other liabilities (11.033.224) (18.780.400)

Net liquidity generated/absorbed by operating activ ity A (+/-) (60.339.699) (37.118.329)

INVESTING ACTIVITY

1. Liquidity generated by: (+) 63.013.749 927.091

- disposal of equity investments 30.018.346 -

- dividends received on equity investments 1.014.637 927.091

- disposal of financial assets held to maturity 31.980.766 -

2. Liquidity absorbed by: (-) (14.580.670) 29.851.731

- purchase of equity investments - (5.000.000)

- purchase of financial assets held to maturity - 40.715.965

- purchase of property, plantand equipment (14.289.939) (5.864.234)

- purchase of intangible assets (290.731) (0)

Net liquidity generated/absorbed by investing activ ity B (+/-) 48.433.079 30.778.822

FUNDING ACTIVITY

- issue/purchase of own shares 11.730.747 4.806.084

Net liquidity generated/absorbed by funding activit y C(+/-) 11.730.747 4.806.084

NET LIQUIDITY GENERATED/ABSORBED DURING THE PERIOD D=A+/-B+/-C (175.873) (1.533.423)
RECONCILIATION

Cash and cash equivalents atthe start of the period E 18.486.299 20.019.721

Total net liquidity generated/absorbed during the period D (175.873) (1.533.423)

Cash and cash equivalents: effect of exchange rate changes F - -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period G = E +/-D+/-F 18.310.427 18.486.299

rsv



NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Chapter A — ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A.1 - GENERAL INFORMATION

Section 1 Statement of compliance with internationaaccounting standards

In application of Legislative Decree No. 38 of 28bFuary 2005, the separate financial statemenBanta
Popolare di Cividale are prepared in accordanch thi¢ international accounting standards (IASs/I&RS
issued by the International Accounting Standardar8dIASB) and endorsed by the European Union, the
adoption of which was compulsory at 31 December520dcluding the relative Interpretations of the
International Financial Reporting Interpretationn@oittee (IFRIC), as established by Regulation (EG)
1606 of 19 July 2002.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 mbee 2015 have been prepared on the basis of the
instructions issued by the Bank of Italy within $wpe of its regulatory powers governing the taifiorm

of the financial statements of banks and financistitutions as set forth in Legislative Decree 188/05
Instructions for the Preparation of the Separate@onsolidated Financial Statements of Banks andri€ial
Institutions that are the Parent Companies of Baptdroups (Order of 22 December 2005 — Circular26a.

— fourth update of 15 December 2015), taking actofithe changes announced by the Bank of Italy.

Those Instructions set out a compulsory presemidio the financial statements and the basis fer th
preparation thereof, as well as the contents ohtties to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared ublmgnternational accounting standards in force lat 3
December 2015 (including the SIC and IFRIC intetgdren documents).

The following is a list of the regulations endogsgeveral new standards or amendments to exigéngards,
applicable on a compulsory basis effective finangar 2015, as limited to the cases of interethéBank’s
business, for which an early application option wasexercised in previous years:

v" Regulation No 634/2014, which adopts the interpiatd FRIC 21Levies That Interpretation addresses
the accounting for a liability to pay a levy if tHaability is within the scope of IAS 37, as wel the
accounting for a liability to pay a levy whose tgiand amount is uncertain.

v" Regulation No 1361/2014 — Annual Improvements tertmtional Reporting Standards 2011-2013
Cycle. In particular, the amendments to IFRS 3Edre clarifications or corrections to the respect
standards. The amendments to IAS 40 involve chatmdbe existing requirements or additional
guidance on the implementation of those requiresent

v" Regulation No 28/2015 — Annual Improvements torlméonal Reporting Standards 2010-2012 Cycle.
In particular, the amendments to IFRS 8 and IAS2#6and 38 are clarifications or corrections to the
respective standards. The amendments to IFRS 2IFER8 3 involve changes to the existing
requirements or additional guidance on the impldatem of those requirements.

v" Regulation No 29/2015 — Amendments to IASOfined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributiofibe
amendments are aimed at simplifying and clarifgiregaccounting treatment of contributions to define
benefit plans by employees or third parties.

Application of these new standards did not havigaifscant impact on financial performance or eguibr
the period.

In 2015, additional amendments to previous regutatiwere endorsed by the European Union. Those
amendments had yet to enter into force at the tiggadate. The endorsing regulations are detai&ddvin

v" Regulation No 2015/2113 adopting amendments tol®Broperty, Plant and Equipmeand IAS 41
Agriculture: Bearer PlantsThese amendments are not pertinent to the Baolisty;

v" Regulation No 2015/2173 adopting amendments to IER3\cquisition of an Interest in a Joint
Operation which provide a guide to the accounting treatm@infcquisitions of interests in joint
operationghat constitute company assets.

v" Regulation No 2015/2231, adopting amendments tol®Broperty, Plant and Equipmeand IAS 38
Intangible Assetavhich clarify certain aspects of acceptable aisatibn methods;

v" Regulation No 2015/2343, adopting the 2012-20141ahycle of improvements to IFRS, in the context
of the ordinary process of rationalising and clani§ international accounting principles;

v" Regulation No 2015/2406, adopting amendments to 1A% esentation: Disclosure InitiativeThe
amendments are aimed at improving the effectivenéstisclosure and encouraging companies to



determine the information to be presented in tharfcial statements with professional judgemerttén t
context of application of IAS 1;

v" Regulation No 2015/2441, adopting amendments to 28SSeparate Financial Statements: Equity
Method in Separate Financial Statemeritse amendments are aimed at allowing entitiepfy the
equity method, described in IAS 28vestments in Associates and Joint Ventutesaccount for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures ando@ages in their respective separate financial
statements.

In 2016, the Bank began the process of assessingdiential impact of the new international accimgnt
principles issued by the IASB that have yet to hdoesed by the European Union at the reporting @RS
9 Financial InstrumentsiIFRS 15Revenue from Contracts with Customansl IFRS 1@ easing.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014 the IASB issued IFRSFthancial Instrumentsthe accounting standard that will replace IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurem@ihie process of revising IAS 39 is divided intoeth
phases: classification and measurement, impairarhhedge accounting.

The classification and measurement of financia¢@saill depend on the business model and chaistitsr
of the cash flows of the financial instrument. Tenetements will determine how the financial insteutis
measured, which may be at amortised cost, at &irevthrough profit or loss or at fair value thrbugther
comprehensive income.

In most cases, the results of classification andsmeement may be regarded as in line with thosgiagr
from the application of IAS 39, but potential migaiments cannot currently be excluded. The combéfieatt
of the application of the business model and teedEthe characteristics of the cash flows ofittstrument
may entail a different allocation among instrumeattsair value and at amortised cost with respedhée
arrangement according to IAS 39.

It should also be noted that the separation of elabe derivatives is no longer required for all fioial assets.
The classification of financial liabilities doestrthange substantially with respect to 1AS 39. fhaaincial
liabilities designated at fair value, the changergditworthiness is to be recognised in an eqesgrve rather
than in profit or loss, as had been the case uAd&B9.

Turning to impairment, the standard provides fagiregle model to be applied to all financial assats
measured through profit or loss, with a partictdaus on the definition of the rules for calculgtimpairment
according to the single concept of expected logsciiically, upon initial recognition, impairmeruddses will
be determined on the basis of the expected lasgehte months. However, if a significant increaseiedit
risk is observed with respect to the date of ihig@ognition, impairment losses must be determimedhe
basis of the expected loss determined throughautifén of the financial instrument. On the basistloése
elements, financial instruments are classified thtee distinct stages:

v’ stage 1 includes performing financial instrumentsahich no significant deterioration of creditkrisas
been observed with respect to the date of ingabgnition. Impairment is determined collectivelytbe
basis of the expected credit loss at one year;

v’ stage 2 includes performing financial instrumentswhich a significant deterioration of credit ris&s
been observed with respect to the date of ingabgnition. Impairment is determined collectivelytbe
basis of the lifetime expected credit loss;

v stage 3 includes non-performing financial instrutagassessed separately on the basis of the lfetim
expected credit loss.

The expected loss used must consider all availmibdemation, including information about past event
current conditions and forecasts of economic cao gt

In terms of impact on profit or loss, the recognitbf impairment will be more closely focused oa thrward-
looking components and, at least on initial appicca will entail an increase in impairment lossesnpared
to the current provisions of IAS 39 (model basedrmmurred loss). At present, it is not possiblestimate
reliably the financial impact of the initial appdition of the new standard.

With regard to the issue of hedge accounting, éwesion of the standard aims to simplify the accmgn
treatment by creating closer ties with risk manageinstrategies. The standard does not govern nhacige
accounting, which will be discussed in a separedggept. On this subject, IFRS 9 also allows theafseertain
accounting treatments governed by IAS 39.

IFRS 9 requires mandatory application from 1 Jap2&18 - with the possible of early applicationtioé
entire standard, or of only parts relating to tieecainting treatment of own creditworthiness forfinial
liabilities designated at fair value. —



IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014, the IASB published IFRS Revenue from Contracts with Customehpplication of the
standard, which replaces the standards and intatjomes previously issued on this subject (IASRE8/enug
IAS 11 Construction ContractsIFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmel-RIC 15 Agreements for the
Construction of Real EstatéFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customarsl SIC 31Revenue — Barter
Transactions Involving Advertising Servigeis mandatory from 1 January 2018, and early ieg@ipbn is
allowed.

The standard introduces a single model for thegmition of revenue, applicable to all commerciattracts,
with the exception of leasing contracts, insuramoatracts and financial instruments that involve th
recognition of revenue on the basis of the conatitar that is expected to be received in returrifiergoods
and services rendered. The new standard introducesthod divided into five steps to analyse traisias
and define the recognition of revenue with regartbdth timing and amount: identification of the tawt
with the customer; identification of commitmentsdaperformance obligations under the contract;
identification (if necessary, on an estimated Basighe consideration for the transaction; all@rabf the
consideration for the transaction to the contrdctmammitments and performance obligations; and the
recognition of revenue on the basis of the fulfihinef contractual commitments and performance akibgs.

IFRS 16 Leasing

In January 2016, the IASB issued IFRSLE&sing subject to mandatory application from 1 Janud@y&?
which introduces new rules for the representatible@se contracts for both lessors and lesseesvaiuh
replaces the standards and interpretations prdyiossued on this subject (IAS 1Zeasing IFRIC 4
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Le&#€ 150perating Leases - Incentivasd SIC 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions in theaLEgrm of a Lease

A lease is a contract in which the lessee recdivesight to use an asset for a period of timeebom for
consideration.

IFRS 16 eliminates the distinction between opegedind finance leases for the lessee and definesmdinods
of representation. The lessee must recognise iéitiiadn the basis of the present value of futuagpents as
a balancing entry to the recognition of the rightise the leased asset. For the lessor, the caceatnting
rules remain largely unchanged.

Section 2 General basis of preparation

The financial statements consist of the balancetsircome statement, statement of comprehensbeerie,
statement of changes in shareholders’ equity,reteof cash flows and the notes to the finantements.

A report on operations, earnings results and firsuposition has also been included. The figurese@nted in
the financial statements and in the notes, asagsih the report on operations, are expressedirstnds of
euro, unless otherwise indicated. The financidaéstents and notes include figures for the periateureview

as well as comparative data at 31 December 20Xtfifiancial statements have been prepared in apiolic

of the general preparation principles set forthA8 1, the accounting standards illustrated in G&ap.2 of

the notes (international accounting standards eedoby the European Union the adoption of which was
compulsory at 31 December 2015) and the generalirmgents laid down in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statesraratted by the International Accounting Stand&dard
(IASB).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 mbee 2015 have been prepared in a clear manner and
provide a fair and true representation of the Barfikiancial position and earnings results for teary No
derogations from the application of IAS/IFRS wepplged in these financial statements. The direttefsort

on operations and the notes contain the informatguired by international accounting principlds taw,

the Bank of Italy and Consob, in addition to tha@-meandatory information required to provide a tfutland
accurate representation of the Bank's situation.

The publication of the financial statements forykar ended 31 December 2015 was authorised (Bl

of Directors on 23 March 2016. Banca Popolare didaie is a cooperative company limited by shares,
registered and domiciled in Italy.

Contents of the financial statements

The balance sheet and income statement consisnoe$,i sub-items and further information (the “ofietfi

within items and sub-items). In the income stateimevenues are indicated without sign, whereatsare
=mPresented in parentheses.



The statement of comprehensive income consistemithat show changes in the carrying amountsstas
during the year recognised through valuation reserMegative amounts are presented in parentheses.
The statement of changes in shareholders’ equéagemts the composition of and changes in sharalsblde
equity accounts during the reporting year and ttevipus year, broken down into share capital, gquit
reserves, reserves from retained earnings, restoraghe valuation of assets or liabilities antlineome or
loss. Treasury shares are deducted from sharebsbttgrity.

The statement of cash flows has been prepared diogoto the direct method, which shows the main
categories of gross receipts and payments. Casis fltave been presented by distinguishing between
operating, investing and financing activity.

The notes to the financial statements includertf@mation provided for by International Finandreporting
Standards and Circular No. 262/2005 of the Barlkadf (fourth update of 15 December 2015).

The fourth update to the Circular modified the Wisares to be presented in the notes concerniraglitcr
quality" to match the new definitions of "non-perfong financial assets" consistent with the consept
"non-performing exposures" and "forborne exposuestiblished by the European Commission in Regulati
No 2015/227 at the proposal of the European Bankimtpority. In addition, the tables concerning ged
assets were eliminated from Section 3, Liquiditskriof Chapter E, Risks and hedging policies, and
rationalisation measures were applied to Chapten Bhe balance sheet and Chapter E, Risks andrigedgi
policies, of the notes. It should be noted thapexsitted by the Circular, disclosures in the aa@ncerning
the performance of gross exposures and adjustnberttee value of forborne exposures will be provided
starting with the 2016 financial statements.

The financial statements and notes include figtoethe period under review as well as comparatiae at

31 December 2014.

Section 3 Subsequent events
Please refer to the corresponding section of thert@n operations.

Introduction

The Company's financial statements have been méparapplication of the general preparation pples
set forth in the international accounting standamtsorsed by the European Union the adoption ofhwvas
compulsory at 31 December 2015.

Measurement criteria have been adopted in vieWwsofontinuity of company activity and reflect thipiples
of accruals-basis accounting, the materiality agdiicant of accounting information and the prearate of
economic substance over legal form.

Section 4 Other aspects

During the year, there were no transactions or tsvefna non-recurring nature beyond the coursedihary
operations with a material impact on financial parfance and financial position (Consob Notice No.
DEM/6064293 of 28-7-2006).



A.2 — INFORMATION ON THE MAIN ITEMS OF THE FINANCIA L STATEMENTS

This section describes the accounting policies tdbjm preparing the financial statements for tharyended
31 December 2015 and includes an illustration leynitof the criteria for recognition, classification,
measurement, derecognition and, where relevantritegia for the recognition of income components.

1 - Financial assets held for trading
This category includes debt and equity securitedd for trading and the positive value of derivatoontracts.
Derivative contracts also include those embedddd/brid financial instruments that have been retsegh
separately because:

v' their financial characteristics and risks are nttyy correlated with the characteristics of thest

contract;
v the embedded instruments meet the definition afdéve, even when separated; and
v the hybrid instruments are not measured at fainevalith changes in fair value recognised through
the income statement.

Reclassifications to other categories of finanagsdets are not permitted except in cases of uneseats that
are highly unlikely to recur in the near term. itk cases, debt securities and equities not hetdafting may
be reclassified into other categories establislydd8 39 if the conditions for their recognitiondeabeen met
(financial assets held to maturity, financial assetailable for sale and loans and receivables).tidnsfer
value is the fair value at the time of the recliésation. The presence of any embedded derivativeracts to
be separated is assessed upon reclassification.
Initial recognition of financial assets occursha settlement date for debt securities and equihdghe trade
date for derivative contracts. Upon initial recdgm, financial assets held for trading are recdrde fair
value, without considering transaction costs oenexes directly attributable to the instrument, \whice
recognised in the income statement.
After initial recognition, financial assets heldr foading are measured at fair value. The effeétshe
application of this measurement criterion are taketine income statement.
Market prices are used to determine the fair valuinancial instruments listed on active marketsthe
absence of an active market, the Bank uses estmatéthods and valuation models that take accdualt o
risk factors associated with the instruments aatl, thhere possible, are based on data that mapthaned
from the market, such as: the valuation of listesfruments with similar characteristics (comparabtethod),
discounted cash flow analysis, option-pricing medefalues reported for recent comparable transectio
(recent transactions method), etc.
Where it is impossible to use the approaches itelicabove, the Bank adopts estimation methods and
valuation models that also contemplate input datalimectly available from the market.
Equity securities, units of UCIs that invest in egsecurities and derivatives on equity securiheslisted
on active markets for which fair value may not letedmined reliably according to the foregoing glirdes
continue to be carried at cost.
Financial assets are only derecognised if theyransferred along with substantially all of thecasated risks
and rewards of ownership. Conversely, if a sigaificpart of the risks and rewards associated wvigh t
transferred financial assets has been retainede thssets continue to be carried, even though shipeof
the assets has effectively been transferred. Wtiemot possible to determine that substantidllyisks and
rewards have been transferred, financial assetdeapzognised where no control over the assetbdes
retained. Where this is not the case, continuingrof even partial control, results in continuirggognition
of the assets to the extent of the entity’s cortiginvolvement, measured by the exposure to chamgthe
value of the transferred assets and changes iswiated cash flows.
Lastly, transferred financial assets are derecegnisthe entity retains the contractual rightgdoeive the
cash flows from the assets, but assumes a contutskgation to remit such cash flows, and onlytsgash
flows, to third parties.

2 - Financial assets available for sale

This category includes non-derivative financialeassot classified as loans and receivables, finhassets
held to maturity, financial assets held for tradanglesignated at fair value. In particular, ttategory includes
not only debt securities not held for trading cassified to the other foregoing portfolios, butocaéxjuity
interests not managed for trading purposes or ifildse as interests in subsidiaries, associatefoiot
ventures.

Where allowed by accounting standards, reclassibics are permitted only into the category finahagsets
held to maturity, except in cases of unusual evvasare highly unlikely to recur in the near tetmsuch



cases, debt securities may be reclassified todhesl and receivables category if the conditionstheir
recognition have been met. The transfer valueddah value at the time of the reclassification.

Initial recognition of the financial asset occutssettlement date for debt securities and equdes at
disbursement date for loans. On initial recognitemssets are recorded at fair value, includingsation costs
and revenues directly attributable to the instrumiénwhere allowed by the accounting standardsasset is
recognised following reclassification from finaricessets held to maturity or, in rare circumstané@sn
financial assets held for trading, the recognitiafue is the fair value as at the time of transfdter initial
recognition, financial assets available for sake measured at their fair value by recognising therést,
calculated according to the effective interest ratghod for debt securities, in the income statémehile
gains or losses deriving from changes in fair vateerecognised in a specific shareholders’ eqetgrve
until the financial asset is derecognised or besoimpaired. When the financial asset is sold oraimment
is recognised, the cumulative gain or loss mustbkersed, in whole or in part, to the income statsm

Fair value is determined on the basis of the catélustrated above for financial assets held tfading.
Equities and derivative instruments with equitissiaderlying assets that are not quoted on aneactarket,
the fair value of which may not be determined t@{iacontinue to be carried at cost.

Financial assets available for sale are assessddtéomine whether they show objective evidencarof
impairment loss. If such evidence is found to exiet amount of the loss is measured as the difterbetween
the asset’s acquisition cost and its fair valuss leny previously recognised impairment lossdbkelfyrounds
for impairment cease to apply as a result of amietyet occurs after an impairment loss has besrgrésed,
recoveries are recognised in the income statenoembdns or debt securities and in shareholdengitgdor
equities.

Financial assets are only derecognised if theyransferred along with substantially all of thecsated risks
and rewards of ownership. When it is not possiblddtermine that substantially all risks and rewdrdve
been transferred, financial assets are derecognisere no control over the assets has been retaivieere
this is not the case, continuing control, eveniglacontrol, results in continuing recognition bktassets to
the extent of the entity’s continuing involvememtgasured by the exposure to changes in the valtleeof
transferred assets and changes in the associatedaas.

Lastly, transferred financial assets are derecegnisthe entity retains the contractual rightgdoeive the
cash flows of the asset, but assumes a concurbdightion to remit those cash flows, and only thoash
flows, to third parties.

3 - Financial assets held to maturity
Item “50 Financial assets held to maturity” incladeon-derivative quoted debt securities with fixad
determinable payments and fixed maturities thaetitéy actually intends and is able to hold umtdturity.
Where allowed by accounting standards, reclassibicsiare permitted solely into the category finahassets
available for sale. Where a material amount of stwents classified to this category is sold orassified
prior to maturity, the remaining financial asse¢dhto maturity are reclassified as financial asseailable
for sale, and the use of the portfolio in quest®restricted for the following two years, unlessls sales or
reclassifications:
v’ are so close to the maturity or the call date effthancial asset that changes in the market fateerest
would not have a significant effect on the finahasset’s fair value;
v" occur after the collection of substantially alltbé asset’s original principal through schedule@amty
ordinary payments; or
v’ are attributable to an isolated event that is bdyba entity’s control, is non-recurring and contd have
been reasonably anticipated by the entity.
Assets in this category are initially recognisedhat settlement date and are measured at theivdhie,
including directly attributable transaction costwlaevenue. If an asset is included in this categoe to
reclassification from financial assets availabledale or, in rare circumstances, from financiakés held for
trading, the asset's reclassification date fained taken as its new amortised cost.
After initial recognition, such assets are measambrding to the amortised cost method througlefiieetive
interest rate approach. Gains or losses assoadiatiedinancial assets held to maturity are recoedis the
income statement when the assets are derecogmibedame impaired, and through the amortisatiocgs®
applicable to the difference between carrying anhand the value reimbursable at maturity. It idquiically
assessed whether there is objective evidenceubhaffimancial assets have become impaired. If swakence
exists, the loss is measured as the differencedagithe carrying value of the asset and the presdun of
the estimated future cash flows, discounted abtlggnal effective interest rate. The loss is ratiegd in the
income statement. If the grounds for impairmenseda apply due to an event that occurs after aUOSS



has been recognised, a recovery is recognisedghrthe income statement. The amount of the recovery
cannot result in a carrying amount for the finahagset in excess of its amortised cost if no impant losses
had been recognised in previous periods.

Financial assets are only derecognised if theyransferred along with substantially all of thecasated risks
and rewards of ownership. When it is not possiblddtermine that substantially all risks and rewdrdve
been transferred, financial assets are derecogniserk no control over the assets has been retaivieere
this is not the case, continuing control, eveniglacontrol, results in continuing recognition dketassets to
the extent of the entity’s continuing involvememtgasured by the exposure to changes in the valtleeof
transferred assets and changes in the associaedaas.

Lastly, transferred financial assets are derecegnifsthe entity retains the contractual rightgdoeive the
cash flows of the asset, but assumes a concurbdightion to remit those cash flows, and only thoash
flows, to third parties.

4 - Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables include loans to customet$anks with fixed or determinable payments thatrent
guoted on an active market. The item also incluce®mercial loans, repurchase agreements with the
obligation a forward resale obligation, receivaldeginating from finance lease transactions armisges
subscribed at issue or via private placements, fivigd or determinable payments and not quotecctivel
markets.
Loans and receivables are initially recognisecherdate the contract is signed, which normally cidies with
the date of disbursement, while debt securitiegeregnised on the settlement date. A loan or vabie is
recognised according to its fair value, which isiagto the amount disbursed or the subscriptionepri
including any costs or revenues directly attriblegadb the individual loan or receivable and deteaie from
inception, even when settled at a later date. Cibsis even with the aforementioned characterisacs
reimbursed by the borrower or are classifiablecamal internal administrative costs are excludkit. ¢ertain
rare circumstances an asset is included in thegoay due to reclassification from financial assetsilable
for sale or from financial assets held for tradithge asset's reclassification date fair valueksraas its new
amortised cost.
After initial recognition, loans and receivables aneasured at amortised cost, which is equal foitfigal
value increased or decreased by principal repaysnadjustments or recoveries and amortisationcutzdkd
according to the effective interest method — ofdtfierence between the amount disbursed and thoeiainto
be repaid at maturity, typically attributable taethosts/revenues directly connected to the sirage br
receivable. The effective interest rate is the thét exactly discounts estimated future cash paysnaf the
loan or receivable, by way of principal and int¢érés the amount disbursed, including the costefnees
attributable to the loan or receivable.
The amortised cost method is not used for loanseogivables for which application of the discougtin
approach may be deemed immaterial due to theit sluoations. Such loans or receivables are measired
their historical cost. An analogous measuremet#raon is applied to loans or receivables with aspecified
maturity or with a notice period.
Loans and receivables are tested to identify thioaeshow objective evidence of possible impairnent
result of events after initial recognition.
These include loans and receivables classifieddsibbts, unlikely to pay and past due accordirtggaules
issued by the Bank of Italy, consistent with IARBregulations. Such non-performing loans and vabées
are measured separately, or according to the esghdoss for homogeneous categories and analytical
allocation to each position, and the amount ofdtpistment of each loan or receivable is the difiee
between its carrying amount at the time of measanértamortised cost) and the present value of eggdec
future cash flows, discounted using the originéafve interest rate.
Expected cash flows account for expected recovernpgs, the presumed realisable value of guaramtees
estimated debt-recovery costs. The adjustment@gresed in the income statement.
The original amount of a loan or receivable is w&ted in subsequent periods to the extent thagribends
for impairment cease to apply, provided that sualuation is objectively attributed to an event aftee
impairment loss. The recovery is recognised iniiceme statement and cannot result in a carryinguaitn
for the loan or receivable in excess of its amedisost if no impairment losses had been recogrnised
previous periods. Recoveries on impairment inclirde-value effects.
The renegotiation of credit exposures granted kByBank with respect to performing loans to custemer
substantially similar to the opening of a new positwhen it is due to commercial reasons othen tha
ssmdeterioration in the borrower’s financial situatigmovided that the interest rate applied is a wiarkte at the



renegotiation date. When renegotiations are gratgeblorrowers suffering from a deterioration inithe
financial situation, exposures are classified umaer-performing loans.

Loans or receivables for which no objective evigeotloss has emerged from individual testing ested
collectively. Collective measurement occurs for lbgeneous loan categories in terms of credit risktae
relative loss percentages are estimated considpasitime-series and other objective elementsrobiske at
the measurement date, which allow the latent losgdch loan category to be estimated. Measureatemt
considers the risk connected to the borrower’s tgusf residence. Collective adjustments are resgh
through the income statement.

Transferred loans and receivables are only derésedf they are transferred along with substalgtiall
risks and rewards of ownership. If it cannot beedatned that substantially all risks and rewardsshaeen
transferred, loans and receivables are derecogpiseitied that no control has been retained. # ithinot the
case, continuing control, including partial contra@sults in the entity continuing to carry therlsaand
receivables to the extent of its continuing invohent, measured as the entity's exposure to chandhe
value of the transferred loans and receivableschadges in the associated cash flows.

Lastly, transferred loans are derecognised if tiyeretains the contractual rights to receive ¢hsh flows
from the loan or receivables, but assumes a comuuabligation to remit those cash flows, and dhlyse
cash flows, to third parties.

Finance leases

Amounts due from customers in connection with @ssatlease are recognised at the commencement of th
related contracts or formal delivery of the as8etounts due from customers in connection with @&seat
lease are recognised at amortised cost, i.e. atitle value of the investment, including thetial direct costs
incurred and directly attributable commissions,slgwmincipal repayments and depreciation calculated
according to the effective interest method, i.edisgounting estimated future payment flows overdkpected
term of the financing at the effective intereseratriteria similar to those illustrated above wialowed for
impairment losses and recoveries.

7 - Equity investments

The item includes investments in joint ventures asgbciates, which are accounted for accordingtedquity
method.

Companies are considered joint ventures when ttisgrdghts and the control of the economic adtgtof
the company are equally shared, directly or indiyewith another entity.

Companies are considered associates, that is,csubjesignificant influence, when the Bank, dirgatir
indirectly, holds at least 20% of voting rights,ifathe Parent Company holds a lesser equity stakéas the
power to participate in determining the companymificial and operational policies due to speciigal
relationships such as patrticipation in shareholdeneements.

Where there is evidence of impairment, the recdleramount of an investment is estimated, consigetie
present value of the future cash flows that magdmerated by the investment, including the finapdsal
value.

If the recoverable amount is lower than the cagyamount, the difference is recognised in the ircom
statement. If the grounds for impairment ceasepdyadue to an event that occurs after such aHasseen
recognised, a recovery is recognised through thene statement.

Equity investments are derecognised when the adnthrights to the cash flows from the assetsrexpi
when the investment is transferred along with ari#lly all the associated risks and rewards.

8 - Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment includes land, bogdiused in operations, technical plant, furnitlirtyres
and equipment of all types. They are tangible itémas are held for use in the production or sugblgoods

or services and are expected to be used duringtmamneone period. Property, plant and equipmenitiially
recognised at cost, which also includes any exgetisectly attributable to purchasing or commissigrthe
asset. Extraordinary maintenance expenses thaaiseithe future economic benefits are allocatettease
the value of the assets, while other ordinary nesiahce costs are recognised in the income statement
Items of property, plant and equipment are thensuneal at cost less accumulated appreciation, imguhy
impairment losses or recoveries.

Property, plant and equipment are systematicalpyratgated, adopting the straight-line method oweirt
useful life. The depreciable amount consists ofcib&t of the assets less their estimated resiglaé\at the
end of the depreciation period. Buildings are amsed at a rate deemed appropriate to account #rn.th
deterioration of the assets over time due to ugedBtrast, land is not depreciated, irrespectieéiywhethel



it is acquired individually or embedded in the aalf buildings, since it has an indefinite usefid.|Each
asset’s residual amount, useful life and depremiatiethods are revised at the end of each yeamdrate
necessary, adjusted on a prospective basis.

If there is evidence that an asset may have becop®red, the carrying value and recoverable amofitite
asset are compared. Any impairment losses are mesmay in the income statement. If the grounds for
impairment cease to apply, a recovery is recognisegh amount that may not exceed the asset'& vatiof
depreciation charges, in the absence of any prewiopairment losses.

Items of property, plant and equipment are dereisegnon disposal or when an asset is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefiessexpected to flow from its disposal.

9 - Intangible assets
Intangible assets are recognised as such if thegybmddentified and stem from legal or contractigihts.
Goodwill, which represents the positive differebe¢ween the purchase cost and the fair value afqniree’s
assets and liabilities, is also recognised amotagngible assets.
Intangible assets are recognised at cost, adjfmsteshy accessory charges only if it is probabé the future
economic benefits attributable to the assets véllrbalised and if the cost of the asset may baligli
determined. Where this is not the case, the cosh dfitangible asset is recognised in the incortestent in
the year in which it is incurred.
For assets with finite useful lives, cost is ansarti on a straight-line basis or in decreasing @ustdetermined
on the basis of the economic benefits expectelbtoffom the asset.
Assets with indefinite useful lives are not subfecsystematic amortisation, but rather periodyctdbted for
impairment. If there is any evidence that an ass#y have become impairment, that asset’s recowerabl
amount is estimated. The impairment loss, whialeéegnised through the income statement, is equialet
difference between the carrying amount and rectwei@mount of the asset.
In particular, intangible assets include:

v technology-related intangibles, such as softwarkjchv are amortised on the basis of their

obsolescence and over a maximum period of fivesyeard

v' trademarks and licences;

v' goodwill.
Goodwill may be recognised when the positive differe between the fair value of the shareholdenstyeq
acquired and the purchase price or initial recagmiamount (inclusive of accessory costs) is repregdive
of the equity investment’s future income-generatiagential. If the difference is negative (badwily if
goodwill is not justified by the entity’s futuredome-generating potential, it is recognised diyettirough
the income statement.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually (or wiegar there is evidence of impairment). The amofiano
impairment loss is determined on the basis of ttierdnce between the carrying amount of goodwill ghe
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the goodaals been allocated, if lower. The recoverable armou
is equal to the greater of the fair value of thehegenerating unit, less any cost to sell, anddlaive value
in use. The consequent adjustments are recogmisaagh the income statement.
An intangible asset is derecognised upon dispasahen no future economic benefits are expectdtbto
from the use or disposal of the asset.

11 — Current and deferred taxation

Income tax, calculated according to the nationaktade, is accounted for as a cost on an accraais,lin a
manner consistent with the method applied to addmuthe costs and revenue that give rise todRelt thus
represents the balance of current and deferreticdaxalating to the net income or loss for thery€urrent
tax assets and liabilities include the tax balammfethe Bank due to the relevant ltalian and faneigx
authorities. More specifically, these items inclutie net balance of current tax liabilities for thear,
calculated on the basis of a conservative estiofdtee tax charges due for the year, assesseddaegdo the
tax code currently in force, and the current tesetsrepresented by advances paid and other tartscier
withholding taxes paid or tax credits from previgesirs that the Bank claimed against taxes payalfilgure
years. Current tax assets also include tax creditsspect of which a tax refund claim has beesdfiby the
Bank with the relevant tax authorities.

Deferred taxation is calculated according to thiarze sheet liability method, taking into accoumd tax
effect of the temporary differences between thekbeaue of the assets and liabilities and theiugafor
taxation purposes, which will determine taxableome or deductible amounts in the future. To thid,en

“taxable temporary differences” are differencesalihivill give rise to taxable income in future yearsile
E—— |



“deductible temporary differences” are those whiah give rise to deductible amounts in future ygar
Deferred tax liabilities are calculated by applyitige tax rates currently in force to taxable terappr
differences that are likely to generate a tax buyded to the deductible temporary differencesoich it is
likely that there will be future taxable amountdhag time when the related tax deductibility ocdgis-called
probability test). Deferred tax assets and lidbditrelated to the same tax and due in the sanedpane set
off against one another.

If deferred tax assets and liabilities refer tongeaffecting the income statement, they are resegrtnrough
income taxes.

12 — Provisions
Provisions are recognised to account for liabgitlee amount or timing of which is uncertain, ilamly if:

v’ there is a present obligation (legal or constrajtas a result of a past event;

v’ itis probable that an outflow of resources embogyeconomic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation; and

v'the probable future outlay can be reliably estimate
The amount recognised as a provision is the béishae of the expenditure required to settle thesent
obligation at the balance-sheet date and reflbetgisks and uncertainties that inevitably surrouadous
events and circumstances. Provisions and increhsedo the time factor are recognised in the income
statement. Provisions are released when it becamidsely that resources capable of yielding ecoromi
benefits will need to be expended in order to disgh the obligation or when the obligation is exytiished.
Provisions include those for long-term and postdemmpent benefits within the scope of IAS 19 and
provisions for risks and contingencies within thepe of IAS 37. Provisions do not include impairtriesses
recognised on the deterioration of guaranteesjtaedvatives and similar items pursuant to IAS @®ich
instead are recognised under “Other liabilitieh&Bub-item “Other provisions” includes amountsaed to
account for presumed losses in lawsuits in whicheatity is a defendant, including revocatory acdion
estimated outlays under complaints filed by custenmncerning securities brokerage operations and a
reliable estimate of other outlays in connectiothwainy other legal or constructive obligation athatend of
the year or interim period.
Where the time factor is significant, provisiong aiscounted using current market rates. The digoay
effect and the increase in provisions due to tlesgge of time are recognised through the incontensésnt.

13 — Debt and securities issued

Amounts due to banks, amounts due to customersdabtisecurities issued include the various forms of
interbank funding and direct customer depositsyelbas funding through certificates of deposit &melissue

of bonds and other debt securities, net of any atsaepurchased.

Such financial liabilities are initially recognised the date on which the contract is signed, whmmally
coincides with the moment of receipt of the sumgodéded or the issuance of the debt securitiesari€iial
liabilities are initially measured at their fairlua, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, financial liabilities @ measured at amortised cost according to thetividaterest
method. An exception is made for short-term lidilesi, where the time factor is immaterial, which atated

at collected amount.

Financial liabilities, or parts of such liabilitiesre derecognised when they are extinguishedigheten the
obligation is discharged or cancelled or expirexfsassets are also derecognised when they anehepad

on the market. Derecognition is based on the faluer of the component issued and the component
repurchased at the purchase date. Any gains a@da&siving from the transaction, depending on hdrethe
recognised amount of the repurchased componeme&eay or less than the purchase price, are resegni
through the income statement. If a security is fhleced again, this transaction is treated as aismye and

is recognised at the new placement price.

14 - Financial liabilities held for trading

Liabilities held for trading are represented byiive financial instruments held for trading tipaesent a
negative fair value and have not been designatddimg instruments in a hedging relationship asraefiby
IAS 39. All liabilities held for trading are desigted at fair value through the income statement.

16 — Foreign-currency transactions
Foreign-currency transactions are initially receguiin the functional currency using the applicaslehange
rate on the transaction date. At every subsequaahbe-sheet date:

v"monetary items are translated at the exchangeratmiling at the balance-sheet date;



v' non-monetary items measured at historic cost amslated at the exchange rate prevailing at the
transaction date; and
v' non-monetary items designated at fair value amsladed using the exchange rate prevailing at the
date the fair value was determined.
A monetary item is the right to receive, or theigdion to deliver, a fixed or determinable numbgunits of
a currency. Conversely, the fundamental charatte$ non-monetary items is the absence of thitrig
receive, or the obligation to deliver, a fixed atetrminable number of units of a currency. Transfat
differences relating to monetary items are recaghtlrough the income statement when they ariseresis
those relating to non-monetary items are recognisexligh shareholders’ equity or the income statéme
depending on the manner in which the gains or fo#s# include this component are recognised. CGosts
revenues in foreign currencies are measured aéxtieange rate prevailing at the date of recognibignf
they have yet to accrue fully, at the exchange petgailing at the balance-sheet date.

17 Other information

Business combinations

IFRS 3 (Revised) defines a business combinatianteansaction or other event in which an acquibtaios
control of a business consisting of an integrattd§activities and assets that is capable ofgoeomducted
or managed for the purpose of providing a retumsiBess combinations thus include acquisitionstefests
in subsidiaries, mergers, acquisitions of busiteaaches, etc. IFRS 3 requires that all businesbomtions
that fall within its scope of application are todmcounted for according to the acquisition mettiaa.each
business combination, one of the entities parttoigan the combination must be identified as thquarer,
defined as the entity that obtains control of aao#ntity or group of businesses. Control is agéddfin IFRS
10.

Although in some cases it may be difficult to idBnan acquirer, there are normally situations indicate
the existence of an acquirer. In a business cormbmaffected primarily by transferring cash oretlassets,
or by incurring liabilities, the acquirer is usyathe entity that transfers the cash or other asseincurs the
liabilities. In a business combination effectedwatily by exchanging equity interests, the acqusersually
the entity that issues its equity interests. Offegtinent facts shall also be considered, including

the relative voting rights in the combined entitieathe business combination;

the existence of a large minority voting interestrie

combined entity if no other owner or organised grotiowners

has a significant voting interest;

the composition of the governing body of the corelientity;

the composition of the senior management of thebtoad entity;

the terms of the exchange of equity interests.

The acquirer is usually the combining entity whoslative size (measured in, for example, asseteniees
or profit) is significantly greater than that oktbther combining entity or entities. In additiama business
combination involving more than two entities, detaring the acquirer shall include a consideratihmmong
other things, which of the combining entities @miid the combination, as well as the relative sizthe
combining entities.

The acquisition date is the date on which the aeqobtains control of the acquiree and is the ftata which
the acquiree is consolidated in the acquiree’sfire statements. When a business combinatioriastet] in
a single exchange, the date of the exchange &ctipgisition date. The consideration transferredl limisiness
combination shall be measured at fair value, wkitdll be calculated as the sum of the acquisitete-thair
value of the assets transferred by the acquirdreédormer owners of the acquiree, the liabilitiesurred by
the acquirer to the former owners of the acquired @ne equity interests issued by the acquirer. The
consideration that the acquiree transfers in exghdor the acquiree includes any asset or liahiégulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement.

Acquisition-related costs are costs that the aequicurs to effect a business combination. Theliaegshall
account for acquisition-related costs as expemstgiperiods in which the costs are incurred bagervices
received, with the exception of the costs to isdabt or equity securities, which shall be recoghise
accordance with IAS 32 and IAS 39.

Business combinations must be accounted for byyaqpthe “acquisition method,” whereby the ideratifie
assets acquired, including any intangible assdtpnewiously recognised by the acquiree, and thatitiable
liabilities assumed are recognised at their actiomnstate fair value. The fair value of the acqeiseassets,
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liabilities and contingent liabilities may be preiinally determined by the end of the year in whicé
combination is undertaken and must be finalisetliwitwelve months of acquisition date.

If control is obtained through subsequent purchabesacquirer must remeasure its previously hegldty
interest in the acquiree at the acquisition-dateviue and recognise the difference comparetdgtevious
carrying amount, if any, in profit or loss.

The acquirer shall recognise goodwill on the agtiarsdate by measuring it as the amount by whighsum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of mmority equity interest in the acquiree and, inusiness
combination achieved in stages, the acquisitioe-thit value of the equity interests in the acquipeaviously
held by the acquiree, exceeds the net amountgnuetsl at the acquisition date, of the identifiabksets
acquired and identifiable liabilities assumed, rieed on the basis of the above. If a negative miffee is
found to exist, that difference is recognised iofipior loss. For each business combination, miganiterests
in the acquiree, where existing, may be recogragdair value, with the ensuing increase in thestagration
transferred, or in proportion to the minority irgst in the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations between entities under concoranol

Business combinations between entities under congontrol do not fall within the scope of applicatiof
International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS)@ are they governed by the other IFRSs. Acogjyl]
such transactions are subject to the provisioh&®8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accountingjiiates
and Errors.

IASs/IFRSs contain specific guidelines to be foolwhen a transaction is not within the scope BISE, as
described in paragraphs 10-12 of IAS 8, which nexjthiat the Directors also take account of the mexs#nt
pronouncements of other standard-setting bodidsugea similar conceptual structure for the dediniof
accounting standards.

In this regard, it may be observed that the Firelndccounting Standards Board (FASB) has publistred
accounting standard governing business combinaffeAS 141), which in various regards is similatR&S
3, but differently from that Standard includes,aim appendix, limited accounting guidelines applieab
common control transactions, previously describeddcounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion 16. In
cases of transactions of this kind, the method dlipg of interest”) calls for assets and liabil#i¢o be
recognised at the historical (book) values of tleggad companies, rather than at their respectivedhues,
without the recognition of goodwill.

This solution has essentially been adopted at #immal level by Assirevi, in its document OPI Nb.
concerning the accounting treatment of “businesshioation of entities under common control” and el
2 concerning the accounting treatment of mergers.

Within Banca Popolare di Cividale, “intragroup” Imesss combinations, or other business combinations
between “entities under common control” are thusentaken on the basis of the book value of thesteaired
entities. If the consideration paid for the acgiosi of the equity interest differs from the bookwe of the
transferred entity, owing to the goodwill recoguisthe difference is deducted from the acquireqigity and
the transaction is treated on a par with an extiiaary allocation of reserves.

Employee termination benefits

As a result of the entry into force of the 2007dfioe Act, which advanced to 1 January 2007 thetefée
date of the reform of supplementary pension schemasted in Legislative Decree No. 252 of 5 Decembe
2005, employee termination benefits consist sadélgums accrued through 31 December 2006. In furthe
detail, portions of employee termination benefitsraed from 1 January 2007 are considered “defined-
contribution plans” for accounting purposes in adeoce with IAS 19. The expense is limited to the
contribution defined by the provisions of the laliCivil Code, without the need to apply any actlar
approach.

Conversely, the provision for employee terminatiemefits accrued as at 31 December 2006 contious t
considered a defined-benefit plan for accountingpses in accordance with IAS 19. However, thelitgb
associated with employee termination benefits Ifes to actuarial assessment without pro-ratingice
rendered inasmuch as the service to be assessdoencaysidered fully accrued.

All actuarial gains and losses on defined-benefdang are recognised immediately through other
comprehensive income. Such actuarial gains anddamsse as the result of adjustments to previousaal
assumptions due to actual experience or the madlific of those assumptions. They are allocatedspeaific
equity reserve.

Guarantees and commitments
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Guarantees issued are initially recognised atvalue, represented by the commission received,tlaew
measured at the higher of the estimated obligalielermined in accordance with IAS 37 and the amount
initially recognised, gradually reduced by the ortattributable to the period. The total nominalue,
excluding any uses made of guarantees issuedpvensin the notes to the financial statements.
Commitments are recognised according to the béstate of the obligation determined in compliandéhw
IAS 37. The total amount of commitments assumetisislosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Recognition of revenue and costs

Revenues arising from the use by third partiesrogatity’s assets that generate interest, comnissio
dividends are recognised when it is probable tmattonomic benefits from a given transaction figil to
the entity and the amount of revenue can be detednieliably. Interest and commissions are recegnis
through the income statement according to the ifilzestion of the financial instrument to which thegfer,
whereas dividends are recognised when sharehdideosne entitled to receive payment. Other commissio
are recorded on an accrual basis.

Costs are recognised when they are incurred bgviotly the principle of the correlation of costs aadenue
that arise directly and jointly from the same tat®ns or events. If costs and revenue may onbobeelated
generically and indirectly, the costs are recoghi®eer multiple periods according to a systemdtacation
approach. When costs may not be associated wignuey they are immediately recognised through the
income statement.

Use of estimates and assumptions in preparing thewal financial statements
In preparing the annual financial statements, asebleen made of estimates and assumptions thal lzawe
an impact on the amounts recognised in the balsimeet and the income statement and disclosed mmotks.
Specifically, the greatest use of subjective assests by management is required in the followirgpsa
v determining the amount of impairment losses faafitial assets, especially loans and receivables;
v determining the fair values of financial instrumend be used for disclosure purposes and using
valuation models to determine the fair values méficial instruments not quoted in active markets;
v assessing the appropriateness of the value of gthpdw
v determining the amounts of staff provisions and/gions for other risks and charges; and
v preparing estimates and assumptions relating teett@verability of deferred tax assets.
Reasonable estimates and assumptions to be useddonting for management transactions are foreulat
through subjective assessments founded upon thef adleavailable information and past experience.

Determining the fair value of financial instruments

The introduction of IFRS 13 modified the definitiof fair value with respect to that provided in 189,
taking a more market-based approach.

IFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that wdiddeceived to sell an asset or paid to transhebdity in
an orderly transaction between market participahtee measurement date (exit price) on the primemket
(or the most advantageous market), regardless eth@hthat price is directly observable or estimaeough
a valuation technique. Fair value is applied indinglly to all financial assets or financial liabés.
Exceptionally, it may be estimated at the portfdéweel if the management and risk monitoring stygateo
allow and are adequately documented.

For the details of techniques for measuring (oecaming and non-recurring basis) the fair valuérancial
instruments, as well as the classification of sastruments in fair value hierarchy levels, reteséction A.4
of the notes.

Determining amortised cost

The amortised cost of a financial asset or findn@dility is the amount at which the financialsa$ or
financial liability is measured at initial recogoit minus principal repayments, plus or minus theglative
amortisation using the effective interest methodrof difference between the initial amount andntiagurity
amount and less any reduction for impairment.

The effective interest rate is the rate that eyatidcounts estimated future cash payments orpectirough
the expected life of the financial instrument ofilthe repricing date. To calculate present vatbe effective
interest rate is applied to the future cash paysenteceipts over the entire useful life of theaficial asset
or financial liability — or a shorter period if ¢an conditions have been met (for example, thésiav of
market rates).

After initial recognition, amortised cost allowstrevenues and costs deducted from or added tastinement
to be allocated over that instrument's entire etquelife through the amortisation process. Amodisest is



determined differently depending on whether thariitial asset or financial liability to be measuisetixed-
rate or floating-rate and, in the latter case, Whethe range of rate fluctuation is known in adwaror
instruments with fixed rates or fixed rates by tib@nds, future cash flows are quantified accordinthe
known interest rate (single or floating) over tte bf the loan. For floating-rate financial assetdinancial
liabilities, the range of fluctuation of which istnknown in advance (for example, because it iselihto an
index), cash flows are determined according tontbst recent known rate. Whenever the rate is rdyibe
repayment schedule and effective interest ratesa@culated over the entire useful life of thermsent, i.e.
through its maturity date. The adjustment is re@aghas income or expense in the income statement.
Loans, financial assets held to maturity, amouns td customers and banks and debt securitiestissae
measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets and financial liabilities tradedran's length conditions are initially recognisg¢dair value,
which normally corresponds to the amount disbumsgokid, including directly attributable transaaticosts
and commissions in the case of instruments measuir@ahortised cost.

Transaction costs are internal or external margiasis and income attributable to the issuanceiisitign or
disposal of a financial instrument that may notcharged back to the customer. Such commissionshwhi
must be directly attributable to the individualdircial asset or financial liability concerned, affthe original
effective return and result in a difference betwnneffective interest rate associated with taedaction and
the contractual interest rate. Transaction costsnaboinclude costs or income associated with sévera
transactions without distinction and component®eiased with events that may occur during the difehe
financial instrument, but are not uncertain updhahdefinition, such as give-up commissions, coitnment
fees and prepayment fees.

Hedged financial assets and financial liabilities aot measured at amortised cost. Rather, chandas
value associated with the hedged risk are recogmisthe income statement (as limited to the hedigig.
However, measurement of such financial instrumangsnortised cost resumes if the hedge ceasesstpax
which time all previously recognised changes in¥alue are amortised, calculating a new effedinerest
rate that contemplates the value of the loan, &&fjukor the fair value of the hedged portion, tlglouhe
originally expected maturity of the hedge. In adif as discussed above in the section conceriiag t
measurement of loans, amounts due to banks andnoeist and debt securities issued, measurement at
amortised cost does not apply either to finandakts and financial liabilities whose brief duratieads to
the belief that the economic effect of discountwayld be negligible, or to loans without a fixedtoréty date
and demand loans.

Determining impairment losses

At each reporting date, financial assets not diasisas financial assets held for trading and faxanassets
designated at fair value are tested for impairrmeatder to determine whether there is objectivid@nce that
the carrying amount of the assets may not be feltpverable.

An asset has become impaired if there is obje&itdence of a reduction in future cash flows coragdp
original estimates as a result of specific evemte loss must be able to be determined reliablyranst be
correlated with actual and not merely expected &ven

Impairment testing is conducted on a separate Wasinancial assets that present specific evideot
impairment losses and on a collective basis farfaral assets for which separate testing is nafired or for
which separate testing does not indicate that impent had occurred. Collective testing is basedronping
financial assets into homogeneous risk classesfémance to the characteristics of the debtor/isfusiness
sector, geographical area, collateral and othewragit factors.

For information regarding loans to customers argh$oto banks, the reader is referred to the section
concerning loans.

The impairment testing process for available-fde-sasets involves verifying whether there areiadigators
that the assets may have become impaired and #tenrdning the amount of any such losses.
Impairment indicators may essentially be dividdgd iwo categories: indicators deriving from intdrfaators
relating to the company being valued, and therefbeequalitative nature, and, for equities, exa¢mdicators
of a quantitative nature deriving from the markaiies of the company.

The following factors are considered relevant mfihst category of indicators: the reporting ofet loss or a
significant divergence from budget targets or tergeet in long-term plans disclosed to the martte,
announcement or commencement of bankruptcy proesdurrestructuring plans and downgrading by agati
agency by more than two classes. In the secongaatea significant or extended reduction in faadue
below the amount at initial recognition is relevant further detail, a reduction in fair value ishsidered
significant if it amounts to more than 30% and agd if it persists for a consecutive period of @tan 24



months. If one of the above thresholds has beesegbed, an impairment loss is recognised on theigedti
neither of the above thresholds has been excebdethere are other indicators of impairment, thpairment
loss must also be corroborated by the resultsediip analyses of the security and the investment.
The amount of an impairment loss is determinea@farence to the fair value of the financial asset.

Non-performing exposures and forborne exposures

With effect from 1 January 2015, following the ersment by the European Commission on 9 Januaify 201
of a specific technical standard issued by the EB&ropean Banking Authority) on 21 October 201&, th
definitions of "non-performing exposures” and "fone exposures" entered into force. Following theve
endorsement, on 20 January 2015 the Bank of ltalhfighed the update to Circular 272, which defithes
reporting criteria to be followed when classifyicigdit quality with effect from 1 January 2015 detail, the
categories of non-performing exposures, past-dpesxes, substandard exposures, restructured argosu
and bad debts have been replaced by the new ceggdnon-performing loans, past due loans, uhblit@
pay loans and bad debts, with an indication ofdank exposures in each class.

The new definitions applied in classification foetnew categories are as follows:

v' Bad debts: total on- and off-balance sheet expeguora party in a state of insolvency (even iflegally
established) or substantially equivalent situatioregardless of any expected losses formulated.
Exposures for which the situation of anomaly mayatigbuted to aspects relating to country risk are
excluded.

v Unlikely to pay positions: these are on- and offabae sheet exposures that do not meet the comslitio
for classifying the position as a bad debt butrsfbich it is believed unlikely that, in the absentactions
such as the enforcement of guarantees, the bormilldre able to discharge its credit obligationduill
(with respect to principal and/or interest). This@ssment is conducted independently of the presgnc
any past-due amounts (or instalments). Classifinaimong unlikely to pay positions is not necegsari
related to the explicit presence of anomalies (payment), but rather to the existence of elements
indicative of a situation of risk of default by therrower.

v' Past-due exposures: these are on-balance sheetuespmther than those classified as bad debts or
unlikely to pay positions that are past due atrdp®rting date. Past-due exposures may be detednmne
reference either to individual borrowers or indisédlitransactions.

The Bank has restated the comparative figures &€kmber 2014, by including the exposures preijous
classified as problem and restructured loans ircéthegory of unlikely to pay exposures by conventio

Forborne exposures — performing
Individual performing on-balance sheet loans aentified and classified as forborne if the borroviser
currently experiencing, or about to experiencefjaifty in discharging its financial obligationsfifiancial
difficulty™), for which the Bank agrees to an ameraht of the original contractual terms and condgior
total or partial refinancing of a contract that Wwbuaot have been approved if the borrower had eenkin
such a situation of difficulty. Such exposures donepresent an additional administrative staty®be those
already used, but rather a further element fomdtedi customer credit quality, which is used in comtion
with, and not in lieu of, the classifications ireuand they are identified for each individual fanre position.
Consequently, the exposures subject to such measperforming forborne exposures - are thus ifledti
among performing loans (regular or past due bytless 90 days). Since these exposures are subjeath
forbearance measures, they have not been clasaifiedg non-performing positions.
An exposure ceases to be classified as forborne whee following conditions ("exit criteria") haveeén
satisfied:
1) a probation period of at least two years has ethfyeen the date on which forbearance status wagega
(or from the date on which the non-performing fartmexposure was reclassified as performing);
2) regular payments of significant amounts of printipainterest have been made for at least halhef t
observation period; and
3) at the end of the probation period, none of thedveer's exposures is past due by more than 30 days;
4) regular payments of significant amounts of printipainterest have been made for at least halhef t
observation period; and
5) the contract is regarded as performing, includinghe basis of an analysis of the borrower's fir@nc
situation.



Forborne exposures — non-performing

The Bank also identifies non-performing loans scibfe forbearance measures ("non-performing forborn

exposures"). These are individual on-balance sig@bsures belonging to the categories mentionedeabo

that meet the requirements for forbearance, asetkfabove. Such exposures do not constitute aatepar
category of non-performing assets, but represemttaibute, as appropriate in each case, of thegoaies of

non-performing assets in which they are includesh{derforming exposures with forbearance measuses a

include any restructuring of credit exposures presiy classified as bad debts in view of liquidatio

A position ceases to be regarded as a non-perfgraxposure with forbearance measures and is rddss

as performing if all of the following conditionsy&been met:

1) assignment of forborne status does not entail ldssiication of the position as non-performing;

2) one year has elapsed from the application of foees measures or classification as non-performing;

3) no past-due exposures or elements in conflict fuilhrepayment of the exposure in accordance with t
conditions envisaged by the forbearance measumgsea have been recognised following classification
as forborne. The absence of conflicting elementdeiermined through a thorough assessment of the
borrower's financial situation. No conflicting elems may be considered to exist if the borrowerrépaid
an amount, according to the schedule laid dowhénrépayment or restructuring plan, equal to the su
that had previously been declared past due (ifethnezre past-due exposures), or to the sum that was
reclassified as a loss in the context of the fardeee measures adopted, or, alternatively, if treokver
has already demonstrated its ability to satisfypbst-forbearance conditions through other actions.

Chapter A.3 - TRANSFERS BETWEEN PORTFOLIOS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

In 2015, the Bank did not undertake transfers betwgortfolios of financial assets, as envisageld$ 39. The
following table presents the residual carrying answf assets reclassified in previous years &&fmber 2015,
the fair values of those assets, the income conmsmegistered during the period and the effecttherincome
statement that would have occurred if the assetsbbeen transferred.

Type of financial Previous New portfolic  Book value at  Fair value at Income components in case of Annual income
instrument portfolio (2) 13) 31.12.2015 (4)  31.12.2015 (5) no transfer (before tax) components (before tax)
Valutative (6) Other (7) Valutative (8) Other (9)
Quotas ef U.C.ls HFT AFS - - -
Debt securities HFT LOANS 1.000 1.000 - (1.473) - (1.473)
Total 1.000 1.000 (1.473) - (1.473)

Chapter A.4 — INFORMATION ABOUT FAIR VALUE
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
This section includes the disclosure regardingnioma instruments subject to reclassification frame
portfolio to another pursuant to the rules sethfart IAS 39 and the disclosure regarding the faile
hierarchy in accordance with the provisions of IFES
Fair value is the price at which an asset may hi@oa liability transferred in a transaction beam market
participants at the measurement date.
Consequently, it is an exit price and not an eptige.
The fair value of a financial liability with a demé feature (e.g., a demand deposit) is not lessttifmamount
payable on demand, discounted from the first detethe amount could be required to be paid.
For financial instruments measured at fair valuaoacurring basis, the bank attributes highemyito the
use of observable inputs and lower priority to nieasient techniques that do not use market inpats. |
particular, the bank establishes the order of pyiocriteria and conditions that result in the id@oof one of
the following measurement techniques:
v' mark-to-market: a measurement method coincidind wiassification to level 1 of the fair value
hierarchy;
v' comparable approach: a measurement method bagbé ase of observable market inputs, the use
of which implies classification to level 2 of thairf value hierarchy;
v" mark-to-model: a measurement method involving gieation of pricing models whose inputs result
in classification to level 3 (use of at least omgnsicant non-observable input) of the fair value
hierarchy.

A.4.1 Fair value levels 2 and 3: measurement teclipies and inputs used
If, for a given financial instrument, the conditgofor identifying an active market have not bedrsBad and
it thus is not possible to classify it to levelfltle fair value hierarchy and apply the mark-tordkedapproach,

it will be necessary to make use of a measurengehinique, by which is meant a process that peitimits
|



identification of the price at which the instrumenuld be exchanged between independent partiedadnced

bargaining conditions.

If this measurement technique is based on observahiket inputs, the instrument is classified asl|2 and

a comparable approach is applied.

The measurement techniques applied in this catsdiec

- the use of recent market transactions between ladgehble, independent parties;

- reference to the fair value of a financial instrumrigaving the same characteristics;

- cash flow discounting techniques;

- option valuation techniques;

- the use of commonly used pricing techniques, pevithat such techniques yield prices in line withse
applied in actual exchanges.

The market inputs used in the comparable approach a

- prices quoted on active markets for similar assetimbilities;

- prices quoted for the instrument in question orilasininstruments on inactive markets, i.e., markats
which there are few transactions. The prices atewmwent or vary substantially over time and ansing
the various market markets, or little informatismade public;

- observable market inputs (e.g., interest ratesrobble yield curves, credit spreads, quoted \iias,
etc.);

- inputs that derive from observable market dataytuich the relationship is supported by parametech
as correlation.

If the measurement techniques adopted also useolmervable inputs, and their contribution to the

determination of fair value is to be regarded ggificant, the measurement of the financial asséiibility

is to be considered level 3.

The mark-to-model approach applies to all finaniciatruments for which there is no active markédteve:
significant adjustments to the observable inpuésiuzased on non-observable inputs are necessary;
the estimate of fair value is based on the bankesnal assumptions concerning future cash flowds an
the discount curve used,
the measurement techniques used are of sufficeamplexity to entail significant model risk.

The main inputs used in this approach are:

for real estate funds, a NAV adjustment model aiateidking account of the issuer's default risk;

for structured bonds, the discounted cash flow m@gslied on the basis of estimates of future cash
flows and/or the discount factor;

for equity instruments, the market approach (a mbdsed on market multiples and price matrices),
the Black-Scholes-Merton model and the binomial ehod

A.4.2 Valuation processes and sensitivity

The Bank conducted an assessment of the potemipalats of sensitivity to unobservable market patarse
in the measurement of instruments classified tell&vin the fair-value hierarchy and measured iatvidue
on a recurring basis. That assessment indicateédhtampacts concerned were not material witheesto
the situation represented. In further detall, tbefplio of instruments measured at fair value oreeurring
basis and classified to level 3 of the fair-valierdrchy consists primarily of equity investmerstshject to
impairment testing when the requirements for soglbiave been met, and investments in fund shares.

A.4.3 Fair-value hierarchy
IFRS 13 establishes that financial instruments mnealsat fair value are to be classified accordintpé degree
of observability of the inputs analysed when pigcihem.
Specn‘mally three levels of classification haweh established:
Level 1: the fair value of the instruments clagslfto this level is determined on the basis of gdiot
prices observable on active markets;
Level 2: the fair value of the instruments clagslfito this level is determined on the basis of
measurement models that use inputs observabletive atarkets;
Level 3: the fair value of the instruments clagslfito this level is determined on the basis of
measurement models that primarily use inputs ne¢itable on active markets.
The levels indicated above are to be applied inahedical order, giving the highest priority to thee of
observable market parameters that permit the asskdbilities to be measured on the basis ofgsmumptions
used by market participants and the lowest prawitd measurement techniques that do not contesnphaket

parameters and thus reflect a greater degree @ktisn in measurement by the bank.
—



A.4.4 Other information
The following is an account of the criteria usedrieasuring portfolios at fair value.

Fixed-income bonds

Such securities are priced according to the liquiconditions of their respective markets of refiee

Liquid instruments quoted on active markets are smesd at mark-to-market, and positions in such
instruments are therefore classified to level theffair value hierarchy. If there are no price tations that
satisfy the requirements for determining fair valiaés concluded that no active market exists. @gxdagly,
such instruments are measured by comparing thei sidtilar securities quoted by info providers (the
comparative approach), using an operating pricdagiom on an inactive market, or the mark-to-model
approach, and are assigned to level 2 of the &hirevhierarchy. If a fair value quotation cannotlbéermined

by applying the foregoing criteria, the instrumentlassified as level 3 and its price is determitteough a
specific request to a market broker or the impldat#on of an ad hoc pricing model.

ABSs and structured securities

Securities with embedded option components thatatabe separated, securities representative ofifigink
assets (e.g., ABSs or MBSs) and similar securfgas, CDOs or MBOSs) are classified as level 3 tduthe
absence of market price quotations or observabl&ehanputs to which to refer. An indicative valiost
provided by third parties, which may include theuisr of the security, is used.

Equity instruments

If an equity instrument is quoted on an active ragrit is classified to level 1 of the fair valuietarchy. If no
active market exists, where possible the secwsitpeéasured on a theoretical basis (the securdiassified
as level 3 if the inputs used are not observabliemarket). If the highly variable nature of thputs yields
a wide range of results, the security is measuredst and classified as level 3. Equity instruraeare only
classified as level 2 if a price quotation exigis the market of reference is significantly reduced

Mutual funds and shares of UCls

Such instruments are classified as level 1 if @afien on an active market is available. Alterneltyy such
instruments are measured according to their offieaasset value (NAV) at the end of the periadiBassets
are classified to level 2 or level 3 of the faitushierarchy depending on the availability of NAartfolio
transparency and position liquidity.

Certificates and covered warrants

If an active market exists, the market quotationi;meestment certificates and covered warrantdaen as
the fair values of such securities, and the instmisiare classified to level 1 of the fair valueraichy. If no
active market exists, since accurate theoretidalngris not possible, certificates positions areasured on
the basis of an indicative valuation/quotation frarmarket broker and/or the issuer, or on the hzfsike

most recent market valuation available, and theungents are assigned to level 2 or level 3 offélvevalue

hierarchy depending on the observability of thauispused.

Derivatives

Futures positions in government bonds and inteegss are measured according to the closing pndhe
last business day. Accordingly, such instrumergst@ibe considered level 1 of the fair value higrgar The
market value of OTC derivatives is calculated adtay to pricing models that use market parametsrs a
inputs. On inactive markets, and for particularetymf instruments for which prices and inputs ase n
observable, fair value is calculated by adoptingp@cl valuation techniques for each instrument ctarsd.

The following is an account of the valuation methaghplied to portfolios not measured at fair vatue, for
which disclosure in the financial statements isihexgl under the accounting standard of referemdeSI7.

Amounts due from and to banks, loans to custoraareunts due to customers and debt securities issued
For financial instruments carried at amortised eost classified among amounts due to and from bdwdss
to customers, amounts due to customers and daltsetissued, fair value is determined as folldarsthe
purposes of disclosure in the financial statements:

the fair value of medium-/long-term performing Isato customers is determined by discounting
projected cash flows on the basis of a risk-frewesuto which a spread representative of credi ris
determined on the basis of expected losses (PIL.@0Y, is applied. The fair value thus determined
is classified to level 3 of the fair value hieraych



- the fair value of amounts due to and from bank$ Wahger maturities is determined by discounting
the projected cash flows according to a risk-freve, to which a spread representative of creslt ri
is applied;

- the fair value of non-performing loans to custon{eesl debts, unlikely to pay and past due posijions
is determined by discounting the positions, netadjustment provisions representative of the
associated credit risk, at a risk-free market r&m. such exposures, the exist price would be
significantly influenced by projected losses, whatle the result of a subjective assessment by the
manager of the position, with regard to the recpvate and timing. As a consequence, such positions
are classified to level 3 of the fair value hielarc

- the carrying amount at initial recognition is redgal as a sound approximation of the fair value of
demand or short-term assets and liabilities. Tivevidue thus determined is classified to levelf3 o
the fair value hierarchy by convention;

- the fair value of bonds carried at amortised cosheasured by reference to quotations on an active
market, or on the basis of a valuation techniquelinng the discounting of the security's cash ffow
according to the interest rate curve of refereacagected as appropriate to take account of thegeha
in creditworthiness on the basis of the method rilesd above for the assessment of fixed-income
securities. The same applies for considerationsrdagg the fair value hierarchy;

- the fair value of debt securities included amongamts due from banks and loans to customers is
determined by using price contributions on actiakats or valuation models, as described above in
reference to financial assets and liabilities deeigd at fair value.

Non-financial assets - Investment property

Fair value is determined in all cases on the bafsisdependent appraisals, which are based onutrent
prices of similar assets (value per square methieated by the most common monitoring centres aite®
in similar transactions). This value is normallyustied to reflect the particular characteristicshef property
being appraised, such as its geographical and cocrahposition, accessibility, infrastructure, unbzontext,
state of preservation, size, rights of way, andciradition of external and internal plant. As autesf such
adjustments, which depend to a significant degrethe estimates prepared by the independent apprtis
amounts identified are characterised by naturddaypents of judgement and subjectivity. The faiueathus
obtained is classified to level 3 of the fair vahierarchy.

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

A.4.5 Fair-value hierarchy

The following tables show the breakdown of portislof assets and liabilities measured at fair valteethe
aforementioned levels and annual changes in aagétkabilities of this kind classified to level 3.

A.4.5.1 Assets and liabilities measured at fair vak on a recurring basis: breakdown by fair value leel
FMM22015 322014
Financial assets / liabilities at fair value L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3
1. Financial assets held for trading 391 66 = 223 1.450 -
2. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss - - - - - -
3. Financial assets available for sale 1.113.812 = 50.577 961.925 100 71798
4. Hedging derivatives = = - - - -
5. Property and equipment = = - - - -

&. Intangible assets = - - -
Total 1.114.203 13 BO.BTT 962,148 1.550 71.796

1. Financial liabilties held for trading = 740 = - 1.038 -
2. Financial liabilties designated at fair value through profit or loss - - = - - -
3. Hedging derivatives = = - - - -
Total ¥ = v 740 = v = v 1036 "

Key: L1 =Level1l L2 =Level 2 L3 =Level 3




A.4.5.2 Annual changes in financial assets desigeat at fair value (level 3)

Designated at For Property Intangible
Held for trading fair value Available for sale  hedging and
. assets
through profit or purposes equipme

1. Opening balance = = 71.796 = = =
2. Increasese = = 81.022 = = =
21 Purchases - - 1.186 - - -
2.2. (Gains recognised in: - - - - - -
2.2 1Income statement - - 10.796 - - -
- of which capital gains - - - - - -
2.2.2. Shareholders’ equity X X 2555 - - -
2.3. Transfers from other level - - - - - -
2.4. Other increases - - 664585 - - -
3. Decreases = = 101.941 = = =
3.1. Sales - - 97.159 - - -
3.2. Redemptions - - - -
3.3 Losses recognized in: - - - - - -
3.31. Income statement - - 11 - - -
- of which capital losses - - 4.738 - - -
3.3.2. Shareholders’ equity X X - -
3.4 Transfers to other levels - - - - - -
3.5 Other decreases - - 33 - - -
4. Closing balance = = 50.877 = = =

A.4.5.3 Annual changes in financial liabilities dagnated at fair value (level 3)
None of the items in the table, provided for by Benk of Italy, A.4.5.3 “Annual changes in finarcassets
designated at fair value (level 3)” presents values

A.4.5.4 Assets and liabilities not measured at faivalue or measured at fair value on a non-
recurring basis: breakdown by fair value levels

Financial assets / liabilities not measured at fair

value or measured at fair value on a non- ShHEE SR
recurring basis BW L1 L2 L3 VB L1 L2 L3
1. Financial azsets held to maturity 32718 32716 - - 64.697 64.697 - -
2. Due from banks 40.385 - - 40.385 158.686 - 5.031 149.655
3. Leans to customers 26883711 - - 2730318 2711728 - - 2.7459.558
4. Investment property 2770 - - 2770 - - - -
S. Nen-current assets or groups of azsets being divested - - - - - - - -
Total 2.759.581 32.716 - 2773473 2935110 64,687 9.031 2.899.2563
1. Due to banks 406.419 - - 406.419 1.116.403 - - 1.116.403
2. Due to customers 2.846.774 - - 2.8345.774 2012150 - - 2.0M2.150
3. Securities issued 475.730 - 475.730 - 689.006 - 6538.158 50.847
4. Liabilties associated to assets being divested - - - - - - - -
Total 3.728.923 - 475.730 3.253.194 3.817.559 - 638.158 3.179.400

Key: BV= Book value; L1 = Level 1; L2 =Level 3k Level 3

It is assumed that the book value of non-performivans classified to level 3 of the fair-value hiehy
substantially represents a reasonable approximatitieir fair value. This assumption is basedmendircumstance
that the calculation of fair value is influencedatprimary degree by recovery expectations, thdtreka subjective
assessment by the manager.

Similarly, the fair value of non-performing loantassified to level 3 is based on models that useagrily
unobservable inputs (e.g., internal risk paramgters

For this reason, and in light of the absence etamsdary market, the fair value presented in thenitial statements,
for disclosure purposes only, may differ signifittafirom possible sale prices.

A.5 Day-one profit/loss

On the basis of the composition of the financiatimments portfolio and the results of the analyssformed, no
day-one profits were identified. “Day-one profits defined as the difference, upon initial recogniti not
immediately recognised in the income statementyaunsto IAS 39 AG 76 and AG 76A, between the tratisa
price and value obtained through the use of valnatchniques that make use of non-market inputs.

w
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Chapter B — NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
Section 1 - Cash and cash equivalents - item 10
1.1 Cash and cash equivalents: composition

3212015 3MM22014 Y
a) Cash 18.381 18.485 -0,6%
b} Free deposits with Central banks - - -
Total 18.381 18.486 -0,6%

Section 2 - Financial assets held for trading - ita 20
2.1 Financial assets held for trading: compositlontype

31212015 31122014

L1 L2 L3 L1

A. Cash assets

1. Debt securities - 66 1
1.1 structured securities - -
1.2 other debt securities - 56

2. Equities. 391 -

3. Quotas of UCI - -

1

4. Loans = = -
4.1 reverse repurchase agreements = - -
4.2 other = = -

Total A 391 66 =

B. Derivatives - o o

1. Financial derivatives 118 - 544
1.1 trading 119 - 544 581
1.2 fair wvalue option = - -
1.3 other = - -

2. Credit derivatives = = -
2.1 trading = = -
2.2 fair value option = - -
2.3 other = = -

Total 119 - 644

TOTAL (A+B) 510 66 644

Lz

1.450

1.450

L3

2.2 Financial assets held for trading: compositlmnborrower/issuer

31212015 311212014 Sa

A. ON-BALANCE-SHEET FINANCIAL ASSETS
1. debt securities 65 1.451 -95,5%
a} Gowernments and central banks - - -
b} Other government agencies - - -
c) Banks 1 817 -85 9%
d}) Other issuers 65 535 -27,9%
2. Equity securities 391 222 75,9%
a) Banks - 222 -100,0%
b} Other issuers 391 - -
- insurance undertakings - - -
- financial companies - - -
- non-financial companies 301 - -
- other - - -
3. Units in collective investment undertakings - - -
4, Loans - - -
a) Gowvernments and central banks - - -
b} Other government agencies - - -
c) Banks - - -
d)y Other - - -
Total (A) 45T 1.674 -T2,T%
B. DERIWATIVES TG4 1.358 -43,8%
a) Banks 148 526 -71,9%
b} Customers 6186 233 -28, 0%
Total (B) 764 1.358 -43,8%
Total (A + B) 1.220 3032 -59,8%



2.3 Financial assets held for trading: annual chasg

Units in
segs:}i':ies seEguur:tyires i::r)e”:tcr:tﬂr;it Loans Total 31112115
undertakings

A. Opening balance 1.452 222 - - 1.674
B. Increases 273743 5118 3.354 - 282216
B1. Purchazes 273.542 5.005 3.320 - 281.867
B2.Fair value gains - - - - -
B3. Other changes 20 114 35 - 345
C. Decreases 275.129 4.950 3.354 - 283.433
C1. Sales 272857 4523 3.324 - 281.204
C2. Redemptions 1.894 - - - 1.894
C3. Fair value lozses 51 2 - - 71
C4. Transfers to other portfolios - - - - -
C5. Other changes 227 <] 30 - 283
D. Closing balance 66 391 - - 457

Section 3 - Financial assets designated at fair ved - item 30

This section is not applicable to the financiatestaents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 4 - Financial assets available for saletem 40
4.1 Financial assets available for sale: compositiy type

3111212015 3111212014 Y
L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3

1. Debt zecurities 1.051.192 - 62620 961.733 100 - 15,8%
1.1 Structured securities - - - - - - -
1.2 Other debt securities 1.051.192 - 62.620 B61.733 100 - 15,8%

2. Equities - - 34 698 182 - 55.726 -37,9%
2.1 Measured at fair value - - 34.094 182 - 55,140 -38,4%
2.2 Measured at cost - - 504 - - 5856 3 1%
3. Quotas of UCI - - 16.179 - - 16.069 0,7%
4. Loans - - - - - - -
TOTAL 1.051.192 - 113.498 961.925 100 71.796 12,7%

Financial assets available for sale include, impdil, equity instruments classified at fair vatii€ 414 thousand
among unlikely to pay positions. It should be ndteat, as illustrated above in Chapter A of thestes, unquoted
equities the fair value of which may not be deteediin a reliable or verifiable manner are caretdost, adjusted
to account for impairment losses. The following idetailed list of equities.

4.2 Financial assets available for sale: compositiry borrower/issuer

3122015 3122014 Ta

1.Debt securities 1.113.812 961.833 15,8%
a) Gowvernments and central banks 1.088.497 932.843 16, 7%
b} Other gowvernments agencies - 100 =100,0%
c} Banks 13.968 17. 729 -21,2%
d} Other issuers 11.347 11.162 1, 7%
2. Equity securities 34.698 55.918 =37, 9%
a) Banks 23.919 45.014 -45 9%
b} Other issuers 10.779 10.905 -1,1%

- ingurance undertakings - - -

- financial companies T 7 0, 0%

- non financial companies 10.772 10.858 -1,1%

- other - - -

3. Units in collective investment u 16.179 16.069 0, 7%
4, Loans - - -
a) Gowernments and central banks - - -
b} Other gowvernments agencies - - -
c}) Banks - - -
d} Other = - -
Total 1.164.689 1.033.821 12,7%

rsg



4.4 Financial assets available for sale: annual ecas

Units in
segj:}i:ies seEguurlges incl.:r}e”:tcr:::t Loans Total
undertakings
A. Opening balance 961.833 56918 16.069 - 1.033.820
B. Increases 1.568.381 78.330 2.693 - 1.949.404
B1. Purchases 1.833.466 19 1.166 - 1.834.651
of which: business combinations - 17 - - 17
B2. Fair value gains 7.252 10,796 - - 18.048
B3. Writebacks - 1.028 - - 1.028

- recognised through income statement - X - - -

- recognised through egquity - 1.028 1.527 - 2555
B4. Tranzfers from other portfolios - - - - -
BS. Other changes 27663 66487 - - 84150

C. Decreases 1.716.402 99.550 2.583 - 1.818.536
C1. Sales 1.517.662 86.309 851 - 1.714.822
of which: business combinations - - - - -
C2. Redemptions S7.016 - - - 57.016
C3. Fair value losses 2189 - 10 - 2.209
C4. Writedowns for impairment - - - - -

- recogniged through income statement - 3242 1.689 - 4930

- recognised through equity - - - - -
CS. Transfers to other portfolios - - - - -
CE. Other changes 39.525 0 33 - 39.559

D. Closing balance 1.113.812 34.698 16.179 - 1.164.688

Amount

Breakdown of major increases 66.487

Gain on purchase of ICBPI SpA 65.487
Amount

Breakdown of major decreases - equity securities 96.309
Sale of ICBPI SpA 55.033
Vivabiocell 275

Impairment testing of financial assets availabledale

As required by IFRSs, financial assets availabteséte are tested for impairment to determine wdrethere
is objective evidence that the carrying amountsuzh assets may not be fully recoverable. The imeait
testing process involves verifying whether theeeamy indicators that the assets may have becoperied
and then determining the amount of any such lodsgsirment indicators may essentially be dividetbi
two categories: indicators deriving from interrattors relating to the entity being assessed, laaréfore of
a qualitative nature, and external indicators diegyrom the market values of the company (for @daquity
securities only). An impairment loss is recogniséten there is an indication of impairment or theted
price falls more than 30% below the initial recdipm amount or remains below that amount for aquedf
more than 24 months. In all other cases, the retogrof impairment must be confirmed by the outeoai
specific assessments as regards the security andwistment. The testing conducted indicated dezlrio
adjust the values of assets with an effect onrtberme statement of € 4,930 thousand.

Section 5 - Financial assets held to maturity - ita 50
5.1 Financial assets held to maturity: compositiyntype

31212015 3111212014
Fair value Fair value
Book value X 2 3 Book value X 2 3

1. Debt securities 32.716 32.716 - - 64,6097 64 697 - -

1.1 Structured securities - - - - - - - -

m 1.2 Other debt securities 32716 32716 - - 64,697 64.697 - -
m 2. Leans - - - - - - - -
Total 32.716 32.716 - - 64.697 64.697 - -

—



5.2 Financial assets held to maturity: compositignborrower/issuer

31M212015 31122014

1. Debt securities 32.716 54 697
a} Gowvernments and central banks 22293 54 250
b}y Other government agencies - -
c) Banks 10.423 10.437
dj Other isguers - -

2. Loans - -
a) Gowvernments and central banks - -

b} Other governments agencies - -

c) Banks - -
d} Other = -
Total 32.716 64697
Total fair value 32.716 64.697

5.4 Financial assets held to maturity: annual chesig

Debt Loans Total
securities 322015
A. Opening balance 64.697 - 64,697
B. Increases 2.604 - 2.604
B1. Purchases - - -
B2. Writebacks - - -
B3. Transfers from other portfolios - - -
B4. Other changes 2504 - 2604
C. Decreases 34.585 - 34.585
C1. Sales - - -
CZ2. Redemptions 32.000 - 32.000
C3. Writedowens for impairment - - -
C4. Transfers to other portfolios - - -
C5. Other changes 2.585 - 2.585
D. Closing balance 32.716 - 32.716

Item B4 “Other changes” represents the interes¢ci@d during the year. Item C5 refers to the partf
such interest recognised through the income stateme

Section 6 - Due from banks - item 60
6.1 Due from banks: composition by type

3111212015 3212014
W W £
BY L1 | L2 L3 BY L1 L2 L3
A. Claims on central banks 5.406 - - - 3.789 - - - 42 7%
1. Time deposits - X X X - x X X -
2. Reserve reguirement 5.406 X X X 3.789 x X X 42 7%
3. Repurchase agreements - X X X - x X X -
4. Other - X X X - X x X -
B. Due from banks 34.978 - - - 154.897 - - - -77,4%
1. Loans 33.979 - - - 141.813 - - - -75,0%
1.1 Current accounts and free deposits 29.854 X X X 32148 x X X -7, 1%
1.2 Time deposits 4121 X X X 2064 x x X 99, 7%
1.3 Other financing - X X X - x X X -
- repurchase agreements - X X X 49753 x X X -100,0%
- finance leases - X x x - x x bt -
- other 4 X X X 57.850 x x X -100,0%
2. Debt securities 1.000 - - - 13.083 - - - -92 4%
2.1 structured - X x x - x x bt -
2.2 other debt securities 1.000 X X X 13.083 x X X -92 4%
Total (carrying amount) 40.385 - - 40.385 158.686 - 33.870 128.983 -T4,6%

rLg



Section 7 - Loans to customers - item 70
7.1 Loans to customers: composition by type

3122015 311212014
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
Non performing Hon performing Y
Performing L1 L2 L3 Performing L1 L2 L3
Purchased Other urchased Other
Loans
1. Current accounts 312.781 B 92538 X X X 405.587 - 80516 X X X -16,6%
2. Repurchase agreements - - - X X X - - - X X X -
3. Wortgage loans 1.419.551 B 243275 X X X 1762613 - 221023 X X X -16,2%
4. Credit cards, personal loans and loans repaid by
automatic deductions from wages 54,348 - 1.834 X X X 47358 - 1.717 X X X 14,5%
5. Finance leases 220716 - 42.484 X X X X X X
6. Factoring - - - X X X - - - X X X
7. Other 278.271 - 17933 X X X 178646 - 14269 X X X 3,5%
Debt securities X X X X X X
8. structured X X X X X X
9 other debt securities X X X X X X
Total 2.285.667 = 398.043 - = 2.730.319 2.394.203 = 317.525 = = 2.749.598 -1,03%
7.2 Loans to customers: composition by borroweanfss
311212015 3122014 %
Performing Non - performing Performing Non - performing
Purchased Other Purchased Other
1. Debt securities - - - - - - -
a) Governments - - - - - - -
b} Other government agencies - - - - - - -
c) Other iszuers - - - - - - -
- non-financial companies - - - - - - -
- financial companies - - - - - - -
- insurance undertakings - - - - - - -
- other - - - - - - -
2. Loans to: 2.285.667 - 398.043 2.394.203 - 317.525 -1,0%
a) Governments 5 - - 1 - - 391 6%
b} Other government agencies 6.649 - - 7.285 - - -B8,7%
c) Other - - - - - - -
- non-financial companies 1272231 - 329.374 1.197.850 - 254941 10,2%
- financial companies 124.985 - T 157 310.668 - 5.653 -58.2%
- insurance undertakings 12.431 - - 13.250 - - -5,2%
- other 869.363 - 61.512 865.148 - 56.932 1,0%
Total 2.285.667 - 398.043 2.394.203 - 317.525 -1,03%
7.4 Finance leases
Total 311122015 total 31/12/2014
Winimum lease payments Gross investment Minimum lease payments Gross investment
Capital . Capital .
Time bands Nen - of which Non = of which
e fOrmiln of which unguaranteed| oo oo unguarante
p g quaranteed Interest residual p g qu arg nteed | Interest -
residual value value =i value
value
On demand 4.500 9.380 - 82 9.452 - 4254 13.134 - 94 13.228 -
Up to 3 months 24893 5.005 - 2170 8173 - 30226 5.768 - 2704 5472 -
Between 3 and 12 months. - 18.193 - 6.367 24550 - 1824 18.452 - 7.506 26.058 -
Between 1 and 5 years 17278 72113 - 25.350 97.453 - 22022 78737 - 31.42% 108.165 -
Over & years - 118,874 - 25.085 143.959 - - 123.050 - 35127 158477 -
Unspecified maturity 116 - - - - - - 1.605 5.504 - - §.504 -
Gross total  46.787 224.565 - 5£9.064 283.629 - 56.521 244.655 - 76.950 321.605 -

Net finance lease exposures amounted to € 271h8bBand at 31 December 2015, net of provisionisfpairment
of € 14,809 thousand. Net non-performing exposst@sd at € 46,787 thousand.
The lease contracts entered into present the foitpeharacteristics:
v all risks and rewards associated with ownershifh@fasset are transferred to the lessee;
v' when the lease is contracted, the lessee paysvanealthat becomes the lessor's property wherothieact
begins to generate income and will decrease theianfimanced;
v during the useful life of the contract, the lessekes periodic payments that may vary accordirigdexing
clauses;

O



v’ at the end of the contract, the lessee has theropfipurchasing ownership of the leased assdegsrthan
the fair value at the possible exercise date, r@s@t of which it is reasonably certain that tipgian will be

exercised.

Since the lessor retains legal ownership of thetdss the entire life of the contract, the assgrresents implicit
collateral for the lessee's debt, as a result atlwho unsecured amounts remain. If the assetermtlyrcannot be
sold or are subject to rapid obsolescence, additignarantees are requested from the lessee ematitely, the

supplier of the asset.
Deferred financial profits amounted to € 59,064udand.

During the year, expenses of € 3,860 thousand vemagnised for potential lease instalments. In tbggard, it
should be recalled that IAS 37 defines the potElgzse payment as the part of the payments theisinad which
is not predetermined but is based on the futureevaf a parameter that changes for reasons otheithle passage
of time (such as a percentage of future salesyrauat of future use, future price indices, andifeitmarket interest

rates).

Section 8 - Hedging derivatives - item 80

This section is not applicable to the financiatesteents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 9 - Change in fair value of macro fair vala hedge portfolios - item 90
This section is not applicable to the financiatestaents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 10 - Equity investments - item 100
10.1 Equity investments: information on investments

Registered office Headquarters % holding % of votes

A. Companies under exclusive control
3 Civitas SPV Srl * Conegliano (TV) - Via V. Alfierin. 1 Conegliano (TV) - Via V. Alfieri n. 1 0.,00%
B. Companies subject to joint control
C. Companies under significant influence

1 Acileasing S.p.A. Udine - Via Crispi n. 3 Udine - Via Crispi n. 3 30,00%

2 Acrent S.p.A Udine - Via Crispi n_ 17 Udine - Via Crispi n_ 17 30,00%

3 ltas Assicurazioni Spa Trento -.F'.iazza delle Donne Trento - Piazza delle Donne Lavoratrici

Lavoratrici n. 2 n. 2 25,00%
4 Help Line Cividale del Friuli (UD) - Via G. Pelizzo Cividale del Friuli (UD) - Via G. Pelizzo 30,01%

* Civitas SPV S.r.l. is a special purpose entitytcolled by Banca Popolare di Cividale due to itates as originator of the securitisation and the

contractual conditions of the transaction, as reqdiby IFRS 10.

10.3 Significant equity investments: accountingrimation

Adjustments
tof Income

Cashand Hon- : Hon- et~ Wwriebacks - (Loss)
Financial _ Financial - Total on property,
cas financial "% financial interest
assets liabilities revenues equipment  from
cquivalents assets liabilities income '
and continuing
intangible  operations
assets
A.Companies under exclusive control
B. Companies subject to joint control
C. Companies under significant influence
1 Acileasing S.p.A. ™ X 1.745 11.829 95614 504 7.179 X X (227)
2 AcientSpA = X 9.17: 3333 2337 443 3207 X X 276
3 Help Line S.p.a x 10486 15316 3784 1288 18s80 X x 1.005
4 ltas Assicurazioni Spa = X 17.313 175 18.776 75 1.975 X X 275
Total - 38.720 30.453 34.490 13.885 30.941 - - 1419

Income
(Loss) after  (Loss)after

before tax
tax from
continuing  discontinued
operations

(282)

813
148
852

Income

tax from

operations

Netincome comprehensive
(loss) (1)  income (net of
tax) (2)

(282)

813
148
852

Other
Comprehensive

income
Br=(+(2)

(282)

813
148
852

r69



10.5 Equity investments: annual changes

311212015 JMM22014
A. Opening balance 36.495 36.7118
B. Increases - 5.000
B.1 Purchases - -
of which business combinations - -
B.2 Writebacks - -
B.3 Rewaluations - -
B.4 Other changes - 5.000
C. Decreases 30,068 5.223
C.1 Sales - -
C.2 Writedowns 45 5.223
C.3 Other changes 30.19 -
of which business combinations 30.019 -
D. Closing balance 6.42T 36.495
E. Total revaluations - -
F. Total writedowns 49 5.223

10.7 Commitments regarding investments in compauibfect to significant influence
No commitments have been recognised in respeairopanies subject to significant influence, as shown
the list of equity investments provided in the fywing table 10.1.

1038 Significant restrictions

No commitments have been recognised in respedieofigt of equity investments presented in tablel 10
above.

Section 11 - Property, plant and equipment - item 110

11.1 Operating property, plant and equipment: cosifian of assets measured at cost

JMM22015  3MM22014 %
1. Property and equipment owned 80.159 76,759 4 4%
a) land 4933 45933 0,0%
b} buildings 69.568 67.055 3,7%
c} movables 4784 3.805 25, 7%
d} electrical plant a7 o957 -5,0%
e} other 2 ] -0,5%
1. Property and equipment acquired under fi - - -
a} land - - -
b} buildings - - -
c) movables - - -
d}) electrical plant - - -
e} other - - -
Total 80.159 76.759 4.4%

The following are the estimated useful lives of @eable items of property, plant and equipmenasset

class:
- land: indefinite;

- works of art: indefinite;

- buildings — 2% — 50 years;
furniture — 12% — 9 years;

- plant — 15% — 7 years;
- plant — 30% — 4 years;

- plant — 7.5% — 14 years;
- fixtures — 15% — 7 years; and
- electronic machines — 20% — 5 years.



11.4 Investment property: composition of assetssomed at fair value

Breakdown IMM22015 IMM22014
L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3
1. Property and equipment owned - - 2770 = - -
a) land 2770
b} buildings
2. Property and equipment acquired under finance lease - = = = - -
a) land = -
b} buildings - -
Total - - 2770 - - -

11.5 Operating property, plant and equipment: anraanges

Electrical

Land Buildings Furniture T Other Total
A. Opening gross balance 4933 21.214 11.468 12.054 32 109.701
A1 Total net writedowns - 14.166 7.663 11.089 25 32.542
A.2 Opening net balance 4933 57.045 3.805 966 T 76.758
B. Increases 2770 11.553 1.560 158 17 16.059
B.1 Purchases 2770 11.545 783 T4 17 15.150
of wich: business combinations 2770 10.804 720 17 17 -
B.2 Capitalised improvement costs - - - - - -
B.3 Writebacks - - - - - -
B.4 Fair value gains recognised in - - - - - -
a) equity - - - - - -
b} income statement - - - - - -
B.5 Positive exchange rate differences - - - - - -
B.6 Transfers from investment property - - - - - -
B.7 Other changes - T 7T 24 - 258
C. Decreases - 9.032 582 253 22 9.889
C.1 Sales - - - - - -
C.2 Depreciation - 16815 579 240 2 2435
C.3 Writedowns for impairment recognised in - - - - - -
a) equity - - - - - -
b} income statement - 5534 - - - 5534
C.4 Fair value loszes recognised in - - - - - -
a) equity - - - - - -
b} income statement - - - - - -
C.5 Negative exchange rate differences - - - - - -
C.6 Transfers to - - - - - -
a) investment property - - - - - -
b} discontinuing operations. - - - - - -
C.7 Other changes - 1733 3 13 20 1.769
D. Closing net balance 7.703 69.569 4733 871 2 82.928
D.1 Total net writedowns - 17.514 B8.245 11.342 A7 37.148
D.2 Closing gross balance 7.703 87.083 13.028 12.212 45 120.075

11.6 Investment property: annual changes (IAS 183265; IAS 40/76, 79.c,d,e)

Total 31/12/12015

Land Buildings
A. Opening gross balance - -
B.Increases 2770 -
B.1 Purchases

of wich: business combinations 2770
B.2 Capitalised improvement costs - -
B.3 Positive fair value differences - -
B.4 Write-backs - -
B.5 Positive foreign exchange differences - -
B.6 Transfer from property used in operations - -
B.7 Other changes - -
C.Decreases - -
C.1 Sales - -
of which business combinations
C.2 Depreciation - -
C.3 Negative fair value differences - -
C.4 Impairment losses - -
C.5 Negative foreign exchange differences - -
C.6 Transfer to other assets - -
a) property used in operations - -
b} non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations - -
C.7 Other changes - -
D. Final carrying amount 2770 -

E. Fair value measurement

ru



11.7 Commitments to acquire property, plant andmgent
There were no significant commitments to acquiaoprty, plant and commitment.

Section 12 - Intangible assets - item 120

12.1 Intangible assets: composition by category
3MM22015 3IMM22m4

finite useful

|
T N |ife
w
o
(s3]

finite useful

indefinite
useful life
[ife

N
w

indefinite
o =|ugeful life

A1 Goodwill

A_2 Other intangible assets

A21 Assets measured at cost
a) Internally generated intangible assets
b} Other assets

A2.2 Assets measured at fair value
a) Internally generated intangible assets
b) Other assets

X

w
&
|
[l
M3
(7]
o
&

31 . -

31 . - - -

Total 231 9.136 = 19.136 -51,0%

12.2 Intangible assets: annual changes

Goodwill Other intangible | Other intangible

Fin. Indef. Fin. Indef.

Total

A. Gross initial carrying amount 19.136 19.136
A1 Total net adjustments - - - - - -
A.2 Net initial carrying amount 19.136 - - - - 19.136
B. Increases - - 21 - 291
B.1 Purchases - - - 21 - 291
of which business combinations - - - 214 - 214
B.2 Increases of internally generated intangible asset X

B.3 Write-backs X

B4 Positive fair value differences recognised in

- shareholders’ equity X

- income statement X

B.5 Positive foreign exchange differences

B.6 Other changes - - - - - -
C. Decreases 10.000 - - 60 - 10.060
C.1 Sales - - - - - -
C.2 Impairment losses 10.000 - - - - 10.000
- Amortisation X - - 60 - 60
- Write-downs recognised in - - - -
shareholders” equity X - - - - -
income statement 10.000 - - - - 10.000
C.3 MNegative fair value differences recognised in - - - - - -

- shareholders” equity X

- income statement X

C_4 Transfer to non-current assets held for sale and d

C.5 Megative foreign exchange differences

C.6 Other changes - - - - - -
D. Net final carrying amount 9.136 - - 23 - 9.367
D.1 Total net adjustments - - - - - -
E. Gross final carrying amount 9.136 - - 23 - 9.367
F. Measurement at cost - - - -
Key: DEF: definite-term INDEF: indefinite-term

Goodwill is related to:
1. the acquisition of the banking arm of the forfBanca Agricola di Gorizia; and
2. the acquisition of a bank branch from third jegrt

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, which dersvfrom the amount by which the consideration paakeds
the net assets and liabilities acquired. If the @mhof consideration is less than the fair valuthefacquiree’s
net assets, the difference is recognised througimttome statement.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measuredast less any cumulative impairment losses. Foptinposes

of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a besia combination must be allocated at the acquisitaie

to each cash-generating unit of the entity thagxigected to benefit from the combination, irrespecof
whether the acquiree’s assets or liabilities asigagd to those units.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least once eary(at 31 December) and more frequently where
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount haage become impaired.



Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating units (C®&s)

With respect to the definition of "cash-generatumit” ("CGU"), in the second half of 2013, with them of
maximising synergies aimed at supporting futuraririal performance, the Bank approved a project to
reorganise and simplify the holding structure basedthe merger of Banca di Cividale S.p.A. and
NordEstBanca S.p.A. into Banca Popolare di Cividafe.p.A., which was completed in 2015 with the geer

of Civileasing S.p.A. and Tabogan S.r.l. Accordinglince budgets were now prepared solely for ithgles
legal entity resulting from the combination progeéee CGU to which goodwill also effectively coides with

the legal entity Banca Popolare di Cividale, whiepresents the “smallest identifiable group of estwat
generates cash inflows that are largely indepenafethie cash inflows generated by other assetsoupg of
assets.”

Estimating cash flows to determine the value in usef a CGU
The accounting principles of reference require itiha@gairment testing be conducted by comparing éneytg
amount and recoverable amount of each CGU. Wheresttoverable amount is less than the carrying atou
an impairment loss must be recognised. The recbleeamount of a CGU is the greater of its fair eadund
value in use. The recoverable amount of the Ba@kaJs is represented by its value in use, determimed
the basis of the future cash flows generated bia €48U to which goodwill has been allocated. Sucthca
flows have been estimated on the basis of:

v' the strategic plan for the period 2014-2016, apgiddwy the Board of Directors in March 2014;

v'updated macroeconomic scenarios; and

v' economic projections for the period 2016-2020.
Projections of future results have been extendexligh 2020 with the aim of obtaining an assessioktite
Bank’s income-generating capacity and the abilitycteate value over time, which is independenthef t
current macroeconomic scenario.
Value in use has been determined by the managemihtthe methodological support of an authoritativ
external expert, by applying Excess Capital varidrihe Dividend Discount Model (“DDM”"). This appaioh
is used to determine the value of a company omnlesgsiunit according to the dividend flows thas gstimated
it may generate on a prospective basis, while rasiimg a minimum capitalisation level consistentiwthe
instructions provided in this regard by supervisanthorities and in a manner consistent with exgubct
business trends.
This method is widely adopted in well-establishadent valuation practice and is supported by tinerhost
academic theory regarding business valuation,quéatily as regards entities operating in the bagkiector.
The application of the Dividend Discount Model itwed the use of expected profitability estimated an
financial parameters to discount flows. In furtlistail, value in use was calculated on the basithef
following assumptions and elements:

v Cash flows: an explicit period of 2015-2020, estimated on theid of: i) the 2014-2016 Strategic
Plan and subsequent update approved by the BoaRireftors; and ii) the minimum level of
capitalisation (minimum capital) required to ensoperation of banking activity.

v' Terminal value, estimated as a function of: i) long-term expectetlincome; and ii) the sustainable
growth rate, equal to long-term expected inflation;

v/ Minimum capital : the target capitalisation requirement was sat®er 1 ratio of 9.5%, estimated by
considering the supervisory requirements imposdati@main Italian cooperative banks following the
prudential review process (SREP). The CET 1 ratigdt of 9.5% is nonetheless higher (by 250 bps
and 100 bps, respectively) than the CET 1 ratiolaedl ratio required by the Bank of Italy follavg
the notice concerning the Decision regarding Chpita

v Discounting rate (Ke) future cash flows have been discounted by usicgsaof equity capital (Ke)
determined as the sum of the nominal rate of ratarnsk-free assets and a specific risk premiuath th
reflects the risk level of the industry of refererend the specific risks associated with the Bank’s
operations. In further detail, the cost of equipital has been estimated&ag4% as the result of:

- R the rate of return on risk-free assets, identifiadhe basis of the gross annual return on the
ten-year ltalian benchmark BTP, twelve-month averagrveyed on 31 December 2015
(source: Market Information Provider) at 1.70%;

- PB: the beta coefficient, which indicates the risk leska specific equity with respect to the
equity market at large, estimated on the basisehistorical average two-year betas of a sanipié



of quoted Italian banks (source: Market Informatitmovider) surveyed on 31 December 2015
at 1.09;

- Rm- R: the premium, or difference in return, requestethiigstors for an investment in equities
rather than a risk-free investment; this premiums vegetermined at 6.0%, in line with
professional practice; and

- g-rate: the long-term growth rate expected to apply aftex éxpress forecasting period,
corresponding to expected inflation in 2018 (souEl®), equal to 1.5%.

Sensitivity analysis

Since valuation is rendered especially complexhleymacroeconomic and market scenario currentlytffe
the financial sector as a whole, as well as byetimiing difficulty in formulating projections comoég long-
term future profitability, and in order to complyitlv the provisions of IAS 36, a sensitivity analysivas
conducted of the parameters used in the assesameed at determining the change in recoverable atmou
assuming a change in parameters used in the impatirtesting procedure. In particular, that analyss
conducted as a function of a positive and negatiaage of 50 basis points in the Ke with respe8t26%.

The results of the impairment test

The impairment test, conducted in accordance witermational accounting principles, as well as the
indications contained in Bank of Italy/Consob/ISVBBcument No. 4 of 3 March 2010, indicated the need
to proceed with the impairment of goodwill for € tillion. The reasons for the above impairment ietate

to the combined effects of the extended econonses®on and the uncertain prospects of a recowdrigh

had a particularly pronounced influence on the @reavhich the Bank operates. The results of thadyais
conducted to determine the recoverable amounteocftBU referring to the full perimeter of the BanHicate

a considerably lower contribution to cash flow gatien - over a significant time horizon - than swiered
when determining the original flows.

Section 13 - Tax assets and tax liabilities - itet30 of assets and item 80 of liabilities
Deferred tax assets came to € 63,207 thousand apdenbroken down as follows:

13.1 Deferred tax assets: composition

Composition by type: 31212015 IMM22014
Tax effect on AFS reserve 83 537
Staff costs 415 455
Credit losses 548962 45.059
Fizcal losses 4157 381
Property and equipment 1.827 -
Other 1.759 1.101
Total 63.207 51.673

13.2 Deferred tax liabilities: composition
Deferred tax liabilities came to € 8,767 thousand may be broken down as follows:

Composition by type: IMM212015 3212014
Goodwill 1.206 4185
staff costs I -
Tax effect on AFS 7120 §.4563
Other 409 439
Total §.767 11.148



13.3 Change in deferred tax assets (through thenmecstatement)

1. Opening balance

2Increases

2.1 Deferred tax assets recognised during the yvear

a) in respect of previous pericds

b} due to changes in accounting policies

c) writebacks

d} other
2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates
2.3 Other increases

3. Decreases

3.1 Deferred tax assets derecognised during the year

a) reversals

b} writedowns for supervening non-recoverability

c) due to change in accounting policies
d} other
3.2 Reduction in tax rates

3.3 Other decreases

a) conwversion in tax azset=s =et forth in kalian Law 21442011

b} other

4.Closing balance

13.3.1 Change in deferred tax assets pursuant ¥ 254/2011 (through the income statement)
IMM22015 31212014

45,634

1. Opening balance

2Increases

of which: business combination
3. Decreases

3.1 Reversals

3.2 Transformation into tax credis
a) from loz=zes for the year

b} from fizcal losses

3.3 Other decreases

4.Closing balance

6.328
1.993

54,962

46.914
8.244
12512
(5.524)
(5.485)
(5.485)
(1.038)
48,634

31202015

50.886
13.047
13.047

2119

392

392

62.973

3122014
51.362
5179
5179

169
5.485
4385

n

50.586

13.4 Changes in deferred tax liabilities (througle income statement)
3MM22015 31212014

1.0pening balance

2. Increases

2.1 Deferred tax liabilties recognised during the year
a}) in rezpect of previous perieds
b} due to changes in accounting pelicies
c) other

2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates

2.3 Other increases

3. Decreases

3.1 Deferred tax liabilties derecognized during the year
a) reversals
b} due to change in accounting policies
c} other

3.2 Reduction in tax rates

3.3 Other decreases

4. Closing balance

4,684
607
807

1.615

4,

111
573
573

4.684

rSL



13.5 Changes in deferred tax assets (through €quity
HMM22015 MM22014

1.0pening balance 683 458

Z. Increases 83 686

2.1 Deferred tax azsets recognised during the year 33 588
a) in respect of previcus pericds 1 -

b} due to changes in accounting policies - -
c) other 33 588
2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates - -

2.3 Other increases - -

3. Decreases 537 458
3.1 Deferred tax assets derecognised during the year 537 458
a) reversals - 458

b} writedowns for supervening non-recoverability - -

c) due to change in accounting policies - -

d} other 537 -
3.2 Reduction in tax rates - -
3.3 Other decreases - -
4.Closing balance 234 [

13.6 Changes in deferred tax liabilities (througjuiy)
3MM22015 3411212014

1.0pening balance 5.464 3.010
2. Increases 7151 6.463
2.1 Deferred tax liabilties recognised during the year 7.151 6.453

a) in rezpect of previous pericds - -

b} due te changes in accounting policies - -

c) other 7.151 6453
2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates - -

2.3 Other increases - -

3. Decreases 5.463 3.010
3.1 Deferred tax liabilties derecognised during the year 65.463 2.010
a) reversals - 2.010

b} due te change in accounting policies - -

c) other 5.463 -
3.2 Reduction in tax rates - -
3.3 Other decreases - -
4. Closing balance 7.152 6.454

13.7 Other information

Transformation of deferred tax assets into tax creis

Article 2 of Law Decree No. 225 of 29 December 2Qth@ “Thousand Extensions Decree”), enacted, with
amendments, as Law No. 10 of 26 February 2011wallteferred tax assets recognised in connectidm wit
impairment losses on loans by banks and finan@aipanies, goodwill and other intangible assetseo b
transformed into tax credits in certain situatiofise provision was most recently amended by Law1dg.

of 27 December 2013 (the 2014 Stability Act), whistiended the rules to include deferred tax a¢bdatas),

in connection with the same items as above, resedniith respect to regional production tax, as asthe
losses on loans of banks and financial compan@ssidering that the tax treatment of such losses also
modified by the Stability Act, to bring it into knwith that of impairment losses, as illustratedvah

In extremely short form, the rules that allow thensformation of deferred tax assets state that:

v' DTAs are transformed into tax credits upon the oemnce of operating losses presented in the separat
financial statements. The transformation appliesnt@mount corresponding to the share of the lmss f
the year, corresponding to the relationship betw#BAs and the sum of share capital and reserves;

v' any share of such DTAs that contributes to the &liron of a tax loss for the purposes of corponaterne
tax or a negative value of production for the pggmof regional production tax is converted intexa
credit, with the concurrent de-activation of theaeerability limits envisaged for tax losses;



v’ tax credits do not generate interest. They maydeel ,uwithout limits of amount, for offsetting agstin
other taxes payable (including those deriving frauthholding agent activity) and social-security
contributions payable. Such tax credits may alsarbasferred at nominal value according to the
procedure governed by Art. 43-ter of Presidentetii@e No. 602/1973 and may be submitted for a defun
of the remainder after offsetting.

In this regard, due to financial performance in2@he Bank did not convert DTAS to tax credits.

Probability test on deferred taxes

IAS 12 requires that deferred tax assets and ifi@silbe recognised according to the followingesid:

v temporary taxable differences: a deferred tax liigbimust be recognised for all taxable temporary
differences;

v deductible temporary differences: a deferred taetas to be recognised for all deductible temporar
differences if it is probable that sufficient talalincome will be earned in order to use the deblect
temporary difference. Deferred tax assets not i@ised in a given year — inasmuch as the condifions
their recognition had not been satisfied — aregtodzognised in the year in which those requiresnard
met.

Accordingly, the amount of the deferred tax asestegnised must be tested each year in order évrdigte

whether it is reasonably certain that taxable ineawill be earned in the future and thus that tHerded tax

assets may be recovered.

For the 2014 financial statements, as in previoeeyrs, an analysis has been conducted with the &im o

verifying whether projections of future profitabyliare sufficient to ensure the re-absorption déded tax

assets and therefore justify their recognition getdntion in the financial statements (a processvmnas the

“probability test”). In conducting the probabilitgst on the deferred tax assets recognised in #mk'8

financial statements at 31 December 2015, as ®P@14 financial statements, deferred tax asseigmp

from deductible temporary differences were congideseparately. In this regard, it is relevant gféctive
the tax period ended 31 December 2011 the law pethe conversion into tax credits of deferredassets
recognised in financial statements to accountdrrldsses arising from the deferred deduction ailiied
temporary differences (Article 2, paragraph 56-bfd,aw Decree No. 225/2010, introduced by Artiglef

Law Decree No. 201/2011, converted into Law No./2Q41), in addition to that already provided forasd

the separate financial statements present a lotislé?2, paragraphs 55 and 56, of Law Decree 196/2010).

Such convertibility has introduced an additionalpementary method of recovery that is appropriate

ensuring the recovery of qualified deferred taxetsén all situations, regardless of an enterpsigeture

profitability. In fact, if qualified temporary diéirences exceed taxable income in a given yearetowery of
deferred tax assets does not take the form of actieth of current taxes, but rather of the recagnitof
deferred tax assets on the tax loss, convertiltbetéx credits pursuant to Article 2, paragraph&6-of Law

Decree No. 225/2010.

The convertibility of deferred tax assets on tags&s resulting from qualified temporary differences

therefore a sufficient condition for the recogmitiof deferred tax assets in the financial statesye¢hereby

ensuring that the associated probability test @iwitly passed.

This arrangement is also borne out in the jointkBainltaly, Consob and ISVAP document no. 5 of 1&M

2012 (issued in the framework of the IAS/IFRS Apation Coordination Board) concerning the Accoumtin

Treatment of Deferred Tax Assets Deriving from La®4/2011 and in the subsequent Italian Banking

Association IAS document no. 112 of 31 May 2012(Teedits Deriving from the Transformation of Defat

Tax Assets: Clarification from the Bank of Italypi@sob and ISVAP Regarding the Application of IA&RS).

On this basis, the test consisted of the follovgteps in particular:

a) identifying deferred tax assets other than thoseaated with impairment losses on loans, goodwiill
and other intangible assets with indefinite usk¥els (“non-qualified deferred tax assets”) receguli
in the financial statements; b) analysing such qualified deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
assets recognised in the financial statementsnglisshing them by type of origin and thus by
foreseeable timing of recovery; and

b) forecasting the Company’s future profitability withe aim of verifying the ability to absorb the
deferred tax assets set forth in point a) above.

The test conducted indicated that taxable income sudficient and able to absorb the deferred tmetss

recognised in the financial statements at 31 Deeer2015.
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Section 14 - Non-current assets held for sale andsdontinued operations and associated liabilitiesitem
140 of assets and item 90 of liabilities

This section is not applicable to the financiatestaents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 15 - Other assets - item 150
15.1 Other assets: composition

JMM22015 IMM122014 %

Amounts due from the tax authorities 452 346 -41,8%
Ammeunts due from the tax authorities for withholdings

on interest paid to customers and other amounts due 15.613 2.102 52 7%
Chegues drawn on the bank to be settled 5273 S.447 -3,2%
Counterparts for securities ad coupon payments to be rece 1.688 1.909 -11 6%
Soundry items to be debited to customers and banks 526 581 7.9%
‘Value date differences on portfolio transactions (0} 3 -103,7%
Costs and advances pending financial allecation 108 75 43 6%
Transit tems 28 23 24 5%
tems finalized but not allocable to other tems 24 385 9.733 150,3%
Amounts related to payment for the supply of goods and = a2 10 5132,0%
Other 472 857 -28,2%
Total 49.207 27.387 79,7%

The various items include:
- € 889 thousand of accounts receivable from thergsation vehicle Quadrivio;

- € 4,428 thousand of accounts receivable from tickeeMercury deriving from the sale of the intdries
ICBPI;

- € 1,980 thousand of invoices issued on lease pagmen
- € 2,556 thousand of costs to accrue in future years



LIABILITIES

Section 1 - Due to banks - item 10
1.1 Due to banks: composition by type

IMM22015 IMM22014 e
1. Due to central banks 309.152 571.605 -58 2%
2. Due to banks - - -
2.1 Current accounts and demand deposits 5.407 59 348 -39 2%
2.2 Time deposits - 435 -100,0%
2.3 Borrowings - - -
2.3.1 Repurchase agreements - - -
2.3.2 other 50.724 84.918 §,8%
2.4 Liabilities in respect of commitments to repurchase own eguity instruments - - -
2.5 Other payables S0 98 -8,2%
Totale 406,419 1.116.403 -53,6%
Fair valus-livello 1 - - -
Fair valve-livello 2 - - -
Fair value-livello 3 406.419 1.116.403 -53,6%
Fair value 406.419 1.116.403 -53,6%
Section 2 - Due to customers - item 20
2.1 Due to customers: composition by type
311272015 IMM2i2014 a
1. Current accounts and demand deposits 1.573.078 1.524.084 3.2%
2. Time deposits 284.813 333.359 -14 5%
3. Borrowings = - -
3.1 Repurchase agreements T751.348 111.858 572 5%
3.2 Other 5.399 T.54T 24 5%
4. Liabilties in regpect of commitments to repurchase own eguity instruments - - -
5. Other payables 228138 35.491 542 8%
Total 2.846.774 2.012.150 41 5%
Fairvalus - L1 - - -
Fairvalus - L2 - - -
Fairvalus - L3 2.846.08T7 2.012.150 41 4%
Fair value 2.546.162 2.012.150 41 4%
Section 3 - Debt securities issued - item 30
3.1 Debt securities issued: composition by type
IMHM212015 HMM22014
. Fair value I S, Fair value
L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3
A. Securities
1. Bonds 443.934 - 443,934 - 638.158 - 636.158 -
1.1 structured - - - - - - - -
1.2 other 443.934 - 443.934 - 638.158 - 638.158 -
2. Other 31.796 - 31.796 - 50.247 - - 50.247
2.1 structured - - - - - - - -
2.2 other 31.796 - 31.796 - 50.247 - - 50.247
Total 475,730 - 475,730 - 689.006 - 638.158 50.547

3.2 Breakdown of item 30 “Debt securities issuestibordinated securities

Amount
Description I1M2/2015 IMM22014
Subordinated securities 47153 A7 454

The amount included under “Debt securities issueathe to € 47,153 thousand. The item refers to the
following bond issues:

a) Subordinated bond of an original nominal valix 5 million issued on 7 April 2008 having thdldaving ~
characteristics:



v’ interest rate: first coupon of 4.81% per annumsgyr@ayable on 7 July 2009; subsequent coupons: for
the first five years, monthly average of the 3-nhdatribor for the month before the date of eactpoou
plus 0.25%; for the next five years of the terntted bond, i.e., starting from the coupon payablé& on
April 2013, interest will be equal to the same vinggl average plus a rising spread of: 0.35% fopons
payable during the sixth year; 0.45% for coupongapke during the seventh year; 0.55% for coupons
payable during the eighth year; 0.65% for coupaysaple during the ninth year; and 0.75% for coupons
payable during the tenth year;

v/ amortisation schedule: principal is to be repaifivie equal instalments of 20% of principal stagton 7

April 2014,

maturity: 7 April 2018;

early redemption clause: the Bank reserves thé tigfledeem the bond early, provided that at lgeest

years have elapsed since the date of issue, vétpribr consent of the Bank of Italy, and with eddt

one month’s notice;

v" no provisions exist for conversion into share apit

AN

b) Subordinated bond with an original hominal vadiie€40 million issued on 13 August 2007 having the
following characteristics:

v" interest rate: first coupon of 4.6% per annum, girpayable on 13/11/2007; subsequent couponshédor t
first five years, monthly average of the 3-monttrikor for the month before the date of each coupon,
plus 0.25%; for the next five years of the terntted bond, i.e., starting from the coupon payabld®n
August 2012, interest will be equal to the sameghieid average plus a rising spread of: 0.35% for
coupons payable during the sixth year; 0.45% farpoos payable during the seventh year; 0.55% for
coupons payable during the eighth year; 0.65%dapons payable during the ninth year; and 0.75% for
coupons payable during the tenth year;

v/ amortisation schedule: principal is to be repaifiva equal instalments of 20% of principal stagtion

13 August 2013;

maturity: 13 August 2017,

early redemption clause: the Bank reserves thé tigftedeem the bond early, provided that at lBeest

years have elapsed since the date of issue, vétpribr consent of the Bank of Italy, and with eddt

one month’s notice;

v’ subordination clause: if the Bank is wound up tbids shall only be repaid all other creditorsatptally
subordinated have been satisfied;

¥ no provisions exist for conversion into share @pit

c) Subordinated bond with an original nominal vabie€ 22.35 million issued on 19/12/2014 having the
following characteristics:

fixed interest rate of 2.75%;

redemption in a single instalment at maturity;

maturity: 13 August 2017,

early redemption is not allowed;

subordination clause: if the Bank is wound up, libads shall only be repaid all other creditors not
equally subordinated have been satisfied;

no provisions exist for conversion into share @dpit

AN

AN NN NN

<



Section 4 - Financial liabilities held for trading- item 40

4.1 Financial liabilities held for trading: compdiin by type

311212015
Fv
NV L1 L2 L3

A. On-balance-sheet liabilities
1. Due to banks - = - -
2. Due to customers = = o -
3. Debt securities - = o -
3.1 Bonds - = - -
3.1.1 structured - = = -
3.1.2 other bonds = = o -
3.2 Other securities - = = -
3.2.1 structured - = = -
3.2.2 other - = - -
Total A = o - -
B. Derivatives - = - -
1. Financial derivatives - - TT 663
1.1 trading X - T 663
1.2 azsociated with fair value option
1.3 other

=
[
[
[

2 Credit derivatives - = - -
2.1 trading
2.2 associated with fair value option
2.3 other

Total B 7 663

Total (A+B) X 77 663

R
'
'
'

L

X

NV

=

R

X

31212014

v

L1

247
247

12

L3

789
789

-

== o= o=

X

Key: FV = fair value; FV* = fair value calculateq lexcluding the changes in value due to the changee issuer's credit rating since the issue date;

NV = nominal or notional value

Section 5 - Financial liabilities designated at faivalue - item 50
This section is not applicable to the financiatestaents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 6 - Hedging derivatives - item 60

This section is not applicable to the financiatestaents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 7 - Change in fair value of financial liabities in macro fair value hedge portfolios - item70

This section is not applicable to the financiatestaents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 8 - Tax liabilities - item 80

For information on this section, please see Sedi®under Assets.

Section 9 - Liabilities associated with discontinuoperations - item 90

This section is not applicable to the financiatestaents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 10 - Other liabilities - item 100

10.1 Other liabilities — composition

IMM22014

Amounts due to social security and welfare institutions 1.510
Amoung due to public entitiez on behalf of third parties 10.003
Sundry items to be debited to customers and banks -

Amounts available to customers 4.510
Amounts payable to employees 2374
“alue date differences on porifolio trangactions 16.627
Sundry items to be debited to customers 2629

Intems in transit between branches 1.5940
Accrualz other than those capitalized 1.841
Guaratees given 1.585
Payables related to the supply of goods and services 3.237
Sundry and rezidual items 49 966
Total 96,322

The various items include:

INPS pension payments of € 14,198 thousand;

AN NN NN

JMM22013

leasing direct debits to be collected of € 2,8%udand;
other liabilities to be determined according to &lcerual principle of € 8,076 thousand.

1.455
4074
2.855
2.555
19.659
4.991
1

636
1.532
3.458
43.459
4797

liabilities for securitisation transactions of €385 thousand;
third-party funds for agricultural loans of € 7,4th®usand,;

%
11%

145 5%
0,0%
51,5%
7, 2%
-15,4%
47, 3%
n.s.
189,7%
3,4%

-7 4%
14,9%
13,6%

o0
=



Section 11 - Employee termination benefits - item1D
11.1 Employee termination benefits: annual changes
311212015 31122014

A, Opening balance 6.022 5.645
B. Increases 1.718 1.595
B.1 Provision for the vear 1.700 1.595
B.2 Other increases 13 -
C. Decreases 2.151 1.2197
C.1 Severance payments 379 418
C.2 Other decreases 1773 &00
D. Cloging balance 5589 6.022
Total 5.589 6.022

Item C.2 “Other decreases” refers to the amouatssterred to the pension fund and INPS Treasurg Fun
Under international accounting principles, employesnination benefits are considered post-employmen
benefits of the defined-benefit type. Accordindly, accounting purposes, their value is determiiedugh
actuarial approaches based on a technical proc&doren in actuarial literature as the “MAGIS” metho
This method, based on a stochastic simulation @Mbntecarlo type, allows projections to be pregdoz
the compensation costs for each employee, consgldre demographic and compensation figures agedcia
with each position, without aggregating those pms#t or introducing average values. The calculatiware
performed for the number of years necessary fav@alkers currently in service to leave service.
In accordance with IAS 19, the actuarial assessrieente been conducted according to the accrueditbene
method by using the Projected United Credit Method.
Technical assessments were conducted accordihg foltowing parameters:

v annual technical discount rate: 2.03%;

v annual inflation rate: 1.5%;

v annual rate of termination benefit increase: 2.5%.
As required by ESMA, the actuarial assessment ejpsated while leaving all other hypotheses unctadnge
but considering a discounting rate equal to thexrfdr the Eurozone, Iboxx Corporate AA, with aation
of 10+ years, in a manner consistent with the ayeefanancial duration of prospective divestmengsl tio
departures from the category subject to assessment.

Section 12 - Provisions for risks and charges - ite 120

12.1 Provisions for risks and charges: composition
311212015 JMM22014

1. Company pension plans - -

2. Qther provisions 8979 4807
2.1 legal disputes 2.068 1.250
2.2 staff costs 5.608 1.530
2.3 other 1.303 2127

Total 8.979 4.907

12.2 Provisions for risks and charges: annual chesg
Other

Pension plans e Total
A. Opening balance - 4.907 4.907
B. Increases - 5.925 5.925
B.1 Provizion for the year - 5.785 5.785
B.2 Changes due to passage of time - - -
B.3 Changes due to changes in discount rate - - -
B.4 Other increases - 140 140
of which: business combinations - 140 140
C. Decreases - 1.8563 1.853
C.1 Use during the year - 1.853 1.853
C.2 Changes due the changes in discount rate - - -
C.3 Other decreases - - -
D. Closing balance - 8.979 2.979



12.4 Provisions for risks and charges - other
Provisions for risks and charges consist of thiefahg:

Provision for revocatory actions

This provision stood at € 1,310 thousand as at 8dteber 2015 and represents the estimated amount of
expected liabilities, calculated individually andttwthe support of the Bank’s legal counsel, inpexst of
judicial and out-of-court actions in which the Basla defendant.

Provision for contingencies and complaints

This provision amounted to € 7,669 thousand at&ember 2015 and consisted of € 3,540 thousand
set aside for complaints by customers and leggutkes with former employees, € 129 thousand
accrued for the contribution to the interbank dégastection fund, and € 4,000 thousand of acsrual
for the voluntary redundancy procedure with the oée solidarity fund in support of income,
employment, re-integration and retraining.

Other information

The Directors did not believe it necessary to retsany provisions for legal risk pursuant to Iségive
Decree 231/2001 at 31 December 2015 in connectitin tive circumstances illustrated in the report on
operations that resulted in the decision to briagd& Popolare di Cividale to trial and the subsewéness
hearings.

Section 13 - Redeemable shares - item 140
This section is not applicable to the financiatesteents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 14 - Shareholders’ equity - items 130, 15060, 170, 180, 190 and 200
Shareholders’ equity is defined by internation@lcamting standards as “the residual value of aity&nassets
after all liabilities have been deducted.” Fronireafcial standpoint, equity represents the monetargnt of
the resources contributed by the owners or genelstehe entity.
Capital management is the set of policies and megequired to determine the capitalisation leaslwell
as the optimal combination of the various altemgatiapitalisation instruments aimed at ensuring ¢hpital
and capital ratios are consistent with the riskifrassumed, in full accordance with superviseguirements.
In further detail, the capital policy adopted bg Bank is founded upon the three following appreach
v" full compliance with regulatory requirements (regaty approach);
v’ appropriate monitoring of risks associated withKag operations (management approach); and
v’ support for company development projects (stratagjroach).
At 31 December 2015, Banca Popolare di Cividalefblg subscribed and paid-in share capital of £33
thousand, divided into 16,971,085 ordinary shares.

14.1 Share capital and treasury shares: composition

3MM22015 3MM22014 %

1. Share capital 50.913 50.913 0,0%
2. Share premiums 167.022 167.022 0,0%
3. Reserves (*) 43274 42522 12,5%
4. (Treasury shares) - - -
5. Valuation reserves 23.308 11.128 109, 5%
&. Capital ingtruments - - -
7. Net income (logs) for the period 24,053 5203 314 5%

Total 313.570 277.786 12,9%



Amount to UTILISATION AMOUNT FOR
MM 22015 OPTIONS AVAILABLE LOSS COVERAGE OTHER
Share capital 50,913 - - - -
Capital reserves - - - - -
Share premiums 167.022 A-B-C 167.022 167.022 -
Valuation rezerves 23.308 A-B 23.308 23308 -
Other reserves - A-B-C - - -
- legal reserve 19.788 B 19.788 19.783 -
- reserve for the purchase of tre - - - - -
- statutory reserve 27501 A-B 27.501 27.501 -
- other rezerves 535 A-B 985 985 -
- retained earnings - A-B - - -
Met income for the period 24053 - - - -
Total H3.570 - 233,604 238,604 -
Hon available - - - - -
Available 33570 - 238.604 238,604 -
14.4 Earnings reserves: other information
IMM22015 IMM22014 %

Legal rezerve 15.788 19.208 3,00

Statutory reserve 27.501 22275 23.4%

Other rezerves 5.500 S5.500 0,0%

q- Merger deficit - surplis (4.515) (4.064) 11,1%

Total 45.274 42,922 12,6%

00)

14.2 Share capital - number of shares: annual cleang

Ordinary

Other

A, Shares at start of year
- fully paid
- parthy paid

A1 Treasury stock (-)

16.971.085

A.2 Shares in circulation: opening balance

16.971.085

B. Increases
B.1 New issues
- paid issues:
- buginess combinations
- conversion of bonds
- exercise of warrantz
- other
- bonus issues:
- to employees
- to directors
- other
B.2 Sale of own shares

B.3 Other changes

C. Decreases

C.1 Cancellation

C.2 Purchase of own shares
C.3 Disposal of companies

C.4 Other changes

D. Shares in circulation: closing balance

16.971.085

D.1 Treasury stock (+)

D.2 Shares at end of the year
- fully paid
- partly paid

16.971.085
16.971.085

14.3 Share capital: other information

Schedule illustrating eligibility for distributiorpossible uses and origins of shareholders’ eqeserves as

required by Article 2427 of the Italian Civil Code

2015 Financial Statements and Report

USE IN PRIOR YEARS




14.5 Equity instruments: composition and annualngjes
This item is not applicable to the financial statets of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

14.6 Other information
This item is not applicable to the financial sta¢ens of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

OTHER INFORMATION

1. Guarantees issued and commitments

JMM22015 MM22014 a
1} Financial guarantees issued 17.000 32815 -47 9%
a) Banks 3.342 3.342 0,0%
b) Customers 13.658 28272 -53,3%
2) Commercial guarantees issued 50.567 51.747 -2,3%
a) Banks - 435 -100,0%
b) Customers 50.567 51.31 -1,5%
3) Irrevocable commitments to disburse funds 11.856 13611 -12,9%
a) Banks - - -
i} certain use - - -
ii) uncertain use - - -
b) Customers 11.856 13581 -12,8%
i} certain use 232 223 40%
ii) uncertain use 11.624 13.388 -13,2%
4) Commitments underlying credit derivatives: sales of protection - - -
5) Assets pledged as collateral for third-party debts - - -
§) Other commitments - - -
Total 79.423 97.973 -18,9%

2. Assets pledged as collateral for liabilities awmnmitments

HMM22015  MM22014 %
1. Financial assets held for trading - - -
2. Financial assets recognized at fair value - - -
3. Financial assets available for sale - 54(.566 -100,0%
4. Financial assets held to maturity - 64.697 -100,0%
5. Loans to banks - - -
6. Loans to customers - 7.030 -100,0%
7. Property, plant and eguipment - - -

In addition, the Bank has committed off-balancessisecurities with a value of € 298 million as atdfal, of
which € 50 million associated with notes issuedB3C and fully repurchased, representative of litdxsl
guaranteed by the Italian government pursuant to8Aof Law Decree 201 of 6 December 2011, conderte

into Law 214 of 22 December 2011, used as collaterdunding transactions.

rss



4. Management and intermediation services

1. Trading in financial instruments on behalf of third parties
a) Purchases
1. settled
2. not yet zettled
b} Sales
1. settled
2. not yet settled
2. Asset management
a} individual
b} collective
3. Custody and administration of securities

a) third-party securities held as part of depository bank services (excluding
portfolic management)

1.securities issued by reporting entity
2. other

b} other third-party =ecurities on deposit (excluding portfolio management): other

1. securities issued by reporting entity
2. other
c) third-party securities deposited with third parties
d) securities owned by bank deposited with third parties
4. Other

3122015

25b.265
255.265

3.7563.426

876.336
380775
506.561
865.589
2377278

5 - 6 Financial assets/liabilities presented oned basis, subject to master netting agreementgntes

agreements

IFRS 7 requires that specific disclosure be pravifte financial instruments that are set off in thedance
sheet pursuant to IAS 32 or that are partiallyilelegfor offsetting, upon the occurrence of certaamditions,
in that they are governed by master netting agre&mar similar agreements that do not comply whi# t
criteria established by IAS 32 for offsetting iretfinancial statements.

For Banca Popolare di Cividale, there were no aotihg netting agreements for which balances ateto
offset in the balance sheet pursuant to IAS 32.
The financial instruments potentially eligible fifsetting in the tables below are governed byftilewing

agreements:

- for derivative instruments: an ISDA master agreemaed clearing house netting agreements;
- for repurchase and reverse repurchase agreemdobsl Master Repurchase Agreements (GMRAS);
- for securities lending: global master securitiesllag agreements (GMSLAS).

Amount of Net amount of | Related amounts not offse tin Net amount
financial financial assets the financial statements 3111212015
. Gross amountof| . ... - Net amount
Technical forms N liabilities offset| shown in the
financial assets in the fi . = - = Cash deposits 31212014
. received as (fF=c-d-e)
instr al
(a) (b) (c=a-b) (d)
1. Derivatives 155 155 155 46
2. Repurchase agreements
3. Securities lending
4. Other
Total 3111272015 155 155 155 X
Total 31/12/2014 46 46 X 46
Amount of Net amount of Related amounts not offse tin ahrlr:a;unt
. T et f.ilje?ncml ﬁnancml. assets the financial statements 311212015 Net
Technical forms financial assets liabilities offset shown in the = amount
in the financial financial Einancial Cash Eieposns 31127201
e " - n . received as | (f=c-d-e)
instruments
collateral
(a) (b) {c=a-b) (d) (e)
1. Derivatives 691 691 848 (157) 796
2. Repurchase agreements
3. Securities lending
4. Other
Total 31/12/2015 691 691 848 - (157) X
Total 31/12/2014 1.148 1148 352 0 X 796
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Chapter C — NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

Section 1 - Interest - items 10 and 20
1.1 Interest income and similar revenues: composition

Debt Other

securities Loans transactions 311212015 3111212014 %
1. Financial assets held for trading 35 - - 35 12 -58 9%
3. Financial assets available for sale 16.833 - - 16.833 23.074 =27 1%
4. Financial assets held to maturity 2.604 - - 2.604 3.116 -16,4%
5. Due from banks 185 202 - 387 1.214 -58,1%
6. Loans to customers - 77.007 - 77.007 85.536 -10,0%
5. Financial assets recognised at fair value - - - - - -
7. Hedging derivatives X X - - - -
8. Other assets X X - - - -
Total 19.657 77.209 - 96.866 113.052 -14,3%

1.2 Interest income and similar revenues: diffeisaton hedging transactions
This item is not applicable to the financial statents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

1.3 Interest income and similar revenues: othevrimiation
1.3.1 Interest income on foreign-currency financial asset
31M2i2015 3111212014 %
Interest income on foreign-currency financial assets - securities T2 116 -38,1%
Total 72 116 -38,1%

1.3.2 Interest income on finance leases

JMM22015 311212014 %
Interest income on financial lease payables 7272 - 100,0%
Total 7.272 = 100,0%

1.4 Interest expense and similar charges: composition

Debt  Securities OIS 3414212015 311202014 %
liabilities

1. Due to Central Banks 3 X - 39 1.757 -75,4%
2. Due to banks 2.396 X - 2.396 2.899 -17,3%
3. Due to customers 15.958 X - 15.958 26.080 -38,8%
4. Securities issued X 12.848 - 12.848 17.671 =27, 3%
5. Financial liabilities held for trading - - - - - -
&. Financial liabilties at fair value - - - - - -
7. Other liabilties X X - - - -
2. Hedging derivatives X X - - - -
Total 18.733 12.848 - 31.581 48.416 -34,8%

1.5 Interest expense and similar charges: differentiaishedging transactions
This item is not applicable to the financial statents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

1.6 Interest expense and similar charges: othermétion
1.6.1 Interest expense on foreign-currency findri@ailities

JMM22015 311212014 Ya
Intere=t expence on foreign-currency financial azsets 218 305 -30,1%
Total i [ 309 -30,1%

1.6.2 Interest expense on finance lease liabilities
There was no interest expense on finance leases.
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Section 2 - Commissions - items 40 and 50
2.1 Commission income: composition

3MM22015 IMM22014 o
aj guarantees iszued 509 Ga4 -3, 7%
b} credit derivatives = - -
cj management, intermediation and advisory services: T.798 T.543 -0,6%
1. trading in financial instruments = - -
2. foreign exchange 5599 535 12,1%
3. asset management 2.048 1.203 13,5%
3.1 individual 2.045 1.803 13,5%
3.2 collective - - -
4. zecurities custody and administration 223 245 -3,9%
5. depository services - - -
5. securities placement 3.433 3.953 -12,0%
7. reception and transmis=sion of orders 622 674 -7, 7%
8. advizory services = - -
8.1. on inwvestments = - -
8.2. on financial structure = - -
5. distribution of third-party services 825 633 30,2%
5.1 asset management = - -
9.1.1 individual = - -
5.1.2 collective = - -
5.2 insurance products 325 633 30,2%
9.3 other - - -
d) collection and payment =services 8.356 T.735 7.3%
e) zervicing activities for securitizations = - -
Ty =ervices for factoring transactions = - -
g) tax collection services - _ _
h} management of multilateral trading facilities = - -
i} management of current accounts 5761 5.041 -4 6%
i) other 5549 5847 5,1%
Total 28.373 28.464 -0,3%

2.2 Commission income: distribution channels faydurcts and services

Channels/Amounts 322015 3MM22014 a

a) at Bank branches: 6.325 6375 -0, 73%
1. portfolic management 2.0Mma 1.783 13,13%
2. placement of securities 3 483 38958 -12,00%
3. third party products and services 825 633 30,15%

b) outside bank branches: = - -
1. portfolic management = - -
2. placement of securities = - -
3. third party products and services = - _
c) other distribution channels: prat ) 19 47 799%
29 19 47 T9%

2. placement of securities = - -

1. portfolic management

3. third party products and services - - -

o0
(o 0]



2.3 Commission expenses: composition

322015 31212014 %

a) guarantees received 65 37 20,8%
b} credit derivatives - - -
c) management and intermediation services: 19 22 -14,0%
1. trading in financial instruments 12 19 -35,7%

2. foreign exchange - - -

3. as=et management - - -

3.1 own portfolio - - -

3.2 third-party portfolio - - -

4. =securities custody and administration - - -

5. placement of financial instruments 7 3 124,8%

8. off-premises distribution of securities, products and services - - -

d} collection and payment services 2.555 22591 11,5%
e} other services 3.050 5.040 -39,5%
Total 5691 T.390 -23,0%

Commission expense for “other services” includesmissions of € 2,104 thousand for liabilities guaead

by the Italian central government used as coll&ferdinancing transactions with the ECB

Section 3 - Dividends and similar income - item 70
3.1 Dividends and similar income: composition

31212015 31M22014 a
Dividends Income Dividends Income
from UCI from UCI
A. Financial assets held for trading 18 - 10 - 86,0%
B. Financial assets available for zale 997 - 917 - 8,6%
C. Financial assets recognised at fair value - - - - -
D. Equity investments - X - X -
Total 1.015 - 927 - 9,4%

Section 4 - Net trading income or loss - item 80
4.1 Net trading income or loss: composition

Capital gains Trading Capital Trading MNet incoms
Al profitz (B) losses (C) lesses (D) [(A+B) - (C+D)]

1. Financial assets held for trading
1.1 Debt securities 0 528 71 - 556
1.2 Equity securities - - - 581 (581}
1.3 Units in collective investment undertakings - - - - -
1.4 Loans - - - - -
1.5 Other - - - - -

2. Financial liabilities held for trading
2.1 Debt securities - - - - -
2.2 Payables - - - - -

2.3 Other - - - - -
3. Other financial assets and liabilities:
exchange differences X X X X 10

4. Derivatives
4.1 Financial derivatives
- on debt securities and interest rates 7.330 635 7363 876 - 24
- on eguity securities and equity indices - - - - -
- on foreign currencies and gold x * x x 823
- other - - - - -
4.2 Credit derivatives - - - - -
Total 7.330 1.313 7.435 1.23F 604

Section 5 - Net fair value changes in hedge accoung - item 90
This item is not applicable to the financial sta¢ens of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.
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Section 6 - Profit (loss) on disposal or repurchaseitem 100

6.1 Profits (loss) on disposal of investments: cositpn
Total 31M2/2015

Gains Losses Niet gain
(loss)
Financial assets

1. Loans to banks - - -
2. Loans to customers 102 T2 30
3. Financial as=sets available for =ale 84273 2.951 81.322
3.1 Debt securities 17.750 2951 14799
3.2 Equity securities 66,486 - 66.436
3.3 Units in collective investment undertakings 3r - 37
3.4 Loans - - -
4. Financial assets held to maturity - - -
Total assets 84,3756 3.022 81.353
Financial liabilities - - -
1. Due to banks - - -
2. Due to customers. - - -
3. Securities in issue 109 1.218 (1.107)
Total liabilities 109 1.216 (1.107)

Item 3.2 refers solely to the sale of the interéstd in ICBPI.

Section 7 — Profit (loss) on financial assets antbilities designated at fair value - item 110
This item is not applicable to the financial statets of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 8 - Charges/write-backs on impairment - it 130
8.1 Charges/write-backs on impairment of loans: position

Writedowns (1)

Total 31122014

Gains Losses LR
(loss)
368.720 2154 34 556
36.692 1.478 35216
- 633 -
28 - -
36.720 2164 34,556
1.453 916 537
1.453 916 537

Writebacks (2)

w =

Specific Specific Portfolio = s

E N g g

§ % A B A B z z
A, Loans to banks - 1.473 - - - - - 1.473 -
- Loans - - - = = = o - -
- Debt securities - 1.473 - - - = - 1.473 -
B. Loans to customers 2.485 59.303 - 626 5.494 - 1.731 53.937 32.0582
MNon performing loans purchased - - - - - = 5 5 -
- Loans - - X o o X x - -
- Debt securities = = X = - X X - -
Other 2.485 59.303 - 626 5.494 - 1.731 53.937 32.052
- Loans 2.485 59.303 - 626 5.494 - 1.731 53.937 32.052
- Debt securities. - - - = = = o - -
C. Total 2485 60.776 626 5.494 1.731 55.410 32.052

Key. A = interest B = other write-backs

8.2 Charges/write-backs on impairment of finaneiséets available for sale: composition

Writedowns (1) Writebacks (2)

Specific Specific

£ . 3111212015 (3) 311212014

§ £ A B
A, Debt securities - = = - -
B. Equity securities - 3.241 X X 3.241 1.989
C. Unitz in collective investment undertakings - 1.689 X 1.689 S0
D. Loans to banks = = = - -
E. Loans to customers - = = - -
F. Total 4,930 - - 4,930 2.039

Key: A = interest B = other write-backs

Impairment losses are recognised in cases of pyetbor significant decreases in the fair value cpfity

instruments to less than their initial carrying amis.

Impairment losses of € 3,241 thousand were recedrisrough the income statement on equity instrisnen

during the reporting year. Such losses may be lordikavn as follows:

v Mediocredito FVG: € 1,223 thousand;
v' Cassa di Risparmio di Ferrara: € 952 thousand;
v Sipi Investimenti: € 315 thousand;



KB 1909: € 164 thousand;
Friulia SpA: € 103 thousand;

Friuli News: € 13 thousand;
Torre Natisone: € 2 thousand.

AN N N NN YN

DeZelna Banka Slovenije: € 22 thousand,

Cassa di Risparmio di Bolzano: € 255 thousand;
Banca dell’Etruria e del Lazio: € 192 thousand;

The impairment losses on interests in UCIs reféhéoshares in:
v" Fondo Immobiliare Asset Bancari of € 1,364 thousand
v" Fondo Immobiliare Asset Bancari of € 287 thousand;

v" Aladinn Ventures of € 20 thousand;

v" Fondo ltaliano di Investimento of € 18 thousand.

8.4 Charges/write-backs on impairment of otherricial transactions:

Wiritedowns (1) Wiritebacks (2)
Specific o Specific Portfolio g §
3 g g
P00 F |+ s s e | E|E
B
A Guarantees izsued - - 292 5 234 53 702
B. Credit derivatives -
C. Commitments to disburse funds -
D. Dther transactions - -
E. Total - - 292 5 234 53 702
Key: A = interest B = other write-backs
Section 9 - G&A expenses - item 150
9.1 Personnel expenses: composition
JMM212015  3AM212014 a
1) Employees 39.355 38.004 3,6%
a) wages and salaries 27.106 25915 4 6%
b} social security coentributions 7.439 T.241 2,7%
c) severance benefits 215 76 182,5%
d} pensions - - -
e} allocation to employee severance benefit provision 1.608 1.695 -5,2%
) allocation to provision for pensions and similar liabilties - - -
- defined contribution - - -
- defined benefit - - -
g} payments to external pension funds 1.339 1.193 12,2%
- defined contribution 1.339 1.183 12,2%
- defined benefit - - -
h} costs in respect of agreements to make payments - - -
in own eguity instruments - - -
i) other employee benefits 1.648 1.884 -12,5%
2) Other personnel 587 565 3,9%
3) Board of Directors T4 525 35,0%
4) Early retirement costs - - -
5) Recovery of expenses for employees of the Bank
seconded to other entities - (85) -100,0%
&) Reimbursement of expenses for employees of other
entities seconded to the Bank - 38 -100%
Total 40.657 39.067 4,1%
9.2 Average number of employees by category
2015 2014
Employees - -
a)y Senior management 10 &
b} Middle management 235 230
of which Grade Il and M 117 111
<} Other personnel 33F 339
Other personnel - -
Total 553 5FF

rts



—

9.4 Other employee benefits
Other employee benefits include € 561 thousandaal mouchers and € 626 thousand in insurance pslici

9.5 Other administrative expenses: composition
311212015 311212014 %

Compensation for professional and consultancy s¢ 3.889 2810 38.4%
Insurance 284 280 1,5%
Advertising 828 807 2.6%
Telephone, postal and data transmission 504 581 -13,3%
Office supplies and printing 208 443 -52.9%
Maintenance and repairs 1.098 1.240 -11,5%
Electricity. heating and shared property service ch 1.156 1219 -5.2%
Semvices provided by third parties 9.395 8.929 52%
Cleaning 633 645 -1.9%
Travel expenses 1.064 1.100 -3,3%
Security and transport of valuables 1581 144 5,4%
Membership fees 546 503 8,6%
Commercial information 1.118 1.013 10.4%
Magazine and newspaper subscriptions 66 71 -6,2%
Rent payable 2.257 2494 -9.5%
Entertaining expenses 38 205 -81,4%
Taxes and duties 6.870 6.758 1.7%
Contributions to SFR and DGS 6.584 - 100,0%
Other expenses 1.321 1.196 10,5%

Total 38.010 30.437 24,9%

Contributions to SFR and DGS

The BRRD (Bank Recovery and Resolution Directiv2014/59/EU) establishes the new resolution rules
applicable to all banks in the European Union fibdanuary 2015. The measures in the BRRD are funygled
the National Resolution Fund established by eatheo28 Member States. The funds must be paidviarax
until a minimum level of 1% of the guaranteed dégos reached by 31 December 2024. Extraordinary
contributions are also to be provided on an ex-pasis if the financial resources are insufficiemfund
resolution, up to a maximum of three times the ahmumounts of ordinary contributions. The regulatio
instituting the Single Resolution Mechanism (Singlesolution Mechanism Regulation - 2014/806/EU),
which entered into force on 1 January 2016, altabéshes the creation of the Single ResolutiondRi8RF),
which will be managed by the new European resaiudiathority (the Single Resolution Board or SRB).
Legislative Decree 180 of 16 November 2015, whrelmgposes the BRRD into Italian law, establishes an
obligation to institute one or more national resiolu funds with effect from 2015. The Bank of Italg its
capacity as national resolution authority, therefurstituted Italy's National Resolution Fund f@18 by
Order 1226609/15 of 18.11.2015.

The annual contributions owed by each intermedigese determined as a function of the amount ofliteds,

net of own funds, protected deposits and, for iesttbelonging to groups, intra-group liabilitiefieTbasis for
determining contributions was adjusted accordintheintermediaries' risk profile. The correctian fisk
may result in a discount (a maximum of 20%) or aghty (up to 50%) to be applied to the base coutian.
According to this logic, the Bank was required &y jan annual contribution of € 1.55 million.

With effect from 23 November 2015, Law Decree 1828 November 2015 applied the "bridge entity"
resolution mechanism provided for in the BRRD tm&adelle Marche S.p.A., Banca Popolare dell’Efreri
del Lazio S.C.p.A., Cassa di Risparmio della Proirdi Chieti S.p.A. and Cassa di Risparmio di &exr
S.p.A. In light of the need to make immediate ukéhe resources in the resolution process for tuekd
mentioned above, the extraordinary contributiondeédeto be collected, in accordance with ArticleoB3he
above Legislative Decree 180/2015 and Article ©ader 1226609/15 instituting the fund. Considetting
aforementioned need for intervention, the extrawdi contribution levied was equal to three ye&msdinary
contributions, or € 4.65 million.

The DGS (Deposit Guarantee Schemes - 2014/49/Elgctdie is aimed at reinforcing the protection of
depositors and harmonising the legislative framévatrthe European level. The new directive requines

all Member States adopt an advance funding systertarget level of which is set at 0.8% of thergugeed
deposits, to be reached in ten years.

The extraordinary meeting of the Interbank Depé&sitection Fund, during its session of 26/11/2015,
approved the amendment to the Fund's Charter a@hadticipating the introduction of the new finangi



mechanism envisaged in Directive 2014/49/EU (DGSBbpken down into ordinary (advance) and
extraordinary (subsequent) contributions.

In particular, Art. 21 (1) requires that the Furstbélish available financial resources until reaghhe target
level of 0.8% of total protected deposits by 3 J2024 through the ordinary contributions of papating
banks.

The Fund's Council has established the amountecidvance contribution for 2015 at 50% of the ahnua

level, on the basis of the amount of protected digpat 30 September 2015. The amount paid by &mé B
for 2015 was € 0.38 million.

Section 10 - Net provisions for risks and chargesitem 160
10.1 Net provisions for risks and charges: compasit

31212015 34MM2/2014 Fa
Customer disputes 121 705 -22,9%
Prowvizion for legal disputes - 125 -100,0%
Rewocatory actions 568 450 28, 2%
Other 4 889 1.358 260,0%
Total 5.5TS 2,643 111 ,0%:

Section 11 - Charges/write-backs on impairment ofpperty, plant and equipment - item 170

11.1 Charges/write-backs on impairment of propgstgnt and equipment: composition

Depreciation (a) n}“;;i?f::ﬁi:ﬁ; Writebacks (c) Net ad]u;t;noﬁgts ta+h-
A. Property, plant and equipment
Al owned 2436 5.584 - 8.120
- operating azsets 2 438 56234 - 2.120
- inwestment property - - - -
A2 acguired under finance leases - - - -
- operating assets - - - -
- inwestment property - - - -
Total 2.436 5.654 - 8.120

Section 12 - Charges/write-backs on impairment ohtangible assets - item 180

12.1 Charges/write-backs on impairment of intargidésets: composition

I Writedowns for Wiritebacks MNet adjustments 2015
Amortization (a)

impairment (b) c) (a+b-c)
A. Intangible assets
A1 Owned 59 - - 58
- generated internally by the Bank - - - -
- other 59 - - 59
A2 Acguired under finance leases - - - -
Total 59 - - 59

Section 13 - Other operating income/expenses - iteh80
13.1 Other operating expenses: composition

I1M212015 311122014 Fa
a) impairment losses on non-current assets under finance leases - - -
b} losses on disposal of property, securities held as non-current
assets, eguity inwvestments, other assets = - -
c) out-of-pericd expenses and reductions in assets {1.306) (851) 53,4%
d) other [(283) (310} -8,6%
Total [1.589) [1.161) 36,9%

res



13.2 Other operating income: compaosition

3122015 3M1M272014 a

a) merchant banking - - -
b} premiums received for options - - -
c} other income - rentals and fees 267 184 45, 1%
d} expenses charged to others - recovery of taxes 56458 5779 -2,3%
&) expenses charged to others - customer insurance premiums - - -
f) expenses charged to others on deposits and current accounts 506 530 10,6%
g} expenses charged to others - intercompany services - - -
h} expenses charged to others - other 1.528 1.309 18, 7%
i} gainz on disposal of property, securities held as non-current as - - -
I} out-of-period income and reductions in liabilties 632 1.039 -359,1%

Total 8.659 8.841 -2,0%

Section 14 - Profit (loss) on equity investmentsitem 210

14.1 Profit (loss) on equity investments: composifiAS 1/81.c, 103.c, IAS 28/38; IFRS 5/41)

3M1M2:2015  31M272014 Ta
A. Revenues - - -
1. Rewaluations - - -
2. Profitz on dizposal - - -
3. Write-backs - - -
. Other = - -
. Charges
. Write-downs
. Impairment losses - - -
. Los=ses on disposal - - -
. Other = - -
(49) 15.223)

oWk =@

Het result

Impairment losses and equity investments refenédrnpairment loss of € 49 thousand on ITAS
Assicurazioni.

Section 15 — Net adjustment to the fair value of mperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets —

s

item 220

This item is not applicable to the financial sta¢ens of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 16 - Goodwill impairment - item 230

This item is not applicable to the financial sta¢ens of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 17 - Profit (loss) on disposal of investmen- item 240
17.1 Profits (loss) on disposal of investments: position

This item is not applicable to the financial statents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 18 - Taxes on income from continuing opetiains - item 260
18.1 Taxes on income from continuing operationsgosition

FMM22015 31202014 £

1. Current taxes (-} (3.098) (15.0682) -79,5%
2. Changes in current taxes from previous pericds (+/-) - - -
3. Reduction of current taxes for the period (+) - - -
3. bis Reduction in current taxes for the year for credit taxes =set forth in talian

Law no. 2142011 (+) = 5.485 -100,0%
4. Change in deferred tax assets (+/-) 10.425 5180 101,2%
5. Change in deferred tax liabilties (+/-) 2638 (543) -555,4%
6. Taxes for the period (-} (-1+/-2+3+/-4+/-5) 10,017 (10.430) -196,0%%



18.2 Reconciliation of theoretical tax liability dmctual tax liability recognised
MM22015 31M212014

Income (loss) before tax from continuing operations 14.036 16.233
Income (loss) before tax on groups of assets/iabilties under disposal - -

Theoretical taxable income 14.036 16.233
Income tax - theoretical tax expense (3.860) (4.464)
Effect of non-taxable or taxed at reduced rates positive components of income 3.949 242
Effect of taxed positive components of income - -
Effect of revenues that do not form taxable income 11.698 (3.452)
Income tax - actual tax expense 11.787 [7.674)
Theoretical tax expense - Irap (653} (3.247)
Effect of revenues/expenses that do not form taxable income 585 22
Effect of other changes (1.702) 459
Actual tax expense - IRAP (1.770) [2.756)
Other taxes - -

Actual tax expenses for the period 10,047 (10.430)

of which: actual tax expenses from continuing operations - -
actual tax liabilties on the groups of assets being divested - -

Section 19 - Income (loss) after tax from discontired operations - item 280
This item is not applicable to the financial statets of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Section 20 - Other information
There is no additional information to report beyadhalt provided in the previous sections.

Section 21 - Earnings per share

21.1 Average number of ordinary shares (fully diti)t

The methods of calculating basic earnings per shadediluted earnings per share are defined by33S
Earnings per ShareBasic earnings per share is defined as the oakdtip between the net income attributable
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted averag®ar of ordinary shares outstanding during theogder
The following table presents basic earnings pereshad the details of the calculation.

Basic Earning per share HMM22015 HMM22014
Adjusted attributable profit 24.053 5.803
Weighted average number of ghares 16.971.085 16.971.085
Basic Earning per share 1,42 0,34

Diluted earnings per share reflects the dilutiieas of the conversion of potential ordinary skadefined
as financial instruments that grant their holddrs tight to obtain ordinary shares. Accordingly,emnh
calculating diluted earnings per share, the nuroesatd denominator of the ratio are adjusted

to account for the effects of the additional shaines would need to be issued if all potential oatly shares
with dilutive effects were converted.

Banca Popolare di Cividale has not issued finanosttuments that grant their holders the righbbain

ordinary shares.

21.2 Other information
The reader is referred to the information presemtede similar section of the notes.

Chapter D — COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Income Net
Gross amount tax amount

10 NET INCOME (LOSS) X X 24,053
Cther comprehensive income without reclassification to profit or loss - - -
40 Defined-benefit plans 111 31 a0
100 Financial assets available-for-zale: 13.213 1.111 12.102
a) fair value changes 13.213 1.111 12.102
130 Total other comprehensive income 13.324 1.142 12.182
140 TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 36.235
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Chapter E — RISKS AND HEDGING POLICIES
Identifying the risks to which the Bank is actuadlypotentially exposed is crucial for assuminghsrisks in
an informed manner and managing them effectivedingithe appropriate tools and techniques to méiga
those risks.
Its internal rules, operating procedures and manigostructures designed to protect against busineks
have been developed according to a model thatratesgymonitoring methods at various levels, aliveoging
with the goals of ensuring the efficiency and eiff@mess of operating processes, preserving theaoy's
assets, protecting it from losses, ensuring thabity and integrity of information and verifyintpe proper
conduct of operations in accordance with intermal external regulations.
The management and monitoring of risks within BaRoaolare di Cividale are founded upon the follayvin
basic principles:

v'identifying responsibilities for assuming risks;

v adopting consistent, adequate measurement andkegtems in formal and substantial terms in

light of the extent of the risks to be monitoredga
v organisational separation of functions responsibtemanagement and functions responsible for
control.

These principles are formally stated and illustidte specific policies and the related rules amatedures
concerning risks identified as significant. Theeeuiments, which are submitted for the approvahefBank's
Board of Directors, govern the set of regulatedsrissignificant and periodically monitored indicato
observation thresholds and operating limits, breadnagement methods, stress tests applied and the
company's organisational structure, bodies andifume charged with performing the activities comest, in
keeping with the roles and responsibilities assigioethem.
In this process, which takes place at various teoEthe organisational structure, a fundamentalisoplayed,
in accordance with prudential regulations, by thenilBs Board of Directors, which is responsible for
establishing directives and strategic guidelinesceoning the assumption of risk, approving strategid
operational limits (RAF) and drawing up the relaggdidelines.
The Risk Appetite Framework (RAF) thus represemésgeneral architecture within which the risks el
by the Bank are managed, through the establishaig@neral principles concerning maximum risk tatere
and the ensuing structure for oversight of the Baokerall risk profile and major specific riskhelprocess
requires a high degree of consistency and recatiotti of the strategic plan, RAF, ICAAP, budget artdrnal
control system.
The Risk Committee has been added to the new Astiml Association approved by the Shareholderstihtge
on 26 April 2015, in accordance with supervisoigulations. The Risk Committee, instituted withie Board
of Directors, is composed of three non-executivkependent directors and at least one member @dbed
of Statutory Auditors. It has preliminary, constiita and propositional duties relating to the IngrControl
System and risk management. Its main aim is toaadtaison between the Board of Directors, Board of
Statutory Auditors, control functions and the Bardther organisational units.
The activities attributed to the Risks Committeetiy supervisory regulations include liaising witmtrol
functions. In accordance with the supervisory riigank of Italy Circular No. 285/2013), the orgatisnal
structure of Banca Popolare di Cividale identifiee Risk Management Service and Compliance Service,
which are to report directly to the Board of Di@st, as the second-level control functions. Thaéss assured
for the Auditing Department, a level-three confusiction that is independent of the other compatijsuThe
three functions (Risk Management, Compliance aterhal Auditing) are part of the internal contrgéem,
governed by prudential supervisory regulations,ititernal document Internal Control System Guidedin
and the Rules and Procedures for the Coordinafi@ootrol Functions.

Risk Management Service

It performs a risk control function, as prescrilligathe specific supervisory rules. It is dividetbitwo units:
the Credit Risk Management Office, which focuseg@dit and concentration risk, and the Operatianal
Financial Risks Office, which focuses specificaly“financial risks” (liquidity, market and intefieste risk)
and other risks (operational, strategic, and gjmrt risk). The Risk Management Service pursues th
objective of monitoring the actual risk assumedh®y/Bank, as well as of observance of operatingdirand
contributes to defining the Risk Appetite Framew@RAF). In pursuit of this goal, it proposes the sho
appropriate quantitative and qualitative parametard verifies the efficacy of the measures assutned
remedy the deficiencies observed in the risk mamagé process, periodically reporting to companyié®d
on the activities it performs. It is also taskedhaiormulating advance opinions on the consistesfapajor



transactions with the RAF, and with analysing ikks of new products and services and the riskingrfrom
entry into new operating and market segments.péstises the internal capital adequacy assessmacegs
(ICAAP) and internal liquidity adequacy assessnpentess (ILAAP) required under supervisor regutetio

Compliance Service

Legal compliance is the responsibility of an indegent function that supervises management of non-
compliance risk, according to a risk-based apprgaclall company activity, ensuring that interpabcedures

are adequate to prevent that risk. The Compliaooetion reports to the Compliance Service and ss al
responsible for supervising legal compliance foaficial intermediation and complaints handling ieex
The Anti-Money Laundering function also reportstihe Compliance Service and pursues the objective of
preventing and managing the risk of non-compliamitie laws governing money-laundering and finandiog
terrorism. The Head of the Compliance Service asthe head of both functions for supervisory psegoin
addition to serving as the party responsible fporéng suspect transactions pursuant to Legigdiiecree
No. 231/07.

Other committees

According to the organisational model, a Manager@amhmittee, Risk Management Committee and an Asset
and Liability Committee have also been institutedh the additional aim of ensuring an effectiveleange
of information regarding exposure to such risksveen the various segments and maximising the effioa
the overall control of those risks.
The Management Committee, the members of whichiatdode the heads of control functions, suppdrés t
general management in operational coordinatiorhefguidelines established with the Strategic Plash a
periodically compares company results with the cbjes established in the Plan.
Within the overall Internal Control System, the IRislanagement Committee, composed of the senior
management and the heads of the Bank's major esr¢iinance, Loans, Financial Reporting and Risk
Management) plays a consultative, informational pireghositional role in decisions of an operatiomaiure
relating to initiatives and projects that haverapact on the risk management process and asdisérgeneral
manager in performing the roles assigned to hinreumrdernal risk management policies.
The ALCo (Assets and Liabilities Committee), of aiithe Risk Manager is also a member, is chargéd wi
proposing the Bank’s strategic decisions in finahmatters to the Board of Directors, through tlen&al
Manager, as well as with coordinating managemeltips for assets, liabilities and the associatskisy in
light of market scenarios and the guidelines estladtl in the current Strategic Plan.
ICAAP and ILAAP at Banca Popolare di Cividale
In accordance with the regulatory provisions gowegnthe prudential control process, the Bank has
implemented specific company rules, approved byBbard of Directors and periodically updated, that
regulate the internal capital adequacy assessmecess (ICAAP). The supervisory regulations reqthisd
ICAAP be based on appropriate company risk-managemsgstems and presuppose adequate corporate
governance mechanisms, an organisational structitte clearly defined lines of responsibility and an
effective internal-control system. The corporatards are responsible for the process and enjogditdinomy
in defining its structure and organisation to thxent of their respective expertise and prerogatividhey
implement and promote updates to ICAAP with the afrensuring that it constantly adheres to the Bank
operational characteristics and strategic confEie process must be formalised, documented, iftgrna
audited and approved by the corporate boards.thil déne process aims to:
v'identify capital requirements on the basis of datis and the strategic guidelines set by the Bamk
accordance with the Risk Appetite Framework (RAF);
v ensure that capital is constantly adequate to cuard prospective needs;
v keep all major risks under observation;
v ensure that regular attention is devoted to risesneement and -management processes, developing
an increasingly strong “risk culture”; and
v define approaches, tools, methods, and organisdtiand control systems for risks and capital
commensurate to the Bank's strategies, charaatsriscope and complexity, with a view towards
constant, gradual refinement.
In April of each year, at the conclusion of theqaes described above, the Board of Directors apprthe
ICAAP Report at 31 December of the previous yedictvrepresents both the point of convergence add e
result of financial planning, risk management aagital management, and a tool to be used in stcateg
evaluation and implementation of business decisions



ICAAP is aimed at expressing an assessment thalt ¢apital is essentially currently and prospedyive
adequate to cover the relevant risks to which thekBs exposed, support the company’s growth paas
maintain suitable market standing.

With effect from the figures at 31 December 201H)jact to reporting to the supervisory authoritigs30
April of each year, banks are required to draw deqgaiate descriptive disclosure, which must be agglo
and signed by the Board of Directors, concernirg ltquidity governance and management system, and
explicitly to affirm the adequacy of the safeguaagplicable to liquidity risk, according to a logignilar to
that applied to the adequacy of own funds. Thiscgse is designated the Internal Liquidity Adequacy
Assessment Process (ILAAP). Like ICAAP, ILAAP ipeocess aimed at allowing the timely identification
and management of situations of risk and must ipéeimented by the Bank on an ongoing basis.

The disclosure obligations imposed by prudentigll&tions (Bank of Italy Circular 285/2013 and @RR,
Regulation EU No 575/2013) are discharged througipgration of the Disclosure by Institutions docame
published in the specific Investor Relations sectbthe company's websiteww.civibank.it The document
contains a disclosure for market operators of mtdion concerning capital adequacy, risk exposaocethe
general characteristics of management systems hanadwersight thereof. The information, which ishot
gualitative and quantitative in nature, is providletbugh concise overviews, thus fostering thespanency
and comparability of the data.

SECTION 1 — CREDIT RISK
1.1 CREDIT RISK
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

1. General aspects

Lending is an essential element of the core businé8anca Popolare di Cividale, and in this contag
Bank is exposed to the risk that some loans mayaaepaid either when they come due or thereadter,
result of the deterioration of the financial coratis of the obligor, and must therefore be writtknvn in
whole or in part.
The objectives of its lending policies and loanrappl and management rules are directed towards:
v' supporting business development in the Bank's afreaeration, while focusing on assistance for and
relationships with small and medium enterprisesfandlies;
v diversifying the portfolio, by limiting the conceation of exposures to individual counterpartiesigs
and individual sectors of the economy;
v' efficiently selecting groups and companies to whichlend through a thorough analysis of
creditworthiness aimed at limiting the risk of ddta
v/ constantly monitoring relationships, through batitoanatic procedures and systematic surveillance of
positions, in order to identify any signs of imbada in a timely manner and then launch the coxrecti
measures aimed at preventing the relationship ttetariorating.
The quality of the loan portfolio is constantly nitoned in accordance with precise operating rutesughout
all phases of the management of loan positions.

2. Credit risk management policies
2.1 Organisational aspects

Within the organisational structure adopted by BaRopolare di Cividale, management of credit risk i
entrusted to the following organisational unitsyaoying extents, in accordance with the missiathauativities
assigned to each under specific internal rulespaodedures:

v Loan Department: it is tasked with overseeing tlee@ss of assuming all types of risks associatéd wi
lending for the Banca Popolare di Cividale, with Bupport of the Head of the Loan Service. Through
the general management, after having obtaineddiméon of the Risk Management function, it proposes
credit management policies to the Board of Dirextdlris responsible for ensuring that the lending
process is compliant with the provisions of the,laupervisory authority, Articles of Associationdan
internal rules and procedures, and it constantijates the technical procedures for loan application
review, assessment and disbursement and the assbiciternal rules;

v’ Loan Service (an operating unit of the Loan Departth it is charged with managing and verifying the
process of assuming risks associated with lendingdénca Popolare di Cividale: the Loan Application
Review Office, Loan Register Office and Mortgagenfistration Office are all part of the Loan
Service;



v’ Loan Monitoring Office (an operating unit includiedthe staff of the Loan Department, introduced in
April 2015). it supervises the ongoing monitoring activitiespakitions of risk in order to maintain
quality within acceptable limits; performs the apmmiate controls of a systemic nature or on a sampl
basis concerning the actual performance of thestaskigned to the various credit monitoring and
management functions;

v' Anomalous Loan Office (an operating unit within gtaff of the Loan Department introduced in April
2015): it manages positions classified as unlikelyay and positions that present operational ahesna
in the context of the assigned credit limits andfioauthorised uses of credit, or that have beeatttijr
or indirectly affected by adverse events, which aseigned to the unit according to predetermined
portfolio assignment criteria; it delivers instracts to network structures for the performancehef t
appropriate management activities deemed necessgoyotect credit; it submits proposals to the
competent bodies concerning the amount of the gi@mvé to be set aside to account for positions
classified as unlikely to pay when preparing timarficial statements;

v" Legal and Dispute Service/Dispute Office: it marslggal aspects of positions classified as badsgdebt
and in particular is responsible for taking legaasures and actions aimed at recovering the amounts
concerned, on which it reports periodically to camp bodies. It is also tasked with conducting
assessments of loss projections for individualwisgh positions and proposing the necessary pragsio

v' Risk Management Service/Credit Risk Management ceffiit identifies, assesses and conducts
systematic, integrated management of the credlitassumed by the company, in addition to ensuring
an adequate system for reporting to company badliedshe responsible production units. It collabesat
in setting the RAF, drafting the credit policy withgard to the assumption of credit and concentrati
risks and establishing the related operating limits

v Finance Service/Treasury & Funding Office: in tlemtext of its specific operations, it is taskedhwit
ensuring the compliance of financial assets withgrescriptions of the rules and procedures fatitre
risk as regards credit limits for borrowers (moriitg of the system of limits imposed by the
regulations).

2.2 Management, measurement and control systems

The risk profile of the loan portfolio of Banca Ftgre di Cividale is monitored throughout all phaséthe
process, beginning with application review and sssent of the borrower's satisfaction of reliapilit
requirements, through verification of the borrowecreditworthiness, the transaction's risk levek t
appropriateness of the return and the current aosppctive sustainability of the credit risk. Theyer to
approve loans is delegated by the network to cenffges and company bodies, according to a system
governed by the Lending Process Rules and Procgdubhéch provide for specific loan authorisatiorwgos
assigned according to various criteria including #mount of the credit facility, weighted by exmelctoss
(the credit risk parameters probability of defdRi, loss given default LGD and exposure at defaAlD)
and additional corrective factors; risk type, thgéng class, the primary reason for applying far fian, the
classification of the counterparty as non-perfoigrin a change of risk level, and specific casdmaivithin
the exclusive purview of the Board of Directors.

The credit decision-making process is supporteidtgynal procedures (the Electronic Lending Procedind
Rating Procedure), which allow management of alis@ls of the lending process (from contact with the
customer to application review, disbursement andagament and final closure), as well as of thengati
assignment process. All applications are autombtiaasigned to the competent level according torthies
and limits of amount laid down in the Lending Psx®&ules and Procedures.

Creditworthiness is analysed according to elemeh# quantitative nature (income components, fir@nc
statement analysis, and internal and systemic pedioce data) and of a qualitative nature (a thdroug
understanding of the customer, the competitive atlérin which the customer operates, an analystheof
sector, shareholder composition, adverse entriegs,sa forth), with the use of specific data provsdén
particular, CRIF for individual customers, CERVEDBr fcompany chamber of commerce certificates and
adverse entries, CEBI for financial statements, smfbrth).

A fundamental element of the parameters and ts#d to manage credit risk by Banca Popolare did@lei
is represented by the internal ratings calculated@ing to differentiated models and specificalygimated
by customer segment (Corporate, SME Corporate, |Fe#dil, Micro Retail and Individuals).

The rating system developed by the Creval Groutereally to Banca Popolare di Cividale, calls fobe t

establishment of a new rating assignment processvimg the introduction of a rating procedure (paira



specific larger procedure, integrated into the lapplication review phase) aimed at analysing dqteive
and qualitative information concerning the borrowebe used to calculate the online rating or aece®
rating.

The ratings assigned online (by the rating procgdare subject to a monthly monitoring process diate
identifying signs of significant deterioration dfiet risk profile, through automatic mass calculat@n
"monitoring" ratings with monthly frequency, usialj up-to-date quantitative information that maydsawn
from the systems (register, consolidated exposatebe end of the month, financial statement dath a
performance data) and the most recent qualitatiestipnnaire completed.

For enterprise segments (Corporate, Corporate SR&msjl SMEs and Micro Retail), the external pravid
has set up a master scale of nine classes of wretliiness for performing borrowers, plus one cl&ss
defaulting borrowers. For the Individuals segmémt,which the model was introduced and appliedtiar
first time in 2014 and updated in the fourth quadk2015, eight rating classes have been estaulisbr
performing countries, in addition to one classdefaulting counterparties. Each rating class iresgment
is associated with a probability of default, estieabby the external supplier on the basis of tlezage default
rates observed in recent periods (calibration errsgears) in the pertinent portfolio, updated aatiyu

In accordance with the Bank's internal rules amt@aures, the rating system is subject to peri@liew at
the overall level by the Risk Management Servieepart of validation activity for models used fanna
regulatory purposes.

After a loan is approved and disbursed, the pasitioassessed over time (on a fixed date or ahekfi
intervals), initially by the branches, which arepensible for specific daily and monthly activities well as
by the geographical areas. Additional specific sssents may be launched on the basis of repotitstives
by dedicated structures, such as the Anomalous Odfee, which is responsible for monitoring retatship
performance, carried out according to a new managemodel that calls for assignment to portfolids o
positions classified to the various managemenusgst for positions belonging to the various cregi
segments (Enterprise Corporate, SME Corporate,ilRetd Individuals) through the application of aane
procedure designated the Monitoring Procedurepdiniced in the first quarter of 2015. Managemertists
are associated with specific actions aimed at mtavg the deterioration of positions, including pleo
collection activity, managed in outsourcing by a&dfic specialised company for Individual and Retai
Enterprise customers.

Within the Lending Area's lending process and idcedures, new functions have been implementedyiakp
potential forborne exposures to be identified, ngaalaand monitored, in accordance with prudential
regulations.

In accordance with the new prudential regulatioms the Bank's organisational structure, internatm of
credit risk is assigned to the Credit Risk Managan@fice, which through specific periodic repoptsrsues

the objective of monitoring and measuring the lexfetredit risk associated with the Bank’s loantfudio.

The main information base consists of the dataigeov by the Central Risks Database, general records
database and economic groups database.

Quarterly reports, which are presented to compaalyes in accordance with the internal rules andgulares
of the internal control system, include in partaoul

v/ an analysis of the composition and performanceheflban portfolio, with an emphasis on credit
guality, including a breakdown of loans into penfiimg and non-performing (past due, probable
defaults and bad debts) and a comparison withnithesiry benchmark; the analysis also includes the
transition matrices and the calculation of defeailes;

v’ the qualitative analysis of risk profiles from d@régegic" standpoint; the application of stressstes
the risk level of the loan portfolio, including iearms of capital requirements;

v' an analysis of concentration risk for single nama@sl associated groups and an analysis of
concentration risk by geographical area and sewfitin,a calculation of capital requirements as well
in both ordinary and stress conditions.

Additional information is available concerning amdicontrol instruments, which allow all managements
involved in implementing credit policies to maimaadequate oversight. In particular, analyses ef th
following are available:

v the performance of various classes of risk: contjgwsichanges and comparisons by category and
area;



v’ the ratings assigned to companies and individpaltfolio composition; distribution by use; changes
of class (deterioration/improvement);
v the primary exposures by risk class; and
v uses by sector (ATECO or SAE codes).
The new supervisory regulations concerning intecoaltrol systems also require that the Risk Managgm
Function conduct loan performance monitoring, \tiig aim of verifying:
v"the proper functioning of the loan monitoring modetl the proper use of monitoring parameters;
v'the proper classification of exposures (represimetaf the level of risk) and the proper assessmént
valuation inputs (guarantees);
v"the consistency of provisions and the risk prafii¢he portfolio.
On this basis, and in application of the propowidy principle, as required by regulations, theedit Risk
Management Office began a process aimed at ensodngpliance with legislation. The main activities
assigned to the Credit Risk Management Office iheiu
v’ verification of the proper functioning of the credionitoring model and the proper use of monitoring
parameters;
v the proper classification of exposures (represiemtaf the level of risk) and the proper assessroént
valuation inputs (guarantees);
v the appropriateness of provisions;
v' the adequacy of the recovery process.

Concentration risk
The Risk Management Service within the Credit Rid&nagement Office is responsible for measuring
concentration risk. The approach followed in meaguthe concentration risk of the portfolio of lgato
customers depends on whether the risk is due to:

v concentration by individual counterparty or groopselated customers;

v concentration by common factors (geo-sectoral aumagon).
The granularity adjustment approach indicated indpntial supervisory provisions is followed when
measuring concentration risk by individual coungety or group of customers. The method proposeithéy
Italian Banking Association is followed when measgrgeo-sectoral concentration risk. Various aregyere
conducted when monitoring concentration risk byviaiial counterparty or groups of related customsush
as distribution by use bracket and the incidenctheftop ten, 20 and 50 performing positions (irchiial
customers or economic groups of performing custejnetentified on the basis of the amounts of olatee
sheet loans.
In accordance with the lending process, in additioobserving the limits set by supervisory prauns with
respect to large exposures and significant riskacB Popolare di Cividale has implemented an iateystem
of concentration limits on the basis of the valakewn funds at the individual and consolidatectlev

2.3 Credit risk mitigation techniques

Guarantees are a secondary consideration in thealmaroval process. Loan approval continues todsed
on the borrower's effective ability to repay theoamt of the loan.

Operating procedures for the proper acquisitior,arsd management of guarantees have been estdbhishe
specific internal rules with the aim of ensuringisistent, uniform operations.

Guarantees are acquired through an operationakguoe that ensures an assessment of the formal and
substantive validity of documentation that inclu@ssertaining the legal capacity to contract reglito
provide the guarantee in question. Checks are sumited at the central level, where securitiebeldand
contracts managed. In the case of pledges, onlyifeguk easily liquidated assets are eligible foguaisition

and valuation under the procedure. In cases ofgages, assets are valued by independent appragseept

in special, low-value cases, in accordance withtdden Banking Association Property Appraisal @Galines,
adopted by the Bank.

The guarantees acquired that comply with the genand specific suitability criteria established by
supervisory legislation for the mitigation of credkposures are also used to determine capitairesnents.

In the case of property guarantees in particutarBank has entered into a specific agreementamigexternal
provider for the periodic updating of the markeluesof properties provided as collateral or subjedinance
lease, on statistical bases, in order to ensum@pysty supervision”. For exposures of more thamméBon,
the Bank has the appraisals revised by an indep¢edpert each year.



Before personal guarantees are accepted, checkssaadly made at the competent register of deeds to
ascertain the guarantor’'s actual real-estate pimrtfloearing in mind the possibility of a rapid,axpected
depletion of the asset base.

2.4 Non-performing financial assets

Non-performing financial assets are classified adicg to supervisory regulations into the followiclgsses:
exposures past due by more than 90 days, unlikghay and bad debts. This new classification schease
introduced with effect from 1 January 2015 andaegs the previous version, which consisted of éihegories
of exposures past due by more than 90 days, prdbkems, restructured loans and bad debts. Witleteifen

1 January 2014, Banca Popolare di Cividale adogteapproach by individual borrower for all exposute
total exposure to a borrower becomes non-performing

Another change applied in 2015, in accordance sugervisory rules, was the identification of a sraersal
category within the various risk classes (perfogramd non-performing) known as "forborne exposuras"
forborne exposure is an exposure to which forbesraneasures have been applied. Such measures are
contractual concessions applied by the Bank to rmob@r who is currently experiencing, or about to
experience, difficulty in discharging its financ@bligations (“financial difficulty").

Monitoring positions classified as unlikely to pagd bad debts is the responsibility of the Probleran
Office and the Legal and Dispute Service/DisputBc®f respectively.

The competent bodies decide on the reclassificatiamdividual positions as unlikely to pay, noriyaby the
proposal of the Anomalous Loan Office. The amodgrovisions to be recognised is also determinathdu
the decision-making process. Likewise, the compdtedies also decide whether to reclassify a loamthe
unlikely to pay category to ordinary positions.

Once a loan is classified as unlikely to pay, tleeislon-making powers of individual loan officereea
suspended and any further decision on extendingsloests solely with collegial bodies. Unlikely gay
positions with exposures above the threshold s#ienRules and Procedures for Classifying Positams
Assessing Non-Performing Exposures are managedhéoyAhomalous Loan Office, which also provides
constant support to individual units in managingtrenships of limited amounts with regard to theasures
to be taken in order to seek to restore the positio performing status.

The procedure for classifying a position as a belat @& analogous to that used for managing unlit@lyay
exposures. Decisions concerning the amounts ofioheil provisions, as well as any changes, are rbade
the competent bodies upon the recommendation dfd@bal and Dispute Service and the Dispute Office.

For non-performing positions, the approach is dfin internal rules and procedures and involves th
application of the following criteria: 1) for padue positions (past due by more than 90 days, atiwe
materiality threshold) and for unlikely to pay posmis with exposure below a predetermined threshblel
assessment is conducted on a lump-sum basis, heitipiplication of two separate models that follogrgame
principles as that applied to performing positioBsfor unlikely to pay positions beyond a predetieed
threshold and bad debts, according to IAS/IFRSstude individual assessment process is conducttdran
estimated loss determined for each position.



QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

A. CREDIT QUALITY

A. Non-performing and performing positions: stockarite-downs, changes and distribution by sectordan

geographical area

A.1.1 Distribution of loan exposures by portfolindecredit quality (carrying amounts)

<L . Performing Other
Bad loans Unlikely to pay pep::tr:ll:zg, past due performing Total
exposures eXposures  exposures
1. Financial assets available for sale - - - - 1113812 1113812
2. Financial assets held to maturity - - - - 32718 32718
3. Due from banks - - - - 40.385 40.385
4. Loans to customers 200473 177.892 19673 250223 2035445 288371
S. Financial assets recognized at fair value - - - - - -
§. Financial assets being divested - - - - - -
Total 3111212015 200473 177.692 19.675 250,223 3.222.357 3.870.623
Total 311212014 162.114 141.857 13.555 246,356 3.335.842 3.899.753

Other assets include € 250,223 thousand of expepaist due by one day.

A.1.2 Distribution of loan exposures by portfoliodecredit quality (gross and net values)

Impaired assets Other assets
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1. Financial assets available for sale - - - 1.113.812 - 1.113.812 1113812
2. Financial assets held to maturity - - - 32716 - 327186 32716
3. Due from banks - - - 40.385 - 40.385 40.385
4. Loans to customers 727488 329.443 358.043 2302601 16.934 2.285.687 2883711
5. Financial assets recognized at fair value - - - X X - -
8. Financial assets being divested - - - - - - -
Total 311212015 727486 320.443 398.043 3.489.514 16.934 3.472.580 3.870.623
Total 311212014 590.448 272.923 317.525 3.587.212 17.794 3.582.228 3.699.753
Assets of evidently low
credit quality Other assets
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1. Financial assets held for trading - - 829
2. Hedging derivatives - - -
Total 31/12/2015 - - 829

Total 31/12/2014

A.1.3 On- and off-balance sheet loan exposureamd gross and net values and past-due brackets

Type of exposurefvalue Gross exposure
Non performing assets
o2 CwoB g &’ g = . Performing wfmns wf:erggw"ons HNet exposure
ﬁ‘g‘ g%‘g g‘g‘_ EE assets
58 |30 |528 | o
A. ON-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES
a) Bad loans - - - - X - bs -
- Of which: forborne exposures - - - - X - X -
b} Unlikely to pay - - - - X - ® -
- Of which: forborne exposures - - - - X - X -
c} Non performing, past due exposures - - - - x - x -
- Of which: forborne exposures - - - - X - bs -
c) Performing past due exposures X X X X - X - -

- Of which: forborne exposures X X X X - X - -
e} Other performing exposures X X X X 4777 X - G4777
- Of which: forborne exposures X X X X - X - -

TOTAL A - - - - 64777 - - B4.TTT
B. OFF-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES - - = = = - - -
a) Non performing - - - - X - ® -
b} Performing X X X X 3.722 X - 3722
TOTALB - - - - 3.722 - - 3722
TOTAL (A+B) - - - - 68.498 - - 68.498

r €0T
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A.1.6 On- and off-balance sheet loan exposuresgtomers: gross and net values and past-due bracket

Type of exposureivalue Gross exposure
Non performing assets
» =
£ E § s Specific Portfolio
5 = % - g Performing | ritedowns  writedowns 10! SXPOSUre
‘E = = § - assets
: 053 | @
3 % g
o m
A. ON-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES
a) Bad loans - - - 473.570 X 273.086 X 200.473
- Of which: forberne exposures - - - 54438 X 3.244 X §.203
b) Unlikely to pay 58.781 10.241 45179 111.250 X 52.199 X 177.882
- Of which: forberne exposures 20686 1.601 8752 19283 X 9121 X 41.20
c) Non performing, past due exposures 1.308 4.015 10.422 8.080 X 4148 X 159.678
- Of which: forberne exposures 161 241 1.563 1.588 X T4 X 3.548
c} Performing past due exposures X X X X 2521688 X 1.845 250.223
- Of which: forberne exposures X X X X 21.07M X 182 20.909
e} Other performing exposures X X X X 3172835 X 14535 3.157.848
- Of which: forberne exposures X X X X 48731 X 350 45,421
TOTAL A 60.089 14.257 59.601 593.540 3.424.303 329.443 16.934 3.505.912
B. OFF-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES - - - = = - - -
a) Non performing 4235 - - - X 1.154 X 3.085
b) Performing X X X X 74242 X 431 7381
TOTALB 4.239 - - - 74.242 1.154 431 76.896
TOTAL (A+B) 64,328 14.257 59.601 503.540 3.499.044 330.597 17.365 3.8682.808

A.1.7 On-balance sheet loan exposures to custorokastges in gross impaired positions

Bad loans  Unlikely to pay F':z::tf’n"ni
A. Opening gross exposure 378,343 196.145 15.960
- of which: exposures assigned but not derecognized - - -
B. Increases 122.883 128.340 22.832
B.1 from performing positions 12.478 52813 20.880
B.2 transfers from other categories of impaired positions 55.429 5234 3
B.3 other increases 43.975 282593 1.949
- of which: business combinations 34673 23282 1918
C. Decreases 27.656 94.395 14.966
C.1 to performing pesitions - 1.148 945
C.2 writeoffs 15.730 - -
C.3 collections 11.928 25475 2172
C.4 azsignments - - -
C.5 los=es on sale
C.6 transfers to other categories of impaired positions - §3.817 11.845
C.7 other decreases - - -
D, Closing gross exposure 473570 230,090 23.826

- of which: exposures assigned but not derecognized




A.1.7bis On-balance sheet loan exposures to cussomerformance of gross forborne exposures byitred
quality
Forborne

EXpOSUres:
performing

Forborne exposures:
non performing

A, Opening gross exposure 31.362 54.923
- of which: expeosures assigned but not derecognized - -
B. Increases 46.974 43.875
B.1 from perferming positions 20,733 43254
B.2 transfers from other categories of impaired positions 21.240 -

B.3 transfers from forborne non performing postions - -

B.4 other increases 4.845 12
C. Decreases 14.314 35.947
C.1 to performing positions - 4 875

C.2 to other categeries of performing forborne positions - -
C.3 to other categories of non performing forborne positions - 21.240
C.4 write offs - -
C.5 collections §.050 10.031
C.5 assignmentz - -
C.7 losses on sale - -
C.8 other decreases 8.264 -
D. Closing gross exposure 64021 67.851

A.1.8 On-balance sheet non-performing loan expastoeustomers: changes in total adjustments

Bad loans Unlikely to pay Past due positions
Reasonl/Categories Of which: Of which: Of which:
Total forborne Total forborne Total forborne
exposures EXpOsUres exposures
A. Total opening adjustments 216.229 701 h4.288 6.122 2.405 307
- of which: exposures assigned but not derecognized
B. Increases 86.605 2,580 33.228 5.949 3,061 683
B.1. writedowns 37377 2,539 2razz 5.557 3.554 655
B.2. losses on sale - - - - - -
B.3. transfers from other categories of impaired postions 25710 51 1.392 223 1 1
B.4. other increases 23519 - 4514 169 306 28
- of wich: business combinations g.041 - 3.966 - 147 -
GC. Decreases 29.737 47 35.318 2.950 2.118 287
C.1. writebacks from valuations 4373 47 5.689 2.021 154 T
C.2.writebacks from collection 466 - 432 378 178 57
C.3. gains on sale - - - - - -
C.4. writeoffs 24359 - - - - -
C.5. transfers to other categories of impaired positions - - 25316 51 1.786 223

C.5. other decreases - - - - - -
D. Total closing adjustments 273.096 3.244 52.199 9421 4,145 703

- of which: exposures assigned but not derecognized - - - - - -

A.2 CLASSIFICATION OF EXPOSURES ON THE BASIS OF EXTERNAL AND INTERNAL
RATINGS
A.2.1 — Distribution of on- and off-balance sheqi@sures by external rating grades

Under the Bank of Italy preparation rules, thedahlquestion has not been compiled since the Baek not
rely on external ratings issued by authorised gategencies (ECAIS) for on- and off-balance shegbvsures
to customers.

A.2.2 — Distribution of on- and off-balance shegtasures by internal rating grades

This table has not been compiled since rating nsoaled not used for regulatory purposes. Howevey, dne
used as a management tool for classifying and simgyustomers for risk management purposes.

A.3 Distribution of secured exposures by type of qarantee
A.3.1 — Secured on-balance sheet loan exposurtemsnics
Not applicable.
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A.3.2. — Secured on-balance sheet loan exposui@sstomers

. Guarantees (2}
Collateralsi (1)
E Credit derivatives Signature Loans (loans guarantees) —
= o
= = ” Other credit derivatives = b= " X
=3 W o
a = I w b n o 2 =
= £ 5} o @ C |gw ] oz £ o o = =
u ] = = a L |5 w| S o w = B = = = L
k] = e} =1 L EI|2 o2 = = & L =
2 o o g 5 n [ESEIZE|E | g E & | 3 5
= & 8 £ SoB|E5|d | B C £ =
= (&} o £ = =| © = (5]
L o ® o o [&] o
1. Secured on balance sheet credit exposure: 2137182 1584785  200.910 13.258 86.528 - - - - - - 22.041 174 216.845 2.104.540
1.1. totally secured 2.069.654 1.563.347 200910 9.413 84.866 - - - - - - 10.381 157 197.222 2.066.256
- of which impaired 347.415 271.884 25.080 773 18.068 - - - - - - 162 7 25687 345640
1.2. partially secured 67.538 1.439 - 3.845 1.662 - - - - - - 11.660 16 18,623 38244
- of which impaired 16.911 1.349 - 1.051 26 - - - - - - 457 1 4623 7.507
2. Secured off balance sheet credit exposure: 29688 99 - 3.472 5772 - - - - - - 24 - 16.422 24943
2.1. totally secured 18311 99 - 2022 2833 - - - - - - 24 - 14.233 18311
- of which impaired 954 - - 50 54 - - - - - - - - 240 954
2.2. partially secured 10.377 - - 1.450 2839 - - - - - - - - 1.348 5635
- of which impaired 457 - 32 24 - - 76 132

In accordance with Bank of Italy Circular 262, fdurupdate, the columns "Collateral" and "Personal
guarantees" include the fair value of guarantestanated at the reporting date or, in the absefcch
information, the contractual value of such guarastdt should be noted that, in accordance withatimve
fourth update, contrary to previous years, botlueslmay not exceed the carrying amount of the gteed
exposures.

B. CREDIT DISTRIBUTION AND CONCENTRATION
B.1 Distribution of on- and off-balance sheet expes to customers by sector (carrying amounts)

Governments Other public entities Financial companies Insurance undertakings Non-financial companies Other

Exposures/Counterparties 2 1% § = 1% 1% = 1% § 2 1% ﬁ: = 1% ﬁ: = 1% 1§

s s § | § . g| § | £/| ¢ s ¢ % | § | £ | $| %8 s/|°¢%

: | €8 5|8 g| 8 |¢% £ ERE: g 2 | 8| 5 | £ ¢

5 | &8 5 | 5|2 |8 8| & 5 |58 | 8 g | &5 [ &8

A. ON-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES

4.1 Bad loans - X 3 X 2179 1822 X - X 169347 242978 X 28948 28.594 X

- Of which: forborne exposures - - X - - X - - X - - X 5688 2,983 X 515 221 X

A2 Unlikety to pay - - X - - X 4832 4518 X - - X 147.513 42148 X 25546 55 X

- Of which: forborne exposures - - X - - X 1.393 1.694 X - - X 33974 6.775 X 5.834 652 X

4.3, Non performing, past due exposures - - X - - X 148 32 X - - X 12.514 25M X 7.7 1.545 X

- Of which: forborne exposures - - X - - X - - X - - X 2863 557 X 685 147 X
A4, Other performing exposures 1110794 X - 5.649 - 52 136401 X 251 12431 X R By gl X 9872 869363 X 6.749
- Of which: forborne exposures - - - - - - 608 - 5 - - - 54 576 - 423 12145 - G4
TOTAL A 1.110.794 - - 6.649 3 52 143.588 6.073 261 12.431 - - 1.601606 287697 9872 9030875 35670 6.749

B. OFF-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

B.1 Bad loans - - X - - X - - X - - - 1.720 886 X 2 0 X

B.2 Unlikely to pay - - X - - X - 0 X - - X 1.156 264 X 1 0 X

B.3 Other non performing assets - - X - - X 18 1} X - - X 184 2 X 3 0 X
B.4 Other performing assets - X - 850 X 1 1.037 X 7 - X - 59.796 X 40 12128 X 22
TOTAL - - - B850 - 1 1.055 0 7 - - - 62856 1.153 401 12.136 1 22
TOTAL 311122015 1.110.794 - - 7.488 3 52 144813 6074 268 12.431 - - 1664461 283850 10273 943010 35670 6771
TOTAL 3111212014 SE87.104 - 0 11012 3 68 342892 443 184 13.250 - - 1516231  237.079 10787 934943 32276 7.420
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Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

B.2 Distribution of on- and off-balance sheet expes to customers by geographical area (carrying
amounts)

MALY Omggf:jg:? L AMERICA ASLA RE?JOOR’T_EHE
Exposures/Geographical areas % g % g % g % g % g
5 2= 5 [5%| % |3%| 3 [5%| %8 |55
A. ON-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES
A1 Bad loans 199.669 269.708 586  3.317 - T - - 208 64
A2 Unlikety to pay 177.318 51.609 559 587 o 0 14 3 - -
A3 Non performing, past due expos 19.368 4079 30 68 - o - - o ]
A 4 Other performing exposures 3.384 554 168.841 12.485 a7 212 1 506 4 102 1
TOTALA 3.790.910 342237 13.960  4.080 213 8 520 6 30 65
B. OFF-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSUR - - - - - - - - - -
B.1 Bad lnans 1722 835 - - - - - - - -
B.Z Unlikely to pay 1.154 265 4 - - - - - - -
B.3 Other non perferming assets 208 3 - - - - - - - -
B.4 Other performing assets T3.764 431 47 o - - - - - -
TOTAL 76.845 1.584 51 o - = = = - -
TOTAL 311272015 3.667.755 343.822 14.011 4,061 213 8 520 & 3o 65
TOTAL 31112/2014 3.789.930 288.222 14.293  3.945 319 9 571 [l ) b 65
Northwest taly North east kaly ltaly - Center South kaly and lslands
0 w w w
. £ : £ : 2 : £ :
Exposures/Geographical areas @ o @ o ﬁ 2 g L
3 = E = 2 = z =
A, ON-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES . . . . . . . .
A.1. Bad loans . 1.432 . 6.606 . 190,810 . 251711 . §.060 . 9.996 . 1.368 . 1.396
A2 Unlikely to pay . 12.268 . 3.200 . 161.616 . 47.945 . 3327 . 384 . 108 . 78
A.3. Mon performing, past due EXPOSUTE! 2.038 s 449 . 17.327 s 3.630 . 2 . 1 s o N o
A4, Other performing expesures 28.0M 218 2184907 16.342 1.178.318 254 22580 18
TOTAL A 43.810 10.472 2.554 659 319.629 1.188.705 10.644 3.737 1.452
B. OFF-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES . - - -, -, -, -, -, -
B.1 Bad loans . -, -, 1.668 N aa0 . 54 . [ N -, -
B.2 Unlikely to pay . - -, 1.154 A 285 . -, - -, -
B.3 Other non performing assets . - - 206 . 3 . - - - -
B.4 Other performing assets 1.08% 2 71744 416 314 2 817 4
TOTAL 1.089 8 T4TTZ 1.564 368 8 617 4
TOTAL 31M2/2014 1.007 11 93.083 1.495 203 20 449 5

B.3 Distribution of on- and off-balance sheet l@posures to banks by geographical area (carrying
amounts)

TALY COUNTRIEES AMERICA ASLA REST OF WORLD
g £ £ £ g
I = @ z @ z @ = n =
Exposures/Geographical areas a = a = g 3 g 7 E 2
= o = o = o = o = =
= o o o o o o o o o
@ g @ & @ g | B | @ ® ]
g2 B 2 b = s | E | ® = i
L) = ) = ) = ) = L) =
A. ON-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES
A1, Bad leans - - - - - - - - - -
A2 Unlikely to pay - - - - - - - - - -
A3, Non performing, past due exposure - - - - - - - - - -
A4 Other performing exposures 59.309 - 4518 - 478 - - - 70 -
TOTAL A 59.309 - 4918 - 478 - - - 7o -
B. OFF-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES - - - - - - - - - -
B.1 Bad lnans - - - - - - - - - -
B.2 Unlikely to pay - - - - - - - - - -
B.3 Other non performing assets - - - - - - - - - -
B.4 Other performing assets 3.583 - 139 - - - - - - -
TOTAL 3.583 - 139 - = s = = - -
TOTAL 311212015 62.892 - 5.057 - 479 - - - 70 -
TOTAL 311212014 171.915 - 16.646 - 3486 - - - 243 -
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TALY NORTHWEST TALY NORTHEST ITALY CENTER TALY SOUTH AND ISLANDS

w w w w
. e : e : e : e :
Exposures/Geographical areas § 9 § 2 § ki § E
: = - : El s E
A. ON-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES
A.1. Bad loans
A2 Unlikely to pay
A3 Nen performing, past due exposures
A4 Other performing exposures 47.845 - 548 - 10.635 - 279
TOTAL A 47.845 - 549 - 10.635 - 279
B. OFF-BALANCE-SHEET EXPOSURES
B.1 Bad leans
B.2 Unlikely to pay
B.3 Other non performing assets
B.4 Other performing assets 9 - 232 - 3.342
TOTALB 9 - 232 - 3.342
TOTAL 311272015 47.855 - 781 - 13.977 - 279
TOTAL 311272014 13 - 223 - 3.342

B.4 Large exposures

In accordance with the Bank of Italy's instructices forth in the letter dated 28 February 2014 ,aimount

of “risk positions” that qualify as “large exposatas disclosed on the basis of both carrying an®amd
weighted value. In particular, as provided for iagglation EU No 575/2013, and as transposed iy byl
Bank of Italy circulars 154 and 286, the valuehaf €xposure is presented in the financial statesnesiereas
the weighted value is taken as the value of thesx after applying credit risk mitigation and éxemptions
pursuant to Article 400 of the CRR.

The disclosure drafted in accordance with the naseB3 regulations, in effect since 1 January 2iithcates
exposures in excess of the 10% of eligible capitalbutable to exposures to the Italian governnwng
1,073,485 thousand and exposures to Cassa Compmresaz Garanzia of € 795,132 thousand, with the

remainder attributable to exposures to financiainterparties.
31112/2015 3111212014

Amount - Book value 1.935.530 1.233.018
Amount - Weighted value 66.912 137.136
Number 3 [

C. SECURITISATIONS
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
Securitisation is undertaken with the aim of insieg the liquidity of assets and expanding the pafol
financial instruments eligible for refinancing opons with the European Central Bank, or otherwisieed
for use as collateral in funding transactions wistitutional and market counterparties. In purséinedium-
/long-term funding needs, such transactions magthectured through the purchase of securities g th
parties, resulting in immediate liquid funding. the reporting date, the following securitisaticanigactions
were ongoing:

v Civitas Spv Srl - RMBS;

v Civitas Spv Srl — SME.
The transactions were undertake in accordancelwith130/1999.
During the year, the multi-originator securitisationdertaken in May 2009 through the vehicle Quaalri
Finance S.r.I. was unwound early through:

a) the repurchase of the residual securitised loan8dnyca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A, Credito

Valtellinese S.C. and Credito Siciliano S.p.A;

b) the early redemption of the securities;

c) the termination of the securitisation contracts.
The quantitative information presented in this isectefers solely to the transaction Civitas Spv~-3RMBS,
inasmuch as the other transaction, Civitas Spv-SME, has the characteristics of a "self-secatitis’",
meaning that the originating bank subscribed fertttal liabilities issued by the vehicle at thadiof issue.



With respect to Civitas Spv Srl — RMBS, it shoulsioabe noted that in January 2015 the Bank impléeten
a restructuring process, which was completed thra@rgadditional sale of residential mortgage lcams$ an
increase in the securities issued by the vehicle.

Main information

Date of transaction February 2012
Special purpose entities Civitas Spv Srl - RMBS
Subject matter of the transaction Performing residential mortgages
Banks/ Originator groups Banca Popolare di Cividale Group
Original aggregate amount of transferred loans and receivables
of Banca Popolare di Cividale Group 383 min
RMBS Restructuring 246 min
Original aggregate amount of transferred loans and receivables
of Banca Popolare di Cividale 629 min
Securities issued and subscribed by Banca Popolare di Cividale 429 min
of which senior securities a 307 min
of which junior securities b 122 min
Rating of senior securities AA+Standard&poor's - A1 Moody's
Overall residual notional amount of the securities as at 31/12/2015 315 min
Residual values of loans and receivables as at 31/12/2015 439 min
Rating of senior securities AA Standard&poor's - A2 Moody's

Objectives, strategies and process® main aim pursued with the two transaction®isnsure balanced
structural management of the Bank's liquidity giturg in the context of its company strategy, whics
always been closely focused on this aspect. Th&'8amle, in addition to that of originator of ttransactions
and underlying loans, is also that of servicer oesjble for all activities relating to relationshivith the
borrowers, including periodic collection of instants.

Internal measurement systentsedit risk relating to assets sold in securiitigais retained by the Bank;
accordingly, internal risk measurement and corgystems are applied in an entirely consistent matmne
both securitised and non-securitised assets.

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

On 19 January 2015 the contractual documentatiersigaed for the restructuring of Civitas Spv SRMBS,
initially finalised in March 2012, involving: (i)hie sale without recourse of an additional portfadio
performing loans with a nominal value of € 245,884, and (ii) increases of € 214 million and € 34lion,
respectively, in the pre-existing senior and junsercurities issued in the context of the secutitiva
undertaken in 2012.

C.1 Exposures deriving from the main "own" secsatfion transactions, broken down by type of seicedt

asset and type of exposure
OMN-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES GUARANTEES ISSUED CREDIT LINES
Senior Mezzanine Junior Senior Mezzanine| Junior Senior Mezzanine Junior

Type of securitised asset! Exposure

Adjustirecoveries
Adjustirecoveries
Adjustirecoveries
Adjustirecoveries
Adjustirecoveries
Adjustirecoveries
Adjustirecoveries
Adjustirecoveries
Adjustirecoveries

Bookwalue
Bookwalue
Book walue
Eookwalue
Book walue
Book walue
Bookwalue
Bookwalue
Bookwalue

A. Fully derecognised

B. Partly derecognised

C. Not derecognised

C.1 Civitas Spv Srl

Securities issued 192.497 122.300

With respect to the Civitas Spv Srl - RMBS secsition, the Bank holds all of the junior securitwbereas
the senior securities were partly sold and areectiy held by institutional investors.

The amounts indicated in the table refer to theevalf the junior and senior securities held byBhek that
would have been presented among assets and iegbilit the balance sheet but are not included shee
have been eliminated in application of IAS 39.

C.2 Exposures deriving from the main "third-parggturitisation transactions broken down by type of =
securitised asset and type of exposures o

There is no exposure of this kind for transactimmsvhich the Bank acts as originator. (o)
I
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C.3 Securitisation vehicles

Assets Liabilities
SECURITISATION/ REGISTERED OFFICE CONSOLIDATION — - . -
SPECIAL PURPOSE VEHICLE Loans  |Debt securities Other Senior Mezzanine Junior
Civitas Spv 5rl Conegliano Veneto (TV) Mot Consolidated 234604 20.007 306.600 122.300

C.4 Unconsolidated securitisation vehicles
The Bank does not hold interests in unconsolidatedtured entities.

C.5 Servicing activity - own securitisations: catiens of securitised loans and redemptions of Sies!
issued by the securitisation vehicle
Not applicable. Neither of the transactions enthilerecognition of the portfolio of transferredrisa

D. STRUCTURED ENTITIES NOT CONSOLIDATED FOR ACCOUNT ING PURPOSES (OTHER
THAN SECURITISATION VEHICLES)
This item is not applicable to the financial statents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

E. TRANSFERS
A. Financial assets sold but not fully derecognised
E.1. - Financial assets sold but not derecognisedrying amount and full amount

Financial assets held | Financial assets Financial assets Financial assets Due from banks Loans to customers Total
for trading measured at fair available for sale held to maturity
value
A B C A B C A B C A B C A B C A B C 3112115 3111214
A.Cash asseets - - - - - - 727.352 - 22250 - - - - - - - 749.601 107.734
1. Debt securities - - - - 727.3582 - 22280 - - - - - - - 749.601 107.724
2. Equities - - - - x X X X x X X x X
3. ucls - - - - X X X X X X X X X
4. Loans - - - - - - - - - - 455283 - 495383
B. Derivatives - - X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
Total 31/112/2015 - 727.352 - - 22.250 - - - 495883 - - 1.245.485 X
of which impaired - - - - - - - - - 9.940 - 9.940 X
Total 31122014 54.511 53.223 X 107.734
of which impaired - - - - - - - - - - X

A = financial assets sold but fully recognised (garg amounts). B = financial assets sold but parécognised (carrying amounts). C = financial
assets sold partially recognised (full amount).

E.2 - Financial liabilities associated with finaatiassets sold but not derecognised: carrying ansun

Financial Financial Financial Financial
a:;ii: ii'; meis:l??d at av;TasbeI;sfor if)s;tist: r?l: Due from banks ct:ati:rig:s Total
fair value sale

1. Deposits from customers - - 727.583 23748 - 191.951 943.307
a) relating to fully recognized aszsets - - 727.583 23748 - 191.951 943.307
b} relating to partially recognized azsets - - - - - - -
2. Deposits from Banks - - - - - - -
a) relating to fully recognized azsets - - - - - - -
b} relating to partialty recognised assets - - - - - - -

Total 31M12/2015 - T27.595 23.745 - 191.961 943.307

Total 31M12/2014 - 54,452 BFATT - 111.659

E.3 — Sales with liabilities subject to recoveriespfor the assets sold: fair value
This item is not applicable to the financial statents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

B. Financial assets sold and fully derecognised witrecognition of continuing involvement
This item is not applicable to the financial sta¢gens of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

F. CREDIT RISK MEASUREMENT MODELS
Please refer to the qualitative disclosures onitcrist for further information.

SECTION 2 - MARKET RISKS
The Bank’s investment policy is inspired by thelgafdimiting market risk in its various forms (itest-rate
risk, price risk and exchange-rate risk).



2.1 INTEREST RATE RISK AND PRICE RISK — SUPERVISORY TRADING BOOK
The trading book, as defined in supervisory repgrtules, includes financial instruments subjeatapital
requirements for market risks.

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

A. General aspects

The trading book is extremely limited in amount.eTBank does not have positions in structured credit
products or derivative contracts. Likewise, tharetaes whatsoever to special-purpose entities @iffosures

to risky financial instruments.

B. Interest-rate and price-risk management processel measurement methods
The Bank’s investment policy is aimed at limitingarket risk for those components of such risk that i
knowingly intends to assume:

v' interest-rate risk;

v’ price risk; and

v'exchange-rate risk.
The Bank does not normally assume positions thailexommodity risk.
In accordance with the Bank's credit policies, amlion retail customers, financing activity is esisdy
aimed at protecting the overall financial balantée Bank. Investment and trading activity is cocted in
accordance with the guidelines established at #levant Bank levels and is carried out within a
comprehensive system of delegated powers and Epeaiés setting operational restrictions in terafs
instruments, amounts, investment markets, typasgairity and issuer, sector and rating.
The investment policies pursued resulted in thent&in of a significant amount of government boelitsible
as collateral for refinancing operations with tHeBs primarily as a liquidity reserve. Most of thecarities
concerned have been included among assets avdibalsiale. At the same time, the extremely limisex of
the portfolios classified among assets held falitrgmeans that the exposure to price risk assatiaith the
securities held in those portfolios is virtuallygtigible.

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

1. Regulatory trading book: distribution by residiuaaturity (repricing date) of on-balance sheetaficial
assets and liabilities and derivatives

Denominated in euro

mare than 3 more than & more than 1 more than 5

on demand upto 3 monthsto 8 monthsto1 wearto5  vearsto 10 more thar 10 UHSDECI.ﬁEd
manths YEars maturity
monthz year VYears vears

1. Assets - - 114 0 114 = - -
1.1 Debt securities - - - - - - - -
- with early redemption option - - - - - - - -

- other - - 114 0 114 - - -

1.2 Other assets - - - - - - - -
2. Liabilities = = = - - - - -
2.1 Repurchase agreements - - - - - - - -
2.2 Other liabilties - - - - - - - -
3. Derivatives - - (1) - 81 [0} = -
3.1 With undertying security - - - - 852 - - -
- Options - - - - - - - -

+ long positions - - - - - - - -

+ short positions - - - - - - - -

- Other derivatives - - - - a2 - - -

+ long positions - - - - 163 - - -

+ zhort positions - - - - 21 - - -

3.2 Without underlying security - - {1} - 1) (o} - -
- Options - - (1) - 1) (0} - -

+ long positions 38 76 578 99 578 453 59 -

+ zhort positions 38 78 578 59 578 453 599 -

- Other derivatives - - - - - - - -

+ long positions - 5.4593 2.066 1.274 2.066 2.308 1.274 -

+ short positions - 5.493 2.085 1.274 2.056 2.308 1.274 -



Denominated in other currencies

mare than 3 more than & more than 1 more than 5

upto 3 more than 10 unspecified
on demand Y monthsto 8 monthsto1 wearto5  vearsto 10 x .
manths YEars maturity
monthz year VYears vears
1. Assets [2)
1.1 Debt securities -
- with early redemption option -
- other 2)

1.2 Other assets
2. Liabilities
2.1 Repurchase agreements
2.2 Other liabilties
3. Derivatives
3.1 With undertying security
- Options
+ long positions
+ short positions
- Other derivatives
+ long positions
+ zhort positions
3.2 Without underlying security
- Options
+ long positions
+ zhort positions
- Other derivatives
+ long positions
+ short positions - - -

Among "other currencies," the main currency of daimation of the trading portfolio is the U.S. dolla
The portfolio's sensitivity to changes in intenedes is very limited (the modified duration of thend component
is 1.2).

2. Regulatory trading book: distribution of expassiin equities and equity indices by main countijstong

Listed
ltaly usa Other

Unlisted

A. Equity instruments
+ long positions iy |
+ short positions

B. Forward value equity trades
+ long positions
+ short positions

C. Other derivatives on equity
+ long positions
+ short positions

D. Derivatives on equity indexes
+ long positions

+ short positions

2.2 INTEREST-RATE RISK AND PRICE RISK — BANKING BOO K
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

The banking book consists entirely of financialesassand liabilities not included in the trading ko@he
largest item consists of loans to and amounts @banks and customers.

A. General aspects, interest rate risk and prisk ranagement processes and measurement methods

The process of managing the interest rate riskczssal with the banking book is governed by specifi
company regulations approved by the Board of Darscand subject to periodic review. Those Reguiatio
aim to set general rules for managing interestrigkefor the assets and liabilities included witklie banking
book, as defined by supervisory regulations forphgposes of determining pillar two capital requoiests
(namely, all liabilities and assets other than ¢hakocated to the regulatory trading book) anagassrecise
responsibilities and tasks to the various orgaimisat units of the Bank and companies involvedmprocess.

Management of interest rate risk aims to limitithpact of unfavourable changes in the rate curvieath the
economic value of capital and on the cash flowsged by line items. Containment of exposure ter@st
rate risk is pursued primarily by applying congigtparameters to assets and liabilities, and itiqoder by
indexing a large portion of its assets and liabsiton money-market parameters (typically the Eurrate),
as well as the general balancing of the duratidr@ssets and liabilities on low levels.

Measurement of the interest rate risk associateld the banking book is founded upon economic value,
defined as the present value of the expected shtfttavs generated by assets, liabilities and af&hce sheet
=P0SItiONS. In particular, exposure to the interast risk associated with the banking book is nowed for the



purposes of determining the associated capitalrptisn on the basis of the Bank of Italy’s regutgtmodel,
applied at both a separate and consolidated level.

Exposure to interest-rate risk is calculated bysudag the change in the economic value of the ingridook
resulting from hypothetical instantaneous shifthiminterest rate maturity curve. The shift inititerest rate
structure is quantified in two distinct situations:

v in ordinary conditions, reference is made to theuah changes for each node of the interest rate
structure recorded over an observation periodxoyears, alternatively considering the 1st peréenti
(downward shift) and 99th percentile (upwards $héihd

v in a stress scenario, reference is made to: ajadiglashift in the interest rate structure of H)2fasis
points; b) the flattening of the interest rate migicurve (in event of a positively inclined raterve,
an increase in short-term rates and a decreasedium-/long-term rates, c) the steepening of the
interest rate maturity curve (in the event of afpasinclined rate curve, a decrease in short-teatas
and an increase in medium-/long-term rates).

The changes are then normalised in relation to fowds.

B. Fair-value hedging
Interest-rate risk hedging activity through OTCidative financial instruments was entirely discoatd in
December 2012 and January 2013. Since then, nortgederivative contracts have been entered into.

C. Cash-flow hedging
No cash-flow hedges have been undertaken anddher® open cash-flow hedges.

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

1. Banking book: distribution by residual duratifme-pricing date) of financial assets and liab#it
Denominated in euro

more than 3
on demand up to 3 months months to &
months

more than & more than 1 more than S more than 10 unspecified
months to 1 year yearto 5 years years years maturity

1. Assets
1.1 Debt securities. - 168.211 473.955 94.196 551.928 - -
- with early redemption option - - - - - - -
- other - 168.211 473.955 94.196 551.928 - -
1.2 Loans to banks 28724 5.408 - - 2.081 2.081 -
1.3 Loans to customers 421.024 1.556.372 340.973 75411 182.223 50.515 54882
- current acct. 320.389% 38.150 7.013 18.722 24935 - 470
- other loans 100634 1.518.222 333.960 50.689 157.288 50.
- with early repayment option - - -
- other 100534 1.518.222 333.960 50.689 157.288 50.
2. Liabilities
2.1 Due to customers 1.582.337 956.236 58.433 81.717 130.670 -
- current acct. 1.520.692 86.653 29.876 37182 130.670 -
- other payables - - - - - -
- with early repayment option - - - - - -
- other 61.645 869.583 28.557 54.565 - -
2.2 Due to banks 5.415 325.679 18.562 2932 25.843 26.665
- current acct. 2.079% - - -
- other payables 4336 325.679 18.562 2932 25.843 26.665
2.3 Debt securities 24,819 152.893 49.268 52.025 1858.720 -
- with early redemption option - - a0 - -
- other 24,815 152.853 45235 62.028 186.720
2.4 Other liabilties - - - -
- with early redemption option
- other
3. Financial derivatives
3.1 With underlying security
- Options.
+ long positions
+short positions
- Other derivatives
+ long positions
+ short positions
3.2 Without underhying security
- Options
+ long positions
+short positions
- Other derivatives
+ long positions
+ short positions
4. Other operations
+ long positions 15 1
+ short positions 2750

5
5

[}
o

L T T T T T T T T T T T T T T O o= S o= S B B B
[}
o

=
&

L T T T T T T T T T T T O I N |

2

[T T T T S R S T R S R S S I O
[ - T T T S R S S R S R R S I O R



Currency: other

on demand  up (03 months ::2'3;:2: :I_;rni;;ﬂtz? more than 1 more than 5 more than 10 unspecified
months e year to 5 years Vears YEears maturity
1. Assets
1.1 Debt securities - - 1.238
- with early redemption option - - -
- other - - 1.238
1.2 Loans to banks 1.134 - -
1.3 Loans to customers. 1 1.3 0
- current acct. 1 - 0
- other loans - 1.3
- with earty repayment option - -
- other - 1.331
2. Liabilities - -
2.1 Due to customers 27148 125 08
08

- current acct. 27148 125
- other payables - -
- with early repayment option
- other -
2.2 Due to banks a9

- current acct. 27

- other payables 81
2.3 Debt securities -
- with early redemption option
- other
Z.4 Other liabilties
- with early redemption option
- other
3. Financial derivatives
3.1 With underhying security
- Options
+long positions
+short positions
- Other derivatives
+ long positions
+short positions
3.2 Without underlying security
- Options
+long positions
+short positions
- Other derivatives
+ long positions
+short positions

2. Banking book: internal models and other serigjtianalysis methods

The capital requirement for interest-rate risk ba banking book is calculated by applying the sifieol
model indicated in Schedule C to Part One, TileChapter 1 of Bank of Italy Circular No. 285/2018
effect from 1 January 2014.

This calculation is performed by classifying fixeate assets and liabilities in accordance witrstipervisory
model into 14 time bands on the basis of theirdedilives and classifying floating-rate assets latallities
into the various time bands according to the datemegotiation of the interest rate. Within eaelmdh, asset
and liability positions are multiplied by weightitfigctors and then set off against one anotherltiegun a
net position. Exposure to interest-rate risk fog ffurpose of determining the capital requiremerthén
calculated by measuring the change in the valubetbanking book caused by hypothetical instantaneo
shifts in the interest rate maturity curve in arex@ of ordinary conditions. To that end, use &dm of the
annual changes for each node of the interest tatetsre recorded over an observation period ofysirs,
alternatively considering the 1st percentile (dowrahshift) and 99th percentile (upward shift).

On the basis of the application of the Bank ofylsategulatory model, the change in capital in borttiinary
and stress conditions was always found to be pesifihe internal capital for interest rate riskicakated
according to the procedure indicated by the superyiauthority, is therefore equal to zero. Theosxype is
consistent with an exposure for Banca Popolareidd@le S.C.p.A. below the limits established biemal
and regulatory provisions.

2.3 EXCHANGE-RATE RISK
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

Exposure to exchange-rate risk, determined usingthod founded upon supervisory regulations, ifigiete
in extent.

A. General aspects, exchange-rate risk managenmeatgses and measurement methods
Exchange-rate risk applies to transactions withazuers and banks. Operational management invobads r
time monitoring of the exposure in various currescisystematically hedging positions on the maaket
required to minimise the exposure to exchangerrsie



B. Exchange-rate risk hedging

All foreign currency positions generated by relasiavith Bank customers are handled together byysinal
open gaps (un-netted positions), which are typicékpt essentially at zero through market hedging

transactions.

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES

1. Distribution by currency of assets, liabilitiaad derivatives

Currencies

Canadian Swiss

US dollar Pound sterling “Yen dollar franc Other
A, Financial assets - 1.631 1.672 244 1 155
A1 Debt securities - - 1.238 - - -
A2 Equity securities - 1] - - - -
A.3 Loans to banks - 531 434 25 1 143
A4 Loans to customers - 1.100 0 215 - 12
A5 Other financial assets - - - - - -
B. Other assets - 174 187 146 8 79
'C. Financial liabilities - 24970 1.471 a02 113 114
C.1 Due to banks - 22 45 21 - 0
C.2 Due to customers - 24948 1425 781 113 114
C.3 Due to customers - - - - - -
C.4 Other financial liabilties - - - - - -
D. Other liabilities - - - - - -
E. Financial derivatives - - - - - -
- Options - - - - - -
+ Long positions - - - - - -
+ Short positions - - - - - -
- Other - - - - - -

+ Long positions - 266385 41 417 104 -

+ Short positions - 3.019 15 - - 534
Total assets - 25.490  1.900 506 113 234
Total liabilities - 27.938 1.4386 802 113 648
Difference (+i-) - 501 415 4 o (413)

2.4 DERIVATIVES
A. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

A.1 Regulatory trading portfolio: end-period notadramounts

JMM2/2015

INNM22014

QOver the Central

counter counterparties

Over the
counter

Central
counterparties

1. Debt securities and interest rates -
a) Optiens. 19.985
by Swaps 12,517
c) Forwards -
d} Futures -
e} Others -

2. Equities and stock indices -
a) Optiens. -
by Swaps -
c) Forwards -
d) Futures -
e} Others -

3. Foreign exchange rates and gold -
a) Options -
b}y Swaps -
c) Forwards 25658
d) Futures -
e} Others -

4. Commodities -

5. Other undertying assets -

23.439
13.420

TOTAL 58.170

rsu
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A.2 Banking book: end-period and average notiomabants
This item is not applicable to the financial statets of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

A.3 Financial derivatives: gross positive fair vald distribution by product
Positive Fair value
31212015 IMM2i2014

Owver the Central Over the Central
counter counterparties counter counterparties

A. Regulatory trading book - - - -
a) Options 31 - 33 -
b} Interest rate swaps 614 - 7is -
c) Crogs currency swaps - - - -
d} Equity swaps - - - -
e) Forwards 119 - 591 -
f) Futures - - - -
g) Others - - - -

B. Banking book - hedging - - - -
a) Options - - - -
b} Interest rate swaps - - - -
c) Crogs currency swaps - - - -
d} Equity swaps - - - -
&) Forwards - - - -
f) Futures - - - -
g) Others - - - -

C. Banking book - other derivatives - - - -
a) Options - - - -
b} Interest rate swaps - - - -
c) Crogs currency swaps - - - -
d) Equity swaps - - - -
&) Forwards - - - -
f) Futures - - - -
g) Others - - - -

Total TE4 - 1.358 -

A.4 Financial derivatives: gross negative fair vakd distribution by product

Hegative Fair value

IMM22015 JIMM22014
Over the e Over the (EEIE
counterpa counterpa
counter . counter -
riies rties
A. Regulatery trading book - - - -
a} Options k3 - 33 -
b} Interest rate swaps 632 - 756 -

c) Cross currency swaps - - - -
dj Equity swaps - - - -
&) Forwards 7 - 247 -
T} Futures - - - -
g} Others - - - -
B. Banking book - hedging - - - -
a) Options - - - -
b} Interest rate swaps - - - -
c}j Cross currency swaps - - - -
d} Equity swaps - - - -
&) Forwards - - - -
T} Futures - - - -
g} Others - - - -
C. Banking book - other derivatives - - - -
a) Options - - - -
b} Interest rate swaps - - - -
c}) Cross currency swaps - - - -
d) Equity swaps - - - -
e} Forwards - - - -
f) Futures - - - -
g} Others - - - -
Total T40 - 1.036 -




A.5 OTC financial derivatives - regulatory tradibgok: notional amounts, gross positive and negdtire
values by counterparty — contracts not based otingearrangements

Contracts not based on netting arrangements

Govemments

and Cerntral

Banks

1. Debt securities and interest rates
- notienal amount

- positive fair value

- negative fair value

- future exposure

2. Equities and stock indices

- notienal amount

- positive fair value

- negative fair value

- future exposure

3. Foreign exchange rates and gold
- notienal amount

- positive fair value

- negative fair value

- future exposure

4. Other values

- notienal amount

- positive fair value

- negative fair value

- future exposure

w E ]
= o w 2w =
E @5 g2 EE =
o = g5 g3 & s 2
3 5 2% | 25 | E§ | 53
[Vl [ua] e = L o Z O [a =]
7.380 16914 - - 9.015 -
7547 16251 - - 8.604 -
233 3 - - 380 -
- 632 - - 31 -
47 175 - - 21 -

- " 24463 " - F - " 1065 " 336

- 24283 - - 1.056 329

- 17 - - 0 2

- 63 - - & 5

- - - - 11 3

A.6 OTC financial derivatives - regulatory tradibgok: notional amounts, gross positive and negdtire
values by counterparty — contracts based on netimmgngements

EE o = =

_ EE £ = B B 2 e B -

Contracts based on netting arrangements EC 4, 3 . = 1% E = 25 L&

=

SBE | = - 5% | g€ | 58 |25

o " @ [ i e = £ 8 = 8 o8 w
1. Debt securities and interest rates

- notional amount - 3.824 38.2381 - - 3.504 -
- positive fair value - 233 155 - - 3&0 -
- negative fair value - - 691 - - 52 -

2. Equities and stock indices
- notional amount

- positive fair value

- negative fair value

3. Foreign exchange rates and gold
- notional amount

- positive fair value

- negative fair value

4. Other values

- notional amount

- positive fair value

- negative fair value

A.7 OTC financial derivatives - banking book
counterparty — contracts not based on netting agements

Not applicable.

: haibamounts, gross positive and negative fair valloye

A.8 OTC financial derivatives - banking book: nabamounts, gross positive and negative fair valog
counterparty — contracts based on netting arrangesie

Not applicable.

rat



A.9 Residual maturity of OTC financial derivativestional amounts
Between 1 and

Up to 1 year S Over 5 years Total
A, Regulatory trading book J0.197 8.291 19.682 58.ATO
A1 Financial derivatives on debt securities and interest rates 4528 8.2 19.682 32.502
4.2 Financial derivatives on eguities and stock indices - - - -
A3 Financial derivatives on foreign exchange rates and gold 25688 - - 25688
A4 Financial derivatives - other - - - -
B. Banking book
B.1 Financial derivatives on debt securities and interest rates - - - -
B.2 Financial derivatives on equities and stock indices - - - -
B.3 Financial derivatives on foreign exchange rates and gold - - - -
B.4 Financial derivatives - other - - - -
Total 31112/12015 30,197 8.201 19.682 53.170
Total 3111272014 33.674 10.593 21.904 66.176

B. CREDIT DERIVATIVES
This item is not applicable to the financial statets of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

C. CREDIT AND FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES
This item is not applicable to the financial statents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

SECTION 3 - LIQUIDITY RISK

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

A. General aspects, liquidity risk management pgsees and measurement methods

Liquidity risk is not attributable to specific itemmof the balance sheet; rather, it arises from ishes of
amount and/or date between cash inflows and outfipemerated by all assets, liabilities and off-bedssheet
items. It is thus a risk inherent in the Bank’s @p@ns and derives essentially from what is kn@srthe
“maturity transformation.”

"Liquidity risk" is defined as the risk that the awill be unable to discharge its payment obligiasi at
maturity (funding liquidity risk) or that there wibe limits on the liquidation of assets (markeguidity
risk). Liquidity risk also includes the risk that antity may be forced to discharge its paymenigakibns at
non-market costs, meaning that it may be forcdmbtr a high cost of funding or (in some cases, uwantly)
sustain capital losses when liquidating assets.

The process of containing exposure to liquiditk,riwhich aims to ensure the Bank’s solvency even in
especially acute situations of tension, is pringgpiirsued through a complex set of managementidesis
and organisational measures, the most significewhah are:

v constant monitoring of the balanced structure eéfand liability maturities, especially with redao
shorter-term assets and liabilities;

v diversification of sources of funding in terms e€hnical forms as well as counterparties and msurket
The Bank intends to maintain high retail fundingelein the form of both deposits and debt secwitie
distributed directly through the branch networkigipursuing the strategic goal of reducing deperyden
on market funds (interbank funding and issues igdrfor institutional investors);

v a portfolio of highly liquid assets eligible as ledéral for financing transactions or directly dispble
in situations of tensions, formed in part usingusiies resulting from the securitisation of thenRs
assets; and

v' the preparation of a Contingency Funding Plan.

Operational management of liquidity risk is thepassibility of the Finance Department, throughBmance
Service, in line with the funding policy and dineeis of a strategic nature laid down by the ALChich
meets with at least monthly frequency. This agtiviitvolves the use of appropriate tools for monitgrand
surveying operating profiles for liquidity risk.

Through the Operating and Financial Risks Offibe, Risk Management Service is responsible for strakc
aspects and stress analyses, as well as monitufrthg operational limits set by internal rules dimel RAF.
Assessment of liquidity risk exposure aims to eaan entity’s capacity to respond to an outfléwsuch
resources in the light of the maturity structureitsf on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Dityiis



monitored by determining the maturity ladder, whtlows the cumulative total cash balance during ec

the forecasting periods. This balance is the sunash inflows and outflows for each maturity bracke

Furthermore, in addition to the ordinary liquidgguation, the Bank conducts simulations of advetsess
scenarios caused by forms of tension in the fir@rsgistem generally or specific significant chanigethe
Bank’s financial aggregates. Moreover, the Banksthgency Funding Plan (CFP) defines and formally
establishes the organisational escalation procedasds and management mechanisms required tacptbée
company’s assets in situations of extreme, unferesepletion of liquidity through the preparatidrcosis

management strategies and fund-raising procedures.

The Bank also monitors the liquidity indicatorgjuidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Net Stable FundRagjo
(NSFR) on the basis of the reporting data peridigigroduced for supervisory purposes.

QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES
1. Distribution of financial assets and liabilitiby residual contractual maturity

Denominated in euro

On-balance-sheet assets
A1 Government securities
A2 Other debt securities
A4 Units in collective investment undertakings.
A5 Loans
- banks
- customers
On-balance-sheet liabilities
B.1 Deposits
- banks
- customers
B.2 Debt securities
B.3 Other liabilities
Off-balance-sheet transactions
C.1 Financial derivatives with exchange of capita
- leng positions.
- shert positions.
C.2 Financial derivatives without exchange of cap
- leng positions.
- shert positions.
C.3 Deposits and loans to be settled
- leng positions.
- shert positions.
C.4 Irrevocable commitments to lend funds
- leng positions.
- shert positions.
C.5 Financial guarantees given
C.5 Financial guarantees received
C.7 Credit derivatives with exchange of principal
- leng positions.
- shert positions.
C.2 Credit derivatives without exchange of princif
- leng positions.
- shoert positions.

on demand

16.066
403.294
21721
381.573
1.551.963
6414
1.545.545
33

36128

days

E-..';TE-
E-..';TE-
2210
2210
324
311.438
5603
1.783
3.820

more than 1 more than 7
dayto 7

days

11.462
11.462
13.812
13.812
23.285
367.374
11.454

1.441
10.013

more than
daysto 15 15daysto 1

manth

35
34.759
1
34.758
20848
20848
14.796
8.013
13.517
118
13.398

more than 1
month to 3

months

4.608
1.920
133.226
0
133.226
51.848
51.848
45487
182.301
486
32
174

months

8.486
206
100.588
1
100.587
30.683
30.683
12.860
41.673

year

225.086
3.226
169.658
1
169.657

35.239
35.239
71.785
82.854

9

w

more than 3 more than & more than 1

months to 8 monthsto 1 yearto 5

years

T23.542
2450
TE8.618
2.000
TET.818
1258782
1258782
302.426
273.583
270

180

80

More than 5

years

120.000
8.3868
1.138.514
2.000
1.138.514

T.240
104.754

196

Unspecified

rstt
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Denominated in other currencies

morethan 7 morethan 15 morethan1 morethan3 morethan&  more than 1
more than 1 More than 5

on demand day to 7 days days to 15 days to 1 month to 3 months to 6 months to 1 year to 5 =S Unspecified
days month months months year Vears
On-balance-sheet assets
A1 Government securities - - - 1238
A.Z Other debt securities
A4 Units in collective investment undertakings -
A5 Loans 1.135 - el 540 582
- banks 1.134 -
- customers 1 - pral 540 582
On-balance-sheet liabilities
B.1 Deposits. 27175 - - T2 54 108
- banks g -
- customers 27.143 - - 72 54 108
B.2 Debt securities -
B.2 Other liabilties 61
Off-balance-sheet transactions - - - -
C.1 Financial derivatives with exchange of capital - 5312 11.556 13.458 487
- long postions - 3502 10,104 13.367 175
- short positions - 1711 1.453 82 32

C.2 Financial derivatives without exchange of capita - - -
- long positions - - -
- short positions - - -
C.3 Deposits and loans to be settled - - -
- leng positions - - -
- short positions - - -
C.4 Irrevocable commitments to lend funds - - -
- leng posttions - - -
- short positions - - -
C.5 Financial guarantees given - - -
C.6 Financial guarantees received - - -
C.7 Credit derivatives with exchange of principal - - -
- long postions - - -
- short positions - - -
C.3 Credit derivatives without exchange of principal - - -
- long positions - - -

- short positions - - -

Securitisation

Within the framework of the various measures aimieenhancing coverage of exposure to liquidity, risk
Bank has undertaken securitisation transactionk thi¢ goal of increasing the liquidity of its assand
prudentially increasing its pool of financial ingtnents eligible for refinancing operations with thgropean
Central Bank, or otherwise suited for use as camiddtin funding transactions beyond the short teiith
institutional and market counterparties.

In accordance with these aims, the asset-backadtises issued by the vehicle companies incorpdrate
pursuant to Law 130/99 have been fully subscriledfér both the senior and junior tranches, byliheks
that in turn sold the underlying loans without nese (Banca Cividale S.p.A., subsequently incotgoranto
Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A)).

The following table provides an overview of thelg@csation transactions undertaken.

Main information

Date of transaction February 2012
Special purpose entities Civitas Spv Srl - RMBS
Subject matter of the transaction Performing residential mortgages
Banks/ Originator groups Banca Popolare di Cividale Group
Original aggregate amount of transferred loans and receivables
of Banca Popolare di Cividale Group 383 min
RMBS Restructuring 246 min
Original aggregate amount of transferred loans and receivables
of Banca Popolare di Cividale 629 min
Securities issued and subscribed by Banca Popolare di Cividale 429 min
of which senior securities a 307 min
of which junior securities b 122 min
Rating of senior securities AA+ Standard&poor's - A1 Moody's
Overall residual notional amount of the securities as at 31/12/2015 315 min
Residual values of loans and receivables as at 31/12/2015 499 min
Rating of senior securities AA Standard&poor's - A2 Moody's



Main information

Date of transaction July 2012
Special purpose entities Civitas Spv Srl - SME
Subject matter of the transaction commercial mortgages
Banks/ Originator groups Banca Popolare di Cividale Group
Original aggregate amount of transferred loans and receivables
of Banca Popolare di Cividale 410 min
Securities issued and subscribed by Banca Popolare di Cividale 418 min
of which senior securities a 273 min
of which junior securities b 145 min
Rating of senior securities A+ Standard&poor's - AL DERS
Owverall residual notional amount of the securities as at 31/12/2015 249 min
Residual values of loans and receivables as at 31/12/2015 250 min
Rating of senior securities A+ Standard&poor's - AL DBERS

The asset-backed securities currently in issue haga fully subscribed for by the originating bawkhout
any transfer of credit risk. Accordingly, since@ssally all of the risks and rewards associatetth the
transferred portfolio have been retained, the lammeerned have not been derecognised.

SECTION 4 - OPERATIONAL RISKS

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES

The definition adopted by the Bank, in line witlpswisory regulations, identifies operational réskthe risk
of loss resulting from inadequate or failed inténoi@cesses, people and systems, or from exteusgite
Such risks include losses resulting from fraud, &nmrror, business disruption, system unavailgbbiteach
of contract and natural disasters. Operational inskudes information technology risk but not stgt or
reputational risk. Operational risk managementigtis based on the following guiding principles:

v improving overall operational efficiency;

v' preventing the occurrence or reducing the likeltharf events that could potentially generate
operational losses through appropriate regulatorganisational, procedural and training actions;
attenuating the expected effects of such events;

v’ transferring risks that the Bank does not wishetain through insurance contracts.

The Bank adopts the basic method (BIA — Basic kigic Approach) specified by regulations to deteemin
prudential capital requirements.

Operational risk management is subject to sperifees and procedures that establish the rolespnsdilities

and duties of the various company bodies, functams units and specify the operational risk managm
process. A specific indicator for monitoring opevaal risk was identified as part of drawing up Risk
Appetite Framework.

Through the Operational and Financial Risks Offitee Risk Management Service is responsible for
measuring and assessing operational risk. The appradopted for managing operational risk takes a
combined, bottom-up view of the components idesdifby the prudential regulations for the advanced
measurement approaches:

v'internal operating loss data: the main componetterconstruction of an operational risk management
system;

v/ external operating loss data: given that not glesyof events indicated by international regulatiare
applicable to or of statistical significance fol aitermediaries, consortium databases have been
established at both an international and domestiel Ito contain reports of operating losses from
participants; in Italy, at the initiative of thealian Banking Association, the Italian Operatings&o
Database was established. The Bank participatesiDatabase, and the data contained in the Dsgaba
allow participants to monitor the performance oéi@ling losses within the Italian banking indudtyy
business line and sales channel, as well as taaarameters concerning probability distributjons
enjoy access to the aggregation of data by homogsngroup for benchmarking purposes and expand
the data included in their historical series.

Some types of operational risk are mitigated usipgropriate insurance contracts. In addition, taekBhas
implemented a business continuity plan that setgheuprinciples, establishes the objectives asdrilges the
procedures for managing all the corrective actfonseducing losses resulting from accidents oastisrs to
an acceptable level.



B. Legal risks

Appropriate provisions are recognised in accordamitie international accounting standards to accdant
financial risks associated with legal proceedingglving the Bank. The amount of such provisions is
estimated on the basis of multiple factors, pritgarelating to the expected outcome of the suit],an
particular, the probability of an unfavourable aute to the proceedings resulting in an adversenjieey for
the Bank, and on the basis of factors useful imtiiyegng the amount that the Bank might be requit@gay
the counterparty in the event of an adverse judgmen

For each position, the projected outcome of thie(gek of an adverse judgment) contemplates thellissues
at stake in the proceedings, assessed in thedigbase law, the evidence produced in the coursief
proceedings and the status of the trial, and, peapthe outcome of the proceedings of the firstiaince, past
experience and all other useful elements, includixgerts' opinions, that allow the foreseeable ldgveent
of the dispute to be taken adequately into account.

The amount due in the event of an adverse outcenegpressed in absolute terms and includes the valu
estimated on the basis of the status of the pracggdconsidering the amount requested by the egoatty,
the technical estimate prepared internally on #e#sbof accounting evidence and/or evidence braegight
during the trial and, in particular, the amountetineated by the court-appointed technical expehene
appointed, in addition to legal interest, calcudada the principal from the date of service ofititeoductory
document, and any expenses to be reimbursed mvthd of an adverse judgment.

Where it is not possible to determine a reliablémese (the claimant has not quantified its compéna
claim, or there are legal or factual uncertaintied would render any estimate unreliable), prowvisiare not
recognised until it is possible to predict the oate of the trial and arrive at a reliable estinwitéhe amount
of the loss, if any.

At 31 December 2015, the Bank was defendant inu88 seeking a total of € 8,021 thousand, for wiach
total expected loss of € 3,960 has been estimated.

Most suits involve claims for compensation duertatacism and bankruptcy claw-back, as well as indgm
claims for losses on investments in financial istents and other types of compensation claims (atadu

thousands of euro):
N° of

. Petitum Provision
disputes

Investment services 3 645 187
Dizputes concerning interestin

excess of the legal limit 10 764 222
Revocatory disputes 9 2.097 1.310
Other disputes 8 4 516 2241
Total 30 8.021 3.960

Disputes involving bond defaults

The insolvency of the Argentinean central and Igoslernments from 2001 to 2003, as well as of nggdian
companies such as Parmalat, Cirio and Giacomalligdred a series of disputes, including legaloscti
brought by customers who purchased these defabitrds. Banca di Cividale has always been sengitive
criteria of fairness and economy, avoiding futilesteful litigation and taking into account thentite in legal
interpretation that have emerged over time. Withis context, the Bank has frequently engagedtiteseent
negotiations in response to claims brought totimsndon or in parallel with judicial action. In 5@ cases,
given the special circumstances of the disputeBtrk has decided to pursue the matter in cougll icases,
however, based on an a priori analysis of the déspnd the type of bond involved, the Bank makes th
necessary provisions.

C. Information and communication technology (ICigkr

ICT risk is the risk of suffering economic losskarm to reputation or loss of market share duéeause of
information and communication (ICT) technology. Thealysis of information and communication
technology risk represents a tool aimed at ensuhiegffectiveness and efficiency of the protecthaasures
for ICT resources and is governed by the ICT furcs control policy, approved and aligned with the
applicable provisions of Bank of Italy Circular 28617 December 2013 in 2015. That document sedttheu
organisational, methodological and procedural stinecfor the process of analysing ICT risk and ldisthes
the IT Outsourcing liaison function, which it assgo the Head of Human Resources. It should bedrtbat

Banca Popolare di Cividale has decided to adofgt éwitsourced management of the ICT system andthais
—



the analysis of risk is conducted on a priorityibdy the supplier according to the policies impderted by
the supplier.

SECTION 5 - OTHER RISKS
In addition to the risks described above, the Bardkposed to the following other material risks.

Excessive financial leverage risk

Excessive financial leverage risk is defined bydential regulations as “the risk that a particyldigh level
of indebtedness with respect to equity may renkerbiank vulnerable, requiring the adoption of ative
measures to its industrial plan, including the sdlassets involving the recognition of losses tmatld also
entail impairment of the remaining assets.”

Excessive financial leverage risk affects the ettiof the financial statements, exposures reguftiom the
use of derivatives and off-balance sheet assetssaassumed in the conduct of core business.dbisely
correlated with planning and capital managemerwigct

Prudential regulations establish that banks anmadaitor the level and changes of their leveragmsata
regulatory parameter), and the risk associated iewerage, as part of their Internal Capital Adeyua
Assessment Process (ICAAP).

The process of managing leverage risk is defimetifarmalised in a specific Regulation, approvedty
Board of Directors, and risk appetite is monitogedrterly by the Risk Management Service in thaexdrof
the Risk Appetite Framework (RAF).

At 31 December 2015 the leverage indicator was eltbg minimum threshold established in supervisory
regulations.

Sovereign risk

Investment in Italian government securities, alnadisvf which are classified to the AFS portfolemtails the
exposure to the credit risk of the Italian Republithich, as for all other issuers, may manifeslitas the
form of decreased creditworthiness or, in the emérascenario, default. Exposure is regularly moadand
reported on to company bodies. The sovereign xpk®ure profile is assessed by also consideringtpact
of such risk on the value of the Bank's portfolim @wn funds.

Strategic risk

Strategic risk is defined as the current or prospecisk of a decrease in profits or capital awisirom changes
in the operating context or poor company decisithsinadequate implementation of decisions, arffitgent
reaction to changes in the competitive scenarigaoBure to strategic risk is not associated wittcigipe
operating activities, but rather the adequacy efdhcisions made and the efficacy of implementafidre
risk is particularly associated with the phasesgatérmining and implementing company strategiesessmted
by the formulation of the business plan, commeahning, budgeting, management control and mango
of the markets and competitive scenario, capitatation and capital management.

Title IV of Bank of Italy Circular 285 of 17 Decemb2013 provides indications of a general natureeming
corporate governance, establishes the frameworkhich to carry out the strategic planning procesd a
emphasises the strategic nature of the Internatr@lo8ystem and its necessary integration into rikle
objective system (the Risk Appetite Framework oFRAusiness model and strategic plan. On the lodsis
these principles and regulations, Banca Popolar€iddale drafted its Regulation concerning strateg
planning and strategic risk management.

Compliance risk

Compliance risk is the risk of incurring legal @inainistrative penalties, significant financial lesor damages
to reputation due to breaches of compulsory prousi(of laws or regulations) or self-imposed ryles.,
bylaws, codes of conduct, governance codes).

Under the new supervisory provisions concerning ititernal control system, the role of supervising
compliance has been extended to all rules and gupes concerning company activity, though withetiéit
levels of commitment for the traditional, directlpplicable areas and other specialist areas, sutdxation,
for which there are other forms of supervision aére the function is nonetheless tasked with assgthe
suitability of such supervision.

In 2014 the Compliance function launched variouslitaprocesses concerning forms of specialiséd
supervision, and specifically the adequacy of suipien and procedures aimed at preventing theafision-

compliance extended to the following areas:
I



tax law (bank side and customer side);

privacy;

workplace health and safety;

market abuse;

supervisory reporting; and

Legislative Decree No. 231/01.

Considering the extent of compliance risk, the miacyors that gave risk to it and its significampiications
for various company processes, the Bank has aléngh of exposure to this type of risk.

The Compliance Service also includes the Anti-Mobayndering function, which is responsible for tmi-
money laundering compliance activities providedifothe order of the supervisory authority of 10rbta
2011, in addition to providing support to the hedthe Anti-Money Laundering Service with the presef
reviewing suspect transaction reports.
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Money-laundering risk

Money-laundering risk is the risk of suffering cegsences in legal and reputational terms as atreful
possible involvement in illegal transactions asstmd with money-laundering or financing for tersomi In
order to measure and assess that risk, the monagdang risks inherent in the Bank’s operatiomatpdures
pertaining to the following processes have beenpadp

- adequate customer verification;

- dealings in cash and bearer securities;

- records in the Consolidated Computer Archive; and

- the reporting of suspicious transactions.

Given the objective significance of money-laundgriisk and the increasing complexity of the ledista
framework of reference and resulting obligatiohg, Bank has gradually enhanced its safeguardsnrs tef
rules, organisational measures, procedures, afiphsaand training.

Reputation risk

Reputation risk is defined as "the current or peasipe risk of a decline in operating result oritashould
customers, counterparties, shareholders of the,Bawéstors or supervisors take a negative vieth@Bank."
Due to its nature, this risk is not easily measleradowever, for management purposes, it may bgsutn
gualitative observation, assessment and mitiggifonesses. Consequently, management of this typekof
is based on a qualitative assessment aimed atidgebe necessary prevention, mitigation and mamamt
actions. In addition to company bodies, all orgatnsal units of both a business and operationppsu
nature are involved in the process of managingtegjoun risk, each to the extent of its competence.

The first and most fundamental safeguard agaipsttagion risk is the shared system of values, jpies and
rules of conduct on which to base behaviour comtoaall of the Bank’s internal stakeholders (empkse
directors, etc.). The system has been given exdlicm in a Code of Ethics. The task of supervising
compliance with the provisions of that Code is estied to the Legislative Decree 231/2001 SuperyiBoard
Control Committee. The internal rules and procesluzencerning reputational risk were drawn up and
approved by the Board of Directors as part of tbivities aimed at achieving compliance with thevne
supervisory provisions.

Reputation is constantly monitored, protected aenetbped, also in light of the recent events aiffigcthe
entire banking industry.

Residual risk

Residual risk is the risk that the recognised taphes for mitigating credit risk used by the bamé&ve less
effective than expected. For a more thorough dsonsof residual risk, refer to the technical smcti
concerning risk mitigation.

Related—party risk

Related-party risk is the risk that the proximifycertain parties to the Bank’s decision-makingtesimay
compromise the objectivity and impartiality of dgoins relating to the granting of loans and otterdactions
with such parties, with possible distortions of tlesource-allocation process, exposure of the Bank
inadequately measured or managed risks and pdtdatizages for depositors and shareholders.

In order to safeguard objective, impartial decisiaking and avoid distortions of the allocationqass, the
Bank has adopted rigorous procedures and striotés Ithan legally mandated, which are subjectetgutar
monitoring. There were no breaches of authorisdtmits or alert levels during the year.
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Property risk
This is the current or prospective risk of potdritiases due to fluctuations in the value of thappietary real-
estate portfolio, or to the reduction of the incogeaerated by that portfolio.
The Bank assumes property risk to a very limitedémfor investment purposes and to protect itditotaims.
Property, plant and equipment represent a verydifréhare of total assets. In particular, the ptgpportfolio
(land and buildings) owned by the Bank represemm®st all of its property, plant and equipment asd
primarily of a non-investment nature.
This risk is mitigated through management and rea@hce measures aimed at safeguarding the furlitfona
and value of the assets and is partially trandetineough insurance policies covering owned pragert
Management of real-estate assets is entrustee ttrilnctures of the Bank dedicated to this activity
Chapter F — SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Section 1 — Shareholders’ equity of the Parent Congmy
A. Qualitative disclosures
The capital policy adopted by Banca Popolare didaie S.C.p.A. is founded upon the following aptoes:
a) compliance with regulatory requirements (reguaapproach);
b) appropriate monitoring of risks associated wiinking operations (management approach); and
¢) support for company development projects (iatapproach).
These approaches correspond to appropriate defisibf capital, specific objectives and particalarporate
functions. From a regulatory point of view, theid#ion of capital is that set out in supervisoegulations
for banks. Ongoing compliance with minimum capieduirements, which are monitored on a regularshasi
and considered a constraint during planning, issaential precondition for operations.
From the point of view of risk management — on¢hefkey functions in banking — capital is considettee
main defence against possible unexpected lossesajed by a variety of risks (credit, market andragional
risks) that the Bank faces. The amount of capgabptimal if it is sufficient to absorb unexpectedses
estimated for a specific confidence interval, thgrguaranteeing the continuity of operations ovepecified
time period.
From the corporate perspective, capital is a giatector of production that enables the Bankuespe its
entrepreneurial vocation, while at the same timesg@rving financial stability. As a cooperative bavikh
strong local roots, the Bank implements its cagitdicy primarily through the gradual expansiortlod size
and geographical spread of its shareholders.

B. Quantitative disclosures
B.1 Shareholders’ equity: composition

3MM22015 322014 %

Share capital 50.913 50.913 0,00%
Share premium reserve 167.022 167.022 0,00%
Reserves 48274 42,8922 12,47%
- Retained earnings: 43274 42822 12.47%
a) legal reserve 19.788 18.208 3,02%
b} statutory reserve 27.501 22279 23,44%
c)treasury shares - - -
d) other 985 1.435 -31,40%

- other - - -
4. Equity instruments - - -
5. (Treasury shares) - - -
6. Valuation reserves: 23.308 11.126 109,45%
- Financial assets available for sale 23624 11.522  105,03%
- Property and equipment - - -
- Intangible assets - - -
- Hedges of foreign investments - - -
- Cash flow hedges - - -
- Foreign exchange differences - - -
- Men current assets held for sale - - -
- Actuarial gains (losses) on defined benefit plans (315) (396} 20,36%
- Share of valuation reserves connected with investments carried at equity - - -
- Legalty-required revaluations - - -
7. Net income (loss) 24.053 5.803 314,49%
Total 313.570 277.766 12,88%
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B.2 Valuation reserves for financial assets avdéddbr sale: composition

311122015 3122014

Positive rezerve Negative reserve FIELTE LETECTE

reserve reserve
1. Debt securities 13.541 - 13.805 -
2. Equities 10.144 - - {1.015)
3. Quotas of UCI - (B62) - (1.068)

4. Loanz - - - -
Total 23.685 (62) 13,605 (2.083)

B.3 Valuation reserves for financial assets avdédbr sale: annual changes

Cluotas of

Debts securities  Equities el Loans
1. Opening balance 13.605 {1.015) {1.063)
2. Positive fair value differences 13.777 11.524 1.567
2.1. Fair value increases 7.252 10.796 - -
2.2 Reversalto the income statement of negative reserves - - - -
- impairment - 1.028 1.527 -
- disposal 19 - - -
2.3 Other changes 6.506 - 40 -
3. MNegative fair value differences 13.841 665 561
3.1 Fair value decreases 2159 - 10 -
3.2 Impairment losses - - - -
3.3 Reverzal to the income statement of positive reserves:
disposal 5.166 - 33 -
3.4 Other changes 5.475 665 518 -
4. Closing balance 13.541 10.144 (62)

B.4 Valuation reserves related to defined-benddihg annual changes
Valuation reserves related to actuarial gains €és)sen defined-benefit plans amounted to -€ 316gaod, up
from -€ 396 thousand compared to the end of 2014.

Section 2 — Own funds and regulatory ratios

Scope of application of regulations
The new prudential provisions governing banks awdstment companies laid down in Regulation (EU) No
575/2013 (Capital Requirements Regulation, CRR) &nickctive 2013/36/EU (Capital Requirements
Directive, CRD V), approved on 26 June 2013, tpmsing into the European Union the standards esitegol
by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (Besel 3 Framework"), entered into effect on 1 dapu
2014. As part of an overall process of revising sintplifying its prudential provisions for bankkgetBank of
Italy published Circular 285, Prudential Superws@rovisions for Banks, which replaced the previous
Circular 263 of 27 December 2006 almost entiretgplementing the new Community provisions and
introducing supervisory rules concerning unharmexhisspects at the EU level, and Circular 286, unttns
for the Preparation of Prudential Reports for Baaksl Securities Brokerage Firms, which replaces the
previous Circular 155 and the update to Circula¥ itStheir entirety.
Financial institutions must observe the followinmpmmum ratio requirements with effect from 1 Jary2014:
v a CET1 ratio of 4.5%;
v tier 1 ratio of 6%;
v a total capital ratio of 8%.
In addition to these binding minimum levels accogdito the Regulation, there is also the minimum
requirement of 0.9% determined at the conclusionhef periodic prudential assessment process (SREP)
announced on 23/12/2015, raising the minimum leteels

v a CET1 ratio of 5.4%;

v' a Tier 1 ratio of 6.9%;

v' a Total Capital ratio of 8.9%.
The following CET1 buffers apply to the above biglrequirements:

v with effect from 1 January 2014, a capital consgownabuffer of 2.5%;

v with effect from 2016, the countercyclical buffarperiods of excess credit growth and the systemic

risk buffer for global systemically important irtstions or other systemically important institutson
(G-Sll or O-SlI) (equal to zero for the first quarof 2016).



The sum of the regulatory requirements and additiboffers result in a minimum capital level foetBank
of:

v' a CET1 ratio of 7.0%;

v' a Tier 1 ratio of 8.5%;

v’ a Total Capital ratio of 10.5%.
Failure to satisfy the minimum requirements (corebinequirements) results in limitations on therthstion
of profits and the need to adopt a capital consenvglan.
At 31 December 2015, own funds have been calculagegapplying the new regulations mentioned above.
However, those regulations provide for transitioméés, generally until 2017, under which the negulatory
framework is to be applied gradually, through asronal period in which certain elements are a¢itie or
eligible for inclusion in common equity tier 1 c&diin a certain percentage only, whereas the wasid
percentage not applicable is included in or dedlirtan additional tier 1 capital or tier 2 capitat,considered
among risk-weighted assets. This transitional sysitso applies to certain subordinated instruméraisdo
not satisfy the requirements established by the reyulatory provisions, aimed at gradually exclgdin
instruments no longer eligible from own funds (oagreriod of eight years).
In accordance with the supervisory instructions,dkierall amount and compaosition of own funds diffem
the amount and composition of statutory sharehsla=uity. The following is a brief account of th&in
differences:

v" own funds include only the share of profit, neabfexpenses and foreseeable dividends; befordiraac
a formal decision to confirm the final profit orsl® result for the year for the entity for the yeér
reference, banks may only include their annualitgrad their common equity tier 1 capital if thegve
obtained prior permission from the competent altyhdBuch permission requires that profits be vedif
by the independent persons responsible for audiiegccounts;

v goodwill is deducted from common equity tier 1 ¢apiGoodwill also includes the "positive equity
differences" incorporated in the carrying amountsequity investments in companies subject to
significant influence and measured according toetipgity method, other intangible assets and thet@ss
of defined-benefit pension funds included in thétgs balance sheet, net of the associated defé¢ave
liabilities;

v unrealised gains or losses relating to exposuresetdral governments classified as financial assets
available for sale are not included in any elenoémmwn funds. The neutralisation option providedifo
Article 467 of the CRR has also been confirmed ha@er 14 of the new Circular 285 concerning
transitional provisions governing own funds, and treatment will apply until the Commission adopts
regulation approving the international financigloging standard replacing IAS 39;

v' At 31 December 2015 the AFS reserve relating tarstées issued by the central governments of
European Union Member States fully neutralisegytiias of € 12.6 million (compared to € 13.1 million
at 31 December 2014).

v’ significant investments in a financial sector gntibe net tax assets deriving from temporary diffiees
and dependent on future profitability, and non-Bigant investments in financial sector entitie® ar
deducted from the elements of CET1 if they excestlain CET1 levels provided for in Regulation
575/2013;

v tier 2 capital includes subordinated loans, whialstthave an original term to maturity of at leaset f
years and may only be redeemed or repaid earlyibtiig entity requests the prior authorisatiorthed
competent authority, and no earlier than five yéams the date of issuance, unless the bank repkhee
instruments in question with other own funds instents of equal or greater quality, under sustaaabl
conditions in terms of the entity's income-geneatapacity, and the bank demonstrates to the dempe
authority's full satisfaction that the minimum dapirequirements imposed by the regulations haes be
observed.

2.1 Own funds
A. Qualitative disclosures
The components of own funds are:
v/ common equity tier 1 (CET1) capital,
v additional tier 1 (AT1) capital; and
v’ tier 2 (T2) capital.
CET1 and AT1 make up total tier 1 capital, whidiong with tier 2 capital, comprises total own funds



1. Common equity tier 1 (CET1) capital
Total common equity tier 1 (CET1) capital, calcathtonsidering the net income allocated to reseav84
December 2015, amounted to € 279,435 thousandcHdreges in CET1 capital compared to 31/12/2014 may
be attributed to the significant increase in cdpéaerves resulting from the sale of the intere$€BPI and
the concurrent decrease of deductions on insigmifi;wvestments in the financial sector, which liellow the
deduction threshold.
The main CET1 instruments include:

v capital instruments of € 50,913 thousand;

v/ own common equity capital instruments, or commauitggnstruments for which the Bank has a real
purchase obligation, of € 1,387 thousand;
share premium reserves of € 167,021 thousand,
the net income for the year allocated to reser¥€sl®,712 thousand;
other reserves of € 48,274 thousand,;
other comprehensive income attributable to reseoresecurities available for sale of € 23,623
thousand.
deductions include goodwill, net of the associdtedliabilities, of € 7,929 thousand, other intdigiassets
of € 231 and assets of defined-benefit pensiondunid€ 315 thousand. The significant investments in
Common Equity Tier 1 instruments of financial secémtities and tax assets derived from temporary
differences and dependent on future profitabilitg dar below the established limits. Non-significan
investments in the Common Equity Tier 1 instrumerfitnancial sector entities do not exceed theudéble
limit.
With respect to the transitional rules, the itengirestion includes the following adjustments:

v' the negative filter relating to unrealised gainsagailable-for-sale securities of € 6,622 thousand;

v' the negative filter relating to the neutralisatmfithe AFS reserve on securities issued by theralent

governments of European Union Member States of, 8862housand;
v’ the negative filter for other filters and deductmf € 37 thousand.

2. Additional tier 1 (AT1) capital
At 31 December 2015, Banca Popolare di Cividale5AC had not issued any AT1 instruments.
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3. Tier 2 (T2) capital

Considering the effects of the transitional regifieer 2 capital amounted to € 34,792 thousand, ltkv
€ 31,462 was represented by eligible subordinaddxlities and the remainder by positive reservesA&S
securities other than government securities.

In particular, it should be remarked that:

v the notional amortisation of the loans was caledataily, in accordance with the provisions of
Regulation EU No 575/2013;

v the subordinated instruments with amortisation s#sueligible for inclusion in accordance with the
transitional rules issued by Banca Popolare didaie S.C.p.A. are subject to the grandfathering
clause for capital instruments that do not constittiate aid, according to which such instrumergs a
70% eligible for inclusion in own funds in 2015sudting in the amount of € 13,824 thousand.

With respect to the transitional rules, the itengurestion includes the following adjustments:

v’ the positive filter relating to unrealised gainsamailable-for-sale securities of € 3,330 thousand;
With specific regard to this component of regulatoapital, the following is the list of the subardied
liabilities issued by Banca Popolare di Cividale amcluded in tier 2 capital.

Identification Early redemption Subject to Original amount  Contribution to

Interest rate i
==L Number Serzadle  Ephyias as of SIETE] grandfathering in currency regulatory capital

Banca Popolare di Cividale Scpa moo04271058 Floating rate euribor 3m + 0,45% 131082007 13082017 130082013 Euro 5 40.000.000 5.062.432
Banca Popolare di Cividale Scpa mooo43s2917 Floating rate euribor 3m + 0,35% 07/04/2008 07/04/2018 07/04/2014 Euro S 15.000.000 4.761.227

Banca Popolare di Cividale Scpa To005072852 Fixed rate  2,75% 181202014 1912/2019 Euro N 22.350.000 17 735570
Total 77.350.000 31.559.228




B. Quantitative disclosures

3MM22015 3122014 %

A, Tier 1 capital before the application of prudential fiters J07.157 274.411 11,9%
B. Tier 1 capital prudential fitters: 0,0%

- positive AS/FRS prudential fiters (+) - - -

- negative IAS/IFRS prudential filters (-) 307.157 274.411 11,9%
C. Tier 1 capital after prudential filters (A+B) (B8.478) (37.383) -77,3%
D. Elements to deduct from Tier 1 capital (19.248) (4.55T7) 322,3%
E. Total Tier 1 capital (C-D) 279.435 232.491 20,2%
F. Tier 2 capital before the application of prudential filters
. Tier 2 capital prudential filters

G.1 Positive IAS/IFRS prudential filters (+) - - -

G.2 Negative IAS/IFRS prudential filters (-) - - -
H. Tier 2 capital before deductions [G+F) - - -
l. Elements to deduct from Tier 2 capital 31.559 25.219 25,1%
L. Total Tier 2 capital (H-1} 13.824 24504 -43,8%
M. Elements to deduct from Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital (97) (2.321) -95,8%
N. Regulatory capital (E+L-M) 3.330 (8858 -138,5%
0. Tier 3 capital 34792 14.240 144,3%
P. Regulatory capital included Tier 3 (N+0) 314.227 246.731 27 4%

2.2 Capital adequacy
A. Qualitative disclosures

As at 31/12/2015, the ratio of common equity tieapital to risk-weighted assets stood at 13.0%rdtio of tier
1 capital to risk-weighted assets at 13.0% andétie of own funds to risk-weighted at 14.6%. Be#tues comply
with the limits established by the supervisory tagians cited in the previous section.
In determining its capital requirements for credk, the Bank uses the standardised approach. mateod
involves separating exposures into different clagpertfolios) according to the nature of the ceuparty or the
technical characteristics of the transaction ormta@ner in which it is carried out and the appiarabf different

risk weights to each portfolio.

For the Bank, the most significant segments afelksvs: exposures to or guaranteed by central gowents and
central banks, exposures to or guaranteed by kas®Eee exposures guaranteed by real properties edaidl r
exposures. In this regard, it should be noted ifhatccordance with Regulation (EU) No 575/2013fedént
weighting coefficients are applied to each clasexgosures in relation to the various levels & rifentified in

supervisory regulations.

The new regulations for the prudential supervisibbanks permit financial institutions to determthe weighting
coefficients for calculating the capital requiremngar credit risk under the standardised approaset on credit
assessments by third-party rating agencies (Extéhealit Assessment Institutions or ECAIS) recogdify the

Bank of Italy. For the Bank, the agency DBRS wasdusr the following portfolios with effect from A)2013:
v'exposures to or guaranteed by central governmedtbanks;
v'exposures to or guaranteed by international orgtarss;
v/ exposures to or guaranteed by multilateral devetsyirbanks.

To determine its capital requirement for market,rthe Bank has elected to use the standardisetagp while

the basic indicator approach has been used foatipeal risk.

rGZI
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B. Quantitative disclosures

Unweighted amounts

Weighted amounts /

requirements

IMM215 IMM2M14 IMM2M1E IMM214
A. RISK ASSETS
A1 CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY RISK 5.543.084 4.945.886 1.965.342 2.788.930
1. Standard methodology 5.543.084 4945886 1.965.342 2.188.930
2. Methodology based con internal ratings
2.1 Base
2.2 Advanced

3. Securitisations
B. CAPITAL REQUIREMENT & - -
B.1 CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY RISK 187.227 150.696
B.2 CREDIT VALUATION ADJUSTMENT RISK 72 95
B.3 SETTLEMENT RISK - -
B.4 MARKET RISK G4 112

1. Standard methodology 54 112

2. Internal models - -

3. Concentration risk - -
B.5 OPERATIONAL RISK 14,658 11.754

1. Base methodology 14.668 11.754

2. Standard methedology - -

3. Advanced methodology - -
B.8 Other calculation elements - -
B.7 Total capital requirements 172.081 162 657
C. RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS AND CAPITAL RATIOS
C.1 Risk-weighted as=zets 2150785 2.033.207
C.2 Commen Equity Tier 1 / Risk-weighted assets (CET 1 capital ratio) 13,0% 11,4%
C.3 Tier 1 capital / Risk-weighted assets (Tier 1 capital ratio) 13,0% 11,4%
C.4 Total own funds / Risk weighted assets (Total capital ratio) 14,6% 12,1%

At 31 December 2015 risk-weighted assets amoutéd2,151 million, compared to € 2,033 million &t 3

December 2014.



Chapter G — BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

SECTION 1 — TRANSACTIONS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR

1.1 Business combinations

The year saw the conclusion of the corporate rensgtion and simplification project launched in 204ith

the merger of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.p.2o0 iNbrdestBanca S.p.A. and also involved the meofjer

Tabogan S.r.l. and Civileasing S.p.A. into Bancpdtare di Cividale S.C.p.A.

1. The merger with Tabogan S.r.1., finalised on 9 Ap@i15 with the execution of the merger agreemaas
authorised by the Bank of Italy on 15 December 28dd approved by the general meeting of Tabogan
S.r.l. on 6 March 2015 and by the Board of Dirextofr Banca Popolare di Cividale pursuant to Arto88
the Articles of Association on 18 March 2015; therger agreement entered into effect on 15 April6201

2. The merger with Civileasing S.p.A. was finalised Iih December 2015 with the execution of merger
agreement, was authorised by the Bank of Italy dvwodember 2015 and was approved by the general
meeting of Civileasing S.p.A. on 17 November 20t8 by the Board of Directors of Banca Popolare di
Cividale on that same date, pursuant to Art. 3hefArticles of Association. The agreement entéenéal
effect on 21 December 2015.

It was elected to backdate the effects of both evsrfpr accounting and tax purposes. The mergegani®s’

costs and revenues were consolidated into thediabstatements of Banca Popolare di Cividale ¢iffecl

January 2015. At the effective date of the traneast Banca Popolare di Cividale held a 100% irsteire

Civileasing S.p.A. and Tabogan S.r.l.

The transactions in question qualify as businestharations between entities under common conttahmed

and executed in accordance with a reorganisatiojeqr prepared by the Banca di Cividale S.C.p.A.

Accordingly, they are beyond the scope of applicatf IFRS 3Business Combinations

IAS 8 requires that in the absence of specific igions of IASs/IFRSs entities use their judgmerdapplying

an accounting standard that provides relevantabigiand prudent information and reflects the envoo

substance of the transactions, regardless of thgal form. In accordance with those provisions th

accounting criteria for the business combinationdestaken in the context of the Bank’'s reorgarisati
project, given that they do not have a signifidafiuence on the merged companies’ cash flows,govesl
the continuity of values of the acquiree in theudey's financial statements. In particular, théues of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed have lesmgmised on the basis of the values presentdekiaq14
consolidated financial statements.

Merger of Tabogan S.r.l. into Banca Popolare diidae S.C.p.A.

The agreement governing the merger of Tabogan ®tolBanca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. was ette
into on 9 April 2015. The transaction was undentakesimplified form pursuant to Art. 2505 of thallan
Civil Code, given that it involved the merger af@mpany whose capital was fully owned by Banca Ropo
di Cividale at the time of the merger. The mergeuited in a "merger deficit" for the surviving ignof € 4
thousand, recognised, with a negative sign, amBegérves" under item 160 of the balance sheetmEnger
entered into effect on 15 April 2015, following thegistration of the merger agreement with the cetenut
offices of the Companies Register.

Merger of Civileasing S.p.A. into Banca Popolar&dridale S.C.p.A.

The agreement governing the merger of CivileasimmAS into Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. was
entered into on 11 December 2015. The transactamuadertaken in simplified form pursuant to AB02

of the Italian Civil Code, given that it involvetld merger of a company whose capital was fully ame
Banca Popolare di Cividale at the time of the mergiee merger resulted in a "merger deficit" fa Hurviving
entity of € 451 thousand, recognised, with a negadign, among "Reserves" under item 160 of tharizal
sheet.

The merger entered into effect on 21 December 2016wing the registration of the merger agreemeitl

the competent offices of the Companies Register.



The following table sets out the balance sheeasins used in the transactions described above.

thousands of euro TABOGAN SRL CIVILEASING SPA TABOGAN SRL CIVILEASING SPA TABOGAN SRL CIVILEASING SPA
Assets Values at Values at Adj from Adj from
01/01/2015 01/01712015 merger merger Merger difference Merger difference
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - -
Financial assets held for trading - 18 - -
Due from banks - 1031 7 - 370
Loans to customers 1.215 301.176 -
.Propelrty, plant and equipment and 1392 3.958
intangible assets
Other assets 2.786 7.500 - -
Total assets 5.393 313.683 - 370
LIABILITIES Values at Values at Adj from Adj from ) .
01/01/2015 01/01712015 merger merger Merger difference Merger difference
Due to banks 4.496 277.736 4496 272.316 -
Direct funding from customers 2.236 1.024 2.000 -
Other liabilities 2 5.358 -
Specific provisions - - - -
Shareholders' equity (1.341) 29 565 (1.341) 29 567
Total liabilities 5.393 313.683 5.155 301.883

Chapter H — TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

1. Information concerning the compensation of kapagement personnel

The following table reports the compensation ofdhectors, executives and other key managemesbpeel
of the Bank. The compensation paid to directors statltory auditors is set by specific resolutiohshe

shareholders' meeting.
Amount

a) Short-term benefits * 2565

b} Post-employement benefis 04

c) Other long-term benefis -

d) Termination benefits -

c) Share-based payments -

Total 2,659
* The amount indicated includes the remuneratioit ga directors of € 549 thousand, to the Boardstdtutory Auditors of € 133
thousand and to the Supervisory Board of € 34 thods

1. Information on transactions with related parties
In accordance with IAS 24, as applied to the orgmtional and governance structures of Banca Papdiar
Cividale S.C.p.A., the following natural personsl éegal entities are considered to be relatedqmarti
v subsidiaries: companies over which Banca Popolar€iddale S.C.p.A. directly or indirectly
exercises control, as defined in I1AS 27;
v’ associated companies: companies over which Bangmld&e di Cividale S.C.p.A directly or
indirectly exercises a significant influence, afirde in IAS 28;
v’ joint ventures: companies over which Banca Popathr€ividale S.C.p.A. directly or indirectly
exercises joint control, as defined in 1AS 31;

v' managers with strategic responsibilities and cériioalies: the Directors, Statutory Auditors and
General Manager of Banca Popolare di Cividale S&C.p
other related parties, including:
immediate family members (cohabitants, childrehatmtants’ children, dependents of the person

AN

concerned or cohabitant) of Directors, Statutoryglifars or the General Manager of Banca Popolare

di Cividale S.C.p.A.; and

v' subsidiaries, joint ventures and companies subjesignificant influence by the Directors, Statytor
Auditors, General Managers and Assistant Generaldgers of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.,
in addition to their immediate family members, afirkd above.



The effects of transactions with related partieslefined above on the balance sheet are presemtia i
following summary tables.

EXECUTIVES OTHER
ACSSMOFE:L?JE g AND CONTROL RELATED % of
BODIES PARTIES
Assets
Loans to customers 2.150 395 8.739 0.42%
Board of Directors § 44 5.494 0,32%
Board of Statutory Auditors \ 3N 43 0,01%
Managers with strategic responsibilities & 20 202 0,01%
Liabilities
Due to customers 4.843 754 3.773 0.45%

&\\\\\\%

Income statement

Net interest income (2) 282 0,71%
Board of Directors (3) 308 0,47%
Board of Statutory Auditors \ 5 (15) -0,02%
Managers with strategic responsibilities 4) (11) -0,02%

Net commission income 10 88 0,52%
Board of Directors 6 52 0,26%
Board of Statutory Auditors \ 2 33 0,15%
Managers with strategic responsibilities 2 3 0,02%

Administrative expenses {1.900) - 2,66%
Board of Directors (*) (549) - 0,77%
Board of Statutory Auditors \ (167) - 0,23%
Managers with strategic responsibilities (1.185) - 1,66%

Guarantees and commitments - 157 0,20%
Board of Directors - 157 0,20%
Board of Statutory Auditors \ - - 0,00%
Managers with strategic responsibilities 3 - 0,00%

Indirect funding 2.428 5.381 0,81%

Board of Directors 1.668 585 0,23%
Board of Statutory Auditors 386 3601 0,41%
Managers with strategic responsibilities \ 374 1.195 0,16%

(*) Of which € 91 thousand attributable to Civiléag S.p.A. and € 17 thousand to Tabogan Sl

Transactions with related parties are treated amaldanking operations and are ordinarily setdedrm's-
length conditions for operations or offered on amye favourable terms for which employees areldkgi
Banking transactions with groups run by the dirextd the Company are approved in accordance wiill&
136 of the Consolidated Banking Act and settledrat's-length conditions for such transactions.

It should be noted that no transactions with relgsarties considered major transactions pursuatiigo
Procedures for Related-Party Transactions citesteab@re undertaken during the reporting period.

Chapter | - SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
This item is not applicable to the financial sta¢ens of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.



Chapter L — SEGMENT REPORTING

Criteria for identifying and aggregating operating segments

In application of IFRS 8, the operating segmenksvent for the purposes of segment reporting haenb
identified on the basis of the sectors of actigitgording to which the Bank's business was orgdmnins2015,
which were as follows (considering the registratiéhe merger of Civileasing with the CompaniegiRier
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on 21 December 2015):

v Retail and Enterprise Bankhe segment dedicated to banking activity;
v Leasing the segment dedicated to leasing activity;
The figures from the comparative period have bestated as appropriate.

Segment results — Income-statement data

311212015 3111212014 - Normalized
INCOME STATEMENT DATA
LEASING BANK TOTAL LEASING BANK TOTAL

Net interest income (including result of hedging) 4735 §0.550 §5.285 5225 54250 §9.516
Met commissions (91} 22774 22683 (118) 21.073 20.955
Dividends and net income (lozs) of equity investments accounted for

using equity method - 1.015 1.015 - 827 527
Met trading income 30 &0.820 80.850 (173) 35.797 35.624
Other operating income (expenses) ™ 106 (342) (238) 395 54 455
Operating income 4,780 164.816 169.596 5331 122,151 127.4582
Perzonnel expenses (721) (39.938) (40.857) (766} (39.113) (39.879)
Other administrative expenses = (1.049) (29.655) (30.704) (1.080) (22.8186) (23.906)
Met impairment'write backs on property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets (148} (8.031) (8.179) (179) (1.717) (1.897)
Operating cost (1.918) (77.622) (79.540) (2.036) (63.647) (65.682)
Income (loss) from operating 2.862 87.195 90.056 3.295 58.505 61.800
Chargesiwrite-backs on impairment of loans and financial assets (3.754) (56.639) (60.393) (2.256) (34.793) (37.045)
Goodwill impairment and Profit (loss) on equity investments - (10.043) (10.049) - (5.223) (5.223)
Net provisions for risks and charges (10} (5.568) (5.578) - (2.843) (2.843)
Utile (Perdite} da cessione di investimenti - - - - - -
Income (loss) before tax from continuing operations (902) 14.939 14.036 1.039 15.846 16.584
Tax on income from continuing operations 284 8733 10,017 (466) (10.430) {10.895)
Net income for the period (618) 24.671 24.053 573 5416 5.989
Segment results — Balance-sheet data

IMM212015 311212014 - Hormalized

BSSERS LEASING BANK TOTAL LEASING BANK TOTAL

Financial assets held for trading - 1.220 1.220 - 3.032 3.032

Financial assets available for sale - 1.164.689 1.164.689 18 1.033.821 1.033.838

Financial assets held to maturity - 32716 32.716 - 54697 64 697

Due from banks &7 40.298 40.385 1.031 158.316 1559.347

Loans to customers 271.352 2.412.358 2683.711 301.178 2.434.074 2.735.250

31212015 311212014 - Hormalized

RN LEASING BANK TOTAL LEASING BANK TOTAL

Due to banks - 1.167.164 1.167.164 2T7.738 562651 1.240.387

Due to customers 1.610 2.084.418 2.086.028 1.024 1.893.436 1.894.450

Debt securities issued - 475.730 475.730 - 589.005 589.005

Cividale del Friuli, 23 March 2016

Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A.
The Board of Directors



Appendices
Shareholders and share performance: historical infonation

-
E BALANCE AT END OF YEAR INCOME SHARES
E YEAR ALLOCATED TO
- SHAREHOL SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES THE NOMINAL
E DERS SHARES ARE NET INCOME SHAREHOLDERS DIVIDENDS VALUE PRICE
a CAPITAL RESERWES TOTAL
1 1887 216 1.357 33.825 110 34.035 1.278 - 25 -
5 1891 458 1.607 40175 2.451 428628 4734 2.410 1,50 25 -
10 1896 798 1.936 48.400 19.4585 67.856 6.131 2804 1,50 25 -
15 1901 787 1.995 49.875 36.631 B86.506 1M.717 3.9590 2,00 25 -
20 1906 549 5.347 (1) 133675 16.209 149.284 14.330 6633 1,28 25 -
25 1811 623 5.434 135.850 89.771 205621 29.391 10.868 2,00 25 -
30 1916 606 5.458 136.450 56.481 232,54 20.669 5.551 1,75 25 -
35 1521 16 §.440 161.000 187.162 358.162 166.236 19.320 3,00 25 -
40 1928 190 6.753 (2) 337.650 267.251 604.901 82.155 20.259 3,00 50 -
45 1931 1085 6.755 337.750 1.500.472 1.838.472 85.117 47285 7,00 50 -
50 1936 1.022 6755 337.750 1.310.438 1.648.188 60.626 33775 5,00 50 -
51 1937 1.004 6755 337.750 1.316.473 1.654 223 59963 33775 5,00 50 -
52 1938 994 B8.755 337.750 1.321.181 1.658.911 54718 40.530 5,00 50
53 1939 587 B8.755 337.750 1.325.007 1.882.757 71.259 40.530 5,00 50 -
54 1940 932 8.755 337.750 1.328.891 1.666.641 73.638 35.463 525 50 -
55 1941 985 8.755 337.750 1.332.931 1.670.681 75.230 35.463 525 50 -
56 1942 986 8.755 337.750 1.335.810 1.674.550 75.230 35.463 525 50 -
57 1943 586 6.755 337.750 1.625.605 1.963.355 79.684 31.748 470 50 -
58 15944 854 6.755 337.750 1.651.210 1.988.960 88.103 31.748 470 50 -
59 1545 1.004 §.755 337.750 1.666.565 2.004.318 78.105 31.748 470 50 -
a0 1945 1.008 6.755 337.750 1.711.204 2.048.954 76.164 40.530 5,00 50 -
61 1947 1.006 6.755 337.750 1.670.447 2.008.197 86.192 47285 7,00 50 -
52 1948 1.002 6755 337.750 1.678.400 2.018.150 112 458 47285 7,00 50 -
63 1545 502 (3) 2875 1.337.500 4 085967 5.423 487 305359 200.825 75 500 150
54 1950 518 2.890 1.445.000 4.331.502 5.776.502 388.939 260100 50,00 500 1.500
85 1951 554 4.024 2.042.000 5.564.395 7.606.395 562.026 408.400 100,00 500 1.500
66 1952 603 4777 2.388.500 6.343.517 28.732.017 723.370 525.470 110,00 500 1.500
87 1953 632 12.386 §.193.000 17.444 344 23.837.844 1.950.438 1.486.320 120,00 500 2.000
[ 1954 574 17.668 2.834.000 25.690.506 34524 508 3.150.248 2.120.160 120,00 500 2.000
69 1955 698 17.862 8.931.000 26.326.200 35.257.200 3.685.346 2.143.440 120,00 500 2.000
70 1956 685 17.881 8.995.500 27.481.784 36.477.284 4.175.478 2.518.740 140,00 500 2.000
T 1957 710 18.604 5.302.000 25510721 39212721 4.330.825 2.604.560 140,00 500 2.000
T2 1958 7 22181 11.080.500 36.038.073 47.118.573 4.3599.344 3.102.540 140,00 500 2.500
73 1959 729 23141 11.570.500 36.556.662 50.127.362 4.667.216 3.471.150 150,00 500 2.500
T4 1960 753 25245 12.624 500 43 428 452 56.052.362 4996 161 3.787.350 150,00 500 2.500
75 1961 766 28.862 14.313.000 50848418 65261 418 5162 724 4.580.160 160,00 500 2.500
76 1962 2815 38.404 19.202.000 T2NMT 13 91.319.113 7.715.255 5.144.640 160,00 500 2.500
77 1963 208 43757 21.878.500 24208128 106.084.628 2.840.789 7.001.120 160,00 500 3.000
78 1964 221 45.500 22.750.000 89.671.806 112.421.808 9.115.204 7.280.000 160,00 500 3.000
78 1965 761 46387 23.183.500 93.012.148 116.195.646 10.188.113 7418720 160,00 500 3.000
20 1966 211 52.210 26.105.000 109.282.367 135.387.367 11.034.445 8.353.600 160,00 500 3.000
81 1967 825 57.570 28.785.000 124.157.332 152.842.332 12.607.245 9.211.200 160,00 500 3.000
82 1968 500 65.794 32.857.000 146.713.621 179.610.621 13.668.150 10.527.040 160,00 500 3.000
83 1969 83z 81.805 40.902.500 186.581.596 225.484.098 18.077.305 14.724.300 180,00 500 3.000
B4 1970 1.018 107.782 23.891.000 256.110.458 310.001.458 25.335.679 15.400.780 180,00 500 3.000
a5 1871 1.089 181.737 95.869.500 471.327.686 567.196.186 45.537.000 34.512.650 180,00 500 3.500
6 18972 1.141 26,875  108.437.500 552.843.506 561.281.006 53.674.995 40.831.000 150,00 500 3.500
a7 1973 1.349 269.556 134.778.000 T31.735.552 866.513.552 T3.791.120 56.606.760 210,00 500 3.500
88 1974 1.415 384255 197127500 1.178.887.612 1.374.115.112 132.757.690 102.506.300 260,00 500 4.000
89 1975 1.426 405386 202683.000 1162047211 1.384730211 182552 600 113.502.480 280,00 500 5.000
50 1976 1.373 471185 235587500 1.754645114 1990247114 257 852 700 169630 200 360,00 500 5.000
91 1977 1.436 534 845 257423000 2452831.055 2720.054.055 348.185.700 224835320 420,00 500 7.000
92 1978 1.477 584876 207.332.000 3.004.937.110 3.302.275.110 445.773.200 303.284.760 510,00 500 2.500
93 1979 1.636 T47.084 373.542.000 4905540410 5.279.032.410 785.347.580 537.500.480 720,00 500 12.000
94 1920 1.980 1.028.417 514.208.500 9.061.345120 9575554620 1.355743.850 863.870.280 840,00 500 14.000
95 1981 2174 1.027.102 513.551.000 9.385.487.005 9.500.038.005 1.358.540.250 1.108.270.160 1.080,00 500 18.000
96 1982 2.427 (4) 2.065.656 1.032.828.000 16.845.160.124 17.878.988.124 2.385.151.000 1.735.151.040 840,00 500 14.000
97 1983 2.570 2.072.454 1.038.227.000 17672620254 18.708.847.254 3.302.500.000 1.958.469.030 945,00 500 15.750
98 1984 2,674 (5) 2.062.142 1.031.071.000 18.375.150.Y54 19.410.221.754 3.807.750.000 2.185.249.100 1.050,00 500 17.500
99 1985 2828 5182775 2.591.387.500 27.581.878.254 30.173.265.754 4.130.537.500 2.720.9568.875 525,00 500 8.750
100 1986 3.137 £.186.519 2.593.259.500 28.567.413.91% 31.160.673.41% 6.018.402.100 3.215.641.780 620,00 500 9.500
101 1987 3.660 5.391.402 2.695.701.000 33.036.038.552 35.731.740.552 6.050.855.000 3.180.927 180 550,00 500 10.150
102 1588 4.242 5.742.967 2.871.483.500 39.272.308.522 42143752022 6.890.915.945 3.618.0658.210 630,00 500 10.850
103 1588 4767 6.078.404 3.035.202.000 45.575.098.284 45.014.300.284 7.500.114.253 4133.314.720 680,00 500 11.500
104 1950 5.280 6.420.058 3.210.029.500 S53.480.058.950 56.700.085.450 &.700.000.000 4.685.843.070 730,00 500 12.200
105 1991 5777 7.069.673 3.534.836.500 70.169.883.285 73.704.719.785 9.400.000.000 5.443.848.210 770,00 500 12.500
106 1992 5.870 7.245.997 3.622.998.500 75.999.169.935 79.622.168.435 6.700.000.000 5.579.417.680 770,00 500 13.500
Amounts in thousands of Lire
107 1993 6.295 4972532 24 863 T9.484 104.347 7.150 5.967 1.200 5.000 25.200
108 1994 6.880 5.483.731 27.468 91.586 119.054 6.300 4944 300 5.000 26.000
109 19895 5.928 5.550.567 27753 895.428 123.181 8.500 5.828 1.050 5.000 26.500
110 1996 6.896 5.619.808 28.099 101 450 125545 5.000 6483 1.150 5.000 27.500
111 1997 6.925 5658.775 28294 106750 135.044 5.050 5659 1.000 5.000 28.250
12 1998 7274 5792802 28964 116.158 145122 12.050 6.951 1.200 5.000 29.000
113 1999 7228 5792802 28.964 110.307 138.271 27.050 110,063 19.000 5.000 30.500
114 2000 7187 5792802 28.964 282814 57.778 16.900 5.793 1.000 5.000 30.500
15 2001 8653 6.362.711 36.960 51.744 23704 7.670 6.160 968 5.809 35.008
Amounts in thousands of Euro
116 2002 9257 8.284.320 24853 52.815 27668 5.200 4275 0,516 3,00 18,50
M7 2003 9.357 8.331.320 24994 65.162 50.156 5.930 4289 0,516 3,00 18,75
1Ma 2004 9277 8.331.320 24904 67.316 92.310 5.825 4582 0,550 3,00 19,25
ARk 2005 9.748 5.400.000 28.200 53.366 121.566 12127 5170 0,700 3,00 20,00
First time adoption of the new international accounting standards IAS-IFRS
120 2006 8766  11.750.000 35.250 120.525 155.775 7.448 5.758 0,600 3,00 20,25
121 2007 10,223 14.534.824 44 804 182.336 227.140 5.650 7872 0,600 3,00 21,75
122 2008 10.070 14.534.824 44 804 183.846 228.650 11.640 8.961 0,600 3,00 23,00
123 2009 10,574 15484145 45452 197.608 244080 10.500 5.968 0,450 3,00 23,50
124 2010 11.718  16.634.078 48.502 225217 275.118 10.100 7.485 0,450 3,00 24,00
125 2011 11.805  16.529.341 50.788 223.548 274337 11.630 7618 0,450 3,00 24,50
126 2012 12.309  16.927.763 50.783 244 885 295.668 14.103 5.925 0,350 3,00 24,50
127 2013 12.994  17.022.649 51.068 249.959 301.027 (33.8500 - - 3,00 24,50
128 2014 14.544  16.971.085 50913 221.070 271.983 5.803 - - 3,00 24,50
129 2015 15.250 16.971.085 50.913 238.604 289.517 24.053 5.091 0,300 3,00 19,60

r GET



Board of Statutory Auditors’ report on the separatefinancial statements of Banca Popolare di
Cividale S.C.p.A. at and for the year ended 31 Depwer 2015

Shareholders,

The Board of Statutory Auditors presents to youftileowing report on its activity during the yeanded
31.12.2015, the financial statements for which Hae@&n submitted for your approval, and which tharBof
Directors has made available, along with the Repo®perations and the other prescribed documwittsn
the terms established in applicable legislation.

The Board of Statutory Auditors in office at thealaf this report was appointed by the shareholdegsting
on 25 April 2014 and is composed of its chairmaen&o Bernardi, standing auditors Giovanni Dal lsliag
Gianluca Pico, and substitute auditors Pietro @itund Andrea Volpe.

* *x %

The informational documents presented to the shbédets' meeting provide a description and adequate
illustration of the Bank's performance, with anigation of its financial position, performance amegults in
2015.

* x %

In performing its supervisory and control activitiie Board of Statutory Auditors complied with tlagv,
supervisory regulations for banks, the circulard edmmuniques from the Bank of Italy, the legislatof
reference and the principles of conducted recomeryy Italy’'s National Council of Accountants and
Accounting Experts.

We participated in all meetings of the Board ofddtors and observed the development of compangidasi
and the course of the Bank's performance. The émsguwith which the meetings of the Board of Diocest
were held permitted thorough fulfilment of the diiswure obligations imposed by the law and Artiabés
Association.

Timely interaction with the Auditing Service and etiegs with the Auditing Department, Compliance
Department, Risk Management Department and Loaraif@pnt and the Bank's various other services
resulted in a flow of information that permittecegdate evaluation of the various issues subjexttpervision
and control within the purview of the Board of Statry Auditors.

We always examined the information flows resulfirggn the Auditing Service's reports concerning oady
and extraordinary activities.

Meetings with the independent auditors, Recont&&ir& Young S.p.A., were organised in conjunctigthw
the annual financial statements and on other cacssi

Our review extended to the proper application afoacting and administrative principles and the best
presentation and representation in the finance&kstents of elements with a material impact atdkel of
financial performance and financial position.

In our capacity as internal control and auditinghogttee, pursuant to art. 19, par. 1, of Legiskaidecree
39/2010, we supervised the financial reporting ess¢ the efficacy of internal control systems, the
independent auditing of the annual accounts andhttependence of the auditing firm.

With respect to the pursuit of the common objectagestablished in art. 2545 of the Italian GBalde and
art. 3 of the Articles of Association, please retferthe description and details provided in the d&epn
Operations. In this regard, the Board of Statutbugitors confirm that the criteria adopted by thank in
managing its business were not aimed exclusivetyatpany profitability, but also at achieving tipesific
social function intrinsic to cooperative banks pinsd by the principles of mutual interest.

* *x %

Significant events during the year
Significant events during the year included:

Sale of the equity interest in ICBPI

The sale of the 4.44% interest in Istituto Centosle Banche Popolari Italiane S.p.A. (“ICBPI”) Mercury
Italy S.r.I. (a vehicle indirectly owned by the fisiBain Capital, Advent International and ClessBiGR) was
finalised on 18 December. Following that sale, Baak retains a residual interest in the "new" ICBPI
0.70%.




Mergers
As part of the process of simplifying and reorgamgjshe Group's structure launched in 2013, the saa the

completion of the mergers of Tabogan S.r.l. (ARp@L5) and Civileasing S.p.A. (December 2015).

Specific capital requirements

On 23 December 2015, Banca Popolare di Cividakeived an indication from the Bank of Italy of thepdal
requirements to be satisfied from 1 January 20ddéhtified as a Common Equity Tier 1 ratio of 9.4861 @
Total Capital ratio of 11.4%. The Bank's Directdosnot foresee any difficulty with regard to theremt and
prospective ability of Banca Popolare di Cividalesatisfy those requirements.

* *x %

Subsequent events

Inspection by the supervisory authority
The Bank of Italy’s ordinary inspection of began®Rebruary 2016 and is still ongoing.

On 23 March 2016, the Board of Directors resohethtlude action pursuant to Articles 2393 and 2407
the Italian Civil Code concerning the events reigtio the construction of the new headquarters afc@
Popolare di Cividale and the related real-estatestictions in the agenda of the shareholders' mgeeti

* x %

Intra-group and related-party transactions

The Board of Statutory Auditors confirm that rethfgarty transactions are subject to thorough asss#sof
compatibility by the Board of Directors. It may alse confirmed that such transactions reflect ther@ of
competence and substantial and procedural progridigated in the legislation of reference and zag of
normal banking operations. They are generally stittgethe market conditions for the specific tranigans.
Transactions undertaken with persons serving itipns of administration, management and contrahat
Bank were always carried out in accordance with HB6 of the Consolidated Banking Act, regulatory
provisions and the obligations laid down in art92&nd 239bis of the Italian Civil Code.

Until the merger agreements, the same procedurealgasobserved by persons serving in positions of
administration, management and control at Grouppamies, with regard to transactions undertaken thigh
Bank or other Group companies. In accordance wigiieable legislation, the Board of Directors appo
the Procedures for Transactions with Related Raatiel Associated Parties. In accordance with agigpéc
regulations, the document has been published oBahk's website.

During the year, no atypical or unusual transasti@s defined in art. 2427, par. 2, of the Itaftavil Code,

or the international accounting standards adoptethb European Union, with a material impact on the
financial performance or financial position weredartaken with Group companies, related partiestiver
parties.

* x %

Information on activity performed

Compliance with the law and Articles of Association

As mentioned above, we participated in all meetinfghe Board of Directors and obtained adequate
information regarding the activity performed andnsactions with the greatest impact on financial
performance and financial position undertaken lgyBhank and its subsidiaries.

We may reasonably affirm, on the basis of the mfztion obtained, that such transactions were uakientin
accordance with the law and Articles of Associatimere always in the Bank's interest and did ngeap
manifestly imprudent or excessively risky, were imatonflict of interest, did not conflict with thresolutions
passed by the shareholders' meeting and were matose such as to compromise the integrity oBaek's
assets.

We supervised compliance with the law, Articleg\ssociation and principles of sound managementyand
determined that the directors’ actions were cossistith the law and Articles of Association, comapt with

the principles of sound and prudent managementimratcordance with the need to achieve the Bank's
interests.




Atypical or unusual transactions
In 2015 there were no additional atypical and/onswal transactions to be disclosed pursuant to dbons
bulletin no. DEM/6064293 of 28 July 2006.

Intra-group transactions and transactions with athelated parties
As mentioned above, prior to the merger agreemarita;group transactions were of an ordinary reatur

Complaints pursuant to art. 2408 of the Italian iC&0ode
In 2015 the Board of Statutory Auditors did noteie complaints from shareholders pursuant td24@8 of
the ltalian Civil Code.

Principles of sound management

We investigated and supervised compliance withptiveciples of proper administration, sound and pnid
management, transparency of information and opgygterformance, obtaining information from function
heads, and we do not have any observations osuhjsct.

Adequacy of the organisational structure

To the extent of our competence, we supervisedii@nisational structure, acknowledging the modifans
completed and in progress, and, on the basis ahtbemation obtained from the various company tiorcs,
in light of the Bank's size and complexity, it igraopinion that the organisational structure iseasally
adequate. We agree with the need, as also perceivéte Bank, to continue the process of achietiray
compliance of the organisational structure to @é®ount of the changed context in which the Bardcates.

Adequacy of the administrative and accounting syste

We supervised the adequacy of the administratideagoounting system and the system's ability tpgmig
detect and represent operating events in the fiabstatements and we may reasonably confirm,ge@#tent

of our competence and on the basis of informatibtained from the independent auditors and manager
responsible for financial reports, that the adntiats/e and accounting system is adequate andtelia

The process of verifying the suitability of the adistrative and accounting processes and contoaquiures,
aimed at ensuring the proper, thorough representati operating events in periodic and year-endrfaial
situations, provides a basis for us to expresspamian in favour of the adequacy of the functioerntified

with the manager responsible for preparing com@apunting documents.

Adequacy of the internal control system

The Board of Statutory Auditors assessed and sigaehthe adequacy of the internal control systenitsi
elements and interactions, and reports, firstlyagsessment that the internal control and riskagement
system is essentially adequate and effective It tifjthe Bank's characteristics and risk profie expressed
by the Board of Directors in the Corporate GoveoeaReport.

Our supervisory activity took the form of constamteraction with control functions (Internal AudRisk
Management, Compliance and Anti-Money Launderingh whe aim of determining compliance with
company rules and procedures, and the adequacyeféedtiveness of the overall control system, with
particular regard to risk monitoring and management

It should be noted that a clear degree of autorexmlyindependence has been attributed to the héadstool
functions, who, according to the company's strégteport directly to the Board of Directors, tlansuring
the necessary position of autonomy with respeother company structures.

In view of coordination amongst the various compuseof the company organisation (company bodies,
management structures, risk control, internal &ngliaind legal compliance), the Board of Statutongitors
promoted meetings with company functions, duringcWlit emphasised the need to maintain a strongsfoc
on the compliance of internal information flows.

In this regard, mention should be made of thetusbin of the Risk Committee within the Board, whiis
resulting in greater efficiency in the transmissihinformation between control functions and compa
bodies.

The activity performed by control functions confsnthe importance attributed to risk management and
monitoring mechanisms. In this regard, it is impottto spread and emphasise a culture of contmbl an
compliance with the rules. With regard to credikmanagement in particular, attention should tasvd to
the definitive launch of the anomalous loan managemrocedure (PMG).

In 2015, the Board of Statutory Auditors acknowledighe Bank's initiatives in view of gradual enrement

of the organisational and managerial safeguardbéancredit arena, implemented, in particular, thifoa




process of updating internal rules and procedunesl® applications, with the aim, among other gpafs
adopting the European Central Bank's indicationgeming the timely implementation of the provision
governing non-performing loans and forborne expesur

Finally, the Board of Statutory Auditors, withoutejudice to the planning activities to be undertaked
finalised, as also regards the proportionality giple, believes that the internal control systeraffective as
a whole and reiterates its central role, emphasifie importance of adequate, timely internal imfation
flows. It is in this connection that one shouldwithe process of revising information flows for quany
bodies launched with the specific support of thescdtant Oasi Servizi and aimed at achieving aectffe
integrated reporting system.

As stated in the annual report by the Auditing Depant,“as a whole, the internal control system is beldve
to be suited to permitting conduct of the busiriess manner consistent with the predetermined dbjes,
while ensuring adequate risk management, as algards the proportionality principle, according tdigh
banks apply provisions on this subject in lightheff size and complexity of their operations, theergaof the
business performed and the type of services prdvide

On the basis of the activity performed and theltesi the audits conducted by Internal Audit, Beard of
Statutory Auditors believes that there is room fiather improvement, but that there is no significa
inadequacy of the internal control system.

Annual Corporate Governance Report

The Annual Corporate Governance Report, which kas lorafted and included among the documents aimed
at providing information to the shareholders' nmgtiprovides proper information regarding the auirre
situation.

To the extent of their competence, the auditorsesged a positive judgement of the consistendyeoReport

on Operations.

Evaluation of independence requirements

The Board of Statutory Auditors does not have dgeovations with regard to the application of thaleative
criteria adopted by the Board of Directors to as$ks independence of its members.

The statutory auditors confirm that they remairejmehdent.

Organisation, Supervision and Control Model pursutanl egislative Decree 231/2001

In September 2014, the supervision and control tfoncidentified in Art. 6 of Legislative Decree No.
231/2001 was assigned to the Board of Statutorytérg] as indicated and recommended by the Baitklgf
On this subject, it should be noted that in 2016 Board of Directors approved an updated versiothef
Organisation, Supervision and Control Model Purst@ahegislative Decree 231/01.

The supervisory activity performed did not brindight any critical issues relating to operatinglanternal
control activities.

Independent auditors

The independent auditors issued their report offitla@cial statements at and for the year endeti232015
on today's date. The above report contains a pesipinion, without remarks or exceptions. To tk&eet of
their competence, the auditors expressed a pogitlgement of the consistency of the Report on aijmns.
In particular, the Board of Statutory Auditors ¥ied the adequacy from a methodological standpaifitihe
impairment testing process to which the affectegtzswere subjected.

During meetings with the independent auditors, Bleard of Statutory Auditors was not informed of any
aspects requiring mention and/or circumstancesdagecensure.

The Board of Statutory Auditors also reports thalhds formally submitted its reasoned proposalhw t
shareholders' meeting for the recalculation oftmeunts due to the independent auditors for thieg016-
2018 in light of the mergers (Civileasing).

Remuneration policies

The Board of Statutory Auditors examined the doautrgeverning the Bank's remuneration policies apgto
by the Board of Directors on 6 April 2016. In tineggard, on the basis of the available informatiba,Board
of Statutory Auditors believes that the principlagl down in that document are not in conflict witie

company's objectives, strategies and prudent reskagement policies.




Specific observations

Pursuant to Art. 2426 (1) (5) of the Italian Ci@ibde, the Board of Statutory Auditors reports ti@astart-up
and expansion costs, research and developmentarastpitalised advertising costs have been resedms
assets.

Pursuant to Art. 2426 (1) (6) of the Italian Ci@bde, the Board of Statutory Auditors expressedatssent
to recognition of total goodwill of € 9.136 millipassessed in light of the results of the impaitnbest

The results of the impairment test

The impairment test, conducted in accordance witiermational accounting principles, as well as the
indications contained in Bank of Italy/Consob/ISVBBcument No. 4 of 3 March 2010, indicated the need
to proceed with the impairment of goodwill for € &flllion, as emphasised by the Board of Directditse
reasons for the above impairment loss relate tadhebined effects of the extended economic recessid

the uncertain prospects of a recovery, which haaracularly pronounced influence on the areashictvthe
Bank operates. The results of the analysis conductdetermine the recoverable amount of the CGéiniag

to the full perimeter of the Bank indicate a coesably lower contribution to cash flow generatioover a
significant time horizon - than considered wheredmining the original flows.

* *x %

Shareholders,

On the basis of the information provided in thigsae, the Board of Statutory Auditors may reasopaissure
you that the activity performed and the informatmtained have not brought to light any circumsgsnc
requiring censure and/or irregularities or omissitmbe reported or mentioned in this report.

The Board of Statutory Auditors confirms that thehcial statements have been prepared in accadeitic
the IAS/IFRS issued by the International Account8tgndards Board (IASB) and have also been drafted
compliance with the instructions issued by the Bahkaly.

With respect to the separate financial statemenésmanager responsible for the financial statesnkas
formally confirmed that the Bank has duly fulfilléd obligations, without any remarks and withalgntifying
any problems and/or anomalies.

In their reports, the independent auditors expeegmsitive opinion, without remarks, objections /and
requests for information. To the extent of theimpetence, the independent auditors also expressitivp
opinion concerning the consistency of the reporoparations with the financial statements.

To the extent of our competence, on the basissafiflormation obtained, we have determined thatitlzcial
statements were prepared in accordance with gempeegaration principles and measurement criteria
consistent with accounting standards. The notept=imthe financial statements with the data aathehts
needed to provide ample, detailed information.

Considering the foregoing, in view of the confirioatprovided by the manager responsible for tharfaial
statements, and in light of the positive opiniotivut remarks, objections and/or requests for médron by
the independent auditors, we hereby express oweobno the approval of the financial statementndtfor
the year ended 31.12.2015 and acknowledge thatrtip@sed allocation of the net income for the yBathe
Board of Directors is not in conflict with the lavegulations or Articles of Association.

In conclusion of this report, the statutory auditerould like to express their appreciation to treaidl of
Directors, management and the Company's entirefetahe competence, commitment and professiomalis
they have shown.

Cividale del Friuli, 7 April 2016

The Board of Statutory Auditors
(Renato Bernardi)

(Giovanni Dal Mas)

(Gianluca Pico)



Certification of the financial statements pursuantto Article 81-ter of Consob Regulation No. 11971 of
14 May 1999, as amended

1. We, the undersigned, Michela Del Piero, in the capaf Chairman of the Board of Directors, and
Gabriele Rosin, in the capacity of manager respbmdor the preparation of financial reports, of
Banca Popolare di Cividale S.c.p.A., do herebyifyegiursuant to Article 154-bis, paragraphs 3 and
4, of Legislative Decree No. 58 of 24 February 1,988t the administrative and accounting procedures
used to prepare the financial statements duringé¢hied 1 January — 31 December 2015:

v were adequate with respect to the characteristitteecenterprise; and
4 were effectively applied.
2. Our review of the adequacy and effective applicatibthe administrative and accounting procedures

used to prepare the financial statements at anthéoyear ended 31 December 2015 was based on a
model established by Banca Popolare di CividalgpSicin accordance with thHaternal Control —
Integrated Framework (CoS@nd theControl Objectives for Information and Related Tealogies
(COBIT), which represent generally accepted internatietehdards of reference for the internal
control system and financial reporting in particula

3. Furthermore, we do hereby certify that:

3.1.  The financial statements
a) have been prepared in accordance with the appdicalbbrnational accounting principles
endorsed by the European Community pursuant to IRégu (EC) No. 1606/2002 of the
European Parliament and the Council of 19 July 2002
b) correspond to the results of accounting books eadrds; and
c) are suited to furnishing a true and fair repred@ntaf the financial performance and financial
position of the issuer.

3.2. The report on operations includes a reliable amabysoperating performance and results, as
well as the situation of the issuer and the se¢rdérprises included within the scope of
consolidation, in addition to a description of tinain risks and uncertainties to which it is
exposed.

Cividale del Friuli, 23 March 2016

The Chairman of the Board of Directors Mgararesponsible for financial reports
Michela Del Piero Gabri®esin
[signed] [signed]
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2015 Financial Statements and Report

Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statanents of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A. at
and for the year ended 31 December 2015

Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A Tel: +30 045 BINZ591
Via lsonza, 11 Fax: +30 145 8312550
37128 Verona Ey.com

Building a better
wWorking worla

INDIPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT IN ACCORDANCE WITH ART. 14 AND 16 OF LEGISLATIVE
DECREE M. 25, DATED JANUARY 27, 2010
(Translation from the original [talian text)

To the Shareholders of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.c.p A

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Banca Popolare di Cividale S.c.p.A., which comprise the
balance sheet as at December 31, 2015, the income statement, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and the fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union as
well as with the regulations issued to implement art. 9 of Legislative Decree n. 38, dated February 28,
2005.

Auditor’s responsibibity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (154 [talia) implemented n
accordance with article 11, paragraph 3 of Legislative Decree n. 39, dated January 27, 2010. Those

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's professional judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit cpinion.

Opimion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Banca
Popolare di Cividale S.c.p.A. as at December 31, 2015, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union and with article 9 of Legislative Decree n. 38, dated February 28,
2005

- T Satln Spwciai &) 170008
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on the consistency of the Report on operations and of specific information of the Corporate
govermance report with the financial statement s

We have performed the procedures required under audit standard SA ltalia n. 7208 in order to express
an opinion on the consistency of the Report on operations and of specific information of the Corporate
governance report as provided for by article 123-bis, paragraph 4 of Legislative Decree n. 58, dated
February 24, 1998, with the financial statements, as required by law. The Directors of Banca Popolare
di Cividale 5.c.p.A. are responsible for the preparation of the Report on operations and of the Corporate
governance report in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. In our opinion the Report on
operations and the specific information of the Corporate governance report are consistent with the
financial statements of the Banca Popolare di Cividale 5.c.p.A. as at December 31, 2015,

Verona, April 7, 20716
Reconta Ernst & Young S.p A,
Signed by: Marco Bozzola, Partner

This report has been iramsiated mto the English language soiely for the convenience of intormational readers.
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Property, plant and equipment subject to monetary evaluation

Historical cost

Currency revaluations

Impairments

Carrying amount

ATTIMIS - Via Cividale

BUTTRIO - Via Div. Julia

CIVIDALE - Corso Mazzini

CIVIDALE - Piazza Duomo

CIVIDALE - Via Cavour

GORIZIA - Corso verdi

GRADO - Via Marina

MANZANO - Via della Stazione
PALMANOVA - Piazza Grande

PAVIA DI UDINE - Via Persereano
PORDENONE - Corso Garibaldi

POWVOLETTO - Piazza Liberta

PRATA DI PORDENONE - Fraz. Puja - Via Dante
REMANZACCO - Piazza P. Diacono

5. GIOVANNI AL NATISOME - Via L. Da Vinci
S. LEONARDO - Via Scrutto

5. VITO AL TAGLIAMENTO - Viale del Mattino
SACILE - Viale Lacchin

SAN GIORGIO DI NOGARQ - Via Europa Unita
SPILIMBERGO - Corso Roma
TAVAGNACCO - Via Udine

UDINE - Piazzale XXIV Luglio

UDINE - Via Marsala

245
247
1815
6.188
a7
913
359
929
545
284
7
353
207
403
485
181
635
280
277
320
1.048
1278
545

305
am
72
8506
1.051
133
89

33

73
203
g2
623
10
1.199
1.872
218

21
73
380
173

—

334
534

812
562

591
343
184
308
225
178
283
520

68
874

081

242
171
107

a7
142
825
S48
220

216
584
275
7132
547
703
304
674
390
288
526
456
149
928
1.277
157

238
21
245
T

335



Disclosure of fees for services rendered by the irgendent auditors pursuant to Article 149-duodecies
of Consob Regulation No. 11971/1999

Type of service Fees paid in 2015*

Services provided to the Banca Popolare di Cividale Scpa 219
Independentauditors: Reconta Ernest & Young

- Auditing services 157

-Inspection services forthe purpose of issuing certification 48

15

- Otherservices
* The fees indicated also include the legal auditing of Civileasing S.p.A., merged on 21 December 2015.

r SHT



Country-by-country reporting

In accordance with Circular 285 of 17 December 2(8Bpervisory Provisions for Banks), fourth update
17 June 2014, Banca Popolare di Cividale publighefollowing information concerning its place afdiness
in ltaly:

a) Name of the local company and nature of its buséss

Name:

Banca Popolare di Cividale S.C.p.A., with officeGividale del Friuli at Via Sen. Guglielmo Peliz&4., tax
code and Udine Companies Register no. 02493608Q&tration in the Bank of Italy register no. 5768,
Register of Banking Groups no. 05484.1

Nature of its business:

Financial intermediation (financial services fosmesses, trading and sale, retail intermediatiommercial
banking services, retail banking services, payraedtsettlement, fiduciary management, asset mareagem
and leasing)

The Bank's customers traditionally consist of faéesil craftsmen, professionals and small and medium
enterprises.

Amounts as at 31/12/2015
b) Sales (1) 169.832
c) Humber of full-time equivalents (2) 462
d} Profit or loss before taxes (3) 14.036
&) Income taxes (4) 10,017

f) Public grants received (5) -

(1) "Sales" are defined as operating revenues (itenol#te income statement) (cf. Circular 262)

(2) "Number of full-time equivalents" is determinedtias total hours worked overall by all employees|ding overtime, divided by the total annual
number of hours to be worked by a full-time empyg contract.

(3) "Profit or loss before taxes" is calculated as 250 of the consolidated income statement, purdoaBircular 262;

(4) "Income taxes" are defined as the sum of the tpsesented in item 260 of the income statementuaniso Circular 262;

(5) The item "Public grants received" must include tgaeceived directly from public administrationi§ item does not include transactions
undertaken by central banks for financial stabpitlyposes or transactions with the aim of facifigithe monetary policy transmission mechanism.
Similarly, any transactions part of governmentsaiiemes approved by the European Commission ate hettaken into consideration;
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;) Banca Popolare di Cividale

Societa Cooperativa per Azioni

1886 - 2016: 130 years of history are a milestdivehich we are very proud. This anniversg
has a truly profound meaning for a Bank such as,audnich has made the growth of its log
community its mission.

To emphasise the importance of this anniversaryhawe created a dedicated logo that a
to summarise our historical values, combined withanstant readiness to evolve in keep
with the times; this logo will be used in all comnacations and celebrations in 2016.

The most significant symbolic aspect relates tocthrenections and points of interaction wi
the people and companies in our area (shareholdesspmers, employees, communitig
institutions and suppliers), represented by varmaleurs that also express the Bank's ene
and vitality towards them. A web of relationshipattwill only be further strengthened durir
the year, thanks to the packed schedule of spewgits that we have planned to celebrate

truly unique occasion together.
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